
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 - 7:00 PM
ORION TOWNSHIP MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BOARD ROOM

2323 JOSLYN RD.
LAKE ORION, MICHIGAN 48360

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
3. PROCLAMATION 

A. National Recovery Month
B. National Suicide Prevention Month
C. Patriot Week

4. CITIZEN OF THE MONTH
5. APPROVAL OF BILLS
6. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
8. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Minutes - Regular Meeting - August 15, 2022 
B. Minutes - Public Hearing - BBJ Private Maintenance SAD #1 - August 15, 2022
C. Minutes - Public Hearing - Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD #2 - August 15, 2022
D. Minutes - Public Hearing - Hyatt House Liquor License - August 15, 2022
E. Schedule Budget Workshop 
F. SMART FY23 Municipal Credit & Community Credit Contract 
G. Tuition Reimbursement - Tandem Graves
H. Deputy Treasurer Appointment
I. Hire Treasurer Department Accounting Specialist
J. Fire Department Resignation
K. MEDC Grant Agreement - RRC Technical Assistance

9. PENDING
A. LS-22-04 Devlin Request to Combine Nonconforming Lots of Record 
B. PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Site Condominium and Condominium Documents
C. PC-22-31 1112 through 1128 Lapeer Rd. Rezone
D. Orion Community Foundation 

10. REPORTS
A. Police/Fire Reports
B. Financial Reports - Clerk

11. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
13. ADJOURNMENT

In the spirit of compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with a disability should feel free to 
contact Penny S. Shults, Clerk, at (248) 391-0304, ext. 4001, at least seventy-two hours in advance of the meeting to 
request accommodations.

2
3
4

5

37
42
45
48
49
50
56
57
71
72
73

83
94
243
267
268
271
280

1



Charter Township of Orion 
Oakland County, Michigan 

 
 
 
 

Proclamation 
National Recovery Month 

By the Supervisor of the Charter Township of Orion 
 

Whereas, according to the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), 
in 2020, 40.3 million people aged 12 or older (14.5 percent) had a Substance Use Disorder (SUD) in 
the past year, including 28.3 million who had alcohol use disorder; 18.4 million who had an illicit drug 
use disorder, and 6.5 million people who had both alcohol use disorder and an illicit drug use disorder; 
and 
 
Whereas, according to SAMHSA, in 2020, 22.2 percent of Americans (or 61.6 million people) 12 years 
or older, were binge alcohol users in the past month. The percentage was highest amount young 
adults aged 18 to 25; and 
 
Whereas, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) nearly 92,000 overdose 
deaths occurred in the United States in 2020, which was a 31% increase from 2019; and 
 
Whereas, substance use recovery is important for individual well-being and vitality, as well as for 
families, friends, communities, and businesses; and 
 
Whereas, OCHN continues to educate and raise awareness of the risks and potential harm associated 
with prescription drug misuse; and 
 
Whereas, stigma and stereotypes associated with substance use disorders often keep people from 
seeking treatment that could improve their quality of life; and 
 
Whereas, substance use disorders occur when the re-current use of alcohol and/or other drugs cause 
clinically or functionally significant impairment, such as health problems, disability, and failure to 
meet major responsibilities at work, schools or home; and 
 
Whereas, substance use disorder recovery is a journey of healing and transformation, enabling people 
to live in a community of their choice while striving to achieve their full potential; and 
 
Whereas, substance use disorder recovery benefits individuals with substance use disorders by 
focusing on their abilities to live, work, learn, and full participate and contribute to society and also 
enriches the community culture. 
 
Now Therefore I, Chris Barnett, Supervisor of the Charter Township of Orion, along with the 
Oakland Community Health Network, do hereby proclaim September 2022 as National Recovery 
Month, and call upon our citizens, government agencies, public and private institutions, businesses 
and schools to recommit our state to increasing awareness and understanding of substance use, and 
the need for appropriate and accessible services to promote recovery. 

 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

                                                 Charter Township of Orion 
Issued September 6, 2022 2



Charter Township of Orion 
Oakland County, Michigan 

 
 
 
 

Proclamation 
National Suicide Prevention Month 

By the Supervisor of the Charter Township of Orion 
 
 

Whereas, September is known as National Suicide Prevention Month and is intended to help raise awareness 
surrounding suicide prevention resources available in the community; and 
 
Whereas, World Suicide Prevention Day is observed each year on September 10; and 
 
Whereas, suicidal thoughts can affect anyone regardless of age, gender, race, orientation, income level, religion, 
or background; and 
 
Whereas, according to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), 45,979 people died by suicide in 
the United States in 2020 – one death every 11 minutes; and 
 
Whereas, according to the CDC, 12.2 million adults across the United States seriously thought about suicide, 
3.2 million adults made a suicide plan, and 1.2 million adults attempted suicide; and 
 
Whereas, according to the 2020 Michigan Suicide Prevention Commission Annual Report, 1,389 people in the 
State of Michigan died by suicide during the COVID-19 pandemic, with 1,099 of those deaths relating to men; 
and 
 
Whereas, every year thousands of individuals die by suicide, leaving behind friends and family members to 
navigate the tragedy of loss. Often feelings of shame and stigma prevent them from talking openly; and 
 
Whereas, 988 has been designated as the new three-digit dialing code that will route callers to the National 
Suicide Prevention Lifeline and is now active across the United States; and 
 
Whereas, the National Action Alliance for Suicide Prevention is using #BeThere to educate social media 
followers about the many actions one can take to support a person who is struggling; and 
 
Whereas, Oakland Community Health Network (OCHN) has been an active and engaged member of the 
Oakland County Suicide Prevention Task Force since 2011; and 
 
Whereas, OCHN is committed to being a Zero Suicide organization and cultivating a network of providers who 
are engaged in the Zero Suicide philosophy. 
 
Now Therefore, I, Chris Barnett, Supervisor of the Charter Township of Orion, along with the Oakland 
Community Health Network, hereby proclaims the month of September 2022 as National Suicide Prevention 
Month and calls upon our citizens, government agencies, public and private institutions, businesses and schools 
to recommit our State to increasing awareness and understanding of suicide prevention, and the need for 
appropriate and accessible services to assist individuals in crisis. 

 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

                                                 Charter Township of Orion 
Issued September 6, 2022 3



Charter Township of Orion 
Oakland County, Michigan 

 
 
 
 

Proclamation 
Patriot Week 

By the Supervisor of the Charter Township of Orion 
 

Whereas throughout our Country’s history, the people of our great State and Nation have 
worked together to ensure the preservation of the American ideals of freedom and liberty we 
enjoy today; and 
 
Whereas American patriotism has endured through times of turmoil and times of peace, 
carrying our Nation through the darkest days of history and strengthening our commitment 
to the ideals upon which our Country was founded; and 
 
Whereas a deepening appreciation for those ideals will help guarantee America’s spirit of 
freedom and liberty; and 
 
Whereas in great reverence to the victims of the attacks on September 11, 2001, and 
recognition of the signing of the Constitution on September 17, 1787, Patriot Week is a time 
to celebrate the principles set forth by our Founding Fathers as well as the countless Patriots, 
vital documents, speeches, and flags that helped make America the great Nation it is today. 
 
Now therefore I, Chris Barnett, Supervisor of the Charter Township of Orion, do hereby 
proclaim that the dates of September 11 to and including September 17 be known and 
celebrated as Patriot Week, and September 11, 2022 as Patriot Day, in Orion Township and 
do urge and encourage all residents to join in recognizing and honoring those who have 
guided our nation, state and township in the past and those, especially our First Responders 
who willingly carrying on this tradition today. 

 
 
 
  ______________________________ 
  Chris Barnett, Supervisor 

                                                 Charter Township of Orion 
Issued September 6, 2022 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

1.  CALL TO ORDER.  The Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees held a regular 
meeting on Monday, August 15, 2022, at the Orion Township Municipal Complex Board Room, 
2323 Joslyn Road, Lake Orion, MI  48360 at 7:00 p.m.  

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chris Barnett, Penny Shults, Donni Steele, Brian Birney, 
Julia Dalrymple, Kim Urbanowski

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Mike Flood, with notice.

OTHERS PRESENT:
Jerry Richards           Chris Brouwer           Joseph Belanger          Jim Eppink
Pam Molik                 Karol Farrington       Steve Farrington          Steve Sims
Thomas Patterson      Dino Serraiocco        Art Watson                   Kristy Smith
Jason Smith               George Hanley          Iden Kalabat                 Michael Kalabat
James Peake

2.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE. Penny Shults, Orion Township Clerk gave the invocation.  
All rose for the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. PUBLIC HEARING.
         A. BBJ Private Road Maintenance SAD #1 - Assessment Roll. Held BBJ Private Road 
Maintenance SAD#1-Confirming Assessment roll Public Hearing.

         B. Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD #2 - Assessment Roll. Held Lake Orion Water 
Quality Control SAD#2-Confirming Revised Assessment Roll Public Hearing.

         C. Hyatt House Liquor License -Held Hyatt House Liquor License-Approval for License Public 
Hearing. 

4. CITIZEN OF THE MONTH.  Supervisor Barnett honored Joe Young as Citizen of the 
Month for August. He retires from the village where he served for 5 years. He is honored for his 
dedication and service to the community.

5.  APPROVAL OF BILLS.  Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski to 
authorize payment of bills in the amount of $3.123.072.85 and payrolls of $731.484.73 for a total 
disbursement of funds in the amount of $3,854,557.58 as presented. AYES: Urbanowski, 
Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney, Dalrymple   ABSENT: Flood   NAYS: None MOTION 
CARRIED 

6.  PUBLIC COMMENT.  Public comment was not heard.

37



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

7.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA.  Supervisor Barnett added 8.R Board to establish an Ad-Hoc 
committee. Treasurer Steele to move 8.K. Great Lakes Water Authority Contract No. 4 to 9.A.  
MOTION CARRIED                                                                                         

8.  CONSENT AGENDA. 

A. Minutes - Regular Meeting, July 18, 2022.  Approve, as presented.

B. Minutes – Special Meeting, August 3, 2022.  Approve, as presented.

C. Hire-Assistant to Treasurer. Authorize the hiring of Shannon Gries as Assistant to the 
Treasurer, a Level 8 Technical Union position starting rate of $34.34 per hour, full time, 40 
hours per week, full benefits, effective October 3,2022.

D. Hire Full Time Firefighter-Hunter Marion. Authorize the hiring of Hunter Marion as full 
time Firefighter starting at a rate of $16.40 per hour, full benefits, pending results of Background 
Check, Physical and Drug Screening, effective the week of August 22,2022. 

E. Hire Full Time Firefighter/Paramedic- Tabitha VandeVoort. Authorize the hiring of 
Tabitha VandeVoort as full time Firefighter/Paramedic starting at a rate of $18.08 per hour, full 
benefits, pending results of Background Check, Physical and Drug Screening, effective the week 
of August 22.2022.

F. Service Agreement. Approve the Service Agreement between the Charter Township of Orion 
and Maximus US Services, Inc., with an effective date of February 1,2023, and authorize the 
Township Supervisor to execute.

G. Statement of Work/Agreement. Approve the Statement of Work/Agreement with Place + 
Main Advisors, LLC for the purpose of the development of a Township Marketing Strategy, at a 
cost not to exceed $15,000.  Supervisor to execute and make necessary budget adjustments with 
state grants. 

H. Request for Proposal - Orion Township Consultant and Professional Services. Authorize 
Township Supervisor to issue request for proposals for the selection of consultant and 
professional services for Economic Development Consulting Services, Engineering Services, 
General Legal and Prosecution Services, Auditing Services, Planning and Zoning Services, and 
Electrical, Mechanical, and Plumbing Inspectors. 

I. Resolution of Support-RCOC Application for Brown/Giddings/Silverbell Roads. Approve 
the resolution in support of RCOC’S TEDF Category A grant application for the 
Brown/Giddings/Silverbell Roads reconstruction /resurfacing project. 

38



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

J. Second Quarter Treasurer-Report, Matured, Called, and Purchase of Bonds for 
Water/Sewer and General. Received and filed the Second Quarterly Treasurer Report as 
presented.

K. Purchase - LUCAS CPR Machine-Fire Department-Authorize the purchase of one LUCA 
CPR Machine at a cost not to exceed $18,241.44 from Stryker Medical.

L. Resolution - Future Performance Guarantee Text Amendment. Adopt the Resolution 
referring to the Planning Commission a review of Ordinance 78 section 30.09.

M.  Transmittal of Adopted Master Plan. Received and filed the transmittal containing the 
link to the adopted Orion Township Master Plan. The new Master Plan was adopted on July 
20,2022.

N. Award Bid - Joslyn/Brown Landscaping. Award the bid for Joslyn/Brown Road 
landscaping to KLM Landscape, at a cost not to exceed $90,997.75.

O. Firefighter Resignation.  Accepted the resignation of Michael Lehman, 
Firefighter/Paramedic, with regret, effective July 29,2022.

P. Zoning Board of Appeals Amended By-Laws. Adopted Zoning Board of appeals Amended 
By-Law as presented.

Q. Request for Temporary Street Closure -Mercury Dr. Adopted Resolution allowing the 
temporary closure of Mercury Dr. cul-de-sac from 4:30-8:30 pm on September 17, 2022, subject 
to compliance with all Township requirements.

R. Requested the Board establish an Ad-Hoc Committee-Appointed Supervisor Barnett, 
Trustee Birney, and Trustee Urbanowski to Ad-Hoc Contract Negotiations Team, with Trustee 
Dalrymple as alternate.  

Moved by Treasurer Steel, seconded by Trustee Dalrymple to approve the Consent Agenda, as 
amended.
AYES: Shults, Birney, Urbanowski, Barnett   ABSENT: Flood    NAYS: None
MOTION CARRIED

9.  PENDING.

A. Great Lakes Water Authority Contract No. 4. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by 
Treasurer Steele to approve contact between GLAW and NOCWA. Authorize Supervisor to sign 
the amendment and submit a copy of the board minutes to NOCWA.  Original contract between 
GLWA and NOCWA was updated with changes reflecting the Demand Max Day from 45.1 to 

39



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

43.1 MGD and Peak Hour from 49.1 to 48.6 MGD.  AYES: Steel, Birney, Dalrymple, 
Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults.   ABSENT: Flood   NAYS: None     MOTION CARRIED

B. BBJ Private Road Maintenance SAD #1 - Action after Hearing.  Moved by Clerk Shults, 
seconded by Treasurer Steele to confirm the removal of 09-01-138-044 and adopt the resolution 
confirming the revised Assessment roll for the BBJ Private Road Maintenance SAD#1. AYES: 
Birney, Dalrymple, Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults, Steele.  ABSENT: Flood    NAYS: None 
MOTION CARRIED

C. Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD #2 - Action After Hearing.  Moved by Clerk 
Shults, seconded by Trustee Birney to approve the removal of 09-02-177-006 and 09-02-177-007 
and adopt revised assessment roll for the Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD#2. AYES: 
Dalrymple, Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney   ABSENT: Flood   
NAYS: None   MOTION CARRIED

D. Hyatt House Liquor License - Action After Hearing.  Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by 
Trustee Birney to approve Hyatt House request for a liquor license under Orion Township 
Ordinance 76, Alcoholic Beverages Regulations, contingent upon the State of Michigan, 
Building Department, Fire Department approval and issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy. 
AYES: Barnett, Shults, Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Urbanowski   ABSENT: Flood   NAYS: 
None    MOTION CARRED

E. PC-22-29 Baldwin Village PUD Concept & Eligibility Plan.  Moved by Shults, seconded 
by Trustee Urbanowski that the Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees having considered 
the PUD Eligibility Criteria of:  A: Recognizable Benefit, B: Density Impact, C: Township 
Master Plan, D: Economic Impact, E: Guaranteed Open Space, and Unified Control, to 
APPROVE PC-22-29, Baldwin Village Planned Unit Development (PUD) CONCEPT and 
Eligibility Plan, located at 4410 & 4408 S. Baldwin Rd. (parcel 09-32-301-001), an unaddressed 
parcel 09-32-301-014 located at the NW corner of Morgan and S Baldwin Roads, an 
unaddressed parcel 09-32-151-020located north of 4408 S. Baldwin, and 4292 S. Baldwin 
(parcel 09-32-151-021) for plans date stamped received 7/7/22 for the reasons given by the 
Planning Commission in their motion to recommend conditional approval on August 3,2022 and 
conditioned upon any items the board would like to add.  AYES: Shults, Steele, Birney, 
Dalrymple, Urbanowski, Barnett.  ABSENT: Flood    NAYS: None    MOTION CARRED

F. First Reading - Ordinance 154 Amendments. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee 
Birney to declare the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the first reading of 
the Amendment to Orion Charter Township’s Licensed Marihuana Facilities Ordinance 
(Ordinance No. 154) and direct the Township Clerk to publish said Ordinance in accordance 
with State law and set the second reading of on September 19,2022.
AYES: Steele, Birney, Dalrymple, Urbanowski, Barnett, Shults.  ABSENT: Flood 
NAYS: None     MOTION CARRIED
. 

40



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
MINUTES, REGULAR MEETING, MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

10.  REPORTS.

A. Police/Fire Reports. Moved by Clerk Shults, seconded by Trustee Urbanowski to receive and 
file the Police and Fire Reports. 
MOTION CARRIED

B. Financial Statements – Clerk. Receive and file the Finical Statements and Manal Journal 
Entry Report. MOTION CARRIED  

9.  PUBLIC COMMENT.  Public Comment was heard.

10.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS. Board member comments were heard. 

11. ADJOURNMENT. Moved by Treasurer Steele, seconded by Dalrymple to adjourn. 
MOTION CARRIED   The meeting was adjourned at 8:27pm.

________________________________
    Penny S. Shults, Clerk

Charter Township of Orion
Transcription: Lynnae Smith

_____________________________
                     Chris Barnett, Supervisor

 

41



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES

BBJ PRIVATE ROAD MAINTENANCE SAD#1 
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

1.  CALL TO ORDER.   The Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees held a public hearing 
on Monday, August 15, 2022, at the Orion Township Municipal Complex, 2323 Joslyn Road, Lake 
Orion, Michigan.  Supervisor Barnett called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chris Barnett, Penny Shults, Donni Steele, Brian Birney, 
Julia Dalrymple, Kim Urbanowski

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:  Mike Flood, with notice.

OTHERS PRESENT:  
Jerry Richards           Chris Brouwer           Joseph Belanger          Jim Eppink
Pam Molik                 Karol Farrington       Steve Farrington          Steve Sims
Thomas Patterson      Dino Serraiocco        Art Watson                  Kristy Smith
Jason Smith               George Hanley          Iden Kalabat                Michael Kalabat
James Peake

Supervisor Barnett convened the public hearing at 7:06 p.m.

The Public Hearing was held to afford the opportunity for public comment concerning the 
proposed Assessment roll for the BBJ Private Road Maintenance SAD #1. 

____________________________________________________________________________

The Public Hearing was held from 7:06 p.m. to 7:10 p.m. 
______________________________________________________________________________

William Caddick 631 Johnson would like more information.  He does not have all the details of 
the improvement.

Steve Farrington 625 Beardslee Dr. would like to know what is proposed.  He has concerns and 
does not want the road torn out.  Flooding is a problem for this area. 

Supervisor Barnett addressed the questions raised during the public hearing and corrected that 
this is not a renewal but a new assessment roll.

Steve Sims 698 Butler Drive wanted to know where the documents were located. 

 Clerk Shults said correspondence was received from Damien Hoffman 671 Beardslee Dr. stating 
he is in favor to the SAD, and from Victoria Young-Member with lots on Johnson Dr. and 
Johnson/Porteous Dr. stating she is opposed. 

42



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES

BBJ PRIVATE ROAD MAINTENANCE SAD#1 
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

Seeing and hearing no other citizens were interested in providing comments related to the 
proposed Assessment roll for the BBJ Private Road Maintenance SAD #1, Supervisor Barnett 
adjourned the Public Hearing at 7:12 p.m. 

                                                                      

Transcription: Lynnae Smith
________________________________

      Penny S. Shults, Clerk
Charter Township of Orion

________________________________
         Chris Barnett, Supervisor

43



 

44



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES

LAKE ORION WATER QUALITY CONTROL SAD#2
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

1.  CALL TO ORDER.   The Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees held a public hearing 
on Monday, August 15, 2022, at the Orion Township Municipal Complex, 2323 Joslyn Road, Lake 
Orion, Michigan.  Supervisor Barnett called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chris Barnett, Penny Shults, Donni Steele, Brian Birney, 
Julia Dalrymple, Kim Urbanowski

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:  Mike Flood, with notice.

OTHERS PRESENT:
Jerry Richards           Chris Brouwer           Joseph Belanger           Jim Eppink
Pam Molik                 Karol Farrington       Steve Farrington           Steve Sims
Thomas Patterson      Dino Serraiocco        Art Watson                   Kristy Smith
Jason Smith                George Hanley         Iden Kalabat                 Michael Kalabat
James Peake

Supervisor Barnett convened the public hearing at 7:12 p.m.

The Public Hearing was held to afford the opportunity for the public to comment concerning the 
Assessment roll for the Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD#2.

____________________________________________________________________________

The Public Hearing was held from 7:12 p.m. to 7:21 p.m. 
______________________________________________________________________________

Art Watson  S16 North Shore was asking if this was about weed control?  He also stated he felt it 
was unfair that the only one picking up the tab are the houses on the lake.

Jerry Richard 535 Indianwood Rd, Director of the Lake Orion Lake Association stated SAD#1 
was very successful.  They have 71% of the land mass in support of SAD#2, which is a strong 
indication of support.

Supervisor Barnett commented on the improvement and health of the lake that is important.

Clerk Shults said correspondence was received from Bradley & Sandra Hoover 376 Bellevue 
Ave., Nanette Montgomery 304 Park Island Rd., Brian & Claudia Rocosky 216 O’Connor, Sue 
& Tom Albert 226 S. Broadway, Tim & Sandra Black 304 Lakeview Dr., Thomas & Mary 
Sakala 164 Bellevue Ave stating they are opposed to SAD#2.
Tim & Sarah Barry 525 Indianwood Rd., Richard Benoit 568 Mayer Ct., Dino Serraiocco 752 
Preston Island, Matthew Gates 690 Central Dr., Megan Kosch 429 Indianwood Rd., JoAnn & 
Tom Patterson 65 N. North Shore Dr., Michael Kellar 843 Pine Tree Rd. W, Joseph Belanger 

45



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC HEARING MINUTES

LAKE ORION WATER QUALITY CONTROL SAD#2
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

_____________________________________________________________________________

140 S. Andrews St., George & Susan Dandalides 226 Bellevue Ave., Jerry & Debbie Richards 
535 Indianwood Rd., Kate Kettlewell 335 Indianwood Rd., Kurt & Wendy Stiller 365 
Indianwood Rd., Tom & Ann Carroll 465 Indianwood Rd., Chris & Kristy Brouwer 236 Park 
Island Rd., George Hanley 860 Island Pt., Mike Monaghan 67 Chamberlain St., Hannah & Karl 
Roehrig 219 Bellevue Ave., Patrick Hertzke 710 King Cir., Elaine & Donald Hoffman 188 Park 
Island Rd., Smokoski Family Trust 823 & 833 Fairview, Robert & Denise Wisner 523 
Longpointe Dr., Ursula & Douglas Ammerman 259 Pine Tree Rd., Lisa Hudson & Kevin Cote 
215 Bellevue Ave., John Fuery 24 Highland Ave., Jim McKelvey 167 Park Island & II Victoria 
Island, Amy Michajlyszyn 231 Bellevue Ave., Colette & Robert Judge 55 N. North Shore Dr., 
John Strand 118 Highland Ave., C Jeanotte & S. Weingartz 805 Fairview St., James & Erin 
Crane 488 Bellevue Ave., Jim & Alicia Phillips 124 Highland Ave., Stella & Johannes Merck 
354 N. North Shore Dr., Robert & Nancy Wade 121 Laketon Ct., Craig Stephen 83 N. North 
Shore Dr. stating they are in favor of SAD#2.

See and hearing no other citizens were interested in providing comments related to the proposed 
Assessment roll for the Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD#2, Supervisor Barnett adjourned 
the Public Hearing at 7:21 p.m. 

  

                                                                      

Transcription: Lynnae Smith
________________________________

      Penny S. Shults, Clerk
Charter Township of Orion

________________________________
         Chris Barnett, Supervisor

46



              

47



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PUBLIC HEARING 

HYATT HOUSE LIQUOR LICENSE
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2022

1.  CALL TO ORDER.   The Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees held a public hearing 
on Monday, August 15, 2022, at the Orion Township Municipal Complex, 2323 Joslyn Road, Lake 
Orion, Michigan.  Supervisor Barnett called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chris Barnett, Penny Shults, Donni Steele, Brian Birney, 
Julia Dalrymple, Kim Urbanowski

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT:  Mike Flood, with notice.

OTHERS PRESENT:  
Jerry Richards           Chris Brouwer           Joseph Belanger           Jim Eppink
Pam Molik                 Karol Farrington       Steve Farrington           Steve Sims
Thomas Patterson      Dino Serraiocco        Art Watson                   Kristy Smith
Jason Smith               George Hanley          Iden Kalabat                 Michael Kalabat
James Peake

Supervisor Barnett convened the public hearing at 7:22 p.m.

____________________________________________________________________________

The Public Hearing was held from & 7:22 p.m. to 7:23 p.m. 
______________________________________________________________________________

Supervisor Barnett stated his support, and also the benefits of having the corridor improvement 
authority. 

Ivan & Michael Callett  313333 Suite 250 Southfield Rd. Beverly Hills stated the uniqueness of 
this project, location and improvement in the Brown Rd. district make it ideal for this 
application.  A license like this is issued for a redevelopment that is specific to this use only for 
that user. They have broke ground at 95 Brown Road.

Seeing and hearing no other citizens were interested in providing comments related to the Hyatt 
Liquor License, Supervisor Barnett adjourned the Public Hearing at & 7:23 p.m. 

                                                                      
Transcription: Lynnae Smith

________________________________
      Penny S. Shults, Clerk

Charter Township of Orion

________________________________
         Chris Barnett, Supervisor              

48



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Ashley Coyle, Budget & Procurement Director 

Meeting Date: September 19, 2022 

Memo Date: August 26, 2022 

Subject: Schedule Budget Workshop 
 

 

REQUEST 
The request is to convene the Township Board of Trustees for a 2023 Budget Workshop 

REASON 
To receive presentations from the Budget and Procurement Director and department directors regarding their 
preliminary 2023 budget proposals.  

PROCESS 
The meeting will be held at 6:00 p.m., prior to the regular Board of Trustees meeting on September 19th, 2022, in the 
Board Room at the Township Municipal Complex (2323 Joslyn Rd.). 

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
Schedule a Budget Workshop with the Board of Trustees on September 19th, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. in the Board Room at 
the Township Municipal Complex (2323 Joslyn Rd.) and authorize the Clerk to post as an open meeting.  
 

 

 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

49



Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary

To: Board of Trustees
From: Chris Barnett, Supervisor

Meeting Date: September 6, 2022
Memo Date: August 30, 2022

Subject: SMART Municipal Credit Contract for FY 2023

REQUESTS
Attached is the Municipal Cred Contract from SMART for FY2023. The amount the Township is eligible to receive is 
$33,069.00. These funds will be used to help fund the Township’s share of the North Oakland Transportation Authority 
(NOTA), and SMART sends the funds directly to NOTA.

REASON

PROCESS

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Approve the FY2023 SMART Municipal Credit Contract and authorize the Supervisor to sign it with the understanding 
that the funds will be used to help fund the Township’s participation in NOTA, which will reduce the amount needed 
from the General Fund.

attachment

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

50



  

MUNICIPAL CREDIT and COMMUNITY 
CREDIT CONTRACT FOR FY2023  

 
I, CHRIS BARNETT, as the TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR of the ORION TOWNSHIP (hereinafter, the 
“Community”) hereby apply to SMART and agree to the terms and conditions herein, for the receipt and 
expenditure of Municipal Credits available for the period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023  (Section 1 
below), and Community Credits available for the period July 1, 2022 to June 30 2023 (Section 2 below); and 
further agree that the Municipal and Community Credits Master Agreement between the parties is 
incorporated herein by reference.  A description of the service the Community shall provide hereunder is set 
forth in Exhibit A, and the operating budget for that service is set forth in Exhibit B, both of which are attached 
hereto and incorporated herein.  
 
1. The Community agrees to use $ 33,069.00 in Municipal Credit funds as follows:   
 
(a) Transfer to __________________________  Funding of: $ ______________ 
                TRANSFEREE COMMUNITY 
         
(b) Van/Bus Operations     At the cost of: $ ______________ 
 (Including Charter and Taxi services) 
 
(c) Services Purchased from SMART    At the cost of: $ ______________ 
 (Including Tickets, Shuttle Services/Dial-a-Ride) 
 
(d) Services Purchased from Subcontractor  At the cost of: $ 33,069.00______ 
 NOTA_____________________________ 
 (NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR) 
 (See attached Subcontractor Service Agreement) 
         Total    $ 33,069.00 
 
SMART intends to provide Municipal Credit funds under this contract to the extent funds for the program 
are made available to it by the Michigan Legislature pursuant to Michigan Public Act 51 of 1951.  Municipal 
Credit funds made available to SMART through legislative appropriation are based on the State’s approved 
budget.  In the event that revenue actually received is insufficient to support the Legislature’s appropriation, 
it will result in an equivalent reduction in funding provided to the Community pursuant to this Contract.  In 
such event, SMART reserves the right, without notice, to reduce the payment of Municipal Credit funds by 
the amount of any reduction by the legislature to SMART.  All Municipal Credit funding must be spent by 
June 30, 2025; all funds not spent by that date will revert back to SMART pursuant to Michigan Public Act 
51 of 1951, for expenditure consistent with Michigan law and SMART policy. 
 
 
2. The Community agrees to use $ 0 in Community Credit funds available as follows:   
 
(a) Transfer to ______________________________ Funding of: $ ______________ 
                 TRANSFEREE COMMUNITY 
         
(b) Van/Bus Operations     At the cost of: $ ______________ 
 (Including Charter and Taxi services) 
 
(c) Services Purchased from SMART    At the cost of: $ ______________ 
 (Including Tickets, Shuttle Services/Dial-a-Ride) 
 
(d) Capital Purchases     At the cost of: $ ______________ 51



  

 
(e) Services Purchased from Subcontractor  At the cost of: $ _______________ 
 _____________________________ 
 (NAME OF SUBCONTRACTOR) 
 (See attached Subcontractor Service Agreement) 
         Total   $ 0 
 
To the extent that this Contract calls for a payment of funds directly from SMART to a subcontractor, 
Community hereby acknowledges that it is the party entitled to receive such funds and is affirmatively 
authorizing and directing SMART to pay such funds directly to the subcontractor on its behalf.  Capital 
purchases permitted with Community Credits are subject to applicable state and federal regulations, and 
SMART policy, including procurement guidelines.  When advantageous, SMART may make procurements 
directly.  Reimbursement for purchases made by Community requires submission of proper documentation to 
support the purchase (i.e. purchase orders, receiving reports, invoices, etc.).   Community Credit dollars 
available in FY 2023, may be required to serve local employer transportation needs per the coordination 
requirements set forth in the aforementioned Master Agreement.  All Community Credit funds must be spent 
by June 30, 2026 any funds not spent by that date may revert back to SMART for expenditure consistent 
with SMART policy. 
 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, 
which shall be considered as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect 
as an original signature. The Parties agree that the electronic signatures appearing on this Agreement are 
the same as handwritten signatures for the purposes of validity, enforceability and admissibility. Without 
limitation, “electronic signature” shall include faxed versions of an original signature or electronically 
scanned and transmitted versions (e.g., via pdf) of an original signature. 
 
This Agreement shall be binding once signed by both parties. 
 
 
SUBURBAN MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

 ORION TOWNSHIP 

 
 

  
 

Signature  Signature 
 
DWIGHT FERRELL 

  
CHRIS BARNETT 

Printed Name  Printed Name 
 
GENERAL MANAGER 

  
TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR 

Title  Title 
 
 

  
 

Date  Date 
              
  

52



  

EXHIBIT A  (NOTA) 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 

Overall Project Description (Provide a descriptive narrative): 
Orion Township contracts with NOTA to provide transportation for its residents. 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________ 
 
Service Area (Provide geographic boundaries):  
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Service Times (Provide days and hours of service):  
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Eligible User Groups (Users eligible to use the service):  
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Fare Structure (Cost to use service): 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Service Mode (Describe the number and type of vehicles used and if they are wheelchair lift-equipped): 
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________ 
  

53



  

EXHIBIT B 
 

PROJECT OPERATING BUDGET 
 

Municipality: ORION TOWNSHIP 
 

Contract Period: July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023 
 

Account Number: 48236 
 

OPERATING EXPENSES:   
Administrative Fee: (All employees 
other than drivers and dispatchers) 
     (10% max. of MC & CC funds) 

  

Driver Wages   
Fringe Benefits   
Gasoline & Lubricants   
Vehicle Insurance   
Parts, Maintenance Supplies   
Mechanic Wages   
Fringe Benefits   
Dispatch Wages   
Other (Specify)   

Sub-Total (Operating Expenses)   $ 0 
 
PURCHASED SERVICE: 

  

Taxi Service   
Charter Service   
SMART Bus Tickets   
SMART Shuttle Service   
SMART Dial-A-Ride   
Other (NOTA)  $ 33,069.00  

Sub-Total (Purchased Service)  $ 33,069.00 
 
CAPITAL EQUIPMENT: 
(Only list purchases to be made with Community Credits) 

Computer Equipment   
Software   
Vehicle   
Maintenance Equipment   
Other (Specify)   

Sub-Total (Capital Equipment)  $ 0 
 
TOTAL EXPENSES:                  
Operating Expenses, Purchased Service, 
and Capital Equipment: 

  
 
 
$ 33,069.00 

54



  

EXHIBIT B, continued (Page 2) 
 
REVENUES:   

Municipal Credit Funds $ 33,069.00  
Community Credit Funds $ 0  
Specialized Services Funds   
General Funds   
Farebox Revenue   
In-Kind Service   
Special Fares (Contracted Service)   
Other (Specify)   

 
TOTAL REVENUE: 

  
$ 33,069.00 

 
(Note:  TOTAL EXPENSES must equal TOTAL REVENUE) 

 

 

55



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor
Meeting Date: September 6, 2022

Memo Date: September 1, 2022
Subject: Tuition Reimbursement Request - Tandem Graves

REQUEST
Request from Tandem Graves, Accounting Controller, for reimbursement of Global Dimensions in Business course 
through Southern New Hampshire University.  Course begins 8/29/2022 and ends on 10/23/2022.

REASON
This course is required to complete accounting degree. 

PROCESS
Per the Tuition Reimbursement Policy, approved reimbursement will be processed after the employee completes twelve 
(12) months of continuous employment with the Township, following successful completion of coursework.  Estimated 
reimbursement should take place after 10/26/2022 and will be budgeted for in the 2023 budget year.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Authorize Tandem Graves to take the Global Dimensions in Business course and approve reimbursement in an amount 
not to exceed $960.00, contingent upon all requirements as listed in the Tuition Reimbursement Policy.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

56



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Donni Steele, Township Treasurer
Meeting Date: September 7, 2021

Memo Date: August 31, 2022
Subject: Deputy Treasurer Appointment.

REQUEST
To Appoint Shannon Gries as Deputy Treasurer 

REASON
To maintain consistency and continuity by having the Deputy on staff at the Township for safety and better operations in 
the Township and Treasurer Department.  

PROCESS
Please review the attached documents-- attorneys' opinion, resolution, and compensation for this position. The Deputy 
Treasurer will act on behalf of the Treasurer in their absence.   

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
To Remove current standing Deputy Treasurer Pamela Dohm; and have Treasurer sign letter thanking Pam her for her 
service and appoint Shannon Gries as Deputy Treasurer. On September 7, 2022; have Clerk swear in Shannon Gries; 
prorate deputy treasurer salary as state above and transfer the surety bond from Pam Dohm to Shannon Gries. 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

57



Exhibit A

58



LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 
 
 _____ day of _____________ 2022, is by 
and between the Charter Township of Orion ("Township") and the Teamsters Union Local 214, 
Technical Unit ("Union"), and SHANNON GRIES 

 
 

RECITATIONS 
 

WHEREAS, the Orion Township Treasurer is statutorily required under MCL 41.77(5) to 
appoint a Deputy Treasurer to perform certain duties authorized by statute and delegated by the 
Township Treasurer; and  

 
WHEREAS, statutory duties delegated may be outside of the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement (CBA) between Orion Township and Teamsters Union Local 214 (Union); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Treasurer desires to appoint an Employee who currently is a full-time 

Accounting Specialist represented by Union and the terms of the CBA; and 
 
WHEREAS, 

Assistant to the Treasurer represented by the Union and the terms of the CBA; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township acknowledges its obligation under the Public Employee 

Relations Act (PERA) to recognize the Union as the sole representative of employees represented 
by the CBA.  
 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS, upon approval of the Board of 
Trustees, the Township and undersigned Union and undersigned Employee hereby agree to the 
following terms: 
 

1. The Parties agree the intent of this LOA is to clarify and memorialize their agreement and 
understanding that CBA-represented classification is an exclusively distinct 
and separate role from a Deputy Treasurer appointment and the Parties further specify their 
agreement the two positions are isolated as follows: 

a.  terms and conditions of employment in the capacity of Accounting 
Specialist and/or Assistant to the Treasurer shall be subject to the CBA and other 
Township policy and practices currently known to be in effect. 

b. ppointment to Deputy Treasurer and the assignment and performance 
of associated duties shall be exclusively subject to the provisions of MCL 41.77(5) 
and is an at-will position subject to the solely discretion of the sitting Treasurer. 

c. Employee shall be permitted to perform Deputy Treasurer duties during a standard 
workday and that performance of those duties shall  
duties as Accounting Specialist and/or Assistant to the Treasurer. 

59



2 
 

2. represented 
classification(s) determined as 
distinct and separate from one another. 

a. (s) shall be 
determined solely by the CBA and subject to changes as agreed with the Union. 

b. Compensation for the performance of Deputy Treasurer duties shall be determined 
by the Board of Trustees in accordance with MCL 41.77(5) and subject to 
adjustment at the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees. Upon execution of this 
LOA, annual compensation shall be $3,353. 

i. incrementally issued bi-weekly, via 
Township direct deposit on separate pay advice statements. 

ii. Employee shall be issued a standard W-2 to report regular earnings as 
Accounting Specialist and/or Assistant to the Treasurer. 

iii. Employee shall be issued a 1099 to report compensation as Deputy 
Treasurer. 

3. deemed as formal acceptance 
of appointment to Deputy Treasurer, pending approval by the Board of Trustees. 

a. Employee agrees appointment is at-will and shall serve at the pleasure of the 
Treasurer. 

b. Employee agrees to comply with all statutory provisions to include delivery of 
bonding and oath requirements to the Township Clerk in accordance with MCL 
41.77(5). 

c. Employee may submit appropriate notice to resign the Deputy Treasurer 
 

d. Employee shall not be prevented or discouraged by Township from pursuing 
transfer or promotional opportunities that may require resignation of Deputy 
Treasurer appointment. 

4. The Parties agree this LOA, except as recited above, is a standalone agreement which does 
not alter or extend any other terms and conditions of the CBA and shall have no 
precedential effect of any kind or description in any forum whatsoever, as a comparison or 
otherwise.  

5. The Union and Employee each agree to waive any objection, grievance, unfair labor 
practice, or dispute based on  pay or removal as 
Deputy Treasurer. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed and shall become 

effective on the date of the last signature stated below, subject to the approval of the Board of 
Trustees. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION UNION and EMPLOYEE  

 
By:  _______________________________  By:         
 Chris Barnett          
Its: Township Supervisor    Teamsters Representative 

60



3 
 

 
Dated:  _____________________________  Dated:        
 
 
By:  _______________________________  By:         
 Donni Stele     Shannon Gries 
Its: Township Treasurer    Employee 
 
Dated:  _____________________________  Dated:        

61



Exhibit B

62



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESOLUTION TO  
APPROVE COMPENSATION FOR APPOINTED AT-WILL DEPUTY TREASURER 

 
At a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees, Oakland County, 

Michigan, held on the 6th day of September, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., with the following members 

in attendance: 

 PRESENT:             

 ABSENT:             

 The following preamble and Resolution were offered by      and 

seconded by      . 

WHEREAS, the Treasurer o f  the  Charter Township of Orion wishes to appoint a 

Deputy Treasurer, effective on or around September 7, 2022, who shall, in accordance with 

statutory authority, replace the prior Deputy Treasurer, whose appointment shall be terminated 

upon the administration of the required oath; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 41.77 (5), the Deputy Treasurer shall be authorized 

with all of the powers and duties set forth under State law, as delegated by the Township 

Treasurer; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is authorized by law to set and approve the 

compensation of an appointed Deputy Treasurer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees 

for the Charter Township of          Orion does hereby acknowledge appointment of SHANNON 

GRIES to serve as Deputy Treasurer at the pleasure of the Orion Township Treasurer; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to MCL 41.77(5) the Board of 

Trustees approves annual compensation for the Deputy Treasurer in the amount of Three 

Thousand Five Hundred Thirty-Five ($3,535.00) Dollars to be paid in bi-weekly 

increments via standard payroll. 

63



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.  

AYES:    
 
NAYS:     

ABSENT:    

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
 ) ss 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 
 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted at a 
regular meeting of the Charter Township of Orion, Oakland County, Michigan, on the 6th day of 
September, 2022, the original of which is on file in my office. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this ____ day of 
September, 2022. 

 
             
     Clerk Penny Shults 
     Charter Township of Orion 

 

64



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION
 COUNTY OF OAKLAND
STATE OF MICHIGAN

BOARD OF TRUSTEES RESOLUTION TO 
APPROVE COMPENSATION FOR APPOINTED AT-WILL DEPUTY TREASURER

At a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees, Oakland County, 

Michigan, held on the 6th day of September, 2022, at 7:00 p.m., with the following members 

in attendance:

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

The following preamble and Resolution were offered by  and 

seconded by .

WHEREAS, the Treasurer of  the Charter Township of Orion wishes to appoint a 

Deputy Treasurer, effective on or around September 7, 2022, who shall, in accordance with 

statutory authority, replace the prior Deputy Treasurer, whose appointment shall be terminated 

upon the administration of the required oath;

WHEREAS, pursuant to MCL 41.77 (5), the Deputy Treasurer shall be authorized 

with all of the powers and duties set forth under State law, as delegated by the Township 

Treasurer; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees is authorized by law to set and approve the 

compensation of an appointed Deputy Treasurer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, the Board of Trustees 

for the Charter Township of          Orion does hereby acknowledge appointment of SHANNON 

GRIES to serve as Deputy Treasurer at the pleasure of the Orion Township Treasurer; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, pursuant to MCL 41.77(5) the Board of 

Trustees approves annual compensation for the Deputy Treasurer in the amount of Three 

Thousand Five Hundred Thirty-Five ($3,535.00) Dollars to be paid in bi-weekly 

increments via standard payroll.
65



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

AYES:  

NAYS:   

ABSENT:  

CERTIFICATION

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
) ss

COUNTY OF OAKLAND )

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted at a 
regular meeting of the Charter Township of Orion, Oakland County, Michigan, on the 6th day of 
September, 2022, the original of which is on file in my office.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto affixed my official signature this ____ day of 
September, 2022.

Clerk Penny Shults
Charter Township of Orion

66



LETTER OF AGREEMENT 

 

 

 THIS Letter of Agreement (“LOA”) dated this ______ day of _____________ 2022, is by 

and between the Charter Township of Orion ("Township") and the Teamsters Union Local 214, 

Technical Unit ("Union"), and SHANNON GRIES (“Employee”) collectively referred to as the 

“Parties” to memorialize understanding between the Parties as set forth hereto. 

 

RECITATIONS 

 

WHEREAS, the Orion Township Treasurer is statutorily required under MCL 41.77(5) to 

appoint a Deputy Treasurer to perform certain duties authorized by statute and delegated by the 

Township Treasurer; and  

 

WHEREAS, statutory duties delegated may be outside of the Collective Bargaining 

Agreement (CBA) between Orion Township and Teamsters Union Local 214 (Union); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Treasurer desires to appoint an Employee who currently is a full-time 

Accounting Specialist represented by Union and the terms of the CBA; and 

 

WHEREAS, effective on or around October 3, 2022, Employee’s classification shall be 

Assistant to the Treasurer represented by the Union and the terms of the CBA; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Township acknowledges its obligation under the Public Employee 

Relations Act (PERA) to recognize the Union as the sole representative of employees represented 

by the CBA.  

 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS, upon approval of the Board of 

Trustees, the Township and undersigned Union and undersigned Employee hereby agree to the 

following terms: 

 

1. The Parties agree the intent of this LOA is to clarify and memorialize their agreement and 

understanding that Employee’s CBA-represented classification is an exclusively distinct 

and separate role from a Deputy Treasurer appointment and the Parties further specify their 

agreement the two positions are isolated as follows: 

a. Employee’s terms and conditions of employment in the capacity of Accounting 

Specialist and/or Assistant to the Treasurer shall be subject to the CBA and other 

Township policy and practices currently known to be in effect. 

b. Employee’s appointment to Deputy Treasurer and the assignment and performance 

of associated duties shall be exclusively subject to the provisions of MCL 41.77(5) 

and is an at-will position subject to the solely discretion of the sitting Treasurer. 

c. Employee shall be permitted to perform Deputy Treasurer duties during a standard 

workday and that performance of those duties shall not interfere with Employee’s 

duties as Accounting Specialist and/or Assistant to the Treasurer. 

67



2 
 

2. The Parties agree compensation for performance of duties in Employee’s represented 

classification(s) and Employee’s appointment to Deputy Treasurer shall be determined as 

distinct and separate from one another. 

a. Compensation for performance in Employee’s represented classification(s) shall be 

determined solely by the CBA and subject to changes as agreed with the Union. 

b. Compensation for the performance of Deputy Treasurer duties shall be determined 

by the Board of Trustees in accordance with MCL 41.77(5) and subject to 

adjustment at the sole discretion of the Board of Trustees. Upon execution of this 

LOA, annual compensation shall be $3,353. 

i. Employee’s compensation shall be incrementally issued bi-weekly, via 

Township direct deposit on separate pay advice statements. 

ii. Employee shall be issued a standard W-2 to report regular earnings as 

Accounting Specialist and/or Assistant to the Treasurer. 

iii. Employee shall be issued a 1099 to report compensation as Deputy 

Treasurer. 

3. The Parties agree Employee’s signature on this LOA shall be deemed as formal acceptance 

of appointment to Deputy Treasurer, pending approval by the Board of Trustees. 

a. Employee agrees appointment is at-will and shall serve at the pleasure of the 

Treasurer. 

b. Employee agrees to comply with all statutory provisions to include delivery of 

bonding and oath requirements to the Township Clerk in accordance with MCL 

41.77(5). 

c. Employee may submit appropriate notice to resign the Deputy Treasure 

appointment at Employee’s sole discretion. 

d. Employee shall not be prevented or discouraged by Township from pursuing 

transfer or promotional opportunities that may require resignation of Deputy 

Treasurer appointment. 

4. The Parties agree this LOA, except as recited above, is a standalone agreement which does 

not alter or extend any other terms and conditions of the CBA and shall have no 

precedential effect of any kind or description in any forum whatsoever, as a comparison or 

otherwise.  

5. The Union and Employee each agree to waive any objection, grievance, unfair labor 

practice, or dispute based on Employee’s appointment, performance, pay or removal as 

Deputy Treasurer. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed and shall become 

effective on the date of the last signature stated below, subject to the approval of the Board of 

Trustees. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION UNION and EMPLOYEE  

 

By:  _______________________________  By:         

 Chris Barnett          

Its: Township Supervisor    Teamsters Representative 

68



3 
 

 

Dated:  _____________________________  Dated:        

 

 

By:  _______________________________  By:         

 Donni Stele     Shannon Gries 

Its: Township Treasurer    Employee 

 

Dated:  _____________________________  Dated:        

69



70



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor
Meeting Date: September 6, 2022

Memo Date: September 1, 2022
Subject: Hire Full Time Accounting Specialist - Treasury - Brittney Bunker

REQUEST
To approve the hiring of Brittney Bunker as Accounting Specialist - Treasury: Full Time, 40 hours per week, full benefits, 
Level 7, Union position.  

REASON
It is the recommendation of the Township Supervisor, Treasurer, and Human Resources to hire Brittney Bunker as a full 
time Accounting Specialist for the Treasury Department. 

PROCESS
The interview and selection process were completed by the Township Supervisor, Treasurer, and Human Resources.  

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Hire Brittney Bunker as Full Time, Level 7, Technical Union position, Accounting Specialist - Treasury, at the starting rate 
of $27.38 per hour, full time, 40 hours per week, full benefits, effective September 19, 2022, pending results of 
Background Check, Physical and Drug Screening.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

71



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor
Meeting Date: September 6, 2022

Memo Date: September 1, 2022
Subject: Accept Resignation of Tabitha Vande Voort, Full Time Firefighter/Paramedic

REQUEST
Accept with regret resignation of full time Firefighter/Paramedic, Tabitha Vande Voort, effective August 28, 2022.  

REASON
I am requesting we accept the resignation of the full time Firefighter/Paramedic, Tabitha Vande Voort, dated and 
effective August 28, 2022..

PROCESS
Board approval of the resignation submitted by Firefighter/Paramedic Tabitha Vande Voort.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Accept the resignation of full time Firefighter/Paramedic, Tabitha Vande Voort, with regret based on submitted letter 
dated and effective August 28,2022.

☒ Consent ☐ Pending

72



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Samantha Timko, Chief of Staff 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2022 

Memo Date: August 31, 2022 

Subject: MEDC Grant Agreement - RRC Technical Assistance 

 

REQUEST 
The request is to approve the Agreement with the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) for the 
purposes of hiring services to develop a comprehensive community marketing strategy for Orion Township. 

REASON 
A Marketing Strategy is required as part of the Michigan Economic Development Corporation (MEDC) Redevelopment 
Ready Communities (RRC) certification. The Township has been working towards MEDC RRC Certification since the 
summer of 2019. With the approval of the updated Master Plan, the last major piece the Township still needs to 
complete is a marketing strategy.  
 
To assist communities with certification, MEDC offers Technical Assistance dollars for RRC engaged communities that 
have made continuous progress towards certification over the past six months. Orion Township has been approved for a 
75/25 technical assistance match grant to complete the marketing strategy.  
 
At the August 15, 2022 Regular Board of Trustees Meeting, the Board approved entering into an agreement with Place + 
Main Advisors to develop the Township's marketing strategy.  

PROCESS 
The grant agreement is for the period August 1, 2022 to May 31, 2023, which covers the timeframe proposed by Place + 
Main to complete the marketing strategy (October 1, 2022 to January 31, 2023). 
 
The total cost for the development of the marketing strategy is $15,000. 75% (or $11,250) will be reimbursed by MEDC 
through the RRC Technical Assistance funding grant. The Township will be responsible for the remaining 25% (or 
$3,750). The Township will be utilizing savings in the General Fund, General Activities - Contractual Help to cover the 
25% Township cost. The spending for this item was approved at the August 15, 2022 board meeting.  

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
I move to approve the agreement with the Michigan Economic Development Corporation for the purposes of receiving 
grant funding to hire services to develop a comprehensive community marketing strategy for Orion Township and 
authorize the Township Supervisor to execute the same. 
 

 

 

☒ Consent ☐ Pending 

73



Execution Copy 

1 

CASE - 361228 
 

MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
GRANT WITH  

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION 
 
The Michigan Economic Development Corporation (the “MEDC”) enters into a binding 
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Charter Township of Orion (the “Grantee” or the 
“Municipality”).  As used in this Agreement, the MEDC and Grantee are sometimes 
individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively as “Parties.” 
 
Grantee: Charter Township of Orion 
 2525 Joslyn Road 
 Orion Township, Michigan 48360 
 
I. NATURE OF SERVICES.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide funding to 

the Grantee to hire services to develop a comprehensive community marketing 
strategy for the Municipality (the “Grant Activities”). 

 
II. PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE. 
 

Starting Date:  August 1, 2022 Ending Date:  May 31, 2023 
 
The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall commence on the Starting Date and 
shall continue until the occurrence of an event described in Section VIII of this 
Agreement. 

 
III. PAYMENT SCHEDULE INFORMATION. 
 

A. The MEDC agrees to pay the Grantee a sum not to exceed $11,250 (the 
“Grant”), according to the following schedule: 
 

  (i) 25% of the Grant paid upon completion and approval of Milestone One. 
 

  (ii) 50% of the Grant paid upon completion and approval of Milestone Two. 
 

 (iii) 25% of the Grant paid upon completion and approval of Milestone 
Three. 

 
B. Payment under this Agreement shall be made by the MEDC to Grantee upon 

receipt and approval by the Grant Administrator, as identified in Section IV, 
of documentation evidencing the completion and achievement of each of the 
Milestones (the “Supporting Documentation”) to the satisfaction of the Grant 
Administrator. The Grant Administrator shall provide the Grantee with 
appropriate submission instructions of the Supporting Documentation. 
 

74



Execution Copy 

2 

 
C. MEDC requires that payments under this Agreement be processed by 

electronic funds transfer (EFT).  Grantee is required to register to receive 
payments by EFT at the State Integrated Governmental Management 
Applications (SIGMA) Vendor Self Service (VSS) website 
(www.michigan.gov/VSSLogin). 

 
D. The Grantee agrees that all funds are to be spent as specified in this 

Agreement. This Agreement does not commit the MEDC to approve 
requests for additional funds during or beyond this Grant period.  

 
IV. MEDC GRANT ADMINISTRATOR.  The Grantee must communicate with the 

MEDC representative named below or his or her designee regarding this 
Agreement.  The Grant Administrator may be changed, at any time, at the 
discretion of the MEDC. 

 
Michelle Parkkonen (the “Grant Administrator”) 
Michigan Economic Development Corporation 
300 North Washington Square 
Lansing, Michigan 48913 
parkkonenm@michigan.org 
 

V. GRANTEE DUTIES.  The Grantee agrees to undertake, perform, and complete 
the following during the Term, to the satisfaction of the Grant Administrator: 

 
A. Milestone One:  

i. Provide a fully executed copy of a contract between the Municipality 
and Place + Main Advisors (the “Consultant”) to have the following 
services performed for the Municipality: 
 

1. Creation Develop a comprehensive community marketing 
strategy in a manner consistent with the MEDC's 
Redevelopment Ready Communities (RRC) Best Practices. 
 

ii. Schedule a formal kick-off meeting with the MEDC, the Consultant, 
and key officials at the Municipality. 

 
B. Milestone Two:  

i. Provide full draft of the marketing strategy to the Grant Administrator. 
 

C. Milestone Three:  
i. Prior to finalizing the comprehensive community marketing strategy, 

obtain agreement from the MEDC that the proposed strategy aligns 
with RRC Certified expectations. 

 
D. Apply all Grant funds towards paying the Consultant for its services 

75

http://www.michigan.gov/VSSLogin
mailto:parkkonenm@michigan.org


Execution Copy 

3 

described in Section V(A). 
 

E. Ensure the MEDC is invited to all key meetings throughout the project. 
 

F. Within 15 days of the Ending Date, provide the MEDC with written feedback 
summarizing feedback to the MEDC on the Grant funding process and the 
experience working with the Consultant.  

 
VI. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. 
 

A. Due to the nature of the services described herein and the need for 
specialized skill and knowledge of Grantee, the MEDC is entering into this 
Agreement with Grantee. As a result, neither Grantee nor any of its 
employees or agents is or shall become an employee of the MEDC due to 
this Agreement. 

B. Grantee will provide the services and achieve the results specified in this 
Agreement free from the direction or control of the MEDC as to means and 
methods of performance. 

C. The MEDC is not responsible for any insurance or other fringe benefits, 
including, but not limited to, Social Security, Worker's Compensation, income 
tax withholdings, retirement or leave benefits, for Grantee or its employees.  
Grantee assumes full responsibility for the provision of all such insurance 
coverage and fringe benefits for its employees. 

D. All tools, supplies, materials, equipment and office space necessary to carry 
out the services described in this Agreement are the sole responsibility of 
Grantee unless otherwise specified herein. 

E. Grantee shall retain all control of its employees and staffing decisions 
independent of the direction and control of the MEDC. 

 
VII. ACCESS TO RECORDS.  During the Term, and for Seven years after the Ending 

Date, the Grantee shall maintain reasonable records, including evidence that the 
services actually were performed and the identity of all individuals paid for such 
services, and shall allow access to those records by the MEDC or their authorized 
representative at any time during this period. 

 
VIII. TERMINATION.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of the following: 
 

A. The Ending Date. 
 
B. Termination by the MEDC, by giving thirty calendar days prior written notice 

to the Grantee.  In the event that the Legislature of the State of Michigan (the 
“State”), the State Government, or any State official, commission, authority, 
body, or employee or the federal government (a) takes any legislative or 

76



Execution Copy 

4 

administrative action which fails to provide, terminates or reduces the 
funding necessary for this Agreement, or (b) takes any legislative or 
administrative action, which is unrelated to the source of funding for the 
Grant, but which affects the MEDC’s ability to fund and administer this 
Agreement and other MEDC programs, provided, however, that in the event 
such action results in an immediate absence or termination of funding, 
cancellation may be made effective immediately upon delivery of notice to 
the Grantee. 

 
C. Termination by the MEDC pursuant to Section XIX of this Agreement. 

 
IX. MEDC EMPLOYEES.  The Grantee will not hire any employee of the MEDC to 

perform any services covered by this agreement without prior written approval from 
the Chief Executive Officer of the MEDC. 

 
X. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  Except as required by law, the Grantee shall 

not disclose any information, including targeted business lists, economic 
development analyses, computer programs, databases and all materials furnished 
to the Grantee by the MEDC without the prior written consent of the MEDC.  All 
information described in this Section shall be considered “Confidential Information” 
under this Agreement.  Confidential Information does not include: (a) information 
that is already in the possession of, or is independently developed by, Grantee; (b) 
becomes publicly available other than through breach of this Agreement; (c) is 
received by Grantee from a third party with authorization to make such disclosures; 
or (d) is released with MEDC’s written consent. 

 
XI. PUBLICATIONS.  Except for Confidential Information, the MEDC hereby agrees 

that researchers funded with the Grant shall be permitted to present at symposia, 
national, or regional professional meetings, and to publish in journals, theses or 
dissertations, or otherwise of their own choosing, the methods and results of their 
research.  Grantee shall at its sole discretion and at its sole cost and expense, 
prior to publication, seek intellectual property protection for any Inventions (as 
described in Section XIII) if commercially warranted.  Grantee shall submit to the 
MEDC a listing of articles that Grantee has submitted for publication resulting from 
work performed hereunder in its quarterly report to the MEDC.  Grantee shall 
acknowledge the financial support received from the MEDC, as appropriate, in any 
such publication. 

 
XII. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS.  Grantee shall retain ownership to the 

entire right, title, and interest in any new inventions, improvements, or discoveries 
developed or produced under this Grant, including, but not limited to, concepts 
know-how, software, materials, methods, and devices (“Inventions”) and shall 
have the right to enter into license agreements with industry covering Inventions.   

 
XIII. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  Except as has been disclosed to the MEDC, Grantee 

affirms that neither the Grantee, nor its Affiliates or their employees has, shall 

77



Execution Copy 

5 

have, or shall acquire any contractual, financial business or other interest, direct 
or indirect, that would conflict in any manner with Grantee’s performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement or otherwise create the appearance of 
impropriety with respect to this Agreement. 

 
 Grantee further affirms that neither Grantee nor any affiliates or their employees 

has accepted or shall accept anything of value based on an understanding that the 
actions of the Grantee or its affiliates or either’s employees on behalf of the MEDC 
would be influenced.  Grantee shall not attempt to influence any MEDC employee 
by the direct or indirect offer of anything of value.  Grantee also affirms that neither 
Grantee, nor its Affiliates or their employees has paid or agreed to pay any person, 
other than bona fide employees and consultants working solely for Grantee or its 
Affiliate, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift or any other 
consideration contingent upon or resulting from the execution of this Agreement. 

 
 In the event of change in either the interests or services under this Agreement, 

Grantee will inform the MEDC regarding possible conflicts of interest which may 
arise as a result of such change.  Grantee agrees that conflicts of interest shall be 
resolved to the MEDC’s satisfaction or the MEDC may terminate this Agreement.  
As used in this Paragraph, “conflict of interest” shall include, but not be limited to, 
conflicts of interest that are defined under the laws of the State of Michigan. 

 
XIV. INDEMNIFICATION AND GRANTEE LIABILITY INSURANCE.  To the extent 

permitted by law, the Grantee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 
MEDC, its corporate board of directors, executive committee members including its 
participants, its officers, agents, and employees (the “Indemnified Persons”) from any 
damages that it may sustain through the negligence of the Grantee pertaining to 
the performance of this Agreement. 

 
 The Grantee shall maintain such insurance to protect the Indemnified Persons 

from claims that might arise out of or as a result of the Grantee's operations; 
however, Grantee’s indemnification obligation shall not be limited to the limits of 
liability imposed under the Grantee’s insurance policies.  The Grantee will provide 
and maintain its own general liability, property damage, and workers compensation 
insurance.  The insurance shall be written for not less than any limits of liability 
required by law for the Grantee's obligation for indemnification under this 
Agreement. 

 
XV. TOTAL AGREEMENT.  This Agreement is the entire agreement between the 

Parties superseding any prior or concurrent agreements as to the services being 
provided, and no oral or written terms or conditions which are not contained in this 
Agreement shall be binding. 
 

XVI. ASSIGNMENT/TRANSFER/SUBCONTRACTING.  Except as contemplated by 
this Agreement, the Grantee shall not assign, transfer, convey, subcontract, or 
otherwise dispose of any duties or rights under this Agreement without the prior 

78



Execution Copy 

6 

specific written consent of the MEDC.  Any future successors of the Grantee will 
be bound by the provisions of this Agreement unless the MEDC otherwise agrees 
in a specific written consent.  The MEDC reserves the right to approve 
subcontractors for this Agreement and to require the Grantee to replace 
subcontractors who are found to be unacceptable. 

 
XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  The Grantee is not and will not during the Term be 

in violation of any laws, ordinances, regulations, rules, orders, judgments, decrees 
or other requirements imposed by any governmental authority to which it is subject, 
and will not fail to obtain any licenses, permits or other governmental 
authorizations necessary to carry out its duties under this Agreement. 

 
XVIII. DEFAULT.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following events or 

conditions shall constitute an “Event of Default” under this Agreement, unless a 
written waiver of the Event of Default is signed by the MEDC:  (a) any 
representation, covenant, certification or warranty made by the Grantee shall prove 
incorrect at the time that such representation, covenant, certification or warranty 
was made in any material respect; (b) the Grantee’s failure generally to pay debts 
as they mature, or the appointment of a receiver or custodian over a material 
portion of the Grantee’s assets, which receiver or custodian is not discharged 
within Sixty calendar days of such appointment; (c) any voluntary bankruptcy or 
insolvency proceedings are commenced by the Grantee;  (d) any involuntary 
bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings are commenced against the Grantee, which 
proceedings are not set aside within Sixty calendar days from the date of institution 
thereof; (e) any writ of attachment, garnishment, execution, tax lien, or similar writ 
is issued against any property of the Grantee, which is not removed within Sixty 
calendar days. (f) the Grantee’s failure to comply with the reporting requirements 
hereof;  (g) the Grantees failure to comply with any obligations or duties contained 
herein; (h) Grantee’s use of the Grant funds for any purpose not contemplated under 
this Agreement. 

 
XIX. AVAILABLE REMEDIES.  Upon the occurrence of any one or more of the Events of 

Default, the MEDC may terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice to the 
Grantee. The termination of this Agreement is not intended to be the sole and 
exclusive remedy in case any Event of Default shall occur and each remedy shall be 
cumulative and in addition to every other provision or remedy given herein or now or 
hereafter existing at law or equity. 

 
XX. REIMBURSEMENT.  If this Grant is terminated as a result of Section XIX(h) 

hereof, the MEDC shall have no further obligation to make a Grant disbursement 
to the Grantee.  The Grantee shall reimburse the MEDC for disbursements of the 
Grant determined to have been expended for purposes other than as set forth 
herein as well as any Grant funds, which were previously disbursed but not yet 
expended by the Grantee.  

 
XXI. NOTICES.  Any notice, approval, request, authorization, direction or other 

79



Execution Copy 

7 

communication under this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be deemed 
to have been delivered and given for all purposes: (a) on the delivery date if 
delivered by electronic mail or by confirmed facsimile; (b) on the delivery date if 
delivered personally to the Party to whom the same is directed; (c) One business 
day after deposit with a commercial overnight carrier, with written verification of 
receipt; or (d) Three business days after the mailing date, whether or not actually 
received, if sent by U.S. mail, return receipt requested, postage and charges 
prepaid, or any other means of rapid mail delivery for which a receipt is available.  
The notice address for the Parties shall be the address as set forth in this 
Agreement, with the other relevant notice information, including the recipient for 
notice and, as applicable, such recipient’s fax number or e-mail address, to be as 
reasonably identified by notifying Party.  The MEDC and Grantee may, by notice 
given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent 
notices shall be sent. 

 
XXII. AMENDMENT.  This Agreement may not be modified or amended except pursuant 

to a written instrument signed by the Parties. 
 
XXIII. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement is made and entered into in the State of 

Michigan and shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced and governed under the 
laws of the State of Michigan without regard to the doctrines of conflict of laws.  
The terms of this provision shall survive the termination or cancellation of the 
Agreement 

 
XXIV. COUNTERPARTS AND COPIES.  The Parties hereby agree that the faxed 

signatures of the Parties to this Agreement shall be as binding and enforceable as 
original signatures; and that this Agreement may be executed in multiple 
counterparts with the counterparts together being deemed to constitute the 
complete agreement of the Parties.  Copies (whether photostatic, facsimile or 
otherwise) of this Agreement may be made and relied upon to the same extent as 
though such copy was an original. 
 

XXV. JURISDICTION.  In connection with any dispute between the Parties under this 
Agreement, the Parties hereby irrevocably submit to jurisdiction and venue of the 
Michigan circuit courts of the State of Michigan located in Ingham County.  Each 
Party hereby waives and agrees not to assert, by way of motion as a defense or 
otherwise in any such action any claim (a) that it is not subject to the jurisdiction of 
such court, (b) that the action is brought in an inconvenient forum, (c) that the 
venue of the suit, action or other proceeding is improper or (d) that this Agreement 
or the subject matter of this Agreement may not be enforced in or by such court. 
 

XXVI. SEVERABILITY.  All of the clauses of this Agreement are distinct and severable 
and, if any clause shall be deemed illegal, void or unenforceable, it shall not affect 
the validity, legality or enforceability of any other clause or provision of this 
Agreement. To the extent possible, the illegal, void or unenforceable provision 
shall be revised to the extent required to render the Agreement enforceable and 

80



Execution Copy 

8 

valid, and to the fullest extent possible, the rights and responsibilities of the Parties 
shall be interpreted and enforced to preserve the Agreement and the intent of the 
Parties.  Provided, if application of this section should materially and adversely 
alter or affect a Party’s rights or obligations under this Agreement, the Parties 
agree to negotiate in good faith to develop a structure that is as nearly the same 
structure as the original Agreement (as may be amended from time to time) without 
regard to such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability. 
 

XXVII. PUBLICITY.  At the request and expense of the MEDC, the Grantee will cooperate 
with the MEDC to promote the Grant Activities through one or more of the 
placement of a sign, plaque, media coverage or other public presentation at the 
project or other location acceptable to the Parties. 
 

XXVIII. SURVIVAL.  The terms and conditions of sections VII, VIII, XI, XV, XVII, XXIV, 
XXVI and XXVII shall survive termination of this Agreement. 

 
 

81



Execution Copy 

9 

The signatories below warrant that they are empowered to enter into this Agreement. 
 
 
GRANTEE ACCEPTANCE:  Charter Township of Orion 
 
 
Dated:  _____________   __________________________________ 

By: Chris Barnett 
Its: Township Supervisor 

 
 
MEDC ACCEPTANCE:   Michigan Economic Development Corporation 
 
 
Dated:  _____________   __________________________________ 

By: Christin Armstrong 
Its: Secretary 

82



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: September 6, 2022

Memo Date: August 26, 2022
Subject: LS-22-04 Devlin Request to Combine Nonconforming lots of Record

REQUEST
Township Board of Trustees approval, under Zoning Ordinance #78, Article XXVII, Section 27.01, C, 3, paragraph 2, to 
permit the combination of nonconforming lots into building sites less than the size requirements of the Ordinance.

REASON
The references section of the Zoning Ordinance provides that the Board of Trustees may, at its sole discretion permit the 
combination, in whole or in part, of nonconforming lots of record into building sites less than the size requirements 
provided in the Ordinance.  

PROCESS
The Board of Trustees considers the request under Zoning Ordinance #78, Article XXVII, Section 27.01, C, 3 paragraph 2.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Motion to approve the request to combine nonconforming parcels 09-10-208-021 and -021 into a parcel that will still be 
considered nonconforming, conditioned upon all other requirements of the combination request LS-22-04 being 
approved including but not limited to providing a survey, as required per Ordinance 60.

☐ Consent ☒ Pending

83



Exhibit A 

84



85



Exhibit B 

86



Article XXVII General Provisions 
27.01 Nonconformities 

C. Nonconforming Lots.

3. Nonconforming Contiguous Lots Under Same Ownership. If two (2) or more lots or
combination of lots with contiguous frontage in single ownership are of record at the time of
passage or amendment of the Ordinance, and if all or part of the lots do not meet the
requirements established for lot width and area, the lands involved shall be considered to be an
individual parcel for the purposes of this Ordinance, and no portion of said parcel shall be used,
occupied, or sold in a manner which diminishes compliance with lot width and area
requirements established by this Ordinance, nor shall any division of any parcel be made which
creates a lot with width or area below the requirements stated in this Ordinance.

Upon application to the Township Board, the Board may, at its sole discretion, permit the 
combination, in whole or in part, of nonconforming lots of record into building sites less than 
the size requirements provided in this Ordinance. Said application shall be filed with the 
Township Clerk on forms provided by the Township. The application shall be accompanied by a 
plot plan drawn according to the requirements set forth in Section 30.04 (B)(2) for single-family 
residential parcels. Approval of any such application shall be subject to the following provisions: 

a. Any newly created lot must be capable of accommodating a structure that is in
conformance with the
building area, setback, and side yard requirements set forth in this Ordinance.

b. Any lot created under these provisions shall be at least fifty (50) feet in width.

c. In the event that a lot created under these provisions is less than twelve thousand
five hundred (12,500) square feet in area, then any structure constructed on the lot
shall have direct hookup to the public sanitary sewer system

87



TO: Charter Township of Orion Board of Trustees

FROM:         Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director 

DATE:  August 26, 2022

RE:           LS-22-04 Devlin Request to Combine Nonconforming Lots of Record 

An application was received to combine two existing parcels under single ownership.  One 
parcel, parcel #09-10-208-020, is vacant and is 3’ wide going from the road to the waters of 
Lake Orion and is approximately 435 square feet in area.  The other parcel, parcel #09-101-
208-021, contains an existing home and is 42’ wide at the road and is approximately 4,487 
square feet in area.  Both parcels are zoned Single Family Residential -3 (R-3) requiring a 
width of 70’ and an area 8,400 square feet.  As such, both parcels are non-conforming.  By 
combining the two parcels the new parcel would be 45’ wide at the road and approximately 
4,922 square feet in area, resulting in a parcel that meets neither the required width nor area 
for a parcel in R-3 zoning. However, Zoning Ordinance #78, Article 27, Section 27.01 C3 
states that an application may be submitted to the Board of Trustees requesting the 
combination of nonconforming lots of record into building sites less than the size 
requirements. It should be noted that each of these parcels are a part of lot 42 in the Kelly’s 
Sub Plat; the two combined equals lot 42 in its entirety.  

The application to combine the two parcels was circulated amongst the appropriate 
departments for the purpose of receiving tentative approval (application reviewed to ensure it 
meets all applicable requirements using a simple drawing vs. an actual survey) and all 
applicable departments recommended approval of the combination with the exception of the 
issue before you; allowing the combination of 2 non-conforming lots of record that will not 
result in a parcel that meets the size requirements of the R-3 zoning district.  If the request to 
combine the two parcels receives approval, the applicant would then be required to return to 
myself to pursue “final’ approval in which an actual survey proving the information provided 
on the simple drawing was accurate.  In the sense of saving the applicant unnecessary 
expenses, I have forwarded the case to the Board of Trustees, using their simple drawing, so 
they do not incur the cost of a survey in case the request before you is denied.

Following, please find the Request to Combine Nonconforming Lots of Record and an 
aerial image I printed for your reference with both parcels outlined in red.  If you have any 
questions, please feel free to contact me at (248) 391-0304 x 5000.

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org

Planning & Zoning Department
Phone: (248) 391-0304, ext. 5000

88



89



90



91



92



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: September 6, 2022

Memo Date: August 26, 2022
Subject: LS-22-04 Devlin Request to Combine Nonconforming lots of Record

REQUEST
Township Board of Trustees approval, under Zoning Ordinance #78, Article XXVII, Section 27.01, C, 3, paragraph 2, to 
permit the combination of nonconforming lots into building sites less than the size requirements of the Ordinance.

REASON
The references section of the Zoning Ordinance provides that the Board of Trustees may, at its sole discretion permit the 
combination, in whole or in part, of nonconforming lots of record into building sites less than the size requirements 
provided in the Ordinance.  

PROCESS
The Board of Trustees considers the request under Zoning Ordinance #78, Article XXVII, Section 27.01, C, 3 paragraph 2.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Motion to approve the request to combine nonconforming parcels 09-10-208-020 and 09-10-208-021 into a parcel that 
will still be considered nonconforming, conditioned upon all other requirements of the combination request LS-22-04 
being approved including but not limited to providing a survey, as required per Ordinance 60.

☐ Consent ☒ Pending

93



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: September 6, 2022

Memo Date: August 26, 2022
Subject: PC-22-30, Waldon Reserve Site Condominium and Condominium Documents

REQUEST
Request Board action on PC-2022-30, Waldon Reserve Condominium  

REASON
The developer wishes to create an 18-unit condominium.  Ordinance Number 78 requires that the Board of Trustees, in 
additional to the Planning Commission,  review and approve any condominium project which contains more than 5 units 
or more than two (2) acres of land.  The development is over 5 units.   

PROCESS
Review the file documents and approve the creation of the condominium.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
Motion to conditionally approve the creation of an 18-unit condominium and the associated condominium documents, 
for PC-2022-30, Waldon Reserve Condominium, located at 625 Waldon Rd. (parcel 09-27-276-038) conditioned upon 
meeting the conditions given by the Planning Commission in their motion of conditional approval on August 17, 2022 
and the approval of the Master Deed, By-Laws, and Exhibit B by the Township Engineer and Attorney. 

☐ Consent ☒ Pending

94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



215

215

Waldon Reserve Development, LLC

Waldon Reserve Development, LLC

104

ckeisman
Stamp



105



106



107

ckeisman
Stamp



2

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY

WALDON RESERVE

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE

SURVEY WITH TOPO

108



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

109



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

110



Know what's below.

      Call before you dig.

111



1 5

8 9

1418

PARK

7 10

15

11

12
13

1617

64
32

W
ALD

O
N

 R
ID

G
E C

T.WALDON RIDGE CT.

ALDONW
ESERVER
ALDONW
ESERVER

© 2022 Allen Design L.L.C.

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Landscape Summary 

Not for Construction

Checked By:

Issued:

Drawn By:

Job Number:

Revision:

Prepared for:

Project:

Title:

Seal:

NORTH

Sheet No.

DESIG
LAND PLANNING / LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

557 Carpenter
Northville, Michigan 48167
e. jca@wideopenwest.com

t. 248.467.4668

Landscape Plan

Waldon Reserve
Orion Township, Michigan

AP Builders
21 East Long Lake, Suite 215
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304

Submission July 14, 2022

22-052

jca jca

0' 25' 50'
1"=50'

L-1

Greenbelt - Waldon Road
  Greenbelt Length 274 l.f.
  Trees Required 9.1 Trees (274 / 30')
  Trees Provided 10 Trees

Street Trees
  Street Frontage 2,124 l.f.
  Street Trees Required 42.5 Trees (2,124 / 50)
  Street Trees Provided 43 Trees

Woodland Replacement
  Total Replacement Required 37 Trees, 2.0" Deciduous or 6' Evergreen
  Replacement Trees Provided 37 Trees, 2.0" Deciduous or 6' Evergreen

Plant List 

Zoned R-2

W
aldon Road

Tree Protection Fencing
See Sheet L-3

Zoned R-2

Zoned IP

13
TA

11
AS

12
UP

7
AK

4
PAG

6
PAG

Existing Trees to
Provide Land Use Buffer

24"

6'

14'10' Setback

Sign Panel Area:
17 sf

Brick Veneer

4" Precast
Concrete Cap

24" Wide

Pin Mounted Metal Letters

3
LTR

3
PSR

3
ASR

4
ASR

3
ARR

6
PAR

4
PSR

2
ARR

3
QMR

3
QMR

3
LTR

Conceptual Sign
1

4" = 1'-0"
Entry

1"=30'

Entry Sign

14
BX

19
LP

26
LS

3
MA

Corner
Clearance

112



© 2022 Allen Design L.L.C.

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Not for Construction

Checked By:

Issued:

Drawn By:

Job Number:

Revision:

Prepared for:

Project:

Title:

Seal:

NORTH

Sheet No.

DESIG
LAND PLANNING / LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

557 Carpenter
Northville, Michigan 48167
e. jca@wideopenwest.com

t. 248.467.4668

Woodland Plan

Waldon Reserve
Orion Township, Michigan

AP Builders
21 East Long Lake, Suite 215
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304

Submission July 14, 2022

22-052

jca jca

0' 25' 50'
1"=50'

L-2

Total Trees 126 Trees

Regulated Trees Removed 37 Trees
Regulated Trees Replacement 37 Trees
Landmark DBH Removed 0
Total Replacement Required 37 Trees, 2.0" Deciduous or 6' Evergreen

Woodland Summary

Legend
Detention Tree is Located within a Detention Pond and is Exempt.
Drive Tree is Located within a Driveway and is Exempt.
Envelope Tree is Located within a Building Envelope and is Exempt.
Landmark Tree Designated at Landmark Status per Ordinance Sec. 27.12(L)
Landmark EX Tree Recommended for Replacement Exemption due to Very Poor or Dead Condition.
Remove Tree is Removed and will be Replaced.
Sidewalk Tree is Located within a Sidewalk.
Street Tree is Located within a Street and is Exempt.
Utility Tree is Located Over a Utility and is Exempt.
Very Poor Tree Recommended for Replacement Exemption per Ordinance Sec. 27.12(D)8

Tree Inventory Performed by Seiber Keast Lehner

Tree List

X

"X" Denotes Removed Tree

W
aldon Road

XX

X
XX X X

X

X
X
X
X

XX
XX

X

X

X
X
XX

X
X

XX

X
XX

X

X

X

X

X

X X
X X X X

X
XXX

XX XXX X XX
X XX

X
X
X

X

XX
X

X X
X
X
X

XX
X

XX
X

X

X X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X
X

XXX
X

XX

X
X

XXX
X

X

X

X

X

X

Tree Protection Fencing
See Sheet L-3

113



© 2022 Allen Design L.L.C.

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.

All plants shall be north Midwest American region grown, No. 1 grade plant materials,
and shall be true to name, free from physical damage and wind burn.
Plants shall be full, well-branched, and in healthy vigorous growing
condition.
Plants shall be watered before and after planting is complete.
All trees must be staked, fertilized and mulched and shall be guaranteed
to exhibit a normal growth cycle for at least two (2) full years following
City approval.
All material shall conform to the guidelines established in the most recent
edition of the  American Standard for Nursery Stock.
Provide clean backfill soil, using material stockpiled on site.  Soil shall be
screened and free of any debris, foreign material, and stone.
"Agriform" tabs or similar slow-release  fertilizer shall be added to the
planting pits before being backfilled.
Amended planting mix shall consist of 1/3 screened topsoil, 1/3 sand and
1/3 compost, mixed well and spread to the depth as indicated in planting details.
All plantings shall be mulched per planting details located on this sheet.
The Landscape Contractor shall be responsible for all work shown on the
landscape drawings and specifications.
No substitutions or changes of location, or plant types shall be made
without the approval of the Landscape Architect.
The Landscape Architect shall be notified in writing of any discrepancies between
the plans and field conditions prior to installation.
The Landscape Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining all plant
material in a vertical condition throughout the guaranteed period.
The Landscape Architect shall have the right, at any stage of the installation,
to reject any work or material that does not meet the requirements of the
plans and specifications, if requested by owner.
Contractor shall be responsible for checking plant quantities to ensure
quantities on drawings and plant list are the same.  In the event of a
discrepancy, the quantities on the plans shall prevail.
The Landscape Contractor shall seed and mulch or sod (as indicated on plans)
all areas disturbed during construction, throughout the contract limits.
A pre-emergent weed control agent, "Preen" or equal, shall be applied
uniformly on top of all mulching in all planting beds.
Sod shall be two year old "Baron/Cheriadelphi" Kentucky Blue Grass grown in a sod

15.

16.

17.

18.
nursery on loam soil.

10.

12.

13.

14.

11.

5.

9.

8.

7.

6.

LANDSCAPE NOTES
1.

2.

3.

EVERGREEN TREE PLANTING DETAIL

4"

DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING DETAIL

4"

NOTE:
GUY EVERGREEN TREES ABOVE
12' HEIGHT. STAKE EVERGREEN
TREE BELOW 12' HEIGHT.

MULCH 4" DEPTH WITH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
NATURAL IN COLOR. LEAVE 3"
CIRCLE OF BARE SOIL AT BASE
OF TREE TRUNK.  PULL ANY
ROOT BALL DIRT EXTENDING
ABOVE THE ROOT FLARE AWAY
FROM THE TRUNK SO THE ROOT
FLARE IS EXPOSED TO AIR.

REMOVE ALL
NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIALS
COMPLETELY FROM THE
ROOTBALL. CUT DOWN WIRE
BASKET AND FOLD DOWN BURLAP
FROM TOP 1/2 OF THE ROOTBALL.

MOUND EARTH TO FORM SAUCER

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF
THE PLANT MATERIAL.
REMOVE EXCESS DIRT
FROM ROOT FLARE.

SCARIFY SUBGRADE
AND PLANTING PIT
SIDES. RECOMPACT
BASE OF  TO 4"
DEPTH.

TREE PIT = 3 x 
ROOTBALL WIDTH

NOTE:
TREE SHALL BEAR SAME
RELATION TO FINISH GRADE AS
IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR
SLIGHTLY HIGHER THAN FINISH
GRADE UP TO 6" ABOVE GRADE,
IF DIRECTED BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT FOR HEAVY CLAY
SOIL AREAS.

DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL
LEADER. PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR
BROKEN BRANCHES.

REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS AND OTHER
MATERIALS THAT ARE
UNSIGHTLY OR COULD CAUSE
GIRDLING.

STAKE TREES AT FIRST BRANCH
USING 2"-3" WIDE BELT-LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC STRAPS.
ALLOW FOR SOME MINIMAL
FLEXING OF THE TREE.
REMOVE AFTER ONE YEAR.

NOTE:
GUY DECIDUOUS TREES ABOVE
3"CAL.. STAKE DECIDUOUS
TREES BELOW 3" CAL.

SCARIFY SUBGRADE
AND PLANTING PIT
SIDES. RECOMPACT
BASE OF  TO 4"
DEPTH.

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER SITE
CONDITIONS AND
REQUIREMENTS OF THE
PLANT MATERIAL.
REMOVE EXCESS DIRT
FROM ROOT FLARE.

NOTE:
TREE SHALL BEAR SAME
RELATION TO FINISH GRADE AS
IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR
SLIGHTLY HIGHER THAN FINISH
GRADE UP TO 6" ABOVE GRADE,
IF DIRECTED BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT FOR HEAVY CLAY
SOIL AREAS.

DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL
LEADER. PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR
BROKEN BRANCHES.

REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS AND OTHER
MATERIALS THAT ARE
UNSIGHTLY OR COULD CAUSE
GIRDLING.

TREE PIT = 3 x 
ROOTBALL WIDTH

2" X 2" HARDWOOD STAKES,
MIN. 36" ABOVE GROUND FOR
UPRIGHT, 18" IF ANGLED.  DRIVE
STAKES A MIN. 18" INTO
UNDISTURBED GROUND
OUTSIDE ROOTBALL.  REMOVE
AFTER ONE YEAR.

STAKE TREES AT FIRST BRANCH
USING 2"-3" WIDE BELT-LIKE
NYLON OR PLASTIC STRAPS.
ALLOW FOR SOME MINIMAL
FLEXING OF THE TREE.
REMOVE AFTER ONE YEAR.

2" X 2" HARDWOOD STAKES,
MIN. 36" ABOVE GROUND FOR
UPRIGHT, 18" IF ANGLED.  DRIVE
STAKES A MIN. 18" INTO
UNDISTURBED GROUND
OUTSIDE ROOTBALL.  REMOVE
AFTER ONE YEAR.

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL

4"

6"

NOT TO SCALE

MULCH 3" DEPTH WITH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
NATURAL IN COLOR.  PULL BACK
3" FROM TRUNK.

MOUND EARTH TO FORM SAUCER

REMOVE ALL
NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIALS
COMPLETELY FROM THE
ROOTBALL. FOLD DOWN BURLAP
FROM TOP 13 OF THE ROOTBALL.

SCARIFY SUBGRADE
AND PLANTING PIT
SIDES. RECOMPACT
BASE OF  TO 4"
DEPTH.

NOTE:
TREE SHALL BEAR SAME
RELATION TO FINISH GRADE AS
IT BORE ORIGINALLY OR
SLIGHTLY HIGHER THAN FINISH
GRADE UP TO 4" ABOVE GRADE,
IF DIRECTED BY LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT FOR HEAVY CLAY
SOIL AREAS.

PRUNE ONLY DEAD OR BROKEN
BRANCHES.

REMOVE ALL TAGS, STRING,
PLASTICS AND OTHER
MATERIALS THAT ARE
UNSIGHTLY OR COULD CAUSE
GIRDLING.

PLANTING MIXTURE:
AMEND SOILS PER
SITE CONDITIONS
AND REQUIREMENTS
OF THE PLANT
MATERIAL.

REMOVE COLLAR OF ALL FIBER
POTS. POTS SHALL BE CUT TO
PROVIDE FOR ROOT GROWTH.
REMOVE ALL NONORGANIC
CONTAINERS COMPLETELY.

MULCH 4" DEPTH WITH
SHREDDED HARDWOOD BARK.
NATURAL IN COLOR. LEAVE 3"
CIRCLE OF BARE SOIL AT BASE
OF TREE TRUNK.  PULL ANY
ROOT BALL DIRT EXTENDING
ABOVE THE ROOT FLARE AWAY
FROM THE TRUNK SO THE ROOT
FLARE IS EXPOSED TO AIR.

REMOVE ALL
NON-BIODEGRADABLE MATERIALS
COMPLETELY FROM THE
ROOTBALL. CUT DOWN WIRE
BASKET AND FOLD DOWN BURLAP
FROM TOP 1/2 OF THE ROOTBALL.

MOUND EARTH TO FORM SAUCER

PERENNIAL PLANTING DETAIL
Not to scale

PLANTING MIXTURE, AS SPECIFIED

2" SHREDDED BARK

METAL EDGING

FINISHED GRADE

TREE STAKING DETAIL
Not to scale

STAKING/GUYING LOCATION

STAKING DETAIL
GUYING DETAIL

NOTE:
ORIENT STAKING/GUYING TO PREVAILING
WINDS, EXCEPT ON SLOPES GREATER
THAN 3:1 ORIENT TO SLOPE.

USE SAME STAKING/GUYING
ORIENTATION FOR ALL PLANTS WITHIN
EACH GROUPING OR AREA

STAKES AS SPECIFIED 3 PER
TREE

2"-3" WIDE BELT-LIKE NYLON OR
PLASTIC STRAPS.

2"-3" WIDE BELT-LIKE NYLON OR
PLASTIC STRAPS.

NOT TO SCALENOT TO SCALE

Checked By:

Issued:

Drawn By:

Job Number:

Revision:

Prepared for:

Project:

Title:

Seal:

NORTH

Sheet No.

DESIG
LAND PLANNING / LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE

557 Carpenter
Northville, Michigan 48167
e. jca@wideopenwest.com

t. 248.467.4668

Landscape Details

Waldon Reserve
Orion Township, Michigan

AP Builders
21 East Long Lake, Suite 215
Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304

Submission July 14, 2022

22-052

jca/emj jca

L-3

UNDERSTORY PLANTS

ORGANIC LAYER

MINERAL LAYER

TOP SOIL

PLACED 1' BEYOND DRIP LINE LIMITS
PROTECTIVE FENCING

"T" POLES @ 5' O.C.

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL

1. Either Plastic or Wood Orange Snow Fencing Shall be Installed at or Beyond the Dripline, Unless More Substantial
Fencing is Required.

2. Stakes Shall be Metal "T" Poles Spaced no Further than 5' on Center.
3. Fencing Shall not be Installed Closer to the Tree than the Dripline of Those Trees to be Saved.  Special

Circumstances Shall be Reviewed by the Township.
4. Fencing Shall be Erected Prior to Construction.  The Township Shall be Notified Once the Fencing is Instaled for

Inspection.
5. Under no Circumstances Shall the Portective Fencing be Removed Without Proper Approval from the Township.
6. No Person Shall Conduct any Activity Within Areas Proposed to Remain.  This Shall Include, but not Limited to:

a. No Solvents or Chemicals Within Protected Areas.
b. No Building Materials or Construction Equipment Within Protected Areas.
c. No Grade Changes, Including Fill, Within Protected Areas.
d. No Removal of Vegetation from the Ground Up Without Permission from the Proper Reviewing Authority, Including

the Woodlands Review Board.
e. Any Required Swale Needs to be Directed Around the Protected Areas.  Instances Where Swales are Approved

Through a Protected Area, the Swales Need to be HAND DUG.  Machinery of Any Kind is Prohibited.
7. Regulated Woodland or Regulated Trees Adjacent to the Property are Also Required to be Protected Whether or not

they are Shown on the Plan.

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



1

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
3
4
4
5
6
6
8
8
9
9
9

Table of Contents

Table of Contents
Digital EGLE/USACE Joint Permit Application (JPA) for Inland Lakes and Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands, Floodplains,
Dams, Environmental Areas, High Risk Erosion Areas and Critical Dune Areas

(Submission #: HPK-0AE5-6DMJW, version 1)
Details
Fees
Form Input

Instructions
Contact Information
Project Location
Background Information
Permit Application Category and Public Notice Information
Project Description
Resource and Activity Type
Wetland Project Information and Impacts
Utility Crossings
Upload of Proposed Site Plans
Fees

Attachments
Status History

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 1 of 9

143

ckeisman
Stamp



Digital EGLE/USACE Joint Permit
Application (JPA) for Inland Lakes and
Streams, Great Lakes, Wetlands,
Floodplains, Dams, Environmental Areas,
High Risk Erosion Areas and Critical Dune
Areas
version 1.30

(Submission #: HPK-0AE5-6DMJW, version 1)

Details

Submission ID HPK-0AE5-6DMJW

Submission Reason New

Status In Process

Fees

Fee $2,000.00

Payments/Adjustments ($2,000.00)

Balance Due $0.00 (Paid)

Form Input

Instructions

To download a copy or print these instructions. Please click this link (recommended).

Contact Information

Applicant Information (Usually the property owner)
First Name
Steve

Last Name
Perlman

Organization Name
AP Builders
Phone Type Number Extension
Business 248-712-4254
Email
sperlman@apbuilders.com

Address
21 E Long Lake Road
Suite 215
Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304

No
Is the Property Owner different from the Applicant?

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 2 of 9

144

https://www.michigan.gov/jointpermit


Yes

Upload Attachment for Authorization from Agent
Authorization for Submission to EGLE.pdf - 07/11/2022 02:03 PM
Comment
NONE PROVIDED

Agent Contact
First Name
Jeff

Last Name
King

Organization Name
Barr Engineering Co.
Phone Type Number Extension
Mobile 248-207-6996
Email
jking@barr.com

Address
3005 Boardwalk Drive
Suite 100
Ann Arbor, MI 48108

No

Project Location

DEQ Site Reference Number (Pre-Populated)
2792408860972195883

Project Location
42.73457262774074,-83.25717904833944

Project Location Address
625 Waldon Road
Lake Orion, MI 48359

County
Oakland

Yes
Please enter the Tax ID Number(s) for the project location
09-27-276-038

No

No

Local Unit of Government (LUG)
Orion Township

Directions to Project Site
Take S. Lapeer Road north to Waldon Road and head west on Waldon Road. Project site is located on the south side of
Waldon Road, 0.6 miles west of the Waldon Road and S. Lapeer Road intersection. Project site is located immediately west of
Waldon Ridge Drive.

Has the applicant hired an agent or cooperating agency (agency or firm assisting applicant) to complete the
application process?

Are there additional property owners or other contacts you would like to add to the application?

Is there a Property Tax ID Number(s) for the project area?

Is there Subdivision/Plat and Lot Number(s)?

Is this project within Indian Lands?

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 3 of 9

145



Background Information

Yes

Provide the date of the pre-application meeting/inspection
3/17/2022

Pre-application File Number:
HPG-83Q4-TC1TP

EGLE and/or USACE staff person involved in the pre-application meeting/inspection:
Robert Primeau

No

No

Environmental Area Number (if known):
NONE PROVIDED

No

No

No

No

No

No

Yes

List all other federal, interstate, state, or local agency authorizations.
Agency Type of Approval Number Date Applied Approved/Denied/Undetermined

Orion Township Site Plan Approval NONE PROVIDED NONE PROVIDED NONE PROVIDED

Comments
NONE PROVIDED

Permit Application Category and Public Notice Information

Individual Permit for all other projects

Has the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) and/or United States Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE) conducted a pre-application meeting/inspection for this project?

Has the project scope or design changed since the pre-application meeting/inspection?

Has the EGLE completed a Wetland Identification Program (WIP) assessment for this site?

Has the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) completed either an approved or preliminary jurisdictional
determination for this site?

Were any regulated activities previously completed on this site under an EGLE and/or USACE permit?

Have any activities commenced on this project?

Is this an after-the-fact application?

Are you aware of any unresolved violations of environmental law or litigation involving the property?

Is there a conservation easement or other easement, deed restriction, lease, or other encumbrance upon the
property?

Are there any other federal, interstate, state, or local agency authorizations associated with this project?

Indicate the type of permit being applied for.

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 4 of 9

146



Upload a list.

Uploads/Attachments
Waldon Reserve-Adjacent Property Owners List.pdf - 07/14/2022 01:46 PM
Comment
NONE PROVIDED

Project Description

Private

Development-Condominium/Subdivision-Residential

Project Summary (Purpose and Use): Provide a summary of all proposed activities including the intended use and
reason for the proposed project.
The applicant proposes to construct 18 new single family homes, expanding the adjacent subdivision east of the parcel, in order
to meet the demand for new single family residential development in the Orion Township area. The applicant proposes to
construct a road by placing 81 cubic yards of fill within 1,124 square feet of wetland and excavating 48 cubic 767 square feet of
wetland , and installing a 119 linear feet of 12 -inch diameter wetland equalizer culvert under proposed road that will cross the
wetland mapped on the property. The applicant also proposes to create a storm water detention basin within upland on the
northwest corner of the property that will replace existing infrastructure within Waldon Road right of way. The applicant proposes
to install 20 feet of 18-inch storm sewer within wetland.

Project Construction Sequence, Methods, and Equipment: Describe how the proposed project timing, methods, and
equipment will minimize disturbance from the project construction, including but not limited to soil erosion and
sedimentation control measures.
Sequence of Construction: 1) install soil erosion control measures; 2) mechanically clear areas of proposed grading; 3) mass
grade roads, building pads, and detention basin; 4) install underground utilities and roads; 5) complete site grading; 6) seed and
plant to stabilize disturbed portions of the site; 7) pave roads and parking areas and finish landscape plantings; and 8) remove
soil erosion control measures.

Project Alternatives: Describe all options considered as alternatives to the proposed project, and describe how
impacts to state and federal regulated waters will be avoided and minimized. This may include other locations,
materials, etc.
In the original site plan the entirety of Wetland C was proposed to be filled, the original plan contained twenty lots in comparison
to the eighteen currently shown on the application drawings. The site layout was redesigned with two fewer lots to preserve the
western portion of Wetland C and reduce the wetland impacts on site to the maximum extent possible. The western portion of
Wetland C is proposed to be lowered to maintain drainage to the wetland across the road through a culvert added under the
road and to allow for the three feet of cover over top of the culvert which is required by local ordinance. The remaining lots on site
and the detention basin will be constructed entirely within upland. The main road through the new subdivision is located so that it
crossed the wetland at the narrowest point, to minimize the impact while still allowing access to the upland portion of the site at
its south end. Ending the access road prior to the wetland crossing with a cul-de-sac would not provide sufficient lots to offset the
cost of the property and the road as well as provide fewer new residences to help meet existing demand. Moving the road
alignment around the east side of the wetland would bring the road adjacent to the rear yards of existing lots creating light and
noise impacts, potentially dangerous vehicle/pedestrian interactions and reducing the number of lots that could be created on
both sides of the road.

Project Compensation: Describe how the proposed impacts to state and federal regulated waters will be
compensated, OR explain why compensatory mitigation should not be required for the proposed impacts. Include
amount, location, and method of compensation (i.e., bank, on-site, preservation, etc.)
Wetland mitigation is not proposed because wetland impacts are less than 0.1 acre.

Upload any additional information as needed to provide information applicable to your project regarding project
purpose sequence, methods, alternatives, or compensation.

NONE PROVIDED
Comment
NONE PROVIDED

This type of permit application requires that you include contact information for the adjacent landowners to this
project. If you are only entering in a small number of bordering parcel owners contact information, please select
"Enter list of recipients". If there is a rather large number of affected property owners such as a project that
significantly affects lake levels, please upload a spreadsheet of the property owners. Please include names and
mailing addresses.

Project Use: (select all that apply - Private, Commercial, Public/Government/Tribal, Receiving Federal/State
Transportation Funds, Non-profit, or Other)

Project Type (select all that apply):

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 5 of 9

147



Resource and Activity Type

Culvert- Wetland Equalizer Only
Utility Crossings - Below Ground

Wetland

Major Project Fee Calculation Questions

No

No

No

Yes

Wetland Project Information and Impacts

Yes

Attach a copy of wetland delineation report with data form.
Wetland B Wetland Determination Form.pdf - 07/14/2022 10:09 AM
Wetland Boundary Map- 625 Waldon Rd Orion Twp-1.17.2021.pdf - 07/14/2022 10:09 AM
Upland A-B-C Determination Form.pdf - 07/14/2022 10:09 AM
Wetland C Wetland Determination Form.pdf - 07/14/2022 10:09 AM
Wetland A Wetland Determination Form.pdf - 07/14/2022 10:09 AM
Comment
NONE PROVIDED

Total acres of wetland affected by this project.
Category Affected area (acres)

Permanent 0.04

Temporary 0
Sum: 0.04

No

Forested

General Fill
Road - New
Riprap

SELECT THE ACTIVITIES from the list below that are proposed in your project (check ALL that apply). If you don't
see your project type listed, select "Other Project Type". These activities listed require additional information to be
gathered later in the application.

The Proposed Project will involve the following resources (check ALL that apply).

Is filling of 10,000 cubic yards or more proposed (cumulatively) within wetlands, streams, lakes, or Great Lakes?

Is dredging of 10,000 cubic yards (cumulatively) or more proposed within streams, lakes, or Great Lakes? (wetlands
not included)

Is new dredging or adjacent upland excavation in suspected contamination areas proposed by this application?

Is a subdivision, condominium, or new golf course proposed?

Has a professional wetland delineation been completed for this site?

Is filling or draining of 1 acre or more (cumulatively) of wetland proposed?

Select all wetland types that will be affected by this project:

If your project includes placing fill in wetland then select the proposed activities from the following list. If your
activity is not shown, then select �None of the Above� and move to the next question. Only enter an impacted area
in one of the impact tables (do not duplicate impact entries).:

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 6 of 9

148



Complete this table for projects involving Fill. Enter each activity/ location that corresponds with each activity
selected in the previous question and enter the dimensions. Activities may be entered in one line of the table if they
occupy the same impact footprint and cannot be broken out separately (Example: Activity - Driveway and Riprap
slope). Multiple activities in different locations should be listed on different lines of the table.

Activity Length
(feet)

Width
(feet)

Depth
(feet) Area (square feet) Volume (cubic feet)

Volume
(cubic
yards)

Corrected value for
complex impact

AREAS (square feet)
Fill 121 9.3 1.95 1125.3000000000002 2194.3350000000005 81 1124

Sum: 1125.3 Sum: 2194.335 Sum:
81 Sum: 1124

Off-site
Please Describe
Commercially obtained

Clay

Yes
Indicate size range of riprap in inches:
8-15

Angular rock

No

Excavation (wetlands)

If your project includes EXCAVATION/DREDGE IN WETLAND then select all of the proposed activities in the
following list. If your activity is not shown, then select �None of the Above� and move to the next question. Only
enter an impacted area in one of the impact tables (do not duplicate impact entries).:

Activity Length
(feet)

Width
(feet)

Depth
(feet)

Area
(sq.
feet)

Volume
(cubic feet)

Volume
(cubic yards)

Corrected value for complex impact
AREAS (square feet)

Cut 383.5 2 1.68 767 1288.56 48 767
Sum:
767

Sum:
1288.56 Sum: 48 Sum: 767

Spoils Disposal

On site

Describe any measures used to retain sediment:
NONE PROVIDED

Culvert

Projects involving Structures:

Source of Fill Material:

Type of Fill.

Is riprap proposed?

Type of riprap

Will material be installed under the riprap?

Select from the following list for Excavation/Dredge Activities (if your proposed project is primarily a structure enter
the impact as a structure. Only enter an impacted area in one of the impact tables in one impact section):

Will the excavation/dredge spoils be disposed of on site or off site?

If your project includes STRUCTURES IN WETLAND then select all of the proposed activities in the following list. If
your activity is not shown, then select �None of the Above� and move to the next question. Only enter an impacted
area in one of the impact tables (do not duplicate impact entries).:

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 7 of 9

149



Activity
Length
(feet)

Width
(feet)

Depth
(feet)

Area
(Sq.
feet)

Volume
(cubic
feet)

Volume
(cubic
yards)

Corrected value for complex
impact AREAS (square feet)

Wetland
Equalizer
Culvert

119 1 1 119 119 4 NONE PROVIDED

Sum:
119 Sum: 119 Sum: 4 Sum: NaN

None of the above

No
Explain why no mitigation is proposed.
Wetland mitigation is not proposed because wetland impacts are less than 0.1 acre.

Utility Crossings

Wetlands

How many total wetland crossings are proposed?
1

Enter the type and total number of acres of wetland that will be converted from one wetland type to another wetland
type.

Wetland type Acres of impact
Other: Utility will be under wetland fill associated with road crossing 0

List of Utility Crossing Impacts
Unique

Identifier
Type of

Crossing Method Utility
Type

Length
(feet)

Pipe diameter
(inches)

Distance below
surface (feet)

Trench width
(feet)

18" ST Wetland Open
Trench

Storm
sewer 20 18 6 NONE

PROVIDED

Upload of Proposed Site Plans

Required on all Site Plan uploads. Please identify that all of the following items are included on your plans that you
upload with this application.

Site Plan Features Existing and Proposed Plan
Set

Scale, Compass North, and Property Lines Yes

Fill and Excavation areas with associated amounts in cubic yards Yes

Any rivers, lakes, or ponds and associated Ordinary High Water Mark (OHWM) N/A

Exterior dimensions of Structures, Fill and Excavation areas associated with the proposed
project Yes

Dimensions to other Structures and Lot Lines associated with the project Yes

Topographic Contour Lines from licensed surveyor or engineer when applicable Yes

If your project includes Other Activities in WETLAND not listed in this section, then select from the proposed
activities in the following list. If your activity in Wetland has not been listed in this Wetland Section, then select
�Other� and enter a description of your activity. Only enter an impacted area in one of the impact tables (do not
duplicate impact entries). If you selected a Fill, Excavation/Dredging, or Structure activity above in this section, but
do not have an activity listed as Other, then select None of the Above for this question.

Is Wetland Mitigation being proposed as part of this proposed project?

Select all resource types that are proposed to be crossed by this project:

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 8 of 9

150



Upload Site Plans and Cross Section Drawings for your Proposed Project
AP BUILDERS EGLE PLANS (003) 7.14.2022.pdf - 07/14/2022 05:40 PM
Comment
NONE PROVIDED

Additional Required and Supplementary Documents
NONE PROVIDED
Comment
NONE PROVIDED

Fees

Major Project Fee
+$2000.00

Total Fee Amount:
$2000.00

No

Attachments

Date Attachment Name Context User
7/14/2022 5:40 PM AP BUILDERS EGLE PLANS (003) 7.14.2022.pdf Attachment Frances Thompson

7/14/2022 1:46 PM Waldon Reserve-Adjacent Property Owners List.pdf Attachment Frances Thompson

7/14/2022 10:09 AM Wetland B Wetland Determination Form.pdf Attachment Frances Thompson

7/14/2022 10:09 AM Wetland Boundary Map- 625 Waldon Rd Orion Twp-1.17.2021.pdf Attachment Frances Thompson

7/14/2022 10:09 AM Upland A-B-C Determination Form.pdf Attachment Frances Thompson

7/14/2022 10:09 AM Wetland C Wetland Determination Form.pdf Attachment Frances Thompson

7/14/2022 10:09 AM Wetland A Wetland Determination Form.pdf Attachment Frances Thompson

7/11/2022 2:03 PM Authorization for Submission to EGLE.pdf Attachment Alison McClear

Status History

User Processing Status
7/7/2022 4:01:57 PM Alison McClear Draft

7/15/2022 12:24:48 PM Frances Thompson Submitting

7/15/2022 12:25:03 PM Frances Thompson Submitted

7/15/2022 12:25:12 PM Frances Thompson In Process

Is the applicant or landowner a State of Michigan Agency?

7/15/2022 12:27:09 PM Page 9 of 9

151



152



EGLE Permit Application List of Adjacent Property Owners for Waldon Reserve  

1. Waldon Ridge HOA 

Don Dixon  

3188 Waldon Ridge Drive 

Orion, MI 48359 

 

2. Waldon Park HOA 

Andrew Bayley 

3053 Waldon Park Drive  

Orion, MI 48359 

 

3. Steven Gay 

751 Waldon Road 

Orion, MI 48359 

 

4. Gertrude F Pearce Trust 

748 Waldon Road 

Orion, MI 48359 

 

5. Waste Management of Michigan, INC 

615 Griswold  

Detroit, MI 48226 

 

 

 

 

 

153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



Area of
Investigation

Wetland C
±0.23 ac.
on-site

Wetland A
±0.14 ac.
on-site

Wetland B
±0.07 ac.

on-site

Waldon Road

Project Office:

Minneapolis, Minnesota
Ph: 1-800-632-2277

Corporate Headquarters:

Approved

Designed

Checked

Date

Scale

Drawn CLIENT PROJECT No.

SHEET No.

BARR PROJECT No.

REV. No.

BARR ENGINEERING CO.

1"=250'

FMT

JK

BB

JK

1/17/2022
625 Waldon Rd 

Orion Township, Oakland County 

Wetland Boundary Map 
1

22631169.00

Ph: 1-800-270-5017

3005 BOARDWALK STREET
SUITE 100

Fax: (732) 922-4401
www.barr.com

ANN ARBOR, MI 48108

SCALE IN FEET

500'250'0

161



Project/Site:

Applicant/Owner: State:

Investigator(s):

Lat:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology Yes X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS – Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

No X

No X X

No X

X

X

X Yes X

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM – Northcentral and Northeast Region 

 625 Waldon Road City/County: Orion Twp., Oakland Co. Sampling Date: 12/23/2021

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): upland Local relief (concave, convex, none): convex Slope %: 6-12

Steve Perlman; AP Builders MI Sampling Point: C18

 Bill Brodovich Section, Township, Range: S27, T4N, R10E

WGS

Foc sandy loam, Huron lobe  Upl A-B-C

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes No (If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): LRR K 43.7327 Long: -83.25775 Datum:

significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present? No

naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes

Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Is the Sampled Area

Hydric Soil Present? Yes within a Wetland? Yes No

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
Sampling point is midway between the 3 wetlands, next to the tower in the powerline corridor.

HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators: Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                       Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Surface Water (A1)

Water Marks (B1) Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) Crayfish Burrows (C8)

Sediment Deposits (B2) Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3) Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) Drainage Patterns (B10)

High Water Table (A2) Aquatic Fauna (B13) Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Saturation (A3) Marl Deposits (B15) Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Iron Deposits (B5) Thin Muck Surface (C7) Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) Other (Explain in Remarks) Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Drift Deposits (B3) Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Algal Mat or Crust (B4) Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6) Geomorphic Position (D2)

Water Table Present? Yes No Depth (inches):

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes No Depth (inches):

Remarks: 

No

(includes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Saturation Present? Yes No Depth (inches): 0 Wetland Hydrology Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

162



Sampling Point:

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: x 1 =

1. x 2 =

2. x 3 =

3. x 4 =

4. x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (B)

6.

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. 4 - Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. X

VEGETATION – Use scientific names of plants. C18

Tree Stratum 30' )
Absolute 
% Cover

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 0 (A)

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata: 1 (B)

Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 0.0%

Prevalence Index worksheet:

FAC species 0 0

0 0

Total % Cover of:

0

UPL species 15 75

FACU species 85

=Total Cover

415

Prevalence Index  = B/A = 4.15

100 (A)

15' ) OBL species

Multiply by:

FACW species 0

340

=Total Cover 1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

5' ) 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Festuca rubra 70 Yes FACU 3 - Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

Solidago altissima 10 No FACU

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

Juniperus virginiana 5 No FACU 1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Centaurea stoebe 10 No UPL data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

Conya canadensis 5 No

Pyrus calleryana 5 No UPL

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than or equal to 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Woody Vine Stratum 15' )
Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.105 =Total Cover

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present? Yes No

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

=Total Cover

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

163



Sampling Point:

X

SOIL C18

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) % Type1

12-14 10YR 5/6

Loamy/Clayey sandy loam

Loc2 Texture Remarks

Sandy100

Hydric Soil Indicators: Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

Histosol (A1) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R, 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Histic Epipedon (A2) MLRA 149B) Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

Black Histic (A3) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4) High Chroma Sands (S11) (LRR K, L) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, MS=Masked Sand Grains. 2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Thick Dark Surface (A12) Depleted Matrix (F3) Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1) Redox Dark Surface (F6) Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Stratified Layers (A5) Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

0-12 10YR 3/4 100

Stripped Matrix (S6) Marl (F10) (LRR K, L) Other (Explain in Remarks)

Dark Surface (S7)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4) Depleted Dark Surface (F7) Red Parent Material (F21)

Sandy Redox (S5) Redox Depressions (F8) Very Shallow Dark Surface (F22)

Yes No

Remarks:
This data form is revised from Northcentral and Northeast Regional Supplement Version 2.0 to include the NRCS Field Indicators of Hydric Soils, 
Version 7.0, 2015 Errata. (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_051293.docx)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Type:

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

164



Project/Site:

Applicant/Owner: State:

Investigator(s):

Lat:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology Yes X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS – Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

X No

X No X

X No

X

X

X

X

X

X Yes X

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM – Northcentral and Northeast Region 

 625 Waldon Road City/County: Orion Twp., Oakland Co. Sampling Date: 12/23/2021

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): depression Local relief (concave, convex, none): Concave Slope %: 0

Steve Perlman MI Sampling Point: A1

 Bill Brodovich Section, Township, Range: S27, T4N, R10E

WSG

Houghton and Adrian Muck  PEM

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes No (If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): LRR K 42.7312 Long: -83.257727 Datum:

significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present? No

naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes

Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Is the Sampled Area

Hydric Soil Present? Yes within a Wetland? Yes No

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators: Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                       Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Surface Water (A1)

Water Marks (B1) Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) Crayfish Burrows (C8)

Sediment Deposits (B2) Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3) Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) Drainage Patterns (B10)

High Water Table (A2) Aquatic Fauna (B13) Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Saturation (A3) Marl Deposits (B15) Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Iron Deposits (B5) Thin Muck Surface (C7) Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) Other (Explain in Remarks) Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Drift Deposits (B3) Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Algal Mat or Crust (B4) Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6) Geomorphic Position (D2)

Water Table Present? Yes No Depth (inches): 10

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes No Depth (inches):

Remarks: 

No

(includes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Saturation Present? Yes No Depth (inches): 5 Wetland Hydrology Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

165



Sampling Point:

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: x 1 =

1. x 2 =

2. x 3 =

3. x 4 =

4. x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (B)

6.

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size: X

1. X

2. 4 - Morphological Adaptations
1 

(Provide supporting

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. X

VEGETATION – Use scientific names of plants. A1

Tree Stratum 30' )

Absolute 

% Cover

Dominant 

Species?

Indicator 

Status Dominance Test worksheet:

Ulmus americana 15 Yes FACW
Number of Dominant Species 

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 3 (A)

Total Number of Dominant 

Species Across All Strata: 3 (B)

Percent of Dominant Species 

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 100.0%

Frangula alnus 10 Yes FAC

Prevalence Index worksheet:

FAC species 10 30

10 10

Total % Cover of:

220

UPL species 0 0

FACU species 0

15 =Total Cover

260

Prevalence Index  = B/A = 2.00

130 (A)

15' ) OBL species

Multiply by:

FACW species 110

0

10 =Total Cover 1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

5' ) 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Phragmites australis 90 Yes FACW 3 - Prevalence Index is ≤3.0
1

Onoclea sensibilis 5 No FACW

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation
1
 (Explain)

1
Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 

be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Eutrochium maculatum 5 No OBL
data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

Carex lacustris 5 No OBL

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 

and greater than or equal to 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 

diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Woody Vine Stratum 15' )
Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 

height.

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 

of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.105 =Total Cover

Hydrophytic 

Vegetation 

Present? Yes No

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

=Total Cover

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

166



Sampling Point:

X ?

X

SOIL A1

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) % Type
1

Muck

Loc
2

Texture Remarks

Hydric Soil Indicators: Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils
3
:

Histosol (A1) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R, 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Histic Epipedon (A2) MLRA 149B) Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

Black Histic (A3) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4) High Chroma Sands (S11) (LRR K, L) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

1
Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, MS=Masked Sand Grains.

2
Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Thick Dark Surface (A12) Depleted Matrix (F3) Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1) Redox Dark Surface (F6) Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Stratified Layers (A5) Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

0-14 10YR 2/1 100

Stripped Matrix (S6) Marl (F10) (LRR K, L) Other (Explain in Remarks)

Dark Surface (S7)

3
Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4) Depleted Dark Surface (F7) Red Parent Material (F21)

Sandy Redox (S5) Redox Depressions (F8) Very Shallow Dark Surface (F22)

Yes No

Remarks:

This data form is revised from Northcentral and Northeast Regional Supplement Version 2.0 to include the NRCS Field Indicators of Hydric Soils, 

Version 7.0, 2015 Errata. (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_051293.docx)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Type:

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

167



Project/Site:

Applicant/Owner: State:

Investigator(s):

Lat:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology Yes X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS – Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

X No

X No X

X No

X

X

X

X

X

X Yes X

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM – Northcentral and Northeast Region 

 625 Waldon Road City/County: Orion Twp., Oakland Co. Sampling Date: 12/23/2021

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): depression Local relief (concave, convex, none): concave Slope %: 6

Steve Perlman; AP Builders MI Sampling Point: B4

 Bill Brodovich Section, Township, Range: S27, T4N, R10E

WGS

Fox sandy loam, Huron lobe  PEM / PSS

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes No (If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): LRR K 43.7317 Long: -83.2565 Datum:

significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present? No

naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes

Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Is the Sampled Area

Hydric Soil Present? Yes within a Wetland? Yes No

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)
In powerline corridor

HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators: Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                       Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Surface Water (A1)

Water Marks (B1) Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) Crayfish Burrows (C8)

Sediment Deposits (B2) Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3) Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) Drainage Patterns (B10)

High Water Table (A2) Aquatic Fauna (B13) Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Saturation (A3) Marl Deposits (B15) Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Iron Deposits (B5) Thin Muck Surface (C7) Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) Other (Explain in Remarks) Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Drift Deposits (B3) Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Algal Mat or Crust (B4) Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6) Geomorphic Position (D2)

Water Table Present? Yes No Depth (inches): 10

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes No Depth (inches):

Remarks: 

No

(includes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Saturation Present? Yes No Depth (inches): 5 Wetland Hydrology Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

168



Sampling Point:

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: x 1 =

1. x 2 =

2. x 3 =

3. x 4 =

4. x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (B)

6.

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size: X

1. X

2. 4 - Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. X

VEGETATION – Use scientific names of plants. B4

Tree Stratum 30' )
Absolute 
% Cover

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 3 (A)

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata: 3 (B)

Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 100.0%

Salix interior 30 Yes FACW

Prevalence Index worksheet:

5 No FACW FAC species 10 30

5 5

Total % Cover of:

170

Cornus obliqua

UPL species 0 0

FACU species 0

=Total Cover

205

Prevalence Index  = B/A = 2.05

100 (A)

15' ) OBL species

Multiply by:

FACW species 85

0

35 =Total Cover 1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

5' ) 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Phragmites australis 25 Yes FACW 3 - Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

Phalaris arundinacea 25 Yes FACW

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Symphyotrichum lateriflorum 10 No FAC data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

Lycopus americanus 5 No OBL

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than or equal to 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Woody Vine Stratum 15' )
Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.65 =Total Cover

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present? Yes No

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

=Total Cover

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

169



Sampling Point:

X

?

X

?

X

SOIL B4

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

Stony

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) % Type1

Loamy/Clayey Distinct redox concentrations

Loc2 Texture Remarks

Hydric Soil Indicators: Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

Histosol (A1) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R, 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Histic Epipedon (A2) MLRA 149B) Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

Black Histic (A3) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4) High Chroma Sands (S11) (LRR K, L) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, MS=Masked Sand Grains. 2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Thick Dark Surface (A12) Depleted Matrix (F3) Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1) Redox Dark Surface (F6) Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Stratified Layers (A5) Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

0-12 10YR 4/2 95 10YR 4/4 5 C M

Stripped Matrix (S6) Marl (F10) (LRR K, L) Other (Explain in Remarks)

Dark Surface (S7)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4) Depleted Dark Surface (F7) Red Parent Material (F21)

Sandy Redox (S5) Redox Depressions (F8) Very Shallow Dark Surface (F22)

Yes No

Remarks:
This data form is revised from Northcentral and Northeast Regional Supplement Version 2.0 to include the NRCS Field Indicators of Hydric Soils, 
Version 7.0, 2015 Errata. (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_051293.docx)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Type:

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

170



Project/Site:

Applicant/Owner: State:

Investigator(s):

Lat:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology Yes X

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS – Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

X No

X No X

X No

X

X

X

X

X

X Yes X

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM – Northcentral and Northeast Region 

 625 Waldon Road City/County: Orion Twp., Oakland Co. Sampling Date: 12/23/2021

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): depression Local relief (concave, convex, none): concave Slope %: 3

Steve Perlman; AP Builders MI Sampling Point: C18

 Bill Brodovich Section, Township, Range: S27, T4N, R10E

WGS

Matherton sandy loam  PFO

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes No (If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): LRR K 43.73301 Long: -83.25784 Datum:

significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present? No

naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present? Yes

Wetland Hydrology Present? Yes If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Is the Sampled Area

Hydric Soil Present? Yes within a Wetland? Yes No

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

HYDROLOGY

Wetland Hydrology Indicators: Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                       Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Surface Water (A1)

Water Marks (B1) Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1) Crayfish Burrows (C8)

Sediment Deposits (B2) Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3) Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) Drainage Patterns (B10)

High Water Table (A2) Aquatic Fauna (B13) Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Saturation (A3) Marl Deposits (B15) Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Iron Deposits (B5) Thin Muck Surface (C7) Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7) Other (Explain in Remarks) Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Drift Deposits (B3) Presence of Reduced Iron (C4) Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Algal Mat or Crust (B4) Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6) Geomorphic Position (D2)

Water Table Present? Yes No Depth (inches): 4

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8) FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present? Yes No Depth (inches):

Remarks: 

No

(includes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Saturation Present? Yes No Depth (inches): 0 Wetland Hydrology Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

171



Sampling Point:

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: x 1 =

1. x 2 =

2. x 3 =

3. x 4 =

4. x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (B)

6.

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size: X

1. X

2. 4 - Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

(Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. X

VEGETATION – Use scientific names of plants. C18

Tree Stratum 30' )
Absolute 
% Cover

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status Dominance Test worksheet:

Populus deltoides 45 Yes FAC
Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:Fraxinus pennsylvanica 15 Yes FACW 7 (A)

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata: 7 (B)

Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 100.0%

Cornus racemosa 5 Yes FAC

Prevalence Index worksheet:

5 Yes FACW FAC species 70 210

0 0

Total % Cover of:

50

Cornus obliqua

Frangula alnus 5 Yes FAC UPL species 0 0

Ulmus americana 5 Yes FACW FACU species 0

60 =Total Cover

260

Prevalence Index  = B/A = 2.74

95 (A)

15' ) OBL species

Multiply by:

FACW species 25

0

20 =Total Cover 1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

5' ) 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Cornus racemosa 15 Yes FAC 3 - Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than or equal to 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Woody Vine Stratum 15' )
Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.15 =Total Cover

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present? Yes No

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

=Total Cover

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

172



Sampling Point:

X

X

SOIL C18

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) % Type1

Loamy/Clayey loam

Loc2 Texture Remarks

Hydric Soil Indicators: Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

Histosol (A1) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R, 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Histic Epipedon (A2) MLRA 149B) Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

Black Histic (A3) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4) High Chroma Sands (S11) (LRR K, L) Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, MS=Masked Sand Grains. 2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Thick Dark Surface (A12) Depleted Matrix (F3) Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1) Redox Dark Surface (F6) Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Stratified Layers (A5) Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L) Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2) Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

0-15 10YR 2/1 100

Stripped Matrix (S6) Marl (F10) (LRR K, L) Other (Explain in Remarks)

Dark Surface (S7)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4) Depleted Dark Surface (F7) Red Parent Material (F21)

Sandy Redox (S5) Redox Depressions (F8) Very Shallow Dark Surface (F22)

Yes No

Remarks:
This data form is revised from Northcentral and Northeast Regional Supplement Version 2.0 to include the NRCS Field Indicators of Hydric Soils, 
Version 7.0, 2015 Errata. (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_DOCUMENTS/nrcs142p2_051293.docx)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Type:

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present?

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Version 2.0

173



174



175



176



177



178



179



Exhibit A

180



 

41457586.1

MASTER DEED 

WALDON RESERVE 
(A Residential Condominium) 

OAKLAND COUNTY CONDOMINIUM 
SUBDIVISION PLAN NO. ________

 

 

181



 

B-1 
41457586.1

MASTER DEED
WALDON RESERVE  

(A Residential Condominium) 

OAKLAND COUNTY CONDOMINIUM 
SUBDIVISION PLAN NO. 

This Master Deed is made and executed on _____, 2022, by Waldon Reserve Development, 
LLC, a Michigan limited liability company 21 East Long Lake 
Road, Suite 215, Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 48304, pursuant to the provisions of the Michigan 

 

RECITALS

Developer desires by recording this Master Deed, together with the Bylaws attached as 
Exhibit A, and together with the Condominium Subdivision Plan attached as Exhibit B (both of 
which are incorporated by reference and made a part of this Master Deed), to establish the real 
property described in Article 2 below, together with the improvements located and to be located 
thereon, and the appurtenances thereto, as a residential Condominium Project under the provisions 
of the Act. 

Developer does, upon recording this Master Deed, establish Waldon Reserve as a 
Condominium Project under the Act and declares that Waldon Reserve (referred to as the 

held, conveyed, hypothecated, encumbered, leased, rented, occupied, improved, or in any other 
manner used subject to the provisions of the Act, and to the covenants, conditions, restrictions, 
uses, limitations and affirmative obligations set forth in this Master Deed and Exhibits A and B 
hereto, all of which shall be deemed to run with the land and shall be a burden and a benefit to 
Developer, its successors and assigns, and any persons acquiring or owning an interest in the 
Condominium, their grantees, successors, transferees, heirs, personal representatives and assigns. 

The Project consists of eighteen (18) Units which are the individual sites on which 
residential dwellings and other improvements may be constructed. Each Condominium Unit 
consists only of the land within the perimeter of the Unit and each Unit is capable of individual 
use because it has access to a public road. Each Unit Owner will hold an absolute and undivided 
title to such Owner's Unit and to the dwelling and other improvements located on it, to the extent 
such improvements are not designated in the Master Deed as Common Elements, and an undivided 
inseparable right to share with other Co-Owners the Common Elements of the Condominium. 

In furtherance of the establishment of the Condominium Project, it is provided as follows: 

 
TITLE AND NATURE

The Condominium Project shall be known as Waldon Reserve, Oakland County 
Condominium Subdivision Plan No. __________.  The engineering plans for the Project, if any, Commented [A1]: Needs to be added. 

182



 

B-2 
41457586.1

are on file with the Township of Orion. The Condominium Project is established in accordance 
with the Act. The Units contained in the Condominium, including the number, boundaries, 
dimensions and area of each Unit, are set forth completely in the Condominium Subdivision Plan 
attached as Exhibit B hereto. Each individual Unit has been created for residential purposes and 
each Unit is capable of individual use. Each Co-Owner in the Condominium Project shall have an 
exclusive right to such Co-Owner's Unit except to the extent of any Common Elements located 
thereon and shall have an undivided and inseparable rights to share with the other Co-Owners the 
Common Elements of the Condominium Project as are designated by the Master Deed. Nothing in 
this Master Deed shall be construed to impose upon Developer any contractual or other legal 
obligation to build, install or deliver any structure or improvement which is labeled on the 

 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

The land which is submitted to the Condominium Project is established by this Master 
Deed and is particularly described as follows: 

Land situated in the Township of Orion, County of Oakland, State of Michigan as follows: 

Part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 27, Town 4 North, Range 10 East, Orion 
Township, Oakland County, Michigan, described as beginning at a point in the centerline 
of Waldon Road distant South 89 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 128 feet and South 
00 degrees 03 minutes 30 seconds East 867 feet and South 86 degrees 09 minutes 00 
seconds West 675.23 feet and South 70 degrees 08 minutes 20 seconds West 209 feet from 
the Northeast corner of Section 27, thence South 02 degrees 39 minutes 50 seconds East 
1160.29 feet; thence South 00 degrees 32 minutes 20 seconds West 263.64 feet (recorded 
as South 00 degrees 25 minutes East 264.70 feet in Vernier's Farms a subdivision of part 
of the Northeast Quarter of Section 27 and part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 26, 
Town 4 North, Range 10 East, Orion Township, Oakland County, Michigan), thence 
South 85 degrees 37 minutes 40 seconds West 420.28 feet; thence North 00 degrees 46 
minutes 50 seconds East 1328.56 feet to the centerline of Waldon Road; thence North 70 
degrees 08 minutes 20 seconds East along the centerline of Waldon Road 371.64 feet to 
the point of beginning. 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM, Part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 27, Town 4 North, 
Range 10 East, Orion Township, Oakland County, Michigan, being more particularly 
described as: Commencing at the Northeast corner of said Section 27; thence South 89 
degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West 128.00 feet to a point; thence South 00 degrees 03 
minutes 30 seconds East 867.00 feet to a point; thence South 86 degrees 09 minutes 00 
seconds West 675.23 feet to a point; thence South 70 degrees 08 minutes 20 seconds West 
480.48 feet to the point of beginning; thence proceeding South 70 degrees 08 minutes 20 
seconds West 100.00 feet to a point; thence South 00 degrees 46 minutes 50 seconds West 
235.26 feet to a point; thence North 70 degrees 08 minutes 20 seconds East 100.00 feet to 
a point; thence North 00 degrees 46 minutes 50 seconds East 235.26 feet to the point of 
beginning. Commented [A2]: Should use legal description on record. 

183



 

B-3 
41457586.1

Parcel Identification No. 09-27-276-038 

Together with and subject to the following: 

1. Liens for taxes and assessments not yet due and payable. 

2. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor, or material heretofore or hereafter 
furnished, imposed by law and not shown by the public records. 

3. Laws, ordinances and regulations of applicable governmental authorities. 

4. Any rights, title interest or claim thereof to that portion of the land taken, used or 
granted for streets, roads or highways. 

5. Rights of tenants under unrecorded leases and any and all parties claiming by, 
through, and thereunder. 

6. Any easements, restrictions and agreements of record. 

7. Easements or claims of easements not shown by the public records and existing 
water, mineral, oil and exploration rights.  

8. Any encroachment, violation, variation or adverse circumstance affecting the title 
that would be disclosed by an accurate or complete survey of the Condominium 
Premises.  

 
DEFINITIONS 

Certain terms are used not only in this Master Deed and Exhibits A and B hereto, but are 
or may be used in various other instruments such as, by way of example and not limitation, the 
Articles of Incorporation and rules and regulations of Waldon Reserve Condominium Association, 
a Michigan non-profit corporation; and deeds, mortgages, liens, land contracts, easements and 
other instruments affecting the establishment of, or transfer of, interests in Waldon Reserve, as a 
condominium. Wherever used in such documents or any other pertinent instruments, the terms set 
forth below shall be defined as follows: 

Section 3.1 Act.  
the Public Acts of 1978, as amended. 

Section 3.2 Association. Waldon Reserve Condominium 
Association, which is the non-profit corporation organized under Michigan law, of which all 
Co-Owners shall be members, which corporation shall administer, operate, manage and 
maintain the Condominium. 

Section 3.3 Bylaws.  -laws setting 
forth the substantive rights and obligations of the Co-Owners and required by Section 3(9) of 
the Act to be recorded as part of the Master Deed. The By-laws shall also constitute the 

184



 

B-4 
41457586.1

corporate bylaws of the Association as provided for under the Michigan Nonprofit 
Corporation. Act. 

Section 3.4 Common Elements.  
modification, means both the General and Limited Common Elements described in Article 4 
below. 

Section 3.5 Condominium Documents means and 
includes this Master Deed and Exhibits A and B hereto, the Articles of Incorporation, and the 
rules and regulations, if any, of the Association, as all of the same may be amended from time 
to time. 

Section 3.6 Condominium Premises
the land described in Article 2 above and all easements, rights and appurtenances belonging to 
Waldon Reserve as described above. 

Section 3.7 Condominium Project, Condominium or Project
Waldon Reserve as a Condominium Project 

established in conformity with the provisions of the Act. 

Section 3.8 Condominium Subdivision Plan
 

Section 3.9 Consolidating Master Deed
final amended Master Deed, if any, which shall describe Waldon Reserve as a completed 
Condominium Project and shall reflect the land area, if any, converted pursuant to Article 8 
below, or contracted pursuant to Article 9 below from time to time, and all Units and Common 
Elements therein, and which shall express percentages of value pertinent to each Unit as finally 
readjusted, if necessary. Such Consolidating Master Deed, if and when recorded in the office 
of the Oakland County Register of Deeds, shall supersede the previously recorded Master Deed 
for the Condominium and all amendments thereto, but until such time, the terms of this Master 
Deed, as it may be amended, shall control. In the event the Units and Common Elements in the 
Condominium are constructed in substantial conformance with the proposed Condominium 
Subdivision Plan attached as Exhibit B to the Master Deed, the Developer shall be able to 
satisfy the foregoing obligation by filing a certificate in the office of the Oakland County 

conformity with the proposed Condominium Subdivision Plan and no Consolidating Master 
Deed need be recorded. 

Section 3.10 Construction and Sales Period
purposes of the Condominium Documents and the rights reserved to Developer thereunder, 
means the period commencing with the recording of the Master Deed and continuing as long 
as Developer owns any Unit which it offers for sale, and for so long as the Developer continues 
or proposes to construct or is entitled to construct additional Units.  

Section 3.11 Co-Owner -
association, trust or other legal entity or any combination thereof who or which owns one or 

185



 

B-5 
41457586.1

-
contract, the land contract vendees shall -
liability for all obligations arising with respect to the Unit to the exclusion of the land contract 
vendors; provided that the Developer or an affiliate of the Developer shall retain the rights and 
obligations of a Co-Owner with respect to any Unit sold under land contract by the Developer 
or an affiliate of the Developer. The foregoing provision regarding the rights and obligations 
of land contract vendors and vendees shall apply notwithstanding the defin -

-

simple title to the Unit by foreclosure or other proceeding or conveyance in lieu of foreclosure 
and shall not include any interest in a Unit held as security for the performance of any 
obligation. In the event more than one person or entity owns an interest in fee simple title to 
any Unit, or has an interest as a land contract vendee (other than Units owned by Developer), 
the interests of all such persons collectively shall be that of one Co-Owner. 

Section 3.12 Developer  Waldon Reserve Development, LLC, 
which has made and executed this Master Deed, and its successors and assigns. Both successors 

terms are used in the Condominium Documents. 

Section 3.13 First Annual Meeting
at which non-developer Co-Owners are permitted to vote for the election of Directors and upon 
all other matters that properly may be brought before the meeting. Such meeting is to be held 
(a) in Developer's sole discretion after fifty percent (50%) of the Units that may be created are 
sold, or (b) mandatorily within (i) fifty-four (54) months from the date of the first Unit 
conveyance, or (ii) one hundred twenty (120) days after seventy-five percent (75%) of all Units 
that may be created are sold, whichever first occurs. 

Section 3.14 Open Space Areas
and buffer zones shown on Exhibit B, together with any related improvements.  

Section 3.15 Residential Builder
as a residential builder under Article 24 of the Occupational Code of Michigan, Public Act 299 
of 1980, and who acquires title to one or more Units in the Condominium for the purpose of 
constructing a Residence on the Unit and subsequently reselling the Unit.  

Section 3.16 Roads  Roads serving the Project as described in 
Section 6.5 below on Exhibit B. 

Section 3.17 Township Orion. 

Section 3.18 Transitional Control Date
on which a Board of Directors of the Association take office pursuant to an election in which 
the votes which may be cast by eligible Co-Owners unaffiliated with the Developer exceed the 
votes which may be cast by Developer. 

186



 

B-6 
41457586.1

Section 3.19 Unit or Condominium Unit
means a single Unit in Waldon Reserve as such space may be described in Article 5, Section 
5.1 hereof and on Exhibit B hereto, and shall have the same meaning as the term 

 

 
COMMON ELEMENTS; USE OF COMMON ELEMENTS AND UNITS 

The Common Elements of the Project as described herein and as described in Exhibit B 
attached hereto, as may be modified from time to time pursuant to certain other provisions of this 
Master Deed and the Bylaws attached as Exhibit A, and the respective responsibilities for 
maintenance, decoration, repair or replacement are as follows: 

Section 4.1 General Common Elements.  The General Common Elements are: 

4.1.1 Land.  The land designated as General Common Elements on attached 
Exhibit B, including open space.     

4.1.2 Intentionally Omitted. Safety Paths and Sidewalks. All non-publicly 
dedicated safety paths and sidewalks located within the Project pursuant to Orion Township 
Ordinance No. . 

4.1.3 Easements.  All beneficial utility, drainage, access, and other easements 
pertaining to the Project. 

4.1.4 Utilities.  Some or all of the utility lines and appurtenances, including 
electric, telephone and telecommunications, gas, water, sanitary sewer and storm sewer systems, 
and storm water retention areas and drainage facilities and equipment described below may be 
owned by the local public authority, or by the company that is providing the pertinent service. 
Accordingly, such utility lines, systems and equipment shall be General Common Elements only 
to the extent of the Co-Owners' interest therein, if any, and Developer makes no warranty 
whatsoever with respect to the nature or extent of such interest, if any. Certain utilities as shown 
on Exhibit B may be conveyed or dedicated to the Township or other governmental authorities, 
and except to the extent of such conveyance or dedication, such utilities shall be General Common 
Elements. The Stormwater Drainage Facilities, including easements are established to assure the 
perpetual functioning of the Stormwater Drainage Facilities across the Project as shown on Exhibit 
[             ] including areas of easements, surface drainage and detention and detention basins. To 
maintain the intended function of the Stormwater Drainage Facilities and easements, no 
modification, use or occupancy of such areas is allowed without the prior written approval of the 
Developer and the Association. The Association is responsible for maintenance of the Stormwater 
Drainage Facilities of the Project and the cost of such maintenance shall be assessed to the Co-
Owners of the Units by the Association as described in the Bylaws. In the event the Association 
fails to maintain the stormwater drainage facilities, the Township may undertake or contract for 
maintenance, repair, or replacement of the facilities, and such costs shall be added to the 

 

 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1",  No bullets or numbering

187



 

B-7 
41457586.1

4.1.4  

4.1.5 Electrical.  Subject to 4.1.4, the electrical transmission system throughout 
the Project up to, but not including the electric meters for each residential dwelling now or 
hereafter constructed within the perimeter of a Unit. 

4.1.6 Telephone, Cable TV, Internet and Telecommunications System.  Subject 
to 4.1.4, the telephone, cable television, Internet and/or telecommunications equipment and 
system(s) throughout the Project up to the point of connection to each residential dwelling now or 
hereafter constructed within the perimeter of a Unit. 

4.1.7 Gas.  Subject to 4.1.4, the gas distribution system throughout the Project up 
to the point where it is stubbed for connection with each residential dwelling now or hereafter 
constructed within the perimeter of a Unit.

4.1.8 Water.  Subject to 4.1.4, the underground sprinkling system for the 
Common Elements (if any) and the water distribution system throughout the Project up to the point 
where service is stubbed for connection with each residential dwelling now or hereafter 
constructed within the perimeter of a Unit.

4.1.9 Sanitary Sewer.  Subject to 4.1.4, the sanitary sewer system throughout the 
Project up to the point where it enters upon a Unit. 

4.1.10 Storm Drainage System.  Subject to 4.1.4, the storm water drainage system 
throughout the Project and related improvements shown on Exhibit B, including storm sewers, 
areas of surface drainage, and the detention basin. 

4.1.11 Other.  Such other elements of the Project not designated as Limited 
Common Elements which are not located within the perimeter of a Unit, and which are intended 
for common use or are necessary to the existence, upkeep and safety of the Project 

Section 4.2 Limited Common Elements.  Limited Common Elements shall be 
subject to the exclusive use and enjoyment of the Co-Owners of the Units to which the Limited 
Common Elements are appurtenant. There are currently no Limited Common Elements in the 
Project. Developer reserves the right to add Limited Common Elements by amendment to the
Master Deed pursuant to Article 7 below. 

Section 4.3 Responsibilities.  The respective responsibilities for the maintenance, 
reconstruction, repair and replacement of the Common Elements are as follows:  

4.3.1 Co-Owner Responsibilities.  Except as may be otherwise expressly 
provided herein, the responsibility for insurance, maintenance, decoration, repair and replacement 
of the Unit, including any and all structures and improvements located within or upon a Unit and 
any appurtenant Limited Common Elements (including without limitation lawn and landscaping 
areas and snow removal) including all costs and expenses related thereto, and the cost of all utilities 
serving the Co-Owner's Unit, shall be borne by the Co-Owner of the Unit. 

Formatted: Body Text,Body, Left

188



 

B-8 
41457586.1

4.3.2 Association Responsibilities.  The Association, by its Board of Directors, 
shall be responsible for insurance, maintenance, repair and replacement of the General Common 
Elements.  The costs of repairing, maintaining, replacing and insuring the General Common 
Elements shall be borne by the Association subject to any provisions of the Master Deed and 
Bylaws expressly to the contrary, and assessed to the Co-Owners as set forth in the Bylaws (for 
clarity the Co-owner shall be responsible for repairs, replacements and insurance on driveway and 
lawn areas). The Association shall establish a reserve fund or other form of assessment in 
accordance with Article 2 of the Bylaws for costs associated with maintenance, repair and 
replacement of the General Common Elements.  

Section 4.4 Use of Common Elements and Units.  No Co-Owner shall use the Co-
Owner's Unit or the Common Elements in any manner inconsistent with the purposes of the 
Project or in any manner which will interfere with or impair the rights of any other Co-Owner 
in the use and enjoyment of the Co-Owner's Unit or the Common Elements.

Section 4.5 Residential Use.  The use of the Units is limited to residential use in 
accordance with this Master Deed and exhibits, the ordinances of the Township and the 
requirements of other applicable governmental authorities. 

Section 4.6 Dedication.  Developer intends to, and by recordation of this Master 
Deed reserves the right and power to, dedicate all the roads in the Condominium to public use, 
and all persons acquiring any interest in the Condominium, including without limitation all 
Co-Owners and mortgagees, shall be deemed irrevocably to have appointed Developer, and/or 
its successors as agent and attorney-in-fact to make such dedication and to act in behalf of all 
Co-Owners and their mortgagees in any statutory or special assessment proceedings with 
respect to the dedicated roads. The foregoing rights and powers may be exercised by the 
Association upon transfer of the Developer's responsibility to the Association as set forth in 
the Master Deed or Bylaws, after the transitional control date.  

 
UNIT DESCRIPTION AND PERCENTAGE OF VALUE 

Section 5.1 Description of Units.  The Project contains eighteen (18) Units numbered 
1 through 18 inclusive. Each Unit in the Condominium Project is described in this paragraph 
with reference to the Condominium Subdivision Plan of Waldon Reserve prepared by Seiber, 
Keast and Militex Engineers and attached as Exhibit B. Each Unit shall consist of the land and 
area contained within the Unit boundaries as shown on attached Exhibit B and delineated with 
heavy outlines. Any structure, improvements or driveways constructed on any Unit shall be 
built in accordance with the requirements of this Master Deed and exhibits and in accordance 
with the requirements of applicable governmental authorities.  

Section 5.2 Percentage of Value.  The percentage of value assigned to each Unit 
shall be equal and the number obtained by dividing 100 by the number of Units in the 
Condominium. The determination that the percentages of value of each Unit is equal was made 
after reviewing the comparative characteristics of each Unit in the Project which would affect 
maintenance costs and value and concluding that there are no material differences among the 
Units insofar as the allocation of percentage of value is concerned. The percentage of value 

189



 

B-9 
41457586.1

assigned to each Unit shall be determinative of each Unit's respective share of the Common 
Elements of the Condominium Project, and the proportionate share of each Unit in the proceeds 
and the expenses of administration, and the vote attributed to each Unit at meetings of the 
Association. As such, the total value of all of the Units of the Project is one hundred percent 
(100%) and the percentage of value of each individual Unit is .05%. 

 

 

 
EASEMENTS, RESERVATIONS AND AGREEMENTS

Section 6.1 Easement for Maintenance of Encroachments and Utilities.  In the 
event any portion of a Unit or Common Element encroaches upon another Unit or Common 
Element due to shifting, settling or moving of a building, or due to survey errors, or 
construction deviations, reciprocal easements shall exist for the maintenance, repair or 
reconstruction of such encroachment for so long as such encroachment exists, and for 
maintenance thereof after rebuilding in the event of any destruction. There shall be easements 
to, through and over those portions of the land, structures, buildings and improvements for the 
continuing maintenance and repair of all utilities in the Condominium. This section shall not 
be construed to allow or permit any encroachment upon, or an easement for an encroachment 
upon, a Unit, without the consent of the Co-Owner of the Unit to be burdened by the 
encroachment or easement. Developer hereby reserves and declares permanent and perpetual 
non-exclusive easements to the Township, Oakland County and all other government 
authorities or companies providing, operating and/or maintaining utility services and their 
respective successors, assigns and transferees for ingress and egress in, over, under and 
through all General Common Elements and any Limited Common Elements identified in 
Article 4 in the Condominium for the operation, access, maintenance, repair and replacement 
of the water supply system, sanitary sewer system, gas and electrical lines and all other utility 
lines or systems, and permanent easements to use, tap into, enlarge or extend all utili ty lines 
in the Condominium or adjacent areas, including, without limitation, all water, gas, electric 
and sanitary sewer lines, all of which easements shall be for the benefit of the Project. These 
easements shall run with land in perpetuity. Developer has no financial obligation to support 
such easements. 

Section 6.2 Easement in Favor of the Association.  There shall be easements to and 
in favor of the Association, and its officers, directors, agents, and designees, in, on and over 
all Units and Common Elements in the Project for access to the Units, retention basins, 
drainage facilities, water and sewage disposal systems and other utilities , and the exterior and 
interior of each of the buildings that is now existing or hereafter constructed within the Project 
to permit the maintenance, repair, replacement, and/or decoration thereof in accordance with 
this Master Deed. Each Co-Owner shall be primarily responsible for maintenance of the 
exterior of all structures and improvements within a Co-Owner's Unit as set forth in Article 4 
above. In the absence of performance by the Co-Owner involved, the Association may 
undertake the maintenance of a Unit or the exterior of structures and improvements.  If such 
work is performed upon a Unit by the Association, the Co-Owner of the Unit shall reimburse 

Formatted: Underline

190



 

B-10 
41457586.1

the Association for all costs incurred by the Association within fifteen (15) days of billing, or 
the Association shall have the right to recover its expenses in the same manner as established 
for the collection of assessments in Article 2 of the Bylaws. In no event shall the Association 
be liable for the decoration, maintenance, repair, or replacement of any portion of the interior 
or exterior of a structure or other improvements on any Unit. There also shall exist easements 
to and in favor of the Association, and its officers, directors, agents, and designees, in, on and 
over all Units and Common Elements of the Project or adjacent areas for access to and 
maintenance of those Common Elements of the Project for which the Association m ay from 
time to time be responsible. 

Section 6.3 Grant of Easements by Association.  The Association, acting through its 
lawfully constituted Board of Directors (including any Board of Directors acting prior to the 
Transitional Control Date), shall be empowered and obligated to grant such easements, 
licenses, rights-of-entry and rights-of-way over, under and across the Condominium for utility 
purposes, access purposes or other lawful purposes as may be necessary for the benefit of the 
Condominium, subject, however, to the approval of Developer so long as the Construction and 
Sales Period has not expired, upon review and approval of any necessary governmental agency, 
if so required. 

Section 6.4 Easements for Maintenance, Repair and Replacement.  Developer, the 
Association, and all public or private utility companies shall have such easements as may be 
necessary over the Condominium including all Units and Common Elements to fulfill any 
responsibilities of maintenance, repair, decoration or replacement which they or any of them 
are required or permitted to perform under the Condominium Documents. These easements 
include, without any implication of limitation, the right of the Association to obtain access 
during reasonable hours and upon reasonable notice to water meters, sprinkler controls and 
valves and other Common Elements located within any dwelling on any Unit or any 
appurtenant Limited Common Elements. 

Section 6.5 Roadway and Utility Easements. Developer reserves the right at any 
time during the Construction and Sales Period to grant easements for public or private utilities 
over, under and across the Condominium to appropriate governmental agencies or public or 
private utility companies and to dedicate or transfer title of the Roads and road right -of-ways 
and utilities to state, county or local governments, upon the review and approval of any 
necessary governmental agency, if so required. Any such easement or transfer of title may be 
conveyed by Developer without the consent of any Co-Owner, mortgagee or other person and 
may be evidenced by an appropriate amendment to this Master Deed and to Exhibit B hereto, 
recorded in the Oakland County Records. All Co-Owners and mortgagees of Units and other 
persons interested in the Project from time to time are deemed to have irrevocably and 
unanimously consented to an amendment or amendments of this Master Deed to affect the 
foregoing easement or transfer of title. Developer reserves for itself, its successors and assigns, 
and all future owners of the land described in Article 2 or adjacent areas or an y portion or 
portions thereof, an easement for the unrestricted use of the Road in the Condominium for the 
purpose of ingress and egress to and from all or any portion of the land described in Article 2 
or adjacent areas. Developer also reserves easements over all of the Common Elements of the 
Condominium and the land described in Article 2 or adjacent areas for the purpose of 

191



 

B-11 
41457586.1

reasonable access from the Road to the Units located on the land described in Article 2 or 
adjacent areas.  

Section 6.6 Telecommunications Agreements.  The Association, acting through its 
duly constituted Board of Directors and subject to Developer's approval during the 
Construction and Sales Period, shall have the power to grant such easements, licenses and 
other rights of entry, use and access and to enter into any contract or agreement, including 
wiring agreements, right-of-way agreements, access agreements and multi-unit agreements 
and, to the extent allowed by law, contracts for sharing of any installation or periodic 
subscriber service fees as may be necessary, convenient or desirable to provide for 
telecommunications, videotext, broad band cable, satellite dish, earth antenna and similar 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall the Board of Directors enter into any contract 
or agreement or easement, license or right of entry or do any other act or thing which will 
violate any provision of any federal, state or local law or ordinance. Any and all sums paid by 
any Telecommunications or other company or entity in connection with such service, including 
fees, if any, for the privilege of installing same or sharing periodic subscriber service fees, 
shall be receipts affecting the administration of the Condominium Project within the meaning 
of the Act and shall be paid over to and shall be the property of the Association.  

Section 6.7 Utility Easements.  Easements for private and public utilities including 
water mains, storm sewers and sanitary sewers, natural gas, electricity and telecommunication 
service, and stormwater drainage facilities are reserved and established across the Units, and 
Common Elements as set forth on Exhibit B and the approved site plan for the Project. 
Developer has or may enter into separate easement agreements and dedication with the 
Township of Orion, other governmental authorities or utility companies for sewer, water and 
utility purposes, the terms of which are incorporated herein by reference. The Developer 
further reserves the right at any time to grant easements for utilities over, under and across the 
Project to facilitate development of the Project and to appropriate governmental agencies or to 
utility companies and to transfer title to utilities to governmental agencies or to utility 
companies upon the prior review and approval of the township, if required. Any such easement 
or transfer of title may be made by the Developer without the consent of any Co-Owner, 
mortgagee or other person and shall be evidenced by an appropriate amendment to this Master  
Deed and to Exhibit B hereto, recorded in the Oakland County Records or the recordings of a 
separate easement agreement. All of the Co-Owners and mortgagees of Units and other persons 
interested or to become interested in the Project from time to time shall be deemed to have 
irrevocably and unanimously consented to such amendment or amendments of this Master 
Deed or recording of a separate easement as may be required to effectuate the foregoing grant 
of easement or transfer of title.   

Section 6.8 Further Rights Reserved for Developer.  Developer reserves for the 
right of itself, the Association, their respective successors and assigns and all Co -Owners of 
the land described in Article 2 and adjacent areas, or portion or portions thereof, perpetual 
easements to use, tap, tie into, extend and enlarge all utility mains located in the Condominium 
Premises, including, but not limited to water, gas, telephone, electrical, cable television, storm 
and sanitary sewer mains and appurtenances. Developer further reserves easement s over the 
land described in Article 2 above and adjacent areas for the purpose of reasonable access from 

192



 

B-12 
41457586.1

the Roads to the Units and residences in furtherance of the development of the Project and 
adjacent areas. 

Section 6.9 Sign Easement.  Developer reserves for the benefit of itself, its 
successors and assigns, an easement to construct and maintain anywhere within the Project one 
or more signs advertising Condominium Units in the Project, in compliance with any and all 
Township Ordinances. 

Section 6.10 Termination of Easements.  Developer reserves the right, during the 
Construction and Sales Period, to terminate and revoke any utility or other easement granted 
in or pursuant to this Master Deed at such time as the particular easement has become 
unnecessary, subject to Township review and approval.  (This may occur, by way of illustration 
only, when a utility easement is relocated to coordinate development of property adjacent to 
the Condominium Project.)  No easement for a utility may be terminated or revoked unless and 
until all Units served by it are adequately served by an appropriate substitute or replacement 
utility.  Any termination or relocation of any such easement shall be effected by the recordation 
of an appropriate termination instrument, or, where applicable, amendment to this Master Deed 
in accordance with the requirements of the Act. 

Section 6.11 Special Assessment District Authority. The Developer and the 
Association shall be vested with the power and authority to sign petitions requesting establishment 
of a special assessment district pursuant to provisions of applicable Michigan statutes for 
improvement of public roads within or adjacent to the Condominium Premises upon approval by 
affirmative vote of not less than fifty one percent (51%) of the Co-Owners that own Units within 
the special assessment district.  

 
AMENDMENT 

Section 7.1 Non-material Amendments.  The Master Deed, Bylaws, Condominium 
Subdivision Plan and any other document referred to in the Master Deed or Bylaws which 
affects the rights and obligations of a Co-owner in the Project may be amended without the 
consent of Co-owners or mortgagees, if the amendment does not materially alter or change the 
rights of a Co-owner or mortgagee. An amendment that does not materially change the rights 
of a Co-owner or mortgagee includes, but is not limited to, a modification of the types and 
sizes of unsold Units and their appurtenant limited common elements. Such amendments may 
be subject to Township approval if regulated by Township Ordinance.  

Section 7.2 Material Amendments. Except as provided in this Article 7, the Master 
Deed, Bylaws and Condominium Subdivision Plan may be amended, even if the amendment 
will materially alter or change the rights of the Co-owners or mortgagees, with the consent of 
not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the votes of the Co-owners and mortgagees.  Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, unless otherwise provided in the Act, no such amendment which materially 
alters, restricts, limits or changes the rights of a Co-owner shall be approved and take effect 
unless the affected Co-owner votes in favor of the amendment. 

Section 7.3 By Developer. In addition to the rights of amendment provided to 
Developer in the various Articles of this Master Deed, Developer may, prior to the expiration 

193



 

B-13 
41457586.1

of the Construction and Sales Period, and without the consent of any Co-owner, mortgagee or 
any other person, amend this Master Deed and the Condominium Subdivision plan attached as 
Exhibit B in order to correct survey or other errors made in such documents and to make such 
other amendments to such instruments and to the Bylaws attached hereto as Exhibit A that do 
not materially affect the rights of any Co-owners or mortgagees in the Project, including, but 
not limited to, amendments required by governmental authorities, or for the purpose of 
facilitating conventional mortgage loan financing for existing or prospective Co-owners and 
to enable the purchase or insurance of such mortgage loans by the Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation, the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Government Na tional 
Mortgage Association, the Veterans Administration or the Department of Housing and Urban 
Veterans Administration or the Department of Housing and Urban Development, or by any 
other public or private mortgage insurer or any institutional participant in the secondary 
mortgage market. Such amendments are subject to Township approval.  

Section 7.4 Changes to Units or Percentages of Value.  The value of the vote of any 
Co-owner and the corresponding proportion of common expenses assessed against such Co -
owner shall not be modified without the written consent of such Co-owner and his mortgagee, 
nor shall the percentage of value assigned to any Unit be modified without such consent, except 
for a modification made in connection with the expansion or contraction of the Project or 
consolidation or modification of Units as expressly permitted by this Master Deed.  

Section 7.5 Cost of Amendment.  A person causing or requesting an amendment to 
the Master Deed, Bylaws, Condominium Subdivision Plan and any other document referred to 
in the Master Deed or Bylaws which affects the rights and obligations of a Co-owner in the 
Project shall be responsible for costs and expenses of the amendment, except for amendments 
based upon a vote of a prescribed percentage of Co-owners and mortgagees, the costs of which 
shall be expenses of administration.  

 
Section 7.6Section 7.5 Mortgagee Approval.  Pursuant to Section 90(2) of the Act, 

Developer hereby reserves the right, on behalf of itself and on behalf of the Association of Co-
Owners, to amend this Master Deed and the Condominium Documents without the approval of 
any mortgagee, unless the amendment would materially alter or change the rights of a mortgagee, 
in which event the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes of mortgagees of Units shall be required 
for such amendment. Each mortgagee shall have one (1) vote for each Unit subject to a mortgage.  
Notwithstanding any provision of this Master Deed or the Bylaws to the contrary, mortgagees are 
entitled to vote on amendments to the condominium documents that would materially alter or 
change the rights of Mortgagee including but not limited to only under the following 
circumstances: 

 
(a) The termination of the Condominium Project. 
 
(b) A change in the method of formula used to determine the percentage of value 

 
 
(c) A reallocation of responsibility for maintenance, repair, replacement, or decoration 

for a Unit, its appurtenant Limited Common Elements, or the General Common 
 

194



 

B-14 
41457586.1

 
(d) The elimination of a requirement for the Association to maintain insurance on the 

responsibility for obtaining or maintaining, or both, insurance from the Association 
 

 
(e) The modification or elimination of an easement benefiting the Unit subject to the 

 
 
(f) The partial or complete modification, imposition, or removal of leasing restrictions 

for Units in the condominium project.
 

Section 7.7Section 7.6 Termination, Vacation, Revocation or Abandonment.  
The Condominium Project may not be terminated, vacated, revoked, or abandoned without the 
written consent of the Developer and 80% of non-Developer Co-owners and Township 
approval. 

Section 7.8Section 7.7 Developer Approval.  During the Construction and Sales 
Peri amended, nor shall the 
provisions thereof be modified in any way without the written consent of the Developer  and 
approval by the Charter Township of Orion. 

 
CONVERSION OF CONDOMINIUM 

The Condominium is established as a convertible condominium in accordance with the provisions 
of this Article and the Act: 

Section 8.1 Convertible Areas.  All present and future Common Elements and Units 
are designated as Convertible Areas and the land area within which Units and Common 
Elements may be added, removed, expanded and modified and within which Limited Common 
Elements may be created as provided in this Article. The Developer reserves the right, but not 
the obligation, to convert all or any portion of the Convertible Areas. The maximum number 
of Units that may be created in the Project as it may be converted is ______ Units. All Units 
shall be used for residential purposes. All structures and improvements within the Convertible 
Areas of the Condominium shall be compatible with residential uses and with the structures 
and improvements on other portions of the Project, as determined by Developer  in its sole 
discretion. 

Section 8.2 Right to Convert.  The Developer reserves the right, in its sole 
discretion, during a period ending six years from the date of recording this Master Deed, to 
modify the number, size, location, and configuration of any Unit that it  owns or Common 
Elements in the Condominium, and to make corresponding changes to the Common Elements 
or to create General or Limited Common Elements or Units within the Convertible Area and 
to designate Common Elements that may subsequently be assigned as  Limited Common 
Elements subject to approval by the Charter Township of Orion. Provided, however, no portion 

Commented [A3]: Fill in. 

195



 

B-15 
41457586.1

of any Unit owned by a Co-Owner other than Developer shall be converted without such Co-
Owner' s consent. 

Section 8.3 Restrictions on Conversion.  All improvements constructed or installed 
within the Convertible Areas described above shall be restricted exclusively to those 
compatible with residential use. There are no other restrictions upon such improvements except 
as stated in this Article and those which are imposed by state law, local ordinances, the Charter 
Township of Orion or building authorities. The extent to which any change in the Convertible 
Areas is compatible with the original Master Deed is not limited by this Master Deed but lies 
solely within the discretion of Developer, subject only to the requirements of local ordinances 
and building authorities. 

Section 8.4 Consent Not Required.  The consent of any Co-Owner shall not be 
required to convert the Convertible Areas except as provided in Section 8.2 above. All of the 
Co-Owners and mortgagees and other persons interested or to become interested in the 
Condominium from time to time shall be deemed to have irrevocably and unanimously 
consented to such conversion of the Convertible Areas and any amendment or amendments to 
this Master Deed to effectuate the conversion and to any reallocation of Percentages of Value 
of existing Units which Developer may determine necessary in connection with such 
amendment or amendments. All such interested persons irrevocably appoint the Developer or 
its successors, as agent and attorney for the purpose of execution of such amendment or 
amendments to the Master Deed and all other documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing. 
Such amendments may be affected without the necessity of re-recording the entire Master Deed 
or the Exhibits thereto and may incorporate by reference all or any pertinent portions of this 
Master Deed and the Exhibits hereto. Nothing herein contained, however, shall in any way 
obligated Developer to convert the Convertible Areas. These provisions give notice to all Co-
Owners, mortgagees and other persons acquiring interests in the Condominium that such 
amendments of this Master Deed may be made and recorded, and no further notice of such 
amendments shall be required. 

Section 8.5 Amendment to Master Deed.  All modifications to Units and Common 
Elements made pursuant to this Article shall be given effect by appropriate amendments to this 
Master Deed in the manner provided by law, which amendments shall be prepared by and at 
the discretion of the Developer and in which the percentages of value set forth in Article 5 
hereof shall be proportionately readjusted, if the Developer deems it to be applicable, in order 
to preserve a total value of 100% for the entire Condominium resulting from such amendments 
to this Master Deed. The precise determination of the readjustments in percentages of value 
shall be made within the sole judgment of Developer. Such readjustments, however, shall 
reflect a continuing reasonable relationship among percentages of value based upon the 
original method and formula described in Article 5 of this Master Deed. Such amendments to 
the Master Deed shall also contain such further definitions and redefinition of General or 
Limited Common Elements as may be necessary to adequately describe and service the Units 
and Common Elements being modified by such amendments. In connection with any such 
amendments, Developer shall have the right to change the nature of any Common Element 
previously included in this Condominium for any purpose reasonably necessary to achieve the 
purposes of this Article. 

196



 

B-16 
41457586.1

 
CONTRACTION OF CONDOMINIUM

Section 9.1 Withdrawal of Land.  Developer unconditionally reserves the right to 
withdraw from the Condominium any portion of the land described in Article 2 when and if 
Developer in its sole discretion determines that development of the Condominium would be 
best served by so contracting the Condominium. The withdraw of such land pursuant to this 
Article 9 shall be affected by an amendment of the Master Deed as provided in Section 9.3 
below. Provided, however, the consent of any Unit owner to the contraction of such Owner's 
Unit or Common Elements shall be obtained prior to contraction of a Unit owned by an Owner 
other than Developer. 

Section 9.2 Restrictions on Contraction.  There are no restrictions on Developer's 
right to contract the Condominium except as provided in this Article 9.  

Section 9.3 Consent Not Required.  The consent of any Co-Owner shall not be 
required to contract the Condominium or to dedicate the roads and road right-of-ways to public 
use except as set forth in the last sentence of Section 9.1. All of the Co-Owners and mortgagees 
and other persons interested or to become interested in the Condominium from time to time 
shall be deemed to have irrevocably and unanimously consented to contraction of the 
Condominium and any amendment or amendments to this Master Deed to effectuate the 
contraction. All such interested persons irrevocably appoint the Developer or its successors, 
as agent and attorney for the purpose of execution of such amendment or amendments to the 
Master Deed and all other documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing. Such amendments 
may be affected without the necessity of re-recording an entire Master Deed or the Exhibits 
thereto and may incorporate by reference all or any pertinent portions of this Master Deed and 
the Exhibits hereto. These provisions give notice to all Co-Owners, mortgagees and other 
persons acquiring interests in the Condominium that such amendments of this Master Deed 
may be made and recorded, and no further notice of such amendment shall be required.  

Section 9.4 Redefinition of Common Elements.  The amendment or amendments to 
the Master Deed contracting the Condominium shall also contain such further definitions and 
redefinition of General Common Elements or Limited Common Elements and maintenance 
responsibilities as may be necessary adequately to describe, serve and provide access to the 
Project as reduced and otherwise comply with agreements and requirements of applicable 
governmental authorities for development of the Condominium. In connection with any such 
amendment(s), Developer shall have the right to change the nature of any Common Element 
or easement previously included in the Project for any purpose reasonably necessary to achieve  
the purposes of this Article 9. 

Section 9.5 Consolidating Master Deed.  A Consolidating Master Deed approved by 
the Charter Township of Orion may be recorded pursuant to the Act when the Project is finally 
concluded as determined by Developer in order to incorporate into one set of instruments all 
successive stages of development. The Consolidating Master Deed, when recorded, and as 
above provided in Section 3.9, shall supersede the previously recorded Master Deed and all 
amendments thereto. 

197



 

B-17 
41457586.1

 
 

SUBDIVISION, CONSOLIDATION, MODIFICATION 

Section 10.1 Modification of Units.  Developer may, in its sole discretion, and without 
obtaining the consent of any person whatsoever (including Co-Owners and mortgagees of 
Units), during the Construction and Sales Period, modify the size, boundaries, location, and 
configuration of Units and appurtenant Common Elements, subject to the requirements and 
approval of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Project  including the 
Charter Township of Orion. Any modifications by Developer in accordance with the terms of 
this Section 10.1 shall take effect upon the recordation of an amendment to the Master Deed. 
In addition, Developer may, in connection with any such amendment, readjust the Percentage 
of Value for all Units to reflect the Unit or Common Element modifications, based upon the 
method by which Percentage of Value was originally determined for the Project. All of the Co-
Owners and mortgagees of Units and all other persons now or hereafter interested in the Project 
from time to time shall be deemed to have irrevocably and unanimously consented to any 
amendment or amendments to this Master Deed recorded by Developer to effectuate the 
purposes of this Section 10.1 and, subject to the limitations set forth herein, to any 
proportionate reallocation of Percentage of Value of existing Units which Developer 
determines are necessary in conjunction with any such amendments, subject to Article 7 of this 
Master Deed. Subject to the foregoing, all such interested persons irrevocably appoint 
Developer as agent and attorney-in-fact for the purpose of executing such amendments to the 
Master Deed and all other documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing.  

Section 10.2 Consolidation or Relocation of Units.  During the Construction and 
Sales Period, Developer may, in its sole discretion, and without the consent of any other person 
whatsoever (including Co-Owners and mortgagees of Units), consolidate under single 
ownership two (2) or more Units which are located adjacent to one another, and/or relocate 
any boundaries between adjoining Units, subject to the requirements and approval of any 
governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Project  including the Charter Township of 
Orion, and further subject to Article 7 of this Master Deed.  Developer shall give effect to the 
consolidation of Units or the relocation of Unit boundaries by amending this Master Deed with 
one or more amendments prepared by and at the sole discretion of Developer in the manner 
provided by law. Any amendment that consolidates or relocates the boundaries between Units 
shall identify the consolidated or relocated Unit(s) by number, any withdrawn Units and, when 
appropriate, the Percentage of Value as set forth herein for the consolidated or relocated Unit(s) 
shall be proportionately allocated among the adjusted Condominium Units in order to preserve 
a total value of one hundred (100%) percent for the entire Project following such amendment 
or amendments to this Master Deed. Developer shall determine, in its sole discretion, any such 
readjustment of the Percentage of Value, provided that such readjustments shall reflect a 
continuing reasonable relationship among Percentage of Value based upon the original method 
of determining Percentage of Value for the Project. Any such amendment or amendments to 
the Master Deed shall also contain such further definitions of Common Elements as may be 
necessary to adequately describe the Units in the Condominium Project as modified. All o f the 
Co-Owners and mortgagees of Units and all other persons now or hereafter interested in the 
Project from time to time shall be deemed to have irrevocably and unanimously consented to 
any amendment or amendments to this Master Deed recorded by Developer to effectuate the 

198



 

B-18 
41457586.1

purposes of this Section 10.2, subject to the limitations set forth herein, and to any 
proportionate reallocation of Percentage of Value of Units which Developer determines are 
necessary in connection with any such amendments. All such interested persons irrevocably 
appoint Developer as agent and attorney-in-fact for the purpose of executing such amendments 
to the Master Deed and all other documents necessary to effectuate the foregoing. Any such 
amendments may be accomplished without re-recording the entire Master Deed or its Exhibits. 

 
FURTHER RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL 

In addition to Developer's rights of contraction set forth in Article 9 above, pursuant to 
Section 67(3) of the Act, Developer is entitled to certain additional rights to withdraw land from 
the Project if and to the extent determined by Developer pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act. Any 
such areas withdrawn shall be automatically granted easements for utility and access purposes as 
set forth in the Act. 

 
ASSIGNMENT 

Any or all of the rights and powers granted or reserved to Developer in the Condominium 
Documents or by law, including the power to approve or disapprove any act, use or proposed action 
or any other matter or thing, may be assigned by Developer to any other entity or to the 
Association. Any such assignment or transfer shall be made by appropriate instrument in writing 
duly recorded in the Office of the Oakland County Register of Deeds by the Developer. Upon 
recordation, the Developer shall provide a Copy of the appropriate instrument to the Township for 
its records. 

 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 

  

199



 

B-19 
41457586.1

Dated: __________________, 2021. 

DEVELOPER: 
 
Waldon Reserve Development, LLC,  
a Michigan limited liability company 
 
 
By:        
Name:        
Its:        

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ___________, 2022 by 
___________, of Waldon Reserve Development, LLC, a Michigan limited liability company, on 
behalf of said company.

       
_______________________, Notary Public 
___________________ County, Michigan 
My Commission Expires:    
Acting in the County of     

 

 

 

 

 

PREPARED BY AND RETURN TO:

J. Patrick Lennon, Esq.
Honigman, Miller, Schwartz & Cohn LLP 
650 Trade Centre Way 
Suite 200 
Kalamazoo, Michigan 49002 
 

200



Exhibit B

201



 

41476794.1

CONDOMINIUM BYLAWS 

WALDON RESERVE 

Style Definition: Heading 2: Indent: Left: 0", Tab stops:
Not at  1.5"

Style Definition: Heading 1

202



 

1 
41476794.1

ARTICLE 1. 
ASSOCIATION OF CO-OWNERS

Waldon Reserve, a residential site Condominium Project located in the Township of Orion, 
Oakland County, Michigan, shall be administered by the Waldon Reserve Condominium 
Association, an organization of Co-Owners which is a non-
organized under the applicable laws of the State of Michigan, and responsible for the management, 
maintenance, operation and administration of the Common Elements, easements and affairs of the 
Condominium in accordance with the Condominium Documents and the laws of the State of 
Michigan.  These Bylaws shall constitute both the Bylaws referred to in the Master Deed and 

Bylaws of the Association provided for under the Michigan Non-profit Corporation Act.  Each 
Co-Owner shall be entitled to membership and no other person or entity shall be entitled to 
membership in the Association.  The share of a Co-Owner in the funds and assets of the 
Association cannot be assigned, pledged or transferred in any manner except as an appurtenance 
to the Co- .  The Association shall keep current copies of the Master Deed, all 
amendments to the Master Deed, and other Condominium Documents for the Condominium 
available at reasonable hours to Co-Owners, prospective purchasers and prospective mortgagees 
of Units in the Condominium.  All Co-Owners in the Condominium and all persons using or 
entering upon or acquiring any interest in any Unit or the Common Elements of the Project shall 
be subject to the provisions and terms set forth in Condominium Documents. 

ARTICLE 2. 
ASSESSMENTS 

All expenses arising from the management, administration and operation of the Association 
in pursuance of its authorizations and responsibilities as set forth in the Condominium Documents 
and the Act shall be levied by the Association against the Units and the Co-Owners in accordance 
with the following provisions: 

Section 2.1 Assessments for Common Elements.  All costs incurred by the 
Association in satisfaction of any, improvement or maintenance costs or liability arising within, 
caused by, or connected with the Common Elements and easements for which the Association has 
improvement, repair, reconstruction, insurance or maintenance responsibility or the administration 
of the Condominium Project and charges relating to insurance, repairs, improvement, 
reconstruction or maintenance of the Common Elements and easement areas of the Condominium 
shall constitute expenditures affecting the administration of the Project, and shall be billed to the 
Co-Owners as set forth in the Master Deed and Bylaws, and all sums received as the proceeds of, 
or pursuant to, any policy of insurance securing the interest of the Co-Owners against liabilities or 
losses arising within, caused by, or connected with the Common Elements or the administration 
of the Condominium Project shall constitute receipts affecting the administration of the 
Condominium Project, within the meaning of Section 54(4) of the Act. 

Section 2.2 Determination of Assessments.  Assessments shall be determined in 
accordance with the following provisions: 

203



 

2 
41476794.1

 Budget and General Assessments.  The Board of Directors of the Association shall 
establish an annual budget in advance for each fiscal year and such budget shall project all 
expenses for the forthcoming year which may be required for the proper operation, management, 
and maintenance of the Condominium Project, including a reasonable allowance for contingencies 
and reserves.  An adequate reserve fund for maintenance, repairs and replacement of those 
Common Elements that must be replaced on a periodic basis shall be established in the budget and 
must be funded by regular monthly, annual, or other periodic assessment payments as determined 
by the Board of Directors, rather than by special assessments.  At a minimum, the reserve fund 

ent annual budget on a noncumulative 
basis.  Since the minimum standard required by this subparagraph may prove to be inadequate for 
this particular Project, the Association should carefully analyze the Condominium Project to 
determine if a greater amount should be set aside, or if additional reserve funds should be 
established for other purposes from time to time.  Upon adoption of an annual budget by the Board 
of Directors, copies of the budget shall be delivered to each Co-Owner and the periodic assessment 
for said year shall be established based upon said budget, although the failure to deliver a copy of 
the budget to each Co-Owner shall not affect or in any way diminish the liability of any Co-Owner 
for any existing or future periodic assessments.  Should the Board of Directors at any time 
determine, in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, that the periodic assessments levied are 
or may prove to be insufficient to pay the costs of operation and management of the Condominium, 
to provide replacements of existing Common Elements, to provide additions to the Common 
Elements not exceeding Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) or that an event of emergency exists, the 
Board of Directors shall have the authority to increase the general periodic assessment or to levy 
such additional assessment or assessments as it shall deem to be necessary.  The Board of Directors 
also shall have the authority, without Co-Owner consent, to levy assessments pursuant to the 
provisions of Article 5, Section 5.4 of these Bylaws.  The discretionary authority of the Board of 
Directors to levy assessments pursuant to this subparagraph shall rest solely with the Board of 
Directors for the benefit of the Association and the members thereof, and shall not be enforceable 
by any creditors of the Association or the members thereof. 

 Special Assessments.  Special assessments, in addition to those required in subparagraph 
2.2.1 above, may be made by the Board of Directors from time to time and approved by the Co-
Owners as hereinafter provided to meet other needs or requirements of the Association, including, 
but not limited to: (1) assessments for additions to the Common Elements or costs exceeding Ten 
Thousand Dollars ($10,000) for the entire Condominium Project per year, (2) assessments to 
purchase a Unit upon foreclosure of the lien for assessments described in Section 2.5 hereof, (3) 
assessments for any other appropriate purpose not elsewhere herein described.  Special 
assessments referred to in this subparagraph 2.2.2 (but not including those assessments referred to 
in subparagraph 2.2.1 above, which shall be levied in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors) 
shall not be levied without the prior approval of more than sixty percent (60%) of all Co-Owners.  
The authority to levy assessments pursuant to this subparagraph is solely for the benefit of the 
Association and the members thereof and shall not be enforceable by any creditors of the 
Association or of the members thereof. 

 Special Assessment District.  At some time subsequent to the initial development, it may 
become necessary to pave or improve some or all of the roads within or adjacent to the 
Condominium Project. The improvement may be financed, in whole or in part, by the creation of 
a special assessment district or districts which may include the Condominium Project. The 

204



 

3 
41476794.1

acceptance of a conveyance or the execution of a land contract by any Co-Owner or purchaser of 
a Unit shall constitute the agreement by such Co-Owner or purchaser, his/her heirs, executors, 
administrators, or assigns, that the Board of Directors of the Association shall be vested with full 
power and authority to obligate all Co-Owners to participate in a special assessment district, sign 
petitions requesting said special assessment, and consider and otherwise act on all assessment 
issues on behalf of the Association and all Co-Owners; provided, that prior to signature by the 
Association on a petition for improvement of such public roads, the desirability of said 
improvement shall be approved by an affirmative vote of not less than fifty one percent (51%) of 
the Co-Owners that own Units within the special assessment district providing the Association 
meets all requirements set forth under State law. No consent of mortgagees shall be required for 
approval of said public road improvement.

Section 2.3 Apportionment of Assessments and Penalty for Default.  Unless 
otherwise provided herein or in the Master Deed, all assessments levied against the Co-Owners to 
cover expenses of administration shall be apportioned among and paid by the Co-Owners in 
accordance with the percentage of value allocated to each Unit in Article 5 of the Master Deed, 
without increase or decrease for the existence of any rights to the use of any Limited Common 
Elements appurtenant to a Unit.  Annual assessments as determined in accordance with subsection 
2.2.1 above shall be payable by Co-Owners annually unless otherwise determined by the Board of 

a Unit, or with the acquisition of fee simple title to a Unit by any other means.  The payment of an 
assessment shall be in default if such assessment, or any part thereof, is not paid to the Association 
in full on or before the due date for such payment. 

Each installment in default for ten (10) or more days shall bear interest from the initial due 
date thereof at the rate of seven percent (7%) per annum until each installment is paid in full.  The 
Association may, pursuant to Article 19, Section 19.4, levy fines for the late payment in addition 
to such interest.  Each Co-Owner (whether one or more persons) shall be, and remain, personally 
liable for the payment of all assessments (including fines for late payment and costs of collection 
and enforcement of payment) pertinent to such Co-
Co-Owner is the Owner thereof, except a land contract purchaser from any Co-Owner including 
from Developer shall be so personally liable and such land contract seller shall not be personally 
liable for all such assessments levied up to and including the date upon which such land contract 
seller actually takes possession of the Unit following extinguishment of all rights of the land 
contract purchaser in the Unit.  Payments on account of installments of assessments in default shall 
be applied as follows: first, to costs of collection and enforcement of payment, including 

installments; and third, to installments in default in order of their due dates. 

Section 2.4 Waiver of Use or Abandonment of Unit.  No Co-Owner is exempt from 
liability for contribution toward the expenses of administration by waiver of the use or enjoyment 
of any of the Common Elements or by the abandonment of the Co-  

Section 2.5 Enforcement.  

 Remedies.  In addition to any other remedies available to the Association, the Association 
may enforce collection of delinquent assessments by a suit at law for a money judgment or by 

205



 

4 
41476794.1

foreclosure of the statutory lien and the lien created by the Condominium Documents that secures 
payment of assessments.  In the event of default by any Co-Owner in the payment of any 
installment of the annual assessment levied against such Co-
have the right to declare all unpaid installments of the annual assessment for the pertinent fiscal 
year immediately due and payable.  The Association also may discontinue the furnishing of any 
utilities or other services to a Co- -
Owner of the Associat .  A Co-Owner in default shall not be entitled to 
utilize any of the General Common Elements of the Project and shall not be entitled to vote at any 
meeting of the Association so long as such default continues; provided, however, this provision 
shall not operate to deprive any Co-Owner of ingress or egress to and from such Co- .  
In a judicial foreclosure action, a receiver may be appointed to collect a reasonable rental for the 
Unit from the Co-Owner thereof or any persons claiming under such Co-Owner.  All of these 
remedies shall be cumulative and not alternative and shall not preclude the Association from 
exercising such other remedies as may be available at law or in equity.

 Foreclosure Proceedings.  Each Co-Owner, and every other person who from time to time 
has any interest in the Project, shall be deemed to have granted to the Association the unqualified 
right to elect to foreclose the lien securing payment of assessments either by judicial action or by 
advertisement.  The provisions of Michigan law pertaining to foreclosure of mortgages by judicial 
action and by advertisement, as the same may be amended from time to time, are incorporated 
herein by reference for the purposes of establishing the alternative procedures to be followed in 
lien foreclosure actions and the rights and obligations of the parties to such actions.  Further, each 
Co-Owner and every other person who from time to time has any interest in the Project shall be 
deemed to have authorized and empowered the Association to sell or to cause to be sold the Unit 
with respect to which the assessment(s) is or are delinquent and to receive, hold and distribute the 
proceeds of such sale in accordance with the priorities established by applicable law.  Each Co-
Owner of a Unit in the Project acknowledges that at the time of acquiring title to such Unit such 
Co-Owner was notified of the provisions of this subparagraph and that the Co-Owner voluntarily, 
intelligently and knowingly waived notice of any proceedings brought by the Association to 
foreclose by advertisement the lien for nonpayment of assessments and a hearing on the same prior 
to the sale of the subject Unit. 

 Notice of Action.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither a judicial foreclosure action nor 
a suit at law for a money judgment shall be commenced, nor shall any notice of foreclosure by 
advertisement be published, until the expiration of ten (10) days after mailing, by first class mail, 
postage prepaid, addressed to the delinquent Co-Owner(s) at the last known address of such Co-
Owner(s), a written notice that one or more installments of the general periodic or special 
assessment levied against the pertinent Unit is or are delinquent and that the Association may 
invoke any of its remedies hereunder.  Such written notice shall be accompanied by a written 

to make the affidavit, (2) the statutory and other authority for the lien, (3) the amount outstanding 

the subject Unit(s), and (5) the name(s) of the Co-Owner(s) of record.  If the delinquency is not 
cured within the ten-day period, the Association may take such remedial action as may be available 
to it hereunder or under Michigan law. 

206



 

5 
41476794.1

 Expenses of Collection.  The expenses incurred in collecting unpaid assessments, including 
s for taxes or other 

liens paid by the Association to protect its lien, shall be chargeable to the Co-Owner in default and 
shall be secured by the lien on such Co-  

Section 2.6 Liability of Mortgagee.  Notwithstanding any other provisions of the 
Condominium Documents, the holder of any first mortgage covering any Unit in the Project which 
comes into possession of the Unit pursuant to the remedies provided in the mortgage or by deed 
(or assignment) in lieu of foreclosure, or any purchaser at a foreclosure sale, shall take the property 
free of any claims for unpaid assessments or charges against the mortgaged Unit which accrue 
prior to the time such holder acquires title to the Unit.

Section 2.7 .  The Developer of the 
Condominium, although a member of the Association, shall not be responsible at any time for 
payment of the Association assessments.  Developer, however, shall at all times pay all expenses 
of maintaining the Units that it owns and a proportionate share of all current expenses of 
administration actually incurred by the Association from time to time, except expenses related to 
maintenance and use of the Units in the Project and other improvements constructed within or 
appurtenant to the Units that are not owned by Developer.  For purposes of the foregoing sentence, 

Developer at the time the expense is incurred to the total number of Units then in the Project.  In 
no event shall Developer be responsible for payment of any assessments for deferred maintenance, 
reserves for replacement, for capital improvements or other special assessments.

Section 2.8 Property Taxes and Special Assessments.  All property taxes and special 
assessments levied by any public taxing authority shall be assessed in accordance with Section 131 
of the Act. 

Section 2.9 Personal Property Tax and Special Tax Assessment of Association 
Property.  The Association shall be assessed as the person or entity in possession of any tangible 
personal property of the Condominium owned or possessed in common by the Co-Owners, and 
personal property taxes based thereon shall be treated as expenses of administration. 

Section 2.10 Construction Lien.  A construction lien otherwise arising under Act No.  
497 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1980, as amended, shall be subject to Section 132 of the Act. 

Section 2.11 Statements as to Unpaid Assessments.  The purchaser of any Unit may 
request a statement of the Association as to the amount of any unpaid Association assessments 
thereon, whether regular or special and Related Costs described below.  Upon written request to 
the Association accompanied by a copy of the executed purchase agreement pursuant to which the 
purchaser holds the right to acquire a Unit, the Association shall provide a written statement of 
such unpaid assessments and Related Costs as may exist or a statement that none exists, which 
statement shall be binding upon the Association for the period stated therein.  The written statement 
from the Association shall also disclose the amount of interest, late charges, fines, costs and 

 
lien for assessments and Related Costs as to such Unit shall be deemed satisfied.  Provided, 

207



 

6 
41476794.1

however, the failure of a purchaser to request such statement at least five (5) days prior to the 
closing of the purchase of such Unit shall render any unpaid assessments and Related Costs and 
the lien securing same fully enforceable against such purchaser and the Unit itself, to the extent 
provided by the Act.  Under the Act, unpaid assessments and Related Costs constitute a lien upon 
the Unit and the proceeds of sale thereof prior to all claims except real property taxes and first 
mortgages of record. 

ARTICLE 3. 
ARBITRATION/JUDICIAL ACTIONS AND CLAIMS

Section 3.1 Scope and Election.  Disputes, claims or grievances arising out of or 
relating to the interpretation or the application of the Condominium Documents, or any disputes, 
claims or grievances arising among or between the Co-Owners or among or between a Co-Owner 
and the Association, upon the election and written consent of the parties to any such disputes, 
claims or grievances (which consent shall include an agreement of the parties that the judgment of 
any circuit court of the State of Michigan may be rendered upon any award pursuant to such 
arbitration), and upon written notice to the Association, shall be submitted to arbitration and the 

decision shall be entered by any court of competent jurisdiction, provided that no question 
affecting the claim of title of any person to any fee or life estate in real estate is involved.  The 
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association as amended and in effect 
from time to time hereafter shall be applicable to any such arbitration.  In the absence of agreement 
to the contrary, the arbitration shall be conducted by the American Arbitration Association.  The 
costs of the arbitration shall be paid equally by the parties to the arbitration proceedings. 

Section 3.2 Judicial Relief.  In the absence of the election and written consent of the 
parties pursuant to Section 3.1 above, no Co-Owner or the Association shall be precluded from 
petitioning the courts to resolve any such disputes, claims or grievances.

Section 3.3 Election of Remedies.  Such election and written consent by Co-Owners or 
the Association to submit any such dispute, claim or grievance to arbitration shall preclude such 
parties from litigating such dispute, claim or grievance in the courts. 

Section 3.4 Judicial Claims and Actions.  Actions on behalf of and against the Co-
Owners shall be brought in the name of the Association.  Subject to the express limitations on 

assert, defend or settle claims on behalf of all Co-Owners in connection with the Common 
Elements of the Condominium.  As provided in the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, 
the commencement of any civil action (other than one to enforce these Bylaws or collect delinquent 
assessments) shall require the approval of a majority in number and in value of the Co-Owners, 
and shall be governed by the requirements of this Section.  The requirements of this Section will 
ensure that the Co-Owners are fully informed regarding the prospects and likely costs of any civil 
action the Association proposed to engage in, as well as the ongoing status of any civil actions 
actually filed by the Association.  These requirements are imposed in order to reduce both the cost 
of litigation and the risk of improvident litigation, and in order to avoid the waste of the 

Each Co-Owner shall have standing to sue to enforce the requirements of this Section.  The 

208



 

7 
41476794.1

following procedures and requiremen
action other than an action to enforce these Bylaws or to collect delinquent assessments:

-Owners.  
Directors shall be responsible in the first instance for recommending to the Co-Owners that a civil 
action be filed, and supervising and directing any civil actions that are filed. 

 Litigation Evaluation Meeting.  Before an attorney is engaged for purposes of filing a civil 
action on behalf of the Association, the Board of Directors shall call a special meeting of the Co-

proposed civil action.  The written notice to the Co-Owners of the date, time and place of the 
litigation evaluation meeting shall be sent to all Co-Owners not less than twenty (20) days before 
the date of the meeting and shall include the following information: 

(A) A certified resolution of the Board of Directors setting forth in detail 
the concerns of the Board of Directors giving rise to the need to file 
a civil action and further certifying that: 

(1) it is in the best interests of the Association to file a 
lawsuit. 

(2) that at least one member of the Board of Directors 
has personally made a good faith effort to negotiate a settlement with 
the putative defendant(s) on behalf of the Association, without 
success. 

(3) litigation is the only prudent, feasible and reasonable 
alternative; and 

(4) 
civil action is of the written opinion that litigation is the 

 

(B) A written summary of the relevant experience of the attorney 

retained to represent the Association in the proposed civil action, 
including the following information: 

(1) the number of years the litigation attorney has 
practiced law; and 

(2) the name and address of every condominium and 
homeowner association for which the attorney has filed a civil action 
in any court, together with the case number, county and court in 
which each civil action was filed. 

(C) The litigation attorney s written estimate of the amount of the 

209



 

8 
41476794.1

fees, court costs, expert witness fees and all other expenses expected 
to be incurred in the litigation.

(D)

.  The total estimated cost of the civil action shall include the 

and all other expenses expected to be incurred in the civil action. 

(E)

(F) The amount to be specially assessed against each Unit in the 
Condominium to fund the estimated cost of the civil action both in 
total and on a monthly per Unit basis, as required by this Section. 

 Independent Expert Opinion.  If the lawsuit relates to the condition of any of the Common 
Elements of the Condominium, the Board of Directors shall obtain a written independent expert 
opinion as to reasonable and practical alternative approaches to repairing the problems with the 
Common Elements, which shall set forth the estimated costs and expected viability of each 
alternative.  In obtaining the independent expert opinion required by the preceding sentence, the 
Board of Directors shall conduct its own investigation as to the qualifications of any expert and 
shall not retain any expert recommended by the litigation attorney or any other attorney with whom 
the Board of Directors consults.  The purpose of the independent expert opinion is to avoid any 
potential confusion regarding the condition of the Common Elements that might be created by a 
report prepared as an instrument of advocacy for use in a civil action.  The independent expert 
opinion will ensure that the Co-Owners have a realistic appraisal of the condition of the Common 
Elements, the likely cost of repairs to or replacement of the same, and the reasonable and prudent 
repair and replacement alternatives.  The independent expert opinion shall be sent to all Co-Owners 
with the written notice of the litigation evaluation meeting. 

 Fee Agreement with Litigation Attorney.  The Association shall have a written fee 
agreement with the litigation attorney and any other attorney retained to handle the proposed civil 
action.  The Association shall not enter into any fee agreement that is a combination of the retained 

s hourly rate and a contingent fee arrangement unless the existence of the agreement is 
disclosed to the Co- -Owners of the 
litigation evaluation meeting. 

 Co-Owner Vote Required.  At the litigation evaluation meeting the Co-Owners shall vote 
on whether to authorize the Board of Directors to proceed with the proposed civil action and 
whether the matter should be handled by the litigation attorney.  The commencement of any civil 
action by the Association (other than a suit to enforce these Bylaws or collect delinquent 
assessments) shall require the approval of a majority in number and in value of the Co-Owners.  
Any proxies to be voted at the litigation evaluation meeting must be signed at least seven (7) days 
prior to the litigation evaluation meeting.

 Litigation Special Assessment.  All legal fees incurred in pursuit of any civil action that is 
subject to this Section shall be paid by special assessment of the Co-Owners of the Association 

210



 

9 
41476794.1

.  The litigation special assessment shall be approved at the 
litigation evaluation meeting (or at any subsequent duly called and noticed meeting) by a majority 
in number and in value of all Co-Owners of the Association in the amount of the estimated total 
cost of the civil action.  If the litigation attorney proposed by the Board of Directors is not retained, 

total cost of the civil action, as estimated by the attorney actually retained by the Association.  The 
litigation special assessment shall be apportioned to the Co-Owners in accordance with their 
respective percentage of value interests in the Condominium and shall be collected from the Co-
Owners on a monthly basis.  The total amount of the litigation special assessment shall be collected 
monthly over a period not to exceed twenty-four (24) months. 

 .  During the course of any civil action authorized by the Co-

 

(A) , 
and all other costs of the litigation during the thirty (30) day period 

 

(B) All actions taken in the civil action during the reporting period, 
together with copies of all pleadings, court papers and 
correspondence filed with the court or sent to opposing counsel 
during the reporting period. 

(C) A detailed description of all discussions with opposing counsel 
during the reporting period, written and oral, including, but not 
limited to, settlement discussions. 

(D) The costs incurred in the civil action through the date of the written 

action. 

(E) Whether the originally estimated total cost of the civil action 
remains accurate. 

 Monthly Board Meetings.  The Board of Directors shall meet monthly during the course of 
any civil action to discuss and review: 

(A) The status of the litigation. 

(B) The status of settlement efforts, if any. 

(C)  

 Changes in the Litigation Special Assessment.  If, at any time, during the course of a civil 
action, the Board of Directors determines that the originally estimated total cost of the civil action 
or any revision thereof is inaccurate, the Board of Directors shall immediately prepare a revised 

211



 

10 
41476794.1

estimate of the total cost of the civil action.  If the revised estimate exceeds the litigation special 
assessment previously approved by the Co-Owners, the Board of Directors shall call a special 
meeting of the Co-Owners to review the status of the litigation, and to allow the Co-Owners to 
vote on whether to continue the civil action and increase the litigation special assessment.  The 
meeting shall have the same quorum and voting requirements as a litigation evaluation meeting.

 Disclosure of Litigation Expenses.  

fully disclosed to Co- .  The litigation expenses for each 

ARTICLE 4. 
INSURANCE 

Section 4.1 Extent of Coverage.  The Association shall to the extent appropriate given 
the nature of the General Common Elements and such common amenities or areas as may be 
located outside of the Condominium but placed under the management and control of this 
Association, carry fire and extended coverage, vandalism and malicious mischief and liability 
insurance, and workers compensation insurance, if applicable, pertinent to the ownership, use and 
maintenance of the General Common Elements of the Condominium Project and such insurance 
shall be carried and administered in accordance with the following provisions.  Limited Common 
Element insurance shall be the responsibility of the Co-Owners to which such Limited Common 
Elements are appurtenant. 

 Responsibilities of Association.  All such insurance shall be purchased by the Association 
for the benefit of the Association, and the Co-Owners and their mortgagees, as their interests may 
appear, and provision shall be made for the issuance of certificates of mortgagee endorsements to 
the mortgagees of Co-Owners. 

 Insurance on Common Elements.  All General Common Elements of the Condominium 
Project if insurable shall be insured against fire and other perils covered by a standard extended 
coverage endorsement, if appropriate, in an amount equal to the maximum insurable replacement 
value, excluding foundation and excavation costs, as determined annually by the Board of 

representatives in light of commonly employed methods for the reasonable determination of 
replacement costs.  Such coverage shall be effected upon an agreed-amount basis for the entire 
Condominium Project with appropriate inflation riders in order that no co-insurance provisions 
shall be invoiced by the insurance carrier in a manner that will cause loss payments to be reduced 
below the actual amount of any loss (except in the unlikely event of total project destruction if the 
insurance proceeds failed for some reason, to be equal to the total cost of replacement).  All 
informati
all Co-Owners upon request and reasonable notice during normal business hours so that Co-
Owners shall be enabled to judge the adequacy of coverage and, upon the taking of due Association 
procedures, to direct the Board at a properly constituted meeting to change the nature and extent 
of any applicable coverages, if so determined.  Upon such annual re-evaluation and effectuation 

212



 

11 
41476794.1

of coverage, the Association shall notify all Co-Owners of the nature and extent of all changes in 
coverages.

Liability Insurance.  The Association shall carry liability insurance on the General 
Common Elements and the assets of the Association, and, to the extent reasonably available, shall 

 Premium Expenses.  All premiums for insurance purchased by the Association pursuant to 
these Bylaws shall be expenses of administration. 

 Proceeds of Insurance Policies.  Proceeds of all insurance policies owned by the 
Association shall be received by the Association, held in a separate account and distributed to the 
Association, and the Co-Owners and their mortgagees, as their interests may appear.  Provided, 
however, whenever repair or reconstruction of the Condominium shall be required as provided in 
Article 5 of these Bylaws, the proceeds of any insurance received by the Association as a result of 
any loss requiring repair or reconstruction shall be applied for such repair or reconstruction and in 
no event shall hazard insurance proceeds be used for any purpose other than for repair, replacement 
or reconstruction of the Project unless two-thirds (2/3) of the co-owners and 
mortgageesinstitutional holders of first mortgages on Units in the Project have given their prior 
written approval. 

Section 4.2 Authority of Association to Settle Insurance Claims.  Each Co-Owner, 
by ownership of a Unit in the Condominium Project, shall be deemed to have appointed the 
Association as such Co- s true and lawful attorney-in-fact to act in connection with all 
matters concerning the maintenance of fire and extended coverage, vandalism and malicious 
mischief, liability insurance and workers compensation insurance, if applicable, pertinent to the 
Condominium Project and the General Common Elements thereof; and with such insurer as may, 
from time to time, provide such insurance for the Condominium Project.  Without limitation on 
the generality of the foregoing, the Association as said attorney shall have full power and authority 
to purchase and maintain such insurance, to collect and remit premiums therefore, to collect 
proceeds and to distribute the same to the Association, the Co-Owners and respective mortgagees, 
as their interests may appear (subject always to the Condominium Documents), to execute releases 
of liability and to execute all documents and to do all things on behalf of such Co-Owner and the 
Condominium as shall be necessary or convenient to the accomplishment of the foregoing. 

Section 4.3 Responsibility of Co-Owners.  Each Co-Owner shall be responsible for 
obtaining fire and extended coverage and vandalism and malicious mischief insurance with respect 
to such Co-
the perimeter of the Co-
appurtenant to the Co-
and for the Co- n the Condominium 
Project.  All such insurance shall be carried by each Co-Owner in an amount equal to the maximum 
insurable replacement value, excluding foundation and excavation costs.  In the event of the failure 
of a Co-Owner to obtain such insurance, the Association may obtain such insurance on behalf of 
such Co-Owner and the premiums therefore shall constitute a lien against the Co-
which may be collected from the Co-Owner in the same manner that Association assessments are 
collected in accordance with Article 2.  Each Co-Owner also shall be obligated to obtain insurance 

213



 

12 
41476794.1

coverage for the Co- -
mited Common 

Elements appurtenant thereto (regardless of where located), and also for alternative living expenses 
in the event of fire.  The Association shall under no circumstances have any obligation to obtain 
any of the insurance coverage described in this Section 4.3 or any liability to any person for failure 
to do so. 

Section 4.4 Waiver of Right of Subrogation.  The Association and all Co-Owners 
shall use their best efforts to cause all property and liability insurance carried by the Association 
or any Co-Owner to contain appropriate provisions whereby the insurer waives its right of 
subrogation as to any claims against any Co-Owner or the Association. 

Section 4.5 Indemnification.  Each individual Co-owner shall indemnify and hold 
harmless every other Co-owner, the Developer and the Association for all damages and costs, 

-owners, the Developer or the Association may 
suffer as a result of defending any claim arising out of an occurrence on or within such individual 
Co- or appurtenant Limited Common Elements and shall carry insurance to secure 
this indemnity if so required by the Developer (and thereafter the Association).  This Section 4.5 
shall not, however, be construed to give any insurer any subrogation right or other right or claim 
against any individual Co-owner. 

ARTICLE 5. 
RECONSTRUCTION OR REPAIR 

Section 5.1 Determination to Reconstruct or Repair.  If any part of the Condominium 
Project shall be damaged, the determination of whether or not it shall be reconstructed or repaired 
shall be made in the following manner: 

 General Common Elements.  If the damaged property is a General Common Element, the 
damaged property shall be rebuilt or repaired by the Association unless it is determined by 
unanimous vote of all the Co-Owners and mortgagees in the Condominium that the Condominium 
shall be terminated. 

 Unit or Improvements Thereon.  If the damaged property is a Unit or appurtenant Limited 
Common Elements or any improvements thereon, the Co-Owner of such Unit alone shall 
determine whether to rebuild or repair the damaged property, subject to the rights of a mortgagee 
or other person or entity having an interest in such property, and such Co-Owner shall be 
responsible for any reconstruction or repair that such Co-Owner elects to make.  The Co-Owner 
shall in any event remove all debris and restore the Unit and the improvements thereon to a clean 
and sightly condition satisfactory to the Association as soon as reasonably possible following the 
occurrence of the damage. 

Section 5.2 Repair in Accordance with Master Deed.  Any such reconstruction or 
repair shall be substantially in accordance with the Master Deed unless eighty (80%) percent of 
the Co-Owners shall decide otherwise. 

Section 5.3 Co-Owner Responsibility for Repair. Each Co-Owner shall be 
responsible for the reconstruction, repair and maintenance of any structure and other improvements 

214



 

13 
41476794.1

constructed within the perimeter of the Co-
Elements.  In the event damage to a structure or to any Limited Common Elements appurtenant 
thereto is covered by insurance held by the Association, then the reconstruction or repair shall be 
the responsibility of the Association in accordance with Section 5.4 of this Article 5.  If and to the 
extent that any structure is covered by insurance held by the Association for the benefit of the Co-
Owner, the Co-Owner shall be entitled to receive the proceeds of insurance relative thereto, and if 
there is a mortgagee endorsement, the proceeds shall be payable to the Co-Owner and the 
mortgagee jointly.  In the event of substantial damage to or destruction of any Unit or any 
improvements located thereon or any part of the Common Elements, the Association shall 
promptly so notify each institutional holder of a first mortgage lien on any of the Units in the 
Condominium. 

Section 5.4 Association Responsibility for Repair.  Except as otherwise provided in 
Section 5.3 above and in the Master Deed, the Association shall be responsible for the 
reconstruction, repair and maintenance of the General Common Elements.  Immediately after a 
casualty causing damage to property for which the Association has the responsibility of 
maintenance, repair and reconstruction, the Association shall obtain reliable and detailed estimates 
of the cost to replace the damaged property in a condition as good as that existing before the 
damage.  If the proceeds of insurance are not sufficient to defray the estimated costs of 
reconstruction or repair required to be performed by the Association, or if at any time during such 
reconstruction or repair, or upon completion of such reconstruction or repair, the funds for the 
payment of the cost thereof are insufficient, special assessment shall be made against all Co-
Owners for the cost of reconstruction or repair of the damaged property in sufficient amounts to 
provide funds to pay the estimated or actual cost of repair. 

Section 5.5 Timely Reconstruction and Repair.  If damage to Common Elements or 
of a Unit adversely affects the appearance of the Project, the Association or Co-Owner responsible 
for the reconstruction, repair and maintenance thereof shall proceed with replacement of the 
damaged property without delay. 

Section 5.6 Eminent Domain.  Section 133 of the Act and the following provisions 
shall control upon any taking by eminent domain: 

 Taking of Unit.  In the event of any taking of an entire Unit (or of all the improvements 
located within the perimeter thereof) by eminent domain, the award for such taking shall be paid 
to the Co-Owner of such Unit and the mortgagee thereof, as their interests may appear.  After 
acceptance of such award by the Co-Owner and the Co-
of all interest in the Condominium Project.  In the event that any condemnation award shall become 
payable to any Co-Owner whose Unit is not wholly taken by eminent domain, then such award 
shall be paid by the condemning authority to the Co-Owner and the Co-
their interest may appear. 

 Taking of Common Elements.  If there is any taking of any portion of the Condominium 
other than any Unit, the condemnation proceeds relative to such taking shall be paid to the Co-
Owners and their mortgagees in proportion to their respective interests in the Common Elements 
and the affirmative vote of more than two-thirds (2/3) of the Co-Owners shall determine whether 

215



 

14 
41476794.1

to rebuild, repair or replace the portion so taken or to take such other action as they deem 
appropriate.

Continuation of Condominium After Taking.  In the event the Condominium Project 
continues after taking by eminent domain, then the remaining portion of the Condominium Project 
shall be re-surveyed and the Master Deed amended accordingly, and, if any Unit shall have been 
taken, then Article 5 of the Master Deed shall also be amended to reflect such taking and to 
proportionately readjust the percentages of value of the remaining Co-Owners based upon the 
continuing value of the Condominium as one hundred percent (100%).    Such amendment may be 
effected by an officer of the Association duly authorized by the Board of Directors without the 
necessity of execution or specific approval thereof by any Co-Owner or other person having any 
interest whatever in the Project, as mortgagee or otherwise. 

 Notification of Mortgagees.  In the event any Unit (or improvements located within the 
perimeter thereof) in the Condominium, or any portion thereof, or the Common Elements or any 
portion thereof, is made the subject matter of any condemnation or eminent domain proceeding or 
is otherwise sought to be acquired by a condemning authority, the Association promptly shall so 
notify each institutional holder of first mortgagee lien on any of the Units in the Condominium. 

Section 5.7 Notification of FNMA.  In the event any mortgage in the Condominium  is 
t by FNMA, the 

Association shall give it written notice at such address as it may, from time to time, direct of any 
loss to or taking of the Common Elements of the Condominium if the loss or taking exceeds Ten 
Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) in amount, or if damage to a Condominium Unit covered by a 
mortgage purchased in whole or in part by FNMA exceeds One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00). 

Section 5.8 Priority of Mortgagee Interests.  Nothing contained in the Condominium 
Documents shall be construed to give a Condominium Unit Owner, or any other party, priority 
over any rights of first mortgagees of Condominium Units pursuant to their mortgages in the case 
of a distribution to Condominium Unit Owners of insurance proceeds or condemnation awards for 
losses to or a taking of Condominium Units and/or Common Elements. 

ARTICLE 6. 
RESTRICTIONS/ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL 

All of the Units in the Condominium and appurtenant Limited Common Elements shall be 
held, used and enjoyed subject to the following limitations and restrictions: 

Section 6.1 Compliance with Entitlements. 

Section 6.3   

Section 6.4  

Section 6.5  

Section 6.6  

216



 

15 
41476794.1

Section 6.7  

  The Condominium is subject to all permits, approvals and entitlements obtained in 
. It is the 

responsibility of the Co-owner to confirm that any desired use of their Unit and/or development of 
any residence within their Unit satisfies the requirements of the foregoing documents. 

Section 6.2 Land And Building Use Restrictions.  All Units shall be used for private 
residential purposes only.  One residence shall be erected, re-erected, placed or maintained 
or permitted to remain on a Unit and only within permitted locations within the Unit.  No 
other accessory building or structure including, but not limited to carports, may be erected 
in the Condominium without the prior written consent of Developer or the Association.  
Any accessory building must comply with all applicable Township Ordinances, and Codes, 
permits and regulations  and the Entitlements.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer 
or a builder designated by Developer may erect and maintain model and / or homes on any 
Units owned by Developer or a designated builder until such time as all Units which 
Developer or its designated builder own are sold.  The Common Elements shall be used 
only for purposes consistent with such residential use. 

Section 6.3 Dwelling Quality and Size.  It is the intention and purpose of this Master 
Deed and Bylaws to ensure that all dwellings in the Condominium are of a quality, design, 
workmanship and materials approved by Developer.  All dwellings shall be constructed in 
accordance with the applicable governmental building codes, ordinances and/or regulations 
and shall be consistent with such standards as may be required by this Master Deed and 
Bylaws or by Developer, its successors and/or assigns.  The minimum square footage of 
floor area of a dwelling, exclusive of garages, patios, decks, open porches, entrance porches 
and basements shall be not less than 2400 sq ft. for two story colonial home 1600 sq ft. for 
a first floor master home and 1400 sq ft for a ranch home 

Section 6.4 Building Location.  All buildings and structures shall be located on each 
Unit in accordance with the requirements of the Township set forth in its zoning ordinance 
and any other applicable ordinances, the site plan approval for the Project and the 
Entitlements. 

Section 6.5 Unit Size.  The minimum size of each Unit shall be the Unit size established 
for the Unit in the attached Condominium Subdivision Plan.  In the event more than one 
(1) Unit, or part of a Unit, are developed as a single unit (and except as to the obligation of 
each Co-Owner for any assessments made against each separate Unit), all restrictions set 
forth in this Master Deed and Bylaws shall apply to such resulting unit in the same manner 
as to any single Unit.

Section 6.6 Driveways.  Access driveways and other paved areas for vehicular use on 
a Unit shall have a base of compacted sand, gravel, crushed stone or other approved base 
material and shall have a wearing surface of concrete or asphalt or the equivalent thereof, 
as such will be determined by the Developer for the first residential structure built on a 
Unit as approved by the Townshipin accordance with applicable Township Ordinances.  
Plans for driveways, pavement edging or markers must be approved by Developer or 

Commented [A1]: You asked "was this adjusted" but this is 
slightly different then what you worked from. 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

217



 

16 
41476794.1

Association in writing prior to commencing any construction in accordance with such plans 
and comply with the ordinances and any applicable engineering standards of the Township.

Section 6.7 Natural Drainage Ways.  Where there exists on any Unit(s) a condition of 
accumulation of storm water remaining over an extended period of time, the Co-Owner 
may, with the written approval of Developer and the Township, take such steps as shall be 
necessary to remedy such condition provided that such remedy complies with the 
Entitlements and no obstructions or diversions of existing storm drain swales and channels, 
over and through which storm water naturally flows upon or across any Unit, shall be made 
by an Co-Owner in a manner as to cause damage to other property or constitute a trespass 
or public or private nuisance. 

Section 6.8 Building Materials.  Exterior building materials may be stone, brick, wood, 
vinyl siding or any other material blending with the architecture and natural landscape and 
approved by Developer. 

Section 6.9 Home Occupations and Nuisances.  No home occupation or profession or 
commercial activity that requires members of the public to visit an Co-
commercial vehicles to travel to and from the Co-
dwelling located in the Condominium with the exception of model homes owned by, and the sales 
activities of, the Developer or builders.  , developers and real estate companies which own or hold 
any Units for resale to customers in the ordinary course of business. Any such home occupation, 
profession, or commercial activity must comply with all applicable Township Ordinances. No 
noxious or offensive activities shall be carried on in or upon any Units or the Common Elements 
nor any activity which may be, or may become, an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood, 
other than normal construction activity, all of which must comply with all applicable Township 
Ordinances.  No burning of refuse shall be permitted outside the dwelling, except that the burning 
of leaves shall be permitted if allowed by ordinance of the Township and in accordance with any 
applicable Township ordinance, provided that it does not become offensive or a nuisance. 

Section 6.10 Plant Diseases Or Noxious Insects.  No plants, seeds or other material 
harboring or breeding infectious plant diseases or noxious insects shall be introduced or maintained 
upon any part of a Unit or appurtenant Limited Common Elements. 

Section 6.11 Damaged Dwellings And Reconstruction.  All permanent dwellings shall 
be completed within two (2) years from the commencement of construction.  No old or used 
buildings of any kind shall be moved or reconstructed on any Unit.  Any damaged or destroyed 
building for which repair or reconstruction has not commenced within six (6) months from the 
date of damage or destruction, shall be removed so that there are no ruins or debris remaining 
within six (6) months from the date of damage or destruction.  Any building which is not completed 
within two (2) years from commencement of construction or any damage or destruction not 
promptly remedied shall be deemed a nuisance and may be abated by Developer or the Association, 
as provided by law.  Any portion of the Condominium within any public or private road or right-
of-way which is disturbed by reason of any work or activity performed by an Co-Owner, or an Co-

-Owner, at the Co-
sole expense, to its condition immediately prior to the commencement of such work or activity in 
compliance with applicable Township Ordinances.  Such restoration shall be performed within a 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

218



 

17 
41476794.1

reasonable time, and in no event later than the date of completion of any work or activity on the 
Co- .

Section 6.12 Soil Removal.  Soil removal from Units shall not be permitted, except as 
required for construction purposes and as permitted by Developer.  In addition, all construction 
shall be subject to the requirements of the Michigan Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Act, 
as amended, and all other applicable statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations of all governmental 
agencies having jurisdiction over such activities. 

Section 6.13 Underground Wiring.  No permanent lines or wires for communication or 
other transmission of electrical or power (except transmission lines located on existing or proposed 
easements) shall be constructed, placed or permitted to be placed anywhere above ground on a 
Unit other than within buildings or structures.

Section 6.14 Maintenance Of Side Strips.  Co-Owners of Units shall be responsible for 
the maintenance of parkways or rights-of-way located between the line of the Co-
and the edge of adjacent street pavement, including safety paths or sidewalks located therein that 
are not publicly dedicated,. 

Section 6.15 Tree Removal.  No tree may be removed from any Unit or Common 
Element without Developer  prior written approval during the Construction and 
Sales Period and thereafter by the Association.   

Section 6.16 Performance Of Construction.  No building shall be erected on any Unit 
except by a contractor licensed by the State of Michigan for such purpose. 

Section 6.17 Vehicular Parking and Storage.  No trailer, mobile home, bus, boat trailer, 
boat, camping vehicle, motorcycle, recreational vehicle, commercial or inoperative vehicle of any 
description shall at any time be parked, stored or maintained on any Unit, unless stored fully 

construction trailers, trucks and equipment may be parked and used on any Unit during 
construction operations.  No commercial vehicle lawfully upon any Unit for business shall remain 
on such Unit except in the ordinary course of business and in conformity with all applicable laws 
and/or ordinances. 

Section 6.18 Garbage and Refuse.  Trash, garbage or other waste shall be kept only in 
closed, sanitary containers and shall be promptly disposed of so as not to be objectionable to 
neighboring property Co-Owners.  No outside storage for refuse or garbage shall be maintained or 
used.  The burning or incineration of rubbish, trash, construction materials or other waste outside 
of any residential dwelling is prohibited. If the Township, by ordinance, has a mandatory rubbish 
removal and waste recycling program, each Co-owner shall participate in such program and shall 
be billed separately by the Township or Township carrier for such services.   

Section 6.19 Landscaping and Grass Cutting.  Developer shall be responsible for 
completion of any landscaping and maintenance required on the site plan. Upon completion of 
construction of a residential dwelling on any Unit, the Co-Owner shall cause the Unit to be finish 
graded, sodded, irrigated and landscaped in accordance with the plans approved by the 
Architectural Control Committee or HOA.  The Co-Owner shall be responsible for all mowing and 

219



 

18 
41476794.1

lawn maintenance within the Unit, including, but not limited to, the maintenance of any additional 
planting or landscaping added by the Co-Owner.

Section 6.20 Swimming Pools, Tennis Courts aAnd Other Structures.  No swimming 
pools, tennis courts, or other similar recreational structures shall be constructed on any Unit 
without Developer or Association approval and approval by the Charter Township of Orion.  

Section 6.21 Lawn Fertilization.  The Township may regulate the type of fertilizers that 
may be used on any Unit. 

Section 6.22 Signs.  No signs or any kind shall be displayed to the public view on any 
Unit excepting one (1) professional sign which shall comply with the Township Ordinancesof not 
more than five (5) square feet advertising the property for sale or rent.  Such signs as are allowed 
must be maintained in good condition at all times and removed on the termination of their use.  
The foregoing restrictions contained in this Section 6.22 shall not apply to signs installed or erected 
on any Unit by Developer or any builder who owns Units for resale in the ordinary course of 
business, during any construction period or during such periods as any residence may be used as a 
model or for display purposes.  All signs must comply with any Township Ordinance regarding 
signs.  No exterior illumination of any kind shall be placed or allowed on any portion of a Unit 
other than on a residential dwelling, unless first approved by Developer or Association. Subject to 
Township approval, Developer or Association shall approve such illumination only if the type, 
intensity and style thereof are compatible with the style and character of the development of the 
Unit.  All signs shall be in compliance with applicable ordinances. 

Section 6.23 Objectionable Sights.  Aboveground, below ground exterior fuel tanks or 
other storage tanks are not permitted.  The stockpiling and storage of building and landscape 
materials and/or equipment are not permitted on any Unit or appurtenant Limited Common 
Elements, except such materials and/or equipment as may be used within a reasonable length of 
time and otherwise in accordance with applicable Township Ordinances.  In no event shall the 
storage of landscape materials extend for a period of more than thirty (30) days.  No laundry drying 
equipment shall be erected or used outdoors and no clothes lines or laundry shall be hung for 
drying outside of the dwelling. 

Section 6.24 Maintenance.  The Co-Owner of each Unit and the occupants of any 
portion of the Unit shall keep all buildings and grounds in good condition and repair. 

Section 6.25 Real Estate Sales Office.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in this Master Deed and Bylaws, Developer, and/or any builder which Developer may 
designate, may construct and maintain on any Unit(s) a real estate sales office, with such 
promotional signs as Developer or builder may determine and/or a model home or homes for such 
purposes.  Developer and any designated builder may continue such activity until such time as all 
of the Units in which Developer or builder have an interest are sold. 

Section 6.26 Storm Water System and Facilities.  No storm drainage or detention area 
shall be modified in any manner and no use or occupation shall occur by any person or entity other 
than Developer or its authorized representatives unless permits and approvals for such 

220



 

19 
41476794.1

modification, use or occupation have been granted by all governmental units or agencies having 
jurisdiction over such storm drainage area or detention area.

Section 6.27 Leasing and Rental. 

 Right to Lease.  A Co-Owner may lease a Co-
in Section 6.2 of these Bylaws provided that written disclosure of such lease transaction is 
submitted to the Board of Directors of the Association in the manner specified below.  With the 
exception of a lender in possession of a Unit following a default of the first mortgage, foreclosure 
or deed or other arrangement in lieu of foreclosure, no Co-Owner shall lease less than an entire 
Unit in the Condominium and no tenant shall be permitted to occupy except under a lease the 
initial term of which is at least six (6) months unless specifically approved in writing by the 
Association.  The terms of all leases, occupancy agreements and occupancy arrangements shall 
incorporate, or be deemed to incorporate, all of the provisions of the Condominium Documents.  
The Developer, or its assigns, may lease any number of Units in the Condominium in its discretion 
and shall not be subject to the foregoing, or the leasing procedures set forth below, except for 
disclosure of the leasing arrangement to the Association.  These leasing provisions may not be 

eloper owns 
a Unit. 

 Leasing Procedures.  The leasing of Units in the Project shall conform to the following 
provisions: 

6.27.2.1 A Co-Owner desiring to rent or lease a Unit, shall disclose 
that fact in writing to the Association at least ten (10) days before presenting a lease 
form or otherwise agreeing to grant possession of a Condominium Unit to a 
potential lessee of the Unit and, at the same time, shall supply the Association with 
a copy of the exact lease form for its review for its compliance with the 
Condominium Documents.  If no lease form is to be used, then the Co-Owner shall 
supply the Association with the name and address of the potential lessee, along with 
the rental amount and the due dates under the proposed agreement. 

6.27.2.2 Tenants or non-owner occupants shall comply with all of the 
conditions of the Condominium Documents of the Condominium Project and all 
leases and rental agreements shall so state. 

6.27.2.3 If the Association determines that the tenant or non-owner 
occupant has failed to comply with the conditions of the Condominium Documents, 
the Association shall take the following action: 

6.26.2.3.1 The Association shall notify the Co-Owner by 
Certified Mail advising of the alleged violation by the tenant. 

Formatted: Body Text

221



 

20 
41476794.1

6.26.2.3.2 The Co-Owner shall have fifteen (15) days after 
receipt of such notice to investigate and correct the alleged breach by the 
tenant or advise the Association that a violation has not occurred. 

6.27.2.4 If after fifteen (15) days the Association believes that the 
alleged breach is not cured or may be repeated, it may institute on its behalf or 
derivatively by the Co-Owners on behalf of the Association, if it is under the control 
of the Developer, an action for eviction against the tenant or non-owner occupant 
and simultaneously for money damages in the same action against the Co-Owner 
and tenant or non-owner occupant for breach of the condition of the Condominium 
Documents.  The relief provided in this subparagraph may be by summary 
proceeding.  The Association may hold both the tenant and the Co-Owner liable for 
any damages to the Common Elements caused by the Co-Owner or tenant in 
connection with the Unit or Condominium Project. 

6.27.2.5 When a Co-Owner is in arrears to the Association for 
assessments, the Association may give written notice of the arrearage to the tenant 
occupying a Co-
after receiving the notice, shall deduct from rental payments due the Co-Owner the 
arrearage and further assessments as they fall due and pay them to the Association.  
The deductions shall not constitute a breach of the rental agreement or lease by the 
tenant.  If the tenant, after being notified, fails or refuses to remit rent otherwise 
due the Co-Owner to the Association, then the Association may do the following: 

6.26.2.5.1 Issue a statutory notice to quit for non-payment of 
rent to the tenant and shall have the right to enforce that notice by summary 
proceeding. 

6.26.2.5.2 Initiate proceedings pursuant to 6.26.2.4 above. 

Section 6.28 Architectural Controls.  The purpose of architectural controls is to 
promote an attractive, harmonious residential development having continuing appeal.  
Accordingly, unless and until the construction plans and specification are submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, Developer in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.29 below, (i) no 
building, fence, wall, deck or other structure shall be constructed, erected or maintained, and (ii) 
no addition, change or alteration shall be made to any existing building, fence, wall, deck or other 
structure except interior alterations. 

Section 6.29 Submission Of Plans aAnd Plan Approval. 

 All construction plans, specifications and related materials pertaining to construction or 
alteration of a building, fence, wall or other structures shall be filed by the applicant for approval 
in the office of DeveloperDeveloper or Association, or with any agent specified by Developer or 
the Association.  The construction plans, specifications and related materials shall show the nature, 
kind, shape, height, materials (including samples of exterior building materials upon request), 
drainage of surface water, and the location and grade of all buildings, structures, decks, 
improvements, utilities and parking areas.  DeveloperDeveloper or Association shall have sole 

222



 

21 
41476794.1

authority to review, approve or disapprove the plans, specifications and related materials or any 
part thereof.  Developer or Association shall have the right to refuse to approve the proposed plans, 
specifications and related materials, or grading plans, or portions thereof, which are not suitable 
or desirable in the sole discretion of Developer or Association, for aesthetic or other reasons.  In 
its review of the plans, specifications, and related materials, Developer or Association may 
consider compatibility of the proposed building, fence, wall, deck or other structures with the 
surroundings area and the view from adjacent or neighboring properties.  Natural landscaping and 
trees shall be left in their natural state to the extent practical.  All construction plans shall comply 

Applicant shall obtain all necessary permits and 
approvals from the Township. 

 A report in writing setting forth the decision of DeveloperDeveloper or Association, and 
the reasons therefor, shall be furnished to the applicant by DeveloperDeveloper or Association 
within thirty (30) days from the date of filing of complete plans, specifications and related 
materials by the applicant.  DeveloperDeveloper or Association will aid and cooperate with 
prospective builders and Co-Owners and make suggestions based upon DeveloperDeveloper or 
Association .  Prospective builders and Co-Owners are 
encouraged to submit preliminary sketches for informal comment prior to submission of final plans 
and specifications.  If DeveloperDeveloper or Association fails to give written notice of approval 
of any final plans, specifications and related materials submitted to DeveloperDeveloper or 
Association under this Section within thirty (30) days from the date of submission of complete 
plans, specifications and related materials, then the submitted plans, specifications and related 
materials shall be deemed disapproved by DeveloperDeveloper or Association.  
DeveloperDeveloper or Association shall be entitled to charge each applicant a review fee in an 
amount not to exceed Two Hundred Fifty and 00/100 ($250.00) Dollars, to reimburse 
DeveloperDeveloper or Association for any actual costs incurred in connection with the review of 

 

 Neither Developer nor any person(s) or entity(ies) to which Developer delegates any of its 
rights, duties or obligations hereunder, including, without limitation, the Association and 
Architectural Control Committee referred to in Section 6.30 below, shall incur any liability 
whatsoever for approving or failing or refusing to approve all or any part of any submitted plans, 
specifications and related materials.  DeveloperDeveloper or Association reserves the right to enter 
into agreements with the Co-Owner of any Unit(s) (without the consent of Co-Owners of other 
Units or adjoining or adjacent property) to deviate from any or all of the restrictions set forth in 
these Bylaws, provided that the Co-Owner demonstrates that the application of the particular 
restriction(s) in question would create practical difficulties or hardships.  Any such deviation shall 
be evidenced by a written agreement and no such deviation or agreement shall constitute a waiver 
of any such restriction as to any other Unit or Co-Owner. 

Section 6.30 Assignmentrchitectural Control Committee.  At such time as the fee 
simple interest in one hundred (100%) percent of the Units in the Condominium have been 
conveyed by Developer, or, at such earlier time as Developer may elect, Developer shall assign all 
of its rights, duties and obligations as set forth in this Article 6 of these Bylaws to a committee of 
the Association Architectural Control Committee .  The assignment shall 
be by a written recorded instrument in which the assignee expressly accepts such rights, duties and 
obligations.  Such instrument when executed by the assignee shall, without further act, release 

223



 

22 
41476794.1

Developer from all such obligations and duties.  If such assignment is made, the acts and decisions 
of the assignee as to any matters assigned shall be binding upon all Unit Co-Owners and other 
interested parties.  If Developer assigns its rights, duties and obligations under this Article 6 to an 
Architectural Control Committee, the Architectural Control Committee shall consist of no less 
than three (3) Members and no more than five (5) Members, to be appointed by Developer.  
Developer may assign its right to appoint members of the Architectural Control Committee to the 
Association.  Until such time, however, Developer reserves the right to appoint Members to and 
remove Members from the Architectural Control Committee in its sole discretion. 

Section 6.31 Changes in Common Elements.  No Co-Owner shall make changes in any 
of the Common Elements, Limited or General, without the prior written approval of the Board of 
Directors and the Township.

Section 6.32 Rules and Regulations.  It is intended that the Board of Directors of the 
Association may make rules and regulations from time to time to reflect the needs and desires of 
the majority of the Co-Owners in the Condominium.  Reasonable regulations consistent with the 
Act, the Master Deed and these Bylaws concerning the use of the Common Elements may be made 
and amended from time to time by any Board of Directors of the Association, including the first 
Board of Directors (or its successors) prior to the Transitional Control Date.  Copies of all such 
rules, regulations and amendments thereto shall be furnished to all Co-Owners. 

Section 6.33 Right of Access of Association.  The Association or its duly authorized 
agents shall have access to each Unit thereon from time to time, during reasonable working hours, 
upon notice to the Co-Owner thereof, as may be necessary for the maintenance, repair or 
replacement of any of the Common Elements.  The Association or its agents shall also have access 
to each Unit thereon at all times without notice as may be necessary to make emergency repairs to 
prevent damage to the Common Elements or to any Unit or to the improvements thereon.  In the 
event of an emergency, the Association may gain access in such manner as may be reasonable 
under the circumstances and shall not be liable to such Co-Owner for any necessary damage to 
such Co-  

Section 6.34 General Common Element and Easement Maintenance.  Roads and 
walkways shall not be obstructed nor shall they be used for purposes other than for which they are 
reasonably and obviously intended.  All General Common Elements shall be maintained by the 
Association unless otherwise provided in the Master Deed or Bylaws. 

Section 6.35 Co-Owner Maintenance.  Each Co-Owner shall maintain such Co-

and the yard in a safe, clean and sanitary condition.  Each Co-Owner shall also use due care to 
avoid damaging any of the Common Elements including, but not limited to, the telephone, water, 
gas, plumbing, electrical or other utility conduits and systems which are appurtenant to or which 
may affect any other Unit.  Each Co-Owner shall be responsible for damages or costs to the 
Association resulting from negligent or intentional damage to or misuse of any of the Common 
Elements by such Co-Owner, or the Co-
damages or costs are covered by insurance carried by the Association (in which case there shall be 
no such responsibility, unless reimbursement to the Association is limited by virtue of a deductible 
provision, in which case the responsible Co-Owner shall bear the expense to the extent of the 

224



 

23 
41476794.1

deductible amount).  Any costs or damages to the association may be assessed to and collected 
from the responsible Co-Owner in the manner provided in Article 2 hereof.

Section 6.36 Reserved Rights of Developer.

and Sales.  None of the restrictions 
contained in this Article 6 shall apply to the commercial activities or signs or billboards, if any, of 
Developer during the Construction and Sales Period or of the Association in furtherance of its 
powers and purposes set forth in the Condominium Documents, as they may be amended from 
time to time.  At all times, such signs shall be in compliance 
oOrdinances.  Developer shall have the right during the Construction and Sales Period to maintain 
a sales office, a business office, a construction office, model units, storage areas and reasonable 
parking incident to the foregoing and such access to, from and over the Project as may be 
reasonable to enable development and sale of the Project by Developer.  Developer shall restore 
the areas so used to its original statushabitable status upon termination of such use.  The rights of 
assignment reserved to the Developer in Article 20 below shall include the right to permit the 
maintenance and use of sales offices, model units, advertising display signs, storage areas and 
reasonable parking incident to the foregoing by to one or more Residential Builders, who may 
exercise such rights simultaneously with the Developer subject to residential builders compliance 

. 

 Enforcement of Condominium Documents.  The Condominium shall at all times be 
maintained in a manner consistent with the highest standards of a beautiful, serene, private 
residential community for the benefit of the Co-Owners and all persons interested in the 
Condominium.  If at any time the Association fails or refuses to carry out its obligation to maintain, 
repair, replace and landscape the Condominium in a manner consistent with the maintenance of 
such high standards, then Developer or Association, or any entity to which Developer may assign 
this right, at its option, may elect to maintain, repair and/or replace any Common Elements and/or 
to do any landscaping required by these Bylaws and to charge the cost thereof to the Association 
as an expense of administration.  Developer shall have the right to enforce these Bylaws throughout 
the Construction and Sales Period, which right of enforcement may include (without limitation) 
an action to restrain the Association or any Co-Owner from any activity prohibited by these 
Bylaws, regardless of any provision otherwise requiring arbitration. 

Section 6.37 Unsightly Conditions.  It shall be the responsibility of each Unit Owner to 
prevent any unclean, unsightly 
that tend to substantially decrease the beauty of the Development as a whole or any specific area 
thereof.  No lawn ornaments, sculptures or statutes shall be placed or permitted to remain on any 
Unit.

Section 6.38 Temporary Structures.  Trailers, tents, shacks, tool sheds, barns or any 
temporary buildings of any design whatsoever are expressly prohibited within the Development 
and no temporary dwelling shall be permitted in an unfinished residential building.  This shall not 
prevent the erection of a temporary storage building for materials and supplies to be used in the 
construction of a Unit, and which shall be removed from the premises on completion of the 
structure, and shall not prevent use by any builder or contractor of trailers for material storage or 

225



 

24 
41476794.1

model offices during the period of construction in the Development, provided the same shall be 
removed at the completion of such construction.

Section 6.39 Animals or Pets.  No animals or fowl (except household pets) shall be kept 
or maintained on any Unit.  Any pets kept in the Project or property in the Development shall have 
such care and restraint as not to be obnoxious on account of noise, odor or unsanitary conditions.  
No savage or dangerous animal shall be kept.  No animal may be permitted to run loose upon the 
Common Elements, and any animal shall at all times be attended by a responsible person while on 
the Common Elements.  Any person who causes or permits an animal to be brought or kept on the 
Development shall indemnify and hold harmless the Association and Master Association for any 
loss, damage or liability which the Association or Master Association, respectively, may sustain 
as a result of the presence of such animal on the Development.

Section 6.40 Refuse and Stored Materials.  No Unit shall be used or maintained as a 
dumping ground or for outside storage for rubbish, trash, garbage or other materials.  Other waste 
shall be kept in a sanitary container, properly concealed from public view.  The Board of Directors 
of the Association may designate a day of the week on which all trash pick-up in the Development 
shall occur.  No trash shall be put out earlier than the morning of the day designated for pick-up 
and all containers shall be removed by the end of such day.  No burning of refuse shall be permitted 
outside the dwelling, except that the burning of leaves shall be permitted if allowed by ordinance 
of the Township, provided that it does not become offensive or a nuisance. 

Section 6.41 Mail Boxes.  All mailboxes of the Project shall be of uniform size, location, 
color and same design in compliance with the standards set forth by the Developer. 

Section 6.42 Solar Panels.  No solar panel, solar collector or similar device shall be 
placed, constructed, altered, or maintained on any Unit or placed, constructed, altered, or 
maintained on any Unit. 

Section 6.43 Television Antenna and Similar Devises.  No outside television antenna 
or other antenna, or aerial, saucer, dish, receiving device, signal capture and distribution devise or 
similar device shall be placed, constructed, altered or maintained on any Unit, unless the device is 

screened from view and approved by the Board of Directors of the Association and in compliance 
with any Township Ordinance.  The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to those devices 
covered by 47 C.F.R.  § 1.4000, promulgated pursuant to the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 
Pub.  L.  No.  104.  110, § 207 Stat.  56 (1996), as amended.

Section 6.44 Air Conditioning Units.  No external air conditioning unit shall be placed 
in or attached to a window or wall of any Unit.  No compressor or other component of a central 
air conditioning system (or similar system, such as a heat pump) shall be so located on any Unit 
so as to be visible from the public street on which the Unit fronts, and, to the extent reasonably 
possible, all such external equipment shall be so located on any Unit so as to minimize the negative 
impact thereof on any adjoining Unit, in the terms of noise and appearance and shall comply with 
Township Ordinances. 

226



 

25 
41476794.1

Section 6.45 Fences and Walls, Dog Runs.  No fences or walls shall be permitted on 
any Unit without Developer and Township approval. Dog kennels or runs or other enclosed 
shelters for animals are expressly prohibited. 

Section 6.46 Public Utilities.  All public utilities such as water main, sanitary sewers, 
storm sewers, gas mains, electric and telephone local distribution lines, cable television lines, and 
all connections to same, either private or otherwise, shall be installed underground.  However, 
above-ground transformers, pedestals and other above-ground electric and telephone utility 
installations and distribution systems and surface and off-site drainage channels and facilities, as 
well as street lighting stanchions, shall be permitted. 

Section 6.47 Vehicles, Motorcycles and Snowmobiles.  No trailers, boats, aircraft, 
commercial vehicles, boat trailers, boats, camping vehicles, camping trailers, snowmobiles, 
snowmobile trailers, jet skis, jet ski trailers or other recreational vehicles, or other vehicles, other 
than passenger cars, passenger vans, pick-up trucks and so-
parked or maintained on any Unit unless in a suitable private attached garage.  Motorcycles are 
allowed on the roads in the Development, but motorcycles and all other motorized off-road 
vehicles are prohibited in all other General Common Element areas.  Snowmobiles are prohibited 
in all General Common Element areas. 

Section 6.48 Basketball Hoops and Play Areas.  Basketball hoops and play areas are 
permitted subject to strict compliance with the following restrictions and all applicable Township 
Ordinances: 

 All basketball hoops shall be on ground mounted posts located at least 30 feet from the 
curb of the road(s) adjacent to the Unit.

 The ground mounted post for the basketball hoop shall be located at least 5 feet from the 
side line of the Unit. 

 No florescent or bright colors shall be permitted for either the post or the backboard.  The 
ground mounted post shall be painted black and the backboard of the basketball hoop shall be 
clear. 

ARTICLE 7. 
MORTGAGES 

Section 7.1 Notice to Association.  Any Co-Owner who mortgages such Co-
Unit shall notify the Association of the name and address of the mortgagee, and the Association 
s
at the written request of a mortgagee of any such Unit, report any unpaid assessments due from 
the Co-Owner of such Unit.  The Association shall give to the holder of any first mortgage covering 
any Unit in the Project written notification of any default in the performance of the obligations of 
the Co-Owner of such Unit that is not cured within sixty (60) days. 

Section 7.2 Insurance.  The Association shall notify each mortgagee appearing in the 
book of Mortgagees of Units of the name of each company insuring the Condominium against fire, 

227



 

26 
41476794.1

perils covered by extended coverage, and vandalism and malicious mischief and the amounts of 
such coverage, to the extent the Association is required by these Bylaws to obtain such coverage.

Section 7.3 Notification of Meetings.  Upon written request submitted to the 
Association, any institutional holder of a first mortgage lien on any Unit in the Condominium shall 
be entitled to receive written notification of every meeting of the members of the Association and 
to designate a representative to attend such meeting. 

ARTICLE 8. 
VOTING

Section 8.1 Vote.  Except as limited in these Bylaws, all of the Co-Owners of a Unit 
shall be entitled to only one vote for each Unit owned, and the value of the vote attributed to each 
Unit shall be equal. 

Section 8.2 Eligibility to Vote.  No Co-Owner, other than Developer, shall be entitled 
to vote at any meeting of the Association until such Co-Owner has presented evidence of 
ownership of a Unit in the Condominium Project to the Association.  Except as provided in 
Sections 9.2 and 11.2 of these Bylaws, no Co-Owner, other than Developer, shall be entitled to 
vote prior to the date of the First Annual Meeting held in accordance with Sections 9.2 and 11.2.  
The vote of each Co-Owner may be cast only by the individual representative designated by such 
Co-Owner in the notice required in Section 8.3 of this Article 8 or by a proxy given by such 
individual representative.  Until the First Annual Meeting Developer shall be entitled to vote 
notwithstanding the fact that Developer may own no Units at some time or from time to time 
during such period.  At and after the First Annual Meeting Developer shall be entitled to one vote 
for each Unit which Developer owns. 

Section 8.3 Designation of Voting Representative.  Each Co-Owner shall file a 
written notice with the Association designating the individual representative who shall vote at 
meetings of the Association and receive all notices and other communications from the Association 
on behalf of such Co-Owner.  Such notice shall state the name and address of the individual 
representative designated, the number or numbers of the Unit or Units owned by the Co-Owner, 
and the name and address of each person, firm, corporation, partnership, association, trust or other 
entity who is the Co-Owner.  Such notice shall be signed and dated by the Co-Owner.  The 
individual representative designated may be changed by the Co-Owners of a Unit at any time by 
filing a new notice in the manner herein provided. 

Section 8.4 Quorum.  Those Co-Owners present in person or by proxy at the First 
Annual Meeting held in accordance with Sections 9.2 and 11.2 shall constitute a quorum for such 
meeting.  At all other meetings of Co-Owners, the presence in person or by proxy of thirty-five 
percent (35%) of the Co-Owners qualified to vote shall constitute a quorum for holding a meeting 
of the members of the Association, except for voting on questions specifically required by the 
Condominium Documents to have a greater quorum.  The written vote of any person furnished at 
or prior to any duly called meeting at which meeting said person is not otherwise present in person 
or by proxy shall be counted in determining the presence of a quorum with respect to the question 
upon which the vote is cast. 

228



 

27 
41476794.1

Section 8.5 Voting.  Votes may be cast only in person, or by a writing duly signed by 
the designated voting representative not present at a given meeting in person, or by proxy.  Proxies 
and any written votes must be filed with the Secretary of the Association at or before the appointed 
time of each meeting of the members of the Association.  Cumulative voting shall not be permitted. 

Section 8.6 Majority.  A majority, except where otherwise provided herein, shall 
consist of more than fifty percent (50%) of those qualified to vote and present in person or by 
proxy (or written vote, if applicable) at a given meeting of the members of the Association where 
a quorum is present.  Whenever provided specifically in the Condominium Documents, a majority 
may be required to exceed the simple majority herein above set forth of designated voting 
representatives present in person or by proxy, or by written vote, if applicable, at a given meeting 
of the members of the Association. 

ARTICLE 9. 
MEETINGS 

Section 9.1 Place of Meeting.  Meetings of the Association shall be held at the principal 
office of the Association or at such other suitable place convenient to the Co-Owners as may be 
designated by the Board of Directors.  Meetings of the Association shall be conducted in 
accordance w
generally recognized manual of parliamentary procedure as selected by the Board of Directors, 
when not otherwise in conflict with the Condominium Documents or the laws of the State of 
Michigan. 

Section 9.2 First Annual Meeting.  The First Annual Meeting may be convened only 
by the Developer and may be called at any time after more than fifty percent (50%) of the Units 
that may be created have been sold and the purchasers thereof qualified as members of the 
Association.  In no event, however, shall such meeting be called later than one hundred twenty 
(120) days after the conveyance of legal or equitable title to non-developer Co-Owners of seventy-
five percent (75%) in number of all Units that may be created or fifty-four (54) months after the 
first conveyance of legal or equitable title to a non-developer Co-Owner of a Unit in the Project, 
whichever first occurs.  Developer may call meetings of members for informative or other 
appropriate purposes prior to the First Annual Meeting and no such meeting shall be construed as 
the First Annual Meeting.  The date, time and place of such meeting shall be set by the Board of 

en to each Co-Owner.  The 

Documents refers to the maximum number of Units which Developer is permitted, under the 
Condominium Documents as they may be amended, to include in the Condominium. 

Section 9.3 Annual Meetings.  Annual meetings of the Association shall be held on the 
last Thursday of October each succeeding year after the year in which the First Annual Meeting is 
held at such time and place as shall be determined by the Board of Directors; provided, however, 
that the second annual meeting shall not be held sooner than eight (8) months after the date of the 
First Annual Meeting.  At such meetings there shall be elected by ballot of the Co-Owners a Board 
of Directors in accordance with the requirements of Article 11 of these Bylaws.  The Co-Owners 
may also transact at the annual meetings such other business of the Association as may properly 
come before them. 

229



 

28 
41476794.1

Section 9.4 Special Meetings.  It shall be the duty of the President to call a special 
meeting of the Co-Owners as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors or upon a petition 
signed by one-third (1/3) of the Co-Owners presented to the Secretary of the Association.  Notice 
of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purposes thereof.  No 
business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice. 

Section 9.5 Notice of Meetings.  It shall be the duty of the Secretary (or other 
erve a notice of each annual or special meeting, 

stating the purpose thereof as well as of the time and place where it is to be held, upon each Co-
Owner of record, at least ten (10) days but not more than sixty (60) days prior to such meeting.  
The mailing, postage prepaid, of a notice to the representative of each Co-Owner at the address 
shown in the notice required to be filed with the Association by Article 8, Section 8.3 of these 
Bylaws shall be deemed notice served.  Any member may, by written waiver of notice signed by 
such member, waive such notice, and such waiver, when filed in the records of the Association, 
shall be deemed due notice. 

Section 9.6 Adjournment.  If any meeting of Co-Owners cannot be held because a 
quorum is not in attendance, the Co-Owners who are present may adjourn the meeting to a time 
not less than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called. 

Section 9.7 Order of Business.  The order of business at all meetings of the members 
shall be as follows: (1) roll call to determine the voting power represented at the meeting; (2) proof 
of notice of meeting or waiver of notice; (3) reading of minutes of preceding meeting; (4) reports 
of officers; (5) reports of committees; (6) appointment of inspector of elections (at annual meetings 
or special meetings held for purpose of election of Directors or officers); (7) election of Directors 
(at annual meeting or special meetings held for such purpose); (8) unfinished business; and (9) 
new business.  Meetings of members shall be chaired by the most senior officer of the Association 
present at such meeting.  For purposes of this Section, the order of seniority of officers shall be 
President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. 

Section 9.8 Action Without Meeting.  Any action which may be taken at a meeting of 
the members (except for the election or removal of Directors) may be taken without a meeting by 
written ballot of the members, which ballots are signed within no more than a sixty (60) day period, 
as determined by the Board of Directors.  Ballots shall be solicited in the same manner as provided 
in Section 9.5 for the giving of notice of meetings of members.  Such solicitations shall specify (1) 
the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirements; (2) the percentage of approvals 
necessary to approve the action; and (3) the time by which ballots must be received in order to be 
counted.  The form of written ballot shall afford an opportunity to specify a choice between 
approval and disapproval of each matter and shall provide that, where the member specifies a 
choice, the vote shall be cast in accordance therewith.  Approval by written ballot shall be 
constituted by receipt within the time period specified in the solicitation of (1) a number of ballots 
which equals or exceeds the quorum which would be required if the action were taken at a meeting; 
and (2) a number of approvals which equals or exceeds the number of votes which would be 
required for approval if the action were taken at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast 
was the same as the total number of ballots cast. 

230



 

29 
41476794.1

Section 9.9 Consent of Absentees.  The transactions at any meeting of members, either 
annual or special, however called and noticed, shall be as valid as though made at a meeting duly 
held after regular call and notice, if a quorum be present either in person or by proxy and if, either 
before or after the meeting, each of the members not present in person or by proxy, signs a written 
waiver of notice, or a consent to the holding of such meeting, or an approval of the minutes thereof.  
All such waivers, consents or approvals shall he filed with the corporate records or made a part of 
the minutes of the meeting.

Section 9.10 Minutes, Presumption of Notice.  Minutes or a similar record of the 
proceedings of meetings of members, when signed by the President or Secretary, shall be presumed 
truthfully to evidence the matters set forth therein.  Recitation in the minutes of any such meeting 
that notice of the meeting was properly given shall be prima facie evidence that such notice was 
given. 

ARTICLE 10. 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Within one (1) year after conveyance of legal or equitable title to the first Unit in the 
Condominium to a purchaser or within one hundred twenty (120) days after conveyance to 
purchasers of one-third (1/3) of the total number of Units that may be created, whichever first 
occurs, Developer shall cause to be established an Advisory Committee consisting of at least three 
(3) non-developer Co-Owners.  The Committee shall be established and perpetuated in any manner 
Developer deems advisable, except that if more than fifty percent (50%) of the non-developer Co-
Owners petition the Board of Directors for an election to select the Advisory Committee, then an 
election for such purpose shall be held.  The purpose of the Advisory Committee shall be to 
facilitate communications between the Board of Directors and the non-developer Co-Owners and 
to aid the transition of control of the Association from Developer to non-developer Co-Owners.  
The Advisory Committee shall cease to exist automatically when the non-developer Co-Owners 
have the voting strength to elect a majority of the Board of Directors of the Association.  Developer 
may remove and replace at its discretion at any time any member of the Advisory Committee who 
has not been elected by the Co-Owners. 

ARTICLE 11. 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 11.1 Number and Qualification of Directors.  The Board of Directors shall be 
comprised of three (3) members all of whom must be members of the Association or officers, 
partners, trustees, employees or agents of members of the Association.  Directors shall serve 
without compensation.

Section 11.2 Election of Directors.   

 First Board of Directors.  The first Board of Directors shall be composed of three (3) 
persons and such first Board of Directors or its successors as selected by Developer shall manage 
the affairs of the Association until the appointment of the first non-developer Co-Owners to the 
Board.  Thereafter, elections for non-developer Co-Owner Directors shall be held as provided in 

231



 

30 
41476794.1

subsections 11.2.2 and 11.2.3 below.  The Directors shall hold office until their successors are 
elected and hold their first meeting.

Appointment of Non-developer Co-Owners to Board Prior to First Annual Meeting.  Not 
later than one hundred twenty (120) days after conveyance of legal or equitable title to non-
developer Co-Owners of twenty-five percent (25%) of the Units that may be created, one (1) of 
the three (3) Directors shall be selected by non-developer Co-Owners.  When the required 
percentage level of conveyance has been reached, Developer shall notify the non-developer Co-
Owners and request that they hold a meeting and elect the required Director.  Upon certification 
to Developer by the Co-Owners of the Director so elected, Developer shall then immediately 
appoint such Director to the Board to serve until the First Annual Meeting unless such Director is 
removed pursuant to Section 11.7 of this Article or such Director resigns or becomes incapacitated. 

 Election of Directors At and After First Annual Meeting.   

11.2.3.1 Not later than one hundred twenty (120) days after 
conveyance of legal or equitable title to non-developer Co-Owners of seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the Units that may be created, and before conveyance of ninety 
percent (90%) of such Units, the non-developer Co-Owners shall elect all Directors 
on the Board except that Developer shall have the right to designate at least one (1) 
Director as long as the Units that remain to be created and sold equal at least ten 
percent (10%) of all Units that may be created in the Project.  Whenever the 
seventy-five percent (75%) conveyance level is achieved, a meeting of Co-Owners 
shall be promptly convened to effectuate this provision, even if the First Annual 
Meeting has already occurred. 

11.2.3.2 Regardless of the percentage of Units  which have been 
conveyed, upon the expiration of fifty-four (54) months after the first conveyance 
of legal or equitable title to a non-developer Co-Owner of a Unit in the Project, the 
non-developer Co-Owners have the right to elect a number of members of the Board 
of Directors equal to the percentage of Units they own, and Developer has the right 
to elect a number of members of the Board of Directors equal to the percentage of 
Units which are owned by Developer.  This election may increase, but shall not 
reduce, the minimum election and designation rights otherwise established in 
subsection 11.2.3.1.  Application of this subsection does not require a change in the 
size of the Board of Directors. 

11.2.3.3 If the calculation of the percentage of members of the Board 
of Directors that the non-developer Co-Owners have the right to elect under 
subsection 11.2.3.2, or if the product of the number of members of the Board of 
Directors multiplied by the percentage of Units held by the non-developer Co-
Owners under subsection 11.2.2 results in a right of non-developer Co-Owners to 
elect a fractional number of members of the Board of Directors, then a fractional 
election right of 0.5 or greater shall be rounded up to the nearest whole number, 
which number shall be the number of members of the Board of Directors that the 
non-developer Co-Owners have the right to elect.  After application of this formula, 
Developer shall have the right to elect the remaining members of the Board of 

232



 

31 
41476794.1

Directors.  Application of this subsection shall not eliminate the right of Developer 
to designate one (1) member as provided in subsection 11.2.3.1.

11.2.3.4 At the First Annual Meeting two (2) Directors shall be 
elected for a term of two (2) years and one (1) Director shall be elected for a term 
of one (1) year.  At such meeting all nominees shall stand for election as one (1) 
slate and the two (2) persons receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected 
for a term of two (2) years and the one (1) person receiving the next highest number 
of votes shall be elected for a term of one (1) year.  After the First Annual Meeting, 
the term of office (except for one (1) of the Directors elected at the First Annual 
Meeting for a one year term) of each Director shall be two (2) years.  At each annual 
meeting held after the first, either one (1) or two (2) Directors shall be elected 
depending upon the number of Directors whose terms expire.  The Directors shall 
hold office until their successors have been elected and hold their first meeting. 

11.2.3.5 Once the Co-Owners have acquired the right hereunder to 
elect a majority of the Board of Directors, annual meetings of Co-Owners to elect 
Directors and conduct other business shall be held in accordance with the 
provisions of Article 9, Section 9.3 above. 

11.2.3.6 Status of Units Conveyed to Residential Builders.  For 
purposes of calculating the timing of events described in Article 10 above and this 
Section 11.2, the conveyance by the Developer of a Unit to a Residential Builder, 
whether or not the Residential Builder is affiliated with the Developer as defined 
by the Act, shall not be considered a sale to a non-Developer Co-Owner until such 
time as the Residential Builder conveys the Unit with a completed Residence on it 
or until the Unit contains a completed and occupied Residence. 

Section 11.3 Powers and Duties.  The Board of Directors shall have the powers and 
duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all acts and 
things as are not prohibited by the Condominium Documents or required thereby to be exercised 
and done by the Co-Owners.

Section 11.4 Other Duties.  In addition to the foregoing duties imposed by these Bylaws 
or any further duties which may be imposed by resolution of the members of the Association, the 
Board of Directors shall be responsible specifically for the following: 

 To manage and administer the affairs of and to maintain the 
Condominium Project and the Common Elements thereof.

 To levy and collect assessments from the members of the Association and 
to use the proceeds thereof for the purposes of the Association. 

 To carry insurance and collect and allocate the proceeds thereof. 

 To rebuild improvements to the Common Elements after casualty (subject 
to the provisions of the Condominium Documents). 

233



 

32 
41476794.1

 To contract for and employ persons, firms, corporations or other agents to 
assist in the management, operation, maintenance and administration of the Condominium Project.

To acquire, maintain and improve, and to buy, operate, manage, sell, 
convey, assign, mortgage or lease any real or personal property (including any Unit in the 
Condominium and easements rights-of-way and licenses) on behalf of the Association in 
furtherance of any of the purposes of the Association. 

 To borrow money and issue evidences of indebtedness in furtherance of 
any or all of the purposes of the Association; and to secure the same by mortgage, pledge, or other 
lien on property owned by the Association; provided, however, that any such action shall also be 
approved by affirmative vote of seventy-five percent (75%) of all of the members of the 
Association. 

 To make rules and regulations in accordance with these Bylaws. 

 To establish such committees as the Board of Directors deems necessary, 
convenient or desirable and to appoint persons thereto for the purpose of implementing the 
administration of the Condominium and to delegate to such committees any functions or 
responsibilities which are not by law or the Condominium Documents required to be performed 
by the Board. 

 To enforce the provisions of the Condominium Documents. 

Section 11.5 Management Agent.  The Board of Directors may employ for the 
Association a professional management agent (which may include Developer or any person or 
entity related thereto) at reasonable compensation established by the Board to perform such duties 
and services as the Board shall authorize, including, but not limited to, the duties listed in Sections 
11.3 and 11.4 of this Article, and the Board may delegate to such management agent any other 
duties or powers which are not by law or by the Condominium Documents required to be 
performed by or have the approval of the Board of Directors or the members of the Association.  
In no event shall the Board be authorized to enter into any contract with a professional management 
agent, or any other contract providing for services by Developer, in which the maximum term is 

written notice thereof to the other party and no such contract shall violate the provisions of Section 
55 of the Act. 

Section 11.6 Vacancies.  Vacancies in the Board of Directors which occur after the 
Transitional Control Date caused by any reason other than the removal of a Director by a vote of 
the members of the Association shall be filled by vote of the majority of the remaining Directors, 
even though they may constitute less than a quorum, except that Developer shall be solely entitled 
to fill the vacancy of any Director whom Developer is permitted in the first instance to designate.  
Each person so elected shall be a Director until a successor is elected at the next annual meeting 
of the Association.  Vacancies among non-developer Co-Owner elected Directors which occur 
prior to the Transitional Control Date may be filled only through election by non-developer Co-
Owners and shall be filled in the manner specified in Section 11.2.2 of this Article. 

234



 

33 
41476794.1

Section 11.7 Removal.  At any regular or special meeting of the Association duly called 
with due notice of the removal action proposed to be taken, any one or more of the Directors may 
be removed with or without cause by the affirmative vote of more than fifty percent (50%) of all 
the Co-Owners, not just of those present, and a successor may then and there be elected to fill any 
vacancy thus created.  The quorum requirement for the purpose of filling such vacancy shall be 
the normal thirty-five percent (35%) requirement set forth in Article 8, Section 8.4.  Any Director 
whose removal has been proposed by the Co-Owners shall be given an opportunity to be heard at 
the meeting.  The Developer may remove and replace any or all of the Directors selected by it at 
any time or from time to time in its sole discretion.  Likewise, any Director selected by the non-
developer Co-Owners to serve before the First Annual Meeting may be removed before the First 
Annual Meeting in the same manner set forth in this paragraph for removal of Directors generally. 

Section 11.8 First Meeting.  The first meeting of a newly elected Board of Directors 
shall be held within ten (10) days of election at such place as shall be fixed by the Directors at the 
meeting at which such Directors were elected, and no notice shall be necessary to the newly elected 
Directors in order legally to constitute such meeting, providing a majority of the whole Board of 
Directors shall be present.

Section 11.9 Regular Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be 
held at such times and places as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the 
Directors, but at least two (2) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year.  Notice of regular 
meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given to each Director, personally, by mail, telephone 
or facsimile at least ten (10) days prior to the date named for such meeting. 

Section 11.10 Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be 

telephone or facsimile which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting.  Special 
meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and 
on like notice on the written request of two (2) Directors. 

Section 11.11 Waiver of Notice.  Before or at any meeting of the Board of Directors, any 
Director may, in writing, waive notice of such meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent 
to the giving of such notice.  Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board of Directors 
shall be deemed a waiver of notice by the Director of the time and place thereof.  If all Directors 
are present at any meeting of the Board of Directors, no notice shall be required and any business 
may be transacted at such meeting. 

Section 11.12 Quorum.  At all meetings of the Board of Directors a majority of the 
Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the acts of the majority of 
the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the acts of the Board of 
Directors.  If, at any meeting of the Board of Directors, less than a quorum is present, the majority 
of those present may adjourn the meeting to a subsequent time upon twenty-
written notice delivered to all Directors not present.  At any such adjourned meeting, any business 
which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted without 
further notice.  The joinder of a Director in the action of a meeting by signing and concurring in 
the minutes thereof shall constitute the presence of such Director for purposes of determining a 
quorum. 

235



 

34 
41476794.1

Section 11.13 First Board of Directors.  The actions of the first Board of Directors of the 
Association or any successors thereto selected or elected before the Transitional Control Date shall 
be binding upon the Association so long as such actions are within the scope of the powers and 
duties which may be exercised generally by the Board of Directors as provided in the 
Condominium Documents. 

Section 11.14 Fidelity Bonds.  The Board of Directors may require that all officers and 
employees of the Association handling or responsible for Association funds shall furnish adequate 
fidelity bonds, insuring against theft, dishonesty, and other standard coverage of fidelity bonds.  
The premiums on such bonds shall be expenses of administration. 

Section 11.15 Remote Communication and Electronic Transmission.   

 Participation of Directors by Conference Telephone or Remote Communication.  A 
Director may participate in a meeting of the Directors by conference telephone or other means of 
remote communication by which all persons participating in the meeting may communicate with 
each other.  Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section constitutes presence in person at the 
meeting. 

 Notices by Electronic Transmission.  In addition to any other permissible methods 
of providing notice of meetings, notice may also be given by electronic transmission, as defined 
below.  Notice by electronic transmission will be deemed given when electronically transmitted to 
the person entitled to notice in a manner authorized by the person. 

 Use of Electronic Transmission.  
will include communications by electronic transmission, including but not limited to fax and email.  
Notices of meetings, waivers of notice of meetings, proxies, written consents and ballots may be 
transmitted by electronic transmission.  When a notice or communication is transmitted 
electronically, the notice or communication is deemed to be given when electronically transmitted 
to the person entitled to the notice or communication in a manner authorized by the person.  A Co-
owner or Director will be deemed to have consented to the use of email upon providing the 
Association with a valid email address. 

 Definition of Electronic Transmission.  As used in these Bylaws, electronic 
transmission refers to any form of communication that does not directly involve the physical 
transmission of paper, creates a record that may be retained and retrieved by the recipient and may 
be directly reproduced in paper form by the recipient through an automated process.

ARTICLE 12. 
OFFICERS

Section 12.1 Officers.  The principal officers of the Association shall be a President, who 
shall be a member of the Board of Directors, a Secretary and a Treasurer.  The Directors may 
appoint an Assistant Treasurer, and an Assistant Secretary, and such other officers as in their 
judgment may be necessary.  Any two (2) offices except that of President may be held by one 
person. 

Formatted: Don't keep with next

236



 

35 
41476794.1

 President.  The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association.  The 
President shall preside at all meetings of the association and of the Board of Directors and shall 
have all the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the office of the President of an 
association, including, but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the 

deem appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. 

 Secretary.  The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors 
and the minutes of all meetings of the members of the Association; the Secretary shall have charge 
of the corporate seal, if any, and of such books and papers as the Board of Directors may direct; 
and the Secretary shall, in general, perform all duties incident to the office of the Secretary. 

 Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall have responsibility for the Association funds and securities 
and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements 
in books belonging to the Association.  The Treasurer shall be responsible for the deposit of all 
monies and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the Association, and in such 
depositories as may, from time to time, be designated by the Board of Directors. 

Section 12.2 Election.  The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the 
Board of Directors at the organizational meeting of each new Board of Directors and shall hold 
office at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. 

Section 12.3 Removal.  Upon affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board 

elected at any regular meeting of the Board of Directors, or at any special meeting of the Board of 
Directors called for such purpose.  No such removal action may be taken, however, unless the 
matter shall have been included in the notice of such meeting.  The officer who is proposed to be 
removed shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting. 

Section 12.4 Duties.  The officers shall have such other duties, powers and 
responsibilities as shall, from time to time, be authorized by the Board of Directors. 

Section 12.5 Remote Communication and Electronic Transmission. 

 Participation of Officers by Conference Telephone or Remote Communication.  An officer 
may participate in a meeting of the officers by conference telephone or other means of remote 
communication by which all persons participating in the meeting may communicate with each 
other.  Participation in a meeting pursuant to this section constitutes presence in person at the 
meeting. 

 Notices by Electronic Transmission.  In addition to any other permissible methods of 
providing notice of meetings, notice may also be given by electronic transmission, as defined 
below.  Notice by electronic transmission will be deemed given when electronically transmitted to 
the person entitled to notice in a manner authorized by the person. 

 Use of Electronic Transmission.  
include communications by electronic transmission, including but not limited to fax and email.  
Notices of meetings, waivers of notice of meetings, proxies, written consents and ballots may be 

237



 

36 
41476794.1

transmitted by electronic transmission.  When a notice or communication is transmitted 
electronically, the notice or communication is deemed to be given when electronically transmitted 
to the person entitled to the notice or communication in a manner authorized by the person.  A Co-
owner or officer will be deemed to have consented to the use of email upon providing the 
Association with a valid email address. 

 Definition of Electronic Transmission.  As used in these Bylaws, electronic transmission 
refers to any form of communication that does not directly involve the physical transmission of 
paper, creates a record that may be retained and retrieved by the recipient and may be directly 
reproduced in paper form by the recipient through an automated process. 

ARTICLE 13. 
SEAL 

The Association may (but need not) have a seal.  If the Board of Directors determines that 
the Association shall have a seal then it shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Association, 

 

ARTICLE 14. 
FINANCE

Section 14.1 Records.  The Association shall keep detailed books of account showing all 
expenditures and receipts of administration which shall specify the maintenance and repair 
expenses of the Common Elements and any other expenses incurred by or on behalf of the 
Association and the Co-Owners.  Such accounts and all other Association records shall be open 
for inspection by the Co-Owners and their mortgagees during reasonable working hours.  The 
Association shall prepare and distribute to each Co-Owner at least once a year a financial 
statement, the contents of which shall be defined by the Association.  To the extent the Association 
has assets in excess of $20,000.00, the Association shall on an annual basis have its books, records, 
and financial statement independently audited or reviewed by a certified public accountant as 
defined in Section 720 of the occupational code, 1980 PA 299, MCL 339.720.  The audit or review 
shall be performed in accordance with the statements on auditing standards or the statements on 
standards for accounting and review services, respectively, of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants.  Any institutional holder of a first mortgage lien on any Unit in the 
Condominium shall be entitled to receive a copy of such annual audited financial statement within 
ninety (90) days following the end of 
costs of any such audit and any accounting expenses shall be expenses of administration.  The 
Association may opt out of the requirements for an annual audit or review by a majority vote of 
the Unit Owners. 

Section 14.2 Fiscal Year.  The fiscal year of the Association shall be an annual period 
commencing on such date as may be initially determined by the Directors.  The commencement 
date of the fiscal year shall be subject to change by the Directors for accounting reasons or other 
good cause. 

Section 14.3 Bank.  Funds of the Association shall be initially deposited in such bank or 
savings association as may be designated by the Directors and shall be withdrawn only upon the 

238



 

37 
41476794.1

check or order of such officers, employees or agents as are designated by resolution of the Board 
of Directors from time to time.  The funds may be invested from time to time in accounts or deposit 
certificates of such bank or savings association as are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation and may also be invested in 
interest-bearing obligations of the United States Government.

ARTICLE 15. 
INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Every Director and officer of the Association shall be indemnified by the Association 
against all expenses and liabilities, including counsel fees, reasonably incurred by or imposed upon 
such Director or officer in connection with any proceeding to which the Director or officer may 
be a party or in which the Director or officer may become involved by reason of being or having 
been a Director or officer of the Association, whether or not such office is held at the time such 
expenses are incurred, except in such cases wherein the Director or officer is adjudged guilty of 
willful or wanton misconduct or gross negligence in the performance of duties; provided that, in 
the event of any claim for reimbursement or indemnification hereunder based upon a settlement 
by the Director or officer seeking such reimbursement or indemnification, the indemnification 
herein shall apply only if the Board of Directors (with the Director seeking reimbursement 
abstaining) approves such settlement and reimbursement as being in the best interest of the 
Association.  The foregoing right of indemnification shall be in addition to and not exclusive of 
all other rights to which such Director or officer may be entitled.  At least ten (10) days prior to 
payment of any indemnification which it has approved, the Board of Directors shall notify all Co-
Owners thereof.  
liability insurance covering acts of the officers and Directors of the Association in such amounts 
as it shall deem appropriate. 

ARTICLE 16. 
AMENDMENTS 

These Bylaws may be amended by the Association or by the Developer in the manner 
provided in the Master Deed, subject to Township approval.  Any amendment to these Bylaws 
shall become effective upon recording in the office of the register of deeds in the county in which 
the Condominium is located.  A copy of each amendment to these Bylaws shall be made available 
to every member of the Association after adoption; provided, however, that any amendment 
adopted in accordance with this Article shall be binding upon all persons who have an interest in 
the Condominium irrespective of whether such persons actually receive a copy of the amendment.  
These Bylaws may not be amended in any manner to eliminate or conflict with any mandatory 
provision of the Act or any applicable law or provision of the Master Deed; nor may they be 
amended to materially reduce or eliminate the rights of any first mortgagees without the consent 
of the mortgagees affected. 

ARTICLE 17. 
COMPLIANCE 

The Association of Co-Owners and all present or future Co-Owners, tenants, or any other 
persons acquiring an interest in or using the facilities of the Project in any manner are subject to 

239



 

38 
41476794.1

and shall comply with the Act, as amended, and the mere acquisition, occupancy or rental of any 
Unit or an interest therein or the utilization of or entry upon the Condominium Premises shall 
signify that the Condominium Documents are accepted and ratified.  In the event the Condominium 
Documents conflict with the provisions of the Act, the Act shall govern.

ARTICLE 18. 
DEFINITIONS 

All terms used herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Master Deed to which 
these Bylaws are attached as an Exhibit or as set forth in the Act.

ARTICLE 19.
REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT 

Any default by a Co-Owner shall entitle the Association or another Co-Owner or Co-
Owners to the following relief: 

Section 19.1 Legal Action.  Failure to comply with any of the terms or provisions of the 
Condominium Documents shall be grounds for relief, which may include, without intending to 
limit the same, an action to recover sums due for damages, injunctive relief, foreclosure of lien (if 
default in payment of assessment) or any combination thereof, and such relief may be sought by 
the Association or, if appropriate, by an aggrieved Co-Owner or Co-Owners. 

Section 19.2 Recovery of Costs.  In any proceeding arising because of an alleged default 
by any Co-Owner, the Association, if successful, shall be entitled to recover the costs of the 

by the court, but in no event shall any Co-Owner be entitled to recover such attorneys  fees. 

Section 19.3 Removal and Abatement.  The violation of any of the provisions of the 
Condominium Documents shall also give the Association or its duly authorized agents the right, 
in addition to the rights set forth above, to enter upon the Common Elements, Limited or General, 
or into any Unit and the improvements thereon, where reasonably necessary, and summarily 
remove and abate, at the expense of the Co-Owner in violation, any structure, thing or condition 
existing or maintained contrary to the provisions of the Condominium Documents.  The 
Association shall have no liability to any Co-Owner arising out of the exercise of its removal and 
abatement power authorized herein. 

Section 19.4 Assessment of Fines.  The violation of any of the provisions of the 
Condominium Documents by any Co-Owner shall be grounds for assessment by the Association, 
acting through its duly constituted Board of Directors, of monetary fines for such violations.  No 
fine may be assessed unless rules and regulations establishing such fine have first been duly 
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Association and notice thereof given to all Co-Owners in 
the same manner as prescribed in Article 9, Section 9.5 of these Bylaws.  Thereafter, fines may be 
assessed only upon notice to the offending Co-Owners as prescribed in said Article 9, Section 9.5, 
and an opportunity for such Co-Owner to appear before the Board no less than seven (7) days from 
the date of the notice and offer evidence in defense of the alleged violation.  All fines duly assessed 
may be collected in the same manner as provided in Article 2 of these Bylaws.  No fine shall be 
levied for the first violation.  No fine shall exceed Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) for the second 

240



 

39 
41476794.1

violation, Fifty Dollars ($50.00) for the third violation or One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for any 
subsequent violation.

Section 19.5 Collection.  The fines levied pursuant to Section 19.4 above shall be 
assessed against the Co-Owner and shall be due and payable together with the regular 
Condominium assessment on the first of the next following month.  Failure to pay the fine will 
subject the Co-Owner to all liabilities set forth in the Condominium Documents. 

Section 19.6 Developer Exempt from Fines.  The Association shall not be entitled to 
assess fines against the Developer during the Construction and Sales Period for any alleged 
violations of the Condominium Documents but shall be rely solely to its other legal remedies for 
redress of such alleged violations. 

Section 19.7 Non-Waiver of Right.  The failure of the association or of any Co-Owner 
to enforce any right, provision, covenant or condition which may be granted by the Condominium 
Documents shall not constitute a waiver of the right of the Association or of any such Co-Owner 
to enforce such right, provision, covenant or condition in the future. 

Section 19.8 Cumulative Rights, Remedies and Privileges.  All rights, remedies and 
privileges granted to the Association or any Co-Owner or Co-Owners pursuant to any terms, 
provisions, covenants or conditions of the Condominium Documents shall be deemed to be 
cumulative and the exercise of any one or more shall not be deemed to constitute an election of 
remedies, nor shall it preclude the party thus exercising the same from exercising such other and 
additional rights, remedies or privileges as may be available to such party at law or in equity. 

Section 19.9 Enforcement of Provisions of Condominium Documents.  A Co-Owner 
may maintain an action against the Association and its officers and Directors to compel such 
persons to enforce the terms and provisions of the Condominium Documents.  A Co-Owner may 
maintain an action against any other Co-Owner for injunctive relief or for damages or any 
combination thereof for noncompliance with the terms and provisions of the Condominium 
Documents or the Act. 

ARTICLE 20. 
RIGHTS RESERVED TO DEVELOPER 

Any or all of the rights and powers granted or reserved to Developer in the Condominium 
Documents or by law, including the right and power to approve or disapprove any act, use, or 
proposed action or any other matter or thing, may be assigned by it to a successor Developer orany 
other entity or to the Association.  Any such assignment or transfer shall be made by appropriate 
instrument in writing in which the assignee or transferee shall join for the purpose of evidencing 
its consent to the acceptance of such powers and rights and such assignee or transferee shall 
thereupon have the same rights and powers as herein given and reserved to Developer.  Any rights 
and powers reserved or retained by Developer or its successors shall expire and terminate, if not 
sooner assigned to the Association, at the conclusion of the Construction and Sales Period as 
defined in Article 3 of the Master Deed.  The immediately preceding sentence dealing with the 
expiration and termination of certain rights and powers granted or reserved to Developer is 

Formatted: Don't keep with next

241



 

40 
41476794.1

control the administration of the Condominium and shall not under any circumstances be construed 
to apply to or cause the termination and expiration of any real property rights granted or reserved 
to Developer or its successors and assigns in the Master Deed or elsewhere (including, but not 
limited to, access easements, utility easements and all other easements created and reserved in such 
documents which shall be governed only in accordance with the terms of their creation or 
reservation and not hereby).

ARTICLE 21. 
SEVERABILITY

In the event that any of the terms, provisions or covenants of these Bylaws or the 
Condominium Documents are held to be partially or wholly invalid or unenforceable for any 
reason whatsoever, such holding shall not affect, alter, modify or impair in any manner whatsoever 
any of the other terms, provisions or covenants of such Condominium Documents or the remaining 
portions of any terms, provisions or covenants held to be partially invalid or unenforceable. 

 

 

242



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

Agenda Item Summary
To: Board of Trustees

From: Tammy Girling, Planning & Zoning Director
Meeting Date: September 6, 2022

Memo Date: August 26, 2022
Subject: PC-22-31, 1112-1128 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone Request

REQUEST
 Board action on PC-2022-31, 1112-1128 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, a request to rezone 1112, 1116, 1120, 1124, 1128, & 
1132 S. Lapeer Road (parcel #09-14-201-005) from Restricted Business (RB) to General Business (GB).   

REASON
The Planning Commission, at their August 17, 2022 meeting, passed a motion to recommend approval of PC-2022-31, 
1112-1128 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, a request to rezone 1112, 1116, 1120, 1124, 1128, and 1132 S. Lapeer Rd. (parcel 09-
14-201-005) from Restricted Business (RB)to General Business (GB).  

PROCESS
The Orion Township Board of Trustees deliberates on PC-2022-31 and approves or denies the first reading.  If the first 
reading is approved, the Clerk advertises for the second reading and possible adoption of the map amendment on 
10/3/2022.

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION)
September 6, 2022

IF MOTION TO APPROVE FIRST READING

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the first reading on September 6, 2022, 
for PC-2022-31, 1112-1128 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, a request to rezone 1112, 1116, 1120, 1124, 1128, & 1132 S. Lapeer 
Road (parcel #09-14-201-005) from Restricted Business (RB) to General Business (GB).  

 OR

IF MOTION TO DENY FIRST READING

Motion to declare the first reading was held and denied September 6, 2022, for PC-2022-31, 1112-1128 S. Lapeer Rd. 
Rezone, a request to rezone 1112, 1116, 1120, 1124, 1128, & 1132 S. Lapeer Road (parcel #09-14-201-005) from 
Restricted Business (RB) to General Business (GB) for the following reasons (insert reasons for denial).

☐ Consent ☒ Pending

243



V5.07-29-21

Charter Township of Orion
2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360
www.oriontownship.org

Phone: (248) 391-0304

October 3, 2022

IF MOTION TO APPROVE SECOND READING:

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and approved the second reading on October 3, 2022, 
for PC-2022-31, 1112-1128 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, a request to rezone 1112, 1116, 1120, 1124, 1128, & 1132 S. Lapeer 
Road (parcel #09-14-201-005) from Restricted Business (RB) to General Business (GB), for the reasons given in the 
recommendation of approval by the Planning Commission on August 17, 2022.

                   * Motion maker to insert any additional reasons 

OR

IF MOTION TO DENY SECOND READING

Motion to declare that the Orion Township Board of Trustees held and denied the second reading on October 3, 2022, 
for PC-2022-31, 1112-1128 S. Lapeer Rd. Rezone, a request to rezone 1112, 1116, 1120, 1124, 1128, & 1132 S. Lapeer 
Road (parcel #09-14-201-005) from Restricted Business (RB) to General Business (GB) for the following reasons:

                    * Motion maker to list reasons 

244



 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF ORION PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
PC-22-31, 1112-1128 LAPEER ROAD REZONE

 REQUEST FROM RESTRICTED BUSINESS (RB) TO GENERAL BUSINESS (GB)
PUBLIC HEARING – WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2022

The Charter Township of Orion Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on Wednesday, August 17, 2022, at 
7:05 p.m. at the Orion Township Municipal Complex Board Room 2323 Joslyn Road, Lake Orion, MI  48360.

PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS PRESENT:
Don Walker, PC Rep to ZBA Derek Brackon, Commissioner
Don Gross, Vice Chairman Joe St. Henry, Secretary
Kim Urbanowski, BOT Rep to PC Jessica Gingell, Commissioner
Scott Reynolds, Chairman
          
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS ABSENT:
None.

CONSULTANTS PRESENT:
Rod Arroyo, (Township Planner) of Giffels Webster
Eric Pietsch, (Township Planner) of Giffels Webster
Mark Landis (Township Engineer) of Orchard, Hiltz, and McCliment, Inc.
Tammy Girling, Township Planning & Zoning Director

OTHERS PRESENT:  
Steve Perlman Pete Alshab
Jason Emerine Darren Naimi
Gary August Jim Whittenberg
Tom Martelle

PC-22-31, 1112-1128 Lapeer Road Rezone, request to rezone 1112, 1116, 1120, 1124, 1128 & 1132 S. 
Lapeer Road (parcel #09-14-201-005) from Restricted Business (RB) to General Business (GB).

Chairman Reynolds asked if the petitioner was present and if they could please state their name and 
address for the record.

Mr. Gary August an attorney for the applicant in this matter which is KN West LLC.  He added that Darren 
Naimi the principal of that LLC is sitting in the audience and can answer any questions.

Mr. August stated that this is a rezoning request for a small strip of property that is on Lapeer Rd. south of 
Clarkston.  It is adjacent to another small strip of property that his client has a contract to purchase as well.  
The one just south of the subject property which is 1140 Lapeer is zoned General Business (GB).  The 
subject property is zoned Restricted Business (RB) and they are seeking a rezoning of the Restricted 
Business (RB) property to a General Business (GB) classification.  The long-term goal is to combine in 
future development those two properties into a larger more useful and better applicable use than what is 
currently there.  Under the Future Land Use Plan, the property that is the subject property is under a 
general commercial classification as is the property just south of that.  They are seeking to make a switch 
from Restricted Business (RB) to General Business (GB) so that those properties can be better utilized 
together.  

Mr. August said that the Planner expressed some issues as to a General Business (GB) classification for a 
property of that small size.  That is why they wanted to call to them that they have the contract in place to 
purchase the property to the south and anticipate that those would be combined.  Obviously, the 
jurisdiction would have site plan approval of how that would be done, and they could address any of the 
issues that the Planner has at that time.

Mr. August believed that the Future Land Use plan no longer has a Restricted Business (RB) classification 
so this would be consistent with that Future Land Use plan.

245



PC-22-31, 1112-1128 Lapeer Rd. Rezone Wednesday, August 17, 2022, Public Hearing

2

Chairman Reynolds said he would open it up to the public.  They will further deliberate on this topic under 
new business 7B where they will read their professional reviewer’s letters into the record, at this point it is 
just the public hearing process.

Chairman Reynolds asked if there was anyone from the public that would like to make any questions or 
comments.  There was not.

Chairman Reynolds noted that there were no citizen letters.

Chairman Reynolds asked if any of the Planning Commissioners would like to make any general 
comments or questions?  There was not.

Chairman Reynolds closed the public hearing at 7:09 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
  

Debra Walton
PC/ZBA Clerk ______________________________
Charter Township of Orion Planning Commission Approval Date

246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



261



262



263



264



265



266



    
 

V5.07-29-21 

 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2323 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Chris Barnett, Township Supervisor 

Meeting Date: September 6, 2022 

Memo Date: August 31, 2022 

Subject: Orion Community Foundation 

 

REQUEST 
It is requested that the Board consider a non-profit to provide benefits exclusively to the Orion Township community.  

REASON 
With the permitting of retail facilities under Ordinance 154, applicants provided a community benefit by voluntarily 
offering a financial donation to a Charitable Organizations servicing the Orion Township Community. To ensure the 
benefits are provided exclusively to the Orion Township Community, it is recommended a 501(c)(3) independent of the 
Township be identified as an acceptable organization for the financial contributions. The intent would be to ensure 
Orion Township residents receive the community benefits created under Ordinance 154. The proposed Charitable 
Organization (501(c)3) would be referred to as the Orion Community Foundation.   In addition to the four permitted 
retail facilities under Ordinance 154, the Orion Community Foundation would also be able to receive donations from 
other individuals or organizations for the purposes of providing community benefit to Orion Township residents. 
 
Other area communities that have a community foundation include the City of Auburn Hills, the City of Pontiac, and the 
Greater Rochester Area.  

PROCESS 
The Township Attorney has provided an opinion attached to this memo which outlines the process to establish the non-
profit 501(c)(3) Orion Community Foundation.  

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
As appropriate following discussion. 

☐ Consent ☒ Pending 

267



OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Orion Township Substation

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary

Time period: 8-08-2022 to 8-14-2022

22-174931             8/08/2022                 12:50AM         F/A Domestic Assault – Arrest  

Deputies were dispatched to the 700 block of Vernita Dr on the report of a domestic assault.  A 
34-year-old Redford resident stated he was at the residence drinking with friends, when he 
made a comment about the female stealing his friend’s puppy. At this point the female 32-year-
old resident became extremely upset and started yelling, she suddenly threw a bottle at him 
striking him in the face. The victim stated that after being struck by the bottle, the female 
turned to her boyfriend a 34-year-old resident and thew her phone at him, missing the 
boyfriend and hitting the wall. The female then ran up to the boyfriend punching him in the 
face, she then grabbed a bottle hitting him in the head. Deputies interviewed all parties and 
based on the information gathered the suspect was placed under arrest for 2 counts of 
Felonious Assault and Domestic Assault; she was transported to Oakland County Jail.  

Calls for service:  304
Felony arrests:     3
Misdemeanor arrests:  3
Accidents:    14

268



22-175238              8/08/2022              12:19PM              Larceny from Vehicle

Deputies responded to the 3000 block of Montclair Dr. for a Larceny report.  A 61-year-old 
resident stated that her vehicles were parked in her driveway on 8/7/22.  When she returned to 
her vehicles on 8/8/2022 she noticed that her purse and her wallet were missing.  Suspects 
unknown. No damage to the vehicle. All information was collected and turned over to 
detectives.  

22-176307           8/09/2022                 4:05PM           Larceny from Vehicle

Deputies received a walk-in complaint at the Orion Substation for a larceny complaint.  A 56-
year-old Clarkston resident stated that his vehicle was parked in his driveway at the 4000 block 
of Fairfield Dr. on 8/7/22.  When he returned to his vehicle on 8/8/2022 he noticed that 
unknown suspects took the cash that was in his glovebox. Suspects unknown. No damage to 
the vehicle. All information was collected and turned over to detectives.  

22-177185           8/10/2022                 3:31 PM           Domestic Assault

Deputies were dispatched to the GM Plant (455 Giddings Road) for a Domestic Assault report.  
A 40-year-old male, resident of Oxford Township and employee of the Plant, was getting a ride 
to work from his fiancé. Prior to getting dropped off at work, a verbal argument between the 
victim’s fiancé and ex-husband took place in the 240 block of Cygnet Circle in Oxford Township.  
The ex-husband, a 32-year-old male, resident of Waterford, followed the couple to the GM 
Plant. The ex-husband then blocked the fiancé’s vehicle with his, exited, and punched the victim 
(passenger) in the face and fled the scene. Deputies attempted to arrest the suspect but were 
unable to locate him.  Charges have been sent to the Oakland County Prosecutors Office for 
review.

22-177653           8/11/2022                 1:37 AM           Homicide 

A 48-year-old man was arrested early today in connection with the fatal assault of a male co-
worker at the GM Assembly plant in Orion Township.  The suspect, whose hometown was not 
immediately known, was taken into custody without incident. He is being housed in the 
Oakland County Jail. Sheriff’s Detectives expect to present the case to prosecutors for possible 
homicide charges on Friday.

Deputies were dispatched to the plant at 455 Giddings Road in Orion Township at 1:37 a.m.
today on the report of an injured person. When they arrived, they found the victim unconscious
and bleeding. Deputies and Orion Township FD performed CPR on the man but could not revive 
him. He was pronounced dead at the scene.  The suspect was found standing in a dock area of 
the plant, not far from where the victim’s body was found. The item used in the slaying was 

269



recovered. The incident and possible motive remain under investigation. *Please reference the 
Sheriff’s Official Statement for further information*

22-177185           8/13/2022                 3:11 AM           Domestic Assault

Deputies were dispatched to the 1500 block of Pleasant View for a Domestic Assault.  The 
victim, a 35-year-old male, stated that his 26-year-old girlfriend punched him in the face.  
Deputies observed injuries to the male and arrested the female for Domestic Assault.  The 
suspect was taken to the Oakland County Jail pending the issuance of criminal charges.

22-179302                     08/13/2022           3:11AM        Operating Under the Influence – Arrest 

Deputies observed a vehicle heading westbound on Brown Rd, as the vehicle approached a red 
light at Baldwin and Brown the vehicle had no taillights and stopped suddenly. Deputies 
conducted a traffic stop and contacted the responsible driver, a 24-year-old Auburn Hills 
resident. It was determined that the driver was under the influence of alcohol.  Deputies 
requested a PBT with the results being .231. The male was subsequently taken to a local 
hospital for a blood draw and then to the Oakland County Jail where he will be released in the 
morning.  Criminal charges will be pending lab results.

22-180111 08/14/2022 6:44AM Domestic Assault Arrest

Deputies responded to the 100 block of Casemer in Orion Township for a domestic assault.  A 
21-year-old resident reported she was involved in an argument with her boyfriend when they 
started pushing each other.  Deputies interviewed both parties, based on statements made by 
both parties, and observations of the deputies, the 19-year-old Orion Township man was placed 
under arrest and lodged at the Oakland County jail for domestic assault.  

Everyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to contact 
the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or our Dispatch 
Center at 248 858-4911 for crimes in-progress. Tipsters can remain anonymous.

270



OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Orion Township Substation

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary

Time period: 8-08-2022 to 8-14-2022

22-174931             8/08/2022                 12:50AM         F/A Domestic Assault – Arrest  

Deputies were dispatched to the 700 block of Vernita Dr on the report of a domestic assault.  A 
34-year-old Redford resident stated he was at the residence drinking with friends, when he 
made a comment about the female stealing his friend’s puppy. At this point the female 32-year-
old resident became extremely upset and started yelling, she suddenly threw a bottle at him 
striking him in the face. The victim stated that after being struck by the bottle, the female 
turned to her boyfriend a 34-year-old resident and thew her phone at him, missing the 
boyfriend and hitting the wall. The female then ran up to the boyfriend punching him in the 
face, she then grabbed a bottle hitting him in the head. Deputies interviewed all parties and 
based on the information gathered the suspect was placed under arrest for 2 counts of 
Felonious Assault and Domestic Assault; she was transported to Oakland County Jail.  

Calls for service:  304
Felony arrests:     3
Misdemeanor arrests:  3
Accidents:    14

271



22-175238              8/08/2022              12:19PM              Larceny from Vehicle

Deputies responded to the 3000 block of Montclair Dr. for a Larceny report.  A 61-year-old 
resident stated that her vehicles were parked in her driveway on 8/7/22.  When she returned to 
her vehicles on 8/8/2022 she noticed that her purse and her wallet were missing.  Suspects 
unknown. No damage to the vehicle. All information was collected and turned over to 
detectives.  

22-176307           8/09/2022                 4:05PM           Larceny from Vehicle

Deputies received a walk-in complaint at the Orion Substation for a larceny complaint.  A 56-
year-old Clarkston resident stated that his vehicle was parked in his driveway at the 4000 block 
of Fairfield Dr. on 8/7/22.  When he returned to his vehicle on 8/8/2022 he noticed that 
unknown suspects took the cash that was in his glovebox. Suspects unknown. No damage to 
the vehicle. All information was collected and turned over to detectives.  

22-177185           8/10/2022                 3:31 PM           Domestic Assault

Deputies were dispatched to the GM Plant (455 Giddings Road) for a Domestic Assault report.  
A 40-year-old male, resident of Oxford Township and employee of the Plant, was getting a ride 
to work from his fiancé. Prior to getting dropped off at work, a verbal argument between the 
victim’s fiancé and ex-husband took place in the 240 block of Cygnet Circle in Oxford Township.  
The ex-husband, a 32-year-old male, resident of Waterford, followed the couple to the GM 
Plant. The ex-husband then blocked the fiancé’s vehicle with his, exited, and punched the victim 
(passenger) in the face and fled the scene. Deputies attempted to arrest the suspect but were 
unable to locate him.  Charges have been sent to the Oakland County Prosecutors Office for 
review.

22-177653           8/11/2022                 1:37 AM           Homicide 

A 48-year-old man was arrested early today in connection with the fatal assault of a male co-
worker at the GM Assembly plant in Orion Township.  The suspect, whose hometown was not 
immediately known, was taken into custody without incident. He is being housed in the 
Oakland County Jail. Sheriff’s Detectives expect to present the case to prosecutors for possible 
homicide charges on Friday.

Deputies were dispatched to the plant at 455 Giddings Road in Orion Township at 1:37 a.m.
today on the report of an injured person. When they arrived, they found the victim unconscious
and bleeding. Deputies and Orion Township FD performed CPR on the man but could not revive 
him. He was pronounced dead at the scene.  The suspect was found standing in a dock area of 
the plant, not far from where the victim’s body was found. The item used in the slaying was 

272



recovered. The incident and possible motive remain under investigation. *Please reference the 
Sheriff’s Official Statement for further information*

22-177185           8/13/2022                 3:11 AM           Domestic Assault

Deputies were dispatched to the 1500 block of Pleasant View for a Domestic Assault.  The 
victim, a 35-year-old male, stated that his 26-year-old girlfriend punched him in the face.  
Deputies observed injuries to the male and arrested the female for Domestic Assault.  The 
suspect was taken to the Oakland County Jail pending the issuance of criminal charges.

22-179302                     08/13/2022           3:11AM        Operating Under the Influence – Arrest 

Deputies observed a vehicle heading westbound on Brown Rd, as the vehicle approached a red 
light at Baldwin and Brown the vehicle had no taillights and stopped suddenly. Deputies 
conducted a traffic stop and contacted the responsible driver, a 24-year-old Auburn Hills 
resident. It was determined that the driver was under the influence of alcohol.  Deputies 
requested a PBT with the results being .231. The male was subsequently taken to a local 
hospital for a blood draw and then to the Oakland County Jail where he will be released in the 
morning.  Criminal charges will be pending lab results.

22-180111 08/14/2022 6:44AM Domestic Assault Arrest

Deputies responded to the 100 block of Casemer in Orion Township for a domestic assault.  A 
21-year-old resident reported she was involved in an argument with her boyfriend when they 
started pushing each other.  Deputies interviewed both parties, based on statements made by 
both parties, and observations of the deputies, the 19-year-old Orion Township man was placed 
under arrest and lodged at the Oakland County jail for domestic assault.  

Everyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to contact 
the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or our Dispatch 
Center at 248 858-4911 for crimes in-progress. Tipsters can remain anonymous.

273



OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Orion Township Substation

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary

Time period: 8-15-2022 to 8-21-2022

22-180111 08/14/2022 6:44AM Domestic Assault Arrest

Deputies responded to the 100 block of Casemer in Orion Township for a domestic assault.  A 
21-year-old resident reported she was involved in an argument with her boyfriend when they 
started pushing each other.  Deputies interviewed both parties, based on statements made by 
both parties, and observations of the deputies, the 19-year-old Orion Township man was placed 
under arrest and lodged at the Oakland County jail for domestic assault.  

UPDATE: The Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office declined to authorize a complaint for 
Domestic Violence. The subject was released from the Oakland County Jail.

22-181104              8/15/2022              3:31PM              Larceny from Vehicle

Deputies received a walk-in complaint at the Orion Twp Substation reference a Larceny report.  
A 46-year-old resident stated that her vehicle was parked in her driveway located at the 3000 
block of High Pointe Ridge Rd  on 8/13/22.  When she returned to her vehicle on 8/14/2022, 

Calls for service:  388
Felony arrests:     2
Misdemeanor arrests: 3
Accidents:    11

274



she noticed that her purse and her wallet were missing.  Suspects unknown.  No damage to the 
vehicle.    All information was collected and turned over to detectives.  

22-181145              8/15/2022          4:20PM              Retail Fraud -Arrest

Deputies were dispatched to Kohls (4872 S Baldwin Road) for a retail fraud in progress.  Kohl’s 
loss prevention notified Deputies that known shop lifters were in the store concealing 
merchandise and removing the security tags.  Deputies located the suspects (35-year-old 
female resident of Sault Saint Marie and 23-year-old female resident of Saginaw outside of the 
store with the stolen goods.  Deputies recovered the merchandise.  Both females were 
transported to Oakland County Jail without incident.  Deputies submitted a warrant to the 
Oakland County Prosecutor for Retail Fraud 1st degree. 

UPDATE:  The Oakland County Prosecutor's Office authorized a complaint against both subjects 
for Retail Fraud-First Degree and Theft Detection Device - Deactivation/Removal.  The warrant 
was sworn to at the 52-3rd District Court in front of Magistrate Balian.  One subject was 
released on personal bond and the other was given a $15,000 10 % C/S Bond.

22-184304 08/19/2022 12:28AM Domestic Assault Arrest

Deputies responded to the 600 block of N. Conklin Dr for a domestic assault.  A 35-year-old 
resident reported she was involved in an argument with her husband when he struck her in the 
face.  Deputies interviewed both parties, based on statements made by both parties, and the 
visible injuries observed by deputies, the 40-year-old Orion Township man was placed under 
arrest and lodged at the Oakland County jail for domestic assault.  

UPDATE: The Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office declined to authorize a complaint for 
Domestic Violence. The subject was released from the Oakland County Jail.

22-184664              8/19/2022          12:06 PM              Mental Health Call

Deputies responded to the 800 block of Markdale Street for a 45-year-old male who had 
attempted to take his own life by intentionally crashing his vehicle.  Deputies assisted the Orion 
Township Fire Department who transported the male to a local hospital for a psychological 
evaluation.  

22-185046              8/19/2022          22:34 PM              Swatting Call

Deputies responded to the 10 block of Hummingbird Drive on the report of a shooting. The 
complainant advised that his father had shot his mother, his sister was a hostage, and his father 
had planted bombs in the mobile home.  Upon arrival, deputies conducted a welfare check on 
the residence's occupants. Deputies determined that the incident was unfounded. This address 
has had numerous similar past incidents.

275



22-185781             8/20/2022                 7:54 PM                 Retail Fraud 1st Degree   

Deputies were dispatched to Dunham’s Sports (1279 S Lapeer Road) for a retail fraud report.  
Deputies met with the manager who stated 2 suspects entered the store and grabbed a 
shopping cart.  The subjects selected a minibike and placed it into the shopping cart.  The 
subjects proceeded past all points of purchase and exited the store.  The suspects loaded the 
minibike into a dark blue ram pickup truck.  All information was collected and turned over to 
detectives.  Investigation continues. 

22-186299                8/21/2022            3:01PM           Retail Fraud  2nd Degree  

Deputies were dispatched to Dunham’s Sports (1279 S Lapeer Road) for a retail fraud report.  
Deputies met with the manager who stated a female entered the store and grabbed a shopping 
cart.  The subjects selected an electric bike placed it into the shopping cart.  The suspect 
proceeded past all points of purchase and exited the store.  The suspect loaded the electric bike 
into a Jeep.  All information was collected and turned over to detectives.  Investigation 
continues.

Everyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to contact 
the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or our Dispatch 
Center at 248 858-4911 for crimes in-progress. Tipsters can remain anonymous.

276



OAKLAND COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Orion Township Substation

Weekly “Calls for Service” Summary

Time period: 8-22-2022 to 8-28-2022

22-186885             8/22/2022               12:01PM         Larceny from Vehicle

Deputies responded to the 3000 block of Baldwin Rd for a Larceny complaint.  A 55-year-old 
Clarkston resident stated that he parked his company truck on 8/5/2022.  When he returned to 
his vehicle on 8/22/2022 he noticed that the catalytic converter was cut off.  Suspects 
unknown.  All information was collected and turned over to auto theft detectives.  Investigation 
continues. 

22-188915          8/24/2022             8:17PM           Domestic Assault – Arrest 

Deputies were dispatched to the 3000 block of Mill Lake Rd for a Domestic Assault report. The 
victim a 42-year-old female of Orion Township received a text from her boyfriend a 46-year-old 
resident stating he was going to kill her dog. When she returned home they argued, he then 
made a motion towards the dog in a threatening manner, then he punched the victim in the 

Calls for service:  391
Felony arrests:     0
Misdemeanor arrests:  2
Accidents:    16

277



face.  Deputies interviewed all parties based on the information gathered the suspect was 
placed under arrest for Domestic Assault and transported to Oakland County Jail.  

UPDATE: The Oakland County Prosecutor’s Office declined to authorize a complaint for 
Domestic Violence.  The subject was released from custody.  

22-188444             8/24/2022               9:46AM         Larceny of Auto Parts

Deputies responded to 339 Clarkston Rd (Plumbing by the Gas Guys) for a Larceny complaint.  
The owner of the business reported that a company truck used for plowing snow was parked in 
the back at the end of winter 2022.  When he went to move the vehicle on 8/24/2022 he 
noticed that the catalytic converter was cut off.  Suspects unknown.  All information was 
collected and turned over to auto theft detectives.  Investigation continues.

22-192185           8/28/2022               8:04PM          Assault and Battery 

Deputies responded to 1172 S Lapeer Rd (Orion Sports Bar) for an assault complaint.  A 43-year-
old resident stated that she was working when three subjects entered the bar and ordered 
drinks.  The victim stated that she noticed they had a dog with them.  When she advised them 
that the dog was not allowed on the premises one of the subjects became extremely upset.  
The suspect, a 38-year-old resident of Leonard went behind the bar and pushed the victim 
causing her to fall to the ground.  All three subjects suddenly left the bar.  Victim refused 
medical attention.  All information was collected and turned over to detectives. 

22-191344             8/28/2022                   5:14PM        Retail Fraud

Deputies responded to 465 Brown Rd (Menards) for a retail fraud report.  An employee stated 
that a male subject entered the store and proceeded to aisle 195, selected three items and 
placed them into a shopping cart.  The suspect then proceeded to return counter in an attempt 
to return the selected items.  When asked for the receipt the subject stated that it must be in 
his vehicle.  The suspect grabbed the items passing all points of purchase making no attempt to 
pay for the items and left the store. All information was collected and turned over to 
detectives.  Investigation continues. 

Everyone with information or crime tips regarding these incidents are encouraged to contact 
the Orion Township Sheriff’s Office Substation at 248 393-0090 for tips, or our Dispatch 
Center at 248 858-4911 for crimes in-progress. Tipsters can remain anonymous.

278



       
  Orion Township Fire Department  

Interoffice Memorandum 
 

Date:   September 1, 2022 

To: Orion Township Board of Trustees          

Subject: Fire Department Bi-Monthly Board Report (August 10th- August 31st) 

• Calls Year to Date: 2369 
• Calls August 10th – August 31st: 223 
• Transports Year to Date: 1244 
• Mutual Aid Given: 1 
• Mutual Aid Received: 0 

 

Special Outside Fire, 1

Overpressure Rupture From Air or Gas (No Fire), 1

Emergency Medical 
Service (EMS) Incident, 

164

Extrication, Rescue, 2

Combustible/Flammable Spills & Leaks, 2

Electrical Wiring/Equipment Problem, 6

Public Service Assistance, 12

Unauthorized Burning, 2

Good Intent Call, Other, 20

Steam, Other Gas Mistaken For Smoke, 2

False Alarm and False Call, Other, 11

Incident Breakdown
August 10, 2022 - August 31, 2022

Total Call Volume: 223

Special Outside Fire Overpressure Rupture From Air or Gas (No Fire)
Emergency Medical Service (EMS) Incident Extrication, Rescue
Combustible/Flammable Spills & Leaks Electrical Wiring/Equipment Problem
Public Service Assistance Unauthorized Burning
Good Intent Call, Other Steam, Other Gas Mistaken For Smoke
False Alarm and False Call, Other

279



    
 

V4.04-08-21 
 

 Charter Township of Orion 
 

2525 Joslyn Rd., Lake Orion MI 48360 
www.oriontownship.org 

Phone: (248) 391-0304 

 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
To: Board of Trustees 

From: Tandem Graves, Accounting Controller 
Meeting Date: August 31, 2022 

Memo Date: September 6, 2022 
Subject: Financial Statements 

 

REQUEST 
Following please find the attached Balance Sheet, Income Statements and Manual Journal Entry Reports.     

RECOMMENDATION (MOTION) 
Board action would be to receive and file the Financial Statements and Manual Journal Entry Reports.. 
 

 

 

☐ Consent ☐ Pending 

280



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 1/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 100 POOLED CASH FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

4,612,021.29 CHECKING - POOLED CASH - CHASE BANK100-000-001.000
20,861.46 CHECKING - FSA - CHASE BANK100-000-001.025
9,053.55 SAVINGS - W/S COLLECTIONS - OXFORD BANK100-000-003.004

215,787.83 SAVINGS - INDIANWOOD LK BOARD - CHASE 100-000-003.710
13,731,404.19 INVESTMENTS-GEN-OAK COUNTY POOLED100-000-017.005
5,831,332.95 INVESTMENTS-W/S-OAKLAND COUNTY 100-000-017.006

15,077,007.19 INVESTMENTS-GEN- HUNTINGTON BANK POOLED100-000-017.010
11,170,341.47 INVESTMENT-W/S-HUNTINGTON BANK100-000-017.014

50,667,809.93 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

12,274,466.89 DUE TO GENERAL FUND100-000-214.101
3,520,273.85 DUE TO FIRE FUND100-000-214.206
5,300,780.86 DUE TO SHERIFF FUND100-000-214.207
3,393,641.94 DUE TO PARK & RECREATION FUND100-000-214.208

52,981.27 DUE TO TOMMY'S LAKE FUND100-000-214.220
25,144.96 DUE TO ELKHORN LAKE FUND100-000-214.230
4,010.85 DUE TO LONG LAKE WATER QUALITY FUND100-000-214.232
5,758.18 DUE TO LAKE ORION CANALS FUND100-000-214.240

14,711.62 DUE TO LAKE ORION WATER FUND100-000-214.241
71,040.12 DUE TO CIA FUND100-000-214.247

3,158,075.02 DUE TO BUILDING DEPT FUND100-000-214.249
49,901.47 DUE TO SQUARE LAKE LEVEL FUND100-000-214.250
41,993.91 DUE TO SQUARE LAKE ALGAE FUND100-000-214.251
52,028.74 DUE TO SQ LK PUMP FUND100-000-214.252

142.55 DUE TO BUNNY RUN FUND100-000-214.254
5,516.79 DUE TO MILL LAKE GARDENS CHLORIDE FUND100-000-214.255
2,718.60 DUE TO MILL LAKE FUND100-000-214.261
2,914.89 DUE TO GOLFVIEW FUND100-000-214.264
3,782.42 DUE TO SUNSET HILLS FUND100-000-214.265
1,488.69 DUE TO HOLLIDAY FUND100-000-214.266
5,950.31 DUE TO BUNNY RUN ROAD FUND100-000-214.274

154,365.47 DUE TO MUNICIPAL BLDG DEBT FUND100-000-214.370
172,574.86 DUE TO GEN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND100-000-214.401
757,959.10 DUE TO SAFETY PATHS FUND100-000-214.402

1,529,668.12 DUE TO HOST FEE FUND100-000-214.417
654,018.84 DUE TO MUNICIPAL BUILDING FUND100-000-214.470

19,320,856.75 DUE TO WATER/SEWER FUND100-000-214.592
(127,764.97)DUE TO GARBAGE/RUBBISH COLLECTION FUND100-000-214.596

3,020.00 DUE TO GENERAL TRUST & AGENCY FUND100-000-214.701
215,787.83 DUE TO INDIANWOOD LK BOARD FUND100-000-214.710

50,667,809.93 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

0.00 Total Fund Balance

0.00 Beginning Fund Balance

0.00 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
0.00 Ending Fund Balance

50,667,809.93 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

281



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 2/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 101 GENERAL FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

6,018.05 CD - CONTRACTOR PERF GUAR DEPOSITS101-000-001.006
(0.15)CASH OVER OR SHORT101-000-004.000
(1.69)CASH OVER OR SHORT101-000-004.703

12,274,466.89 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS101-000-010.000
400.00 PETTY CASH101-000-018.000
150.00 PETTY CASH - DRAWER #1101-000-018.001
150.00 PETTY CASH - DRAWER #2101-000-018.002

25,000.00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE101-000-040.000
1,829.69 TAX RECEIVABLE - DELQ  PERSONAL PROPERTY101-000-040.002

37,190.00 TAX RECEIVABLE - CURRENT LEVY101-000-040.003
62,985.00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - INVOICED MR101-000-040.004
2,031.67 TAX RECEIVABLE - DELQ PPT - DDA101-000-040.010

16,689.17 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED101-000-056.000
181,740.56 ASSETS HELD AT SELF-INSURANCE-MRMMA101-000-059.000
85,355.25 DUE FROM CIA FUND101-000-084.247

435.98 DUE FROM TAX FUND101-000-084.703
38,268.79 PREPAID EXPENSES101-000-123.000
(1,382.93)PREPAID EXPENSES - POSTAGE101-000-123.001
11,703.17 SPECIAL ASSMT RECEIVABLE - LONG LAKE101-000-196.268
1,488.57 SPECIAL ASSMT RECEIVABLE - INDIAN RIDGE101-000-196.269

165,752.54 SPECIAL ASSMT RECEIVABLE - CENTRAL 101-000-196.273

12,910,270.56 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

(4,813.97)ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 101-000-202.002
7,818.25 DUE TO LIBRARY FUND101-000-214.271
1,527.93 DUE TO DDA101-000-224.000

231.02 DUE TO NOTA101-000-224.004
21,770.77 DUE TO STATE OF MICHIGAN - PAYROLL TAXES101-000-228.000
8,505.00 DUE TO PEHP101-000-231.002
1,171.08 DUE TO LIFE & ACCIDENT INSURANCE101-000-231.003
1,971.00 DUE TO UNION DUES101-000-231.004
4,223.08 DUE TO FLEXIBLE SPENDING ACCOUNT101-000-231.006

54.00 DUE TO FIREFIGHTERS WELFARE ACCOUNT 101-000-231.008
6,603.47 DUE TO EMPLOYEE WELFARE ACCOUNT101-000-231.009

44,833.71 DUE TO EMPLOYEE - HEALTH ALLOWNC OPT OUT101-000-231.014
679.20 DUE TO HEALTH INSURANCE RIDERS101-000-231.018
130.42 DUE TO LIFELOCK101-000-231.019
140.80 DUE TO LEGAL SHIELD101-000-231.020

63,620.74 DUE TO HEALTH INSURANCE 101-000-231.021
24,720.10 DUE TO DENTAL/VISION101-000-231.022
78,646.84 DUE TO EMPLOYEE - PARAMEDIC STIPEND101-000-232.001
8,600.00 MICHIGAN TAX TRIBUNAL PAYABLE101-000-276.000

3,941,966.50 DEPOSIT - CONTRACTOR'S - P/Z101-000-283.000
15,713.16 DEPOSITS - CONTRACTOR - RESTRICTED 101-000-283.001
631,136.15 BONDS - SOIL EROSION P/Z101-000-283.002
724,524.70 ESCROW - PLANNING & ENGINEERING 101-000-284.004
24,320.60 DEFERRED REVENUE - WELLS FARGO BUYOUT101-000-339.001
178,944.28 DEFERRED REVENUE LT SAD101-000-339.002
37,200.00 DEFERRED REVENUE - UNEARNED - CELL TOWER101-000-339.003
25,000.00 DEFERRED REVENUE - GRANTS (NON-FEDERAL)101-000-339.004
2,325.31 DEFERRED REVENUE - DELINQUENT PPT101-000-360.001

5,851,564.14 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

164,750.00 FUND BALANCE - COMMUNITY IMPRV PLAN 101-000-385.001
3,116,151.22 FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED101-000-390.000

36,885.86 FUND BALANCE - NONSPENDABLE PREPAIDS101-000-390.002
178,937.66 FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED SAD RECEIVABLE101-000-393.000

3,496,724.74 Total Fund Balance

282



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 3/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 101 GENERAL FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

0.00 Fund Balance Adjustments

3,496,724.74 Beginning Fund Balance

3,561,981.68 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures

7,058,706.42 Ending Fund Balance
12,910,270.56 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

283



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 4/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 206 FIRE FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

3,520,273.85 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS206-000-010.000
200.00 PETTY CASH - FIRE DEPT206-000-018.206

(1,112.00)ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE206-000-040.000
5,731.25 TAX RECEIVABLE - DELQ  PERSONAL PROPERTY206-000-040.002
4,672.24 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - INVOICED MR206-000-040.004
7,208.11 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED206-000-056.000

638,593.93 PREPAID EXPENSES206-000-123.000

4,175,567.38 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

(55.29)ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 206-000-202.002
27,500.00 MICHIGAN TAX TRIBUNAL PAYABLE206-000-276.000
6,958.28 DEFERRED REVENUE - DELINQUENT PPT206-000-360.001

34,402.99 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

132,995.44 FUND BALANCE - COMMUNITY  IMPRV PLAN 206-000-385.001
638,593.93 FUND BALANCE - NONSPENDABLE PREPAIDS206-000-390.002

1,257,194.40 FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED206-000-393.000

2,028,783.77 Total Fund Balance

2,028,783.77 Beginning Fund Balance

2,112,380.62 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
4,141,164.39 Ending Fund Balance
4,175,567.38 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

284



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 5/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 207 SHERIFF FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

5,300,780.86 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS207-000-010.000
100.00 PETTY CASH - POLICE207-000-018.207

6,886.54 TAX RECEIVABLE - DELQ  PERSONAL PROPERTY207-000-040.002
3,213.00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - INVOICED MR207-000-040.004
9,666.15 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED207-000-056.000

5,320,646.55 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

32,000.00 MICHIGAN TAX TRIBUNAL PAYABLE207-000-276.000
8,318.91 DEFERRED REVENUE - DELINQUENT PPT207-000-360.001

40,318.91 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

59,356.09 FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED-LIQUOR LICENSE207-000-392.000
906,292.11 FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED207-000-393.000

965,648.20 Total Fund Balance

965,648.20 Beginning Fund Balance

4,314,679.44 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
5,280,327.64 Ending Fund Balance
5,320,646.55 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

285



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 6/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 208 PARKS/RECREATION FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

3,393,641.94 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS208-000-010.000
100.00 PETTY CASH - PARKS REC208-000-018.672
200.00 CASH DRAWER - PARKS REC208-000-018.751

1,095.70 TAX RECEIVABLE - DELQ  PERSONAL PROPERTY208-000-040.002
7,500.00 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - INVOICED MR208-000-040.004
3,571.77 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED208-000-056.000

10,161.46 PREPAID EXPENSES208-000-123.000

3,416,270.87 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

18,308.20 RETAINAGE PAYABLE208-000-202.001
1.29 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 208-000-202.002

9,500.00 MICHIGAN TAX TRIBUNAL PAYABLE208-000-276.000
11,320.70 DEPOSIT - PARK RENTAL208-000-291.000
14,875.00 DUE TO ORION.EVENTS208-000-299.006
1,360.00 DEPOSIT - LEAGUE FORFEIT FEES208-000-299.010
1,497.04 DEFERRED REVENUE - DELINQUENT PPT208-000-360.001

56,862.23 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

2,136,541.71 FUND BALANCE - COMMUNITY  IMPRV PLAN 208-000-385.001
(166,108.16)FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED208-000-390.000

10,161.46 FUND BALANCE - NONSPENDABLE PREPAIDS208-000-390.002
17,748.24 FUND BALANCE - MIRACLE LEAGUE MAINTENANC208-000-390.004
166,108.16 FUND BALANCE -  CONTRACTS208-000-390.005
879,919.90 FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED208-000-393.000

3,044,371.31 Total Fund Balance

3,044,371.31 Beginning Fund Balance

315,037.33 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
3,359,408.64 Ending Fund Balance
3,416,270.87 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

286



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 7/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 247 CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

71,040.12 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS247-000-010.000
94.55 TAX RECEIVABLE - DELQ  PERSONAL PROPERTY247-000-040.002

605.75 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED247-000-056.000

71,740.42 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

22,858.14 RETAINAGE PAYABLE247-000-202.001
85,355.25 DUE TO GENERAL FUND247-000-214.101

6,937,000.00 NOTE PAYABLE BY CIA247-000-300.247
(3,182.16)DEFERRED REVENUE - TAXES - CURRENT LEVY247-000-339.000
2,978.28 DEFERRED REVENUE - DELINQUENT PPT247-000-360.001

7,045,009.51 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

(6,636,298.49)FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED247-000-390.000

(6,636,298.49)Total Fund Balance

(6,636,298.49)Beginning Fund Balance

(336,970.60)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
(6,973,269.09)Ending Fund Balance

71,740.42 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

287



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 8/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 249 BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

3,158,075.02 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS249-000-010.000
4,343.51 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED249-000-056.000

208.00 PREPAID EXPENSES249-000-123.000

3,162,626.53 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

29,360.00 BONDS -TEMPORARY COO - BUILDING DEPT249-000-283.005
78,177.78 BONDS -BUILDING - HISTORIC - BLDG DEPT249-000-283.006
76,190.00 BONDS - RESIDENTIAL SOIL EROSION - BLDG249-000-284.005
4,400.00 BONDS - HOMEOWNER BONDS-BUILINDG DEPT249-000-290.000

81,450.00 BONDS - BUILDING - BUILDING DEPT249-000-290.001

269,577.78 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

2,160,515.25 FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED249-000-390.000
208.00 FUND BALANCE - NONSPENDABLE PREPAIDS249-000-390.002

2,160,723.25 Total Fund Balance

0.00 Fund Balance Adjustments

2,160,723.25 Beginning Fund Balance

732,325.50 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures

2,893,048.75 Ending Fund Balance
3,162,626.53 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

288



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 9/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 370 MUNICIPAL BUILDING DEBT FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

154,365.47 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTM370-000-010.000

154,365.47 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

926,502.97 FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED370-000-390.000

926,502.97 Total Fund Balance

926,502.97 Beginning Fund Balance

(772,137.50)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
154,365.47 Ending Fund Balance
154,365.47 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

289



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 10/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 401 GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

172,574.86 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS401-000-010.000
2,428.57 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - INVOICED MR401-000-040.004

239,468.40 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - VETERANS MEMORIAL401-000-042.000
(239,468.40)ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - VETERANS MEMORIAL401-000-042.001

528.90 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED401-000-056.000

175,532.33 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

358,557.64 FUND BALANCE -  COMMITTED401-000-390.003

358,557.64 Total Fund Balance

358,557.64 Beginning Fund Balance

(183,025.31)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
175,532.33 Ending Fund Balance
175,532.33 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

290



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 11/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 402 SAFETY PATH

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

757,959.10 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS402-000-010.000
499.51 TAX RECEIVABLE - DELQ  PERSONAL PROPERTY402-000-040.002

1,116.92 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED402-000-056.000

759,575.53 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

2,400.00 MICHIGAN TAX TRIBUNAL PAYABLE402-000-276.000
591.48 DEFERRED REVENUE - DELINQUENT PPT402-000-360.001

2,991.48 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

404,638.22 FUND BALANCE-RESTRICTED402-000-390.001

404,638.22 Total Fund Balance

404,638.22 Beginning Fund Balance

351,945.83 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
756,584.05 Ending Fund Balance
759,575.53 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

291



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 12/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 417 HOST FEE

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

1,529,668.12 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS417-000-010.000
1,746.77 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED417-000-056.000

1,531,414.89 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

1,135,877.62 FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED417-000-390.000

1,135,877.62 Total Fund Balance

1,135,877.62 Beginning Fund Balance

395,537.27 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
1,531,414.89 Ending Fund Balance
1,531,414.89 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

292



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 13/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 470 MUNICIPAL BUILDING FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

654,018.84 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS470-000-010.000
3,075.90 OAK CTY INVMT FOR MUNI COMPLEX470-000-017.007

657,094.74 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

54,438.23 RETAINAGE PAYABLE470-000-202.001
29,148.91 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 470-000-202.002

83,587.14 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

(318,963.60)FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED470-000-390.000
318,963.60 FUND BALANCE - ASSIGNED470-000-390.004

1,877,928.31 FUND BALANCE - RESTRICTED470-000-393.000

1,877,928.31 Total Fund Balance

1,877,928.31 Beginning Fund Balance

(1,304,420.71)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
573,507.60 Ending Fund Balance
657,094.74 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

293



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 14/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 592 WATER & SEWER

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

(1.05)CASH OVER OR SHORT592-000-004.000
19,320,856.75 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS592-000-010.000
1,175,702.35 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE592-000-040.000

20,537.94 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - INVOICED MR592-000-040.004
46,825.24 INTEREST RECEIVABLE-ACCRUED592-000-056.000
6,867.00 PREPAID EXPENSES592-000-123.000

355,893.13 LAND592-000-130.000
197,854.50 LAND IMPROVEMENTS - DEPRECIATING592-000-132.000

(155,836.50)ACCUMULATED DEPREC - LAND IMPROVEMENTS592-000-133.000
5,067,350.50 BUILDINGS, ADDITIONS & IMPROVEMENTS592-000-136.000
(847,186.04)ACCUMULATED DEPREC - BUILDINGS,ADDS,IMPR592-000-137.000
925,562.63 VEHICLES592-000-142.000

(722,404.10)ACCUMULATED DEPREC - VEHICLES592-000-143.000
1,066,011.65 EQUIPMENT592-000-144.000
(769,966.28)ACCUMULATED DEPREC - EQUIPMENT592-000-145.000

58,835,506.15 WATER SYSTEM592-000-148.000
(26,773,719.15)ACCUMULATED DEPREC - WATER SYSTEM592-000-149.000
51,919,385.88 SEWER SYSTEM592-000-150.000

(29,618,750.45)ACCUMULATED DEPREC - SEWER SYSTEM592-000-151.000
4,598,332.49 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS592-000-158.000
1,879,374.96 RESTRICTED ASSETS AT OAK CTY592-000-164.000

90,551.48 LONG TERM DEBT - SEWER592-000-197.000
4,826.00 LONG TERM DEBT - OTHER592-000-197.001

114,544.19 LONG TERM DEBT - WATER592-000-197.002
6,498,549.70 LONG TERM DEBT - CIA592-000-197.247

(47,716.81)LONG TERM DEBT - INTEREST - SEWER592-000-198.000
(60,649.13)LONG TERM DEBT - INTEREST - WATER592-000-198.001

93,128,303.03 Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

11,000.00 RETAINAGE PAYABLE592-000-202.001
18,175.17 ACCRUED INTEREST PAYABLE592-000-256.000
13,100.00 POOL & HYDRANT BONDS592-000-282.000
135,000.00 BONDS - CONTRACTOR - WATER/SEWER592-000-283.004

3,000.00 ESCROW - WATER/SEWER 592-000-284.002
(160.00)ROW PERMITS592-000-284.003

311,919.00 BONDS PAYABLE-SRF - US BANK592-000-300.000
466,969.34 BONDS PAYABLE - OMIDD 2010A592-000-300.001
162,178.60 BONDS PAYABLE - OMIDD 2010B592-000-300.002

2,190,292.04 BONDS PAYABLE - OMID 2013A SEG 3592-000-300.003
16,121.32 DEFERRED REVENUE - UNEARNED592-000-339.003

3,327,595.47 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

60,685,408.00 NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS592-000-391.000
1,585,120.83 RETAINED EARNINGS-RESTRICTED CAP PROJECT592-000-395.000

25,894,031.11 RETAINED EARNINGS - UNRESTRICTED592-000-395.003
293,945.82 RETAINED EARNINGS-RESTR COMM IMPRV PLAN592-000-395.004

88,458,505.76 Total Fund Balance

0.00 Fund Balance Adjustments

88,458,505.76 Beginning Fund Balance

1,342,201.80 Net of Revenues VS Expenditures

89,800,707.56 Ending Fund Balance
93,128,303.03 Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

294



BALANCE SHEET FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 15/15Page:08/31/2022 02:40 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

Period Ending 08/31/2022

                                     Fund 596 GARBAGE/RUBBISH COLLECTION FUND

BalanceDescriptionGL Number

*** Assets ***

(127,764.97)EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS596-000-010.000
2,769.66 PREPAID EXPENSES596-000-123.000

(124,995.31)Total Assets

*** Liabilities ***

0.00 Total Liabilities

*** Fund Balance ***

79,247.79 REATAINED EARNINGS - UNASSIGNED596-000-390.000

79,247.79 Total Fund Balance

79,247.79 Beginning Fund Balance

(204,243.10)Net of Revenues VS Expenditures
(124,995.31)Ending Fund Balance
(124,995.31)Total Liabilities And Fund Balance

295



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 1/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 87.40 7,843.06 54,393.94 62,237.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE - SAD PAYOFF101-000-402.000
0.00 99.25 12,746.03 1,684,540.97 1,697,287.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES101-000-403.000
0.00 100.00 (13,751.56)13,751.56 0.00 LOCAL COMM STABILIZATION - PPT SHARE101-000-403.001
0.00 100.00 (9,525.06)9,525.06 0.00 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILT)101-000-432.000
0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX (IFT)101-000-437.000
0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 MARIHUANA EXCISE TAX101-000-439.000
0.00 143.04 (11,190.00)37,190.00 26,000.00 PENALTY - TRANSFER AFFIDAVIT101-000-440.000
0.00 77.16 2,968.72 10,031.28 13,000.00 PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON TAXES101-000-445.000
0.00 100.00 915.64 (915.64)0.00 PRIOR YEAR TAX ADJ'S & COLLECTIONS101-000-449.000
0.00 100.00 (2,000.00)2,000.00 0.00 APPLICATION FEE - LIQUOR LICENSE 101-000-460.001
0.00 100.00 (60,000.00)60,000.00 0.00 APPLICATION FEE - MARIHUANA101-000-479.000
0.00 23.07 269,250.00 80,750.00 350,000.00 LICENSE - MARIHUANA ANNUAL FEE101-000-479.001
0.00 135.20 (352.00)1,352.00 1,000.00 TRAILER TAX101-000-480.000
0.00 75.69 13,370.00 41,630.00 55,000.00 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE- P & Z101-000-487.000
0.00 100.00 (300.00)300.00 0.00 PERMITS - RECREATIONAL VEHICLE 101-000-488.000
0.00 99.08 156.00 16,844.00 17,000.00 FEDERAL GRANT - CDBG 101-000-510.000
0.00 71.43 40,000.00 100,000.00 140,000.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM UNITS - TRI-PARTY101-000-511.000
0.00 100.00 (1,924,520.34)1,924,520.34 0.00 FEDERAL GRANTS - GENERAL GOVERNMENT101-000-528.000
0.00 72.93 844,095.00 2,273,991.00 3,118,086.00 STATE GRANTS - STATE REVENUE SHARING101-000-574.000
0.00 56.76 216.20 283.80 500.00 ORDINANCE FINES & COSTS101-000-605.000
0.00 129.16 (1,457.78)6,457.78 5,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES101-000-607.000
0.00 116.25 (17,870.31)127,870.31 110,000.00 CHARGES FOR TAX COLLECTION SERVICES101-000-609.000
0.00 85.47 33,990.20 199,980.80 233,971.00 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE INCOME101-000-614.000
0.00 77.19 1,140.26 3,859.74 5,000.00 USE FEE - MIDWEST RECYCLING101-000-620.001
0.00 113.16 (26,317.68)226,317.68 200,000.00 PC REVIEW FEES-ENGINEERING101-000-626.000
0.00 138.44 (19,221.21)69,221.21 50,000.00 PC REVIEW FEES - PLANNERS101-000-626.001
0.00 119.38 (387.50)2,387.50 2,000.00 PC REVIEW FEES - LEGAL101-000-626.002
0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES - BUILDING DEMO101-000-633.000
0.00 90.50 4,750.01 45,249.99 50,000.00 INTEREST EARNED101-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 (22.89)22.89 0.00 INTEREST-TAXES101-000-664.001
0.00 360.98 (1,304.90)1,804.90 500.00 INTEREST - LONG LAKE WOOD SAD101-000-664.268
0.00 64.14 143.43 256.57 400.00 INTEREST - INDIAN RIDGE SAD101-000-664.269
0.00 108.68 (769.16)9,629.16 8,860.00 INTEREST - CENTRAL DRIVE101-000-664.273
0.00 100.00 121,360.73 (121,360.73)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES101-000-665.000
0.00 66.67 161,372.28 322,744.72 484,117.00 RENTS - INTERNAL TO GENERAL FUND101-000-668.000
0.00 21.70 34,635.00 9,600.00 44,235.00 RENTS - EXTERNAL - TOWER101-000-668.001
0.00 100.00 (25,737.25)25,737.25 0.00 RENTS-EXTERNAL-VET MEM101-000-668.002
0.00 100.00 (21,102.00)21,102.00 0.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS 101-000-673.000
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS101-000-674.000
0.00 100.00 (2,355.63)2,355.63 0.00 SPECIAL EVENTS-VETERAN'S MEMORIAL 5K101-000-674.102
0.00 0.00 120,000.00 0.00 120,000.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM GCI FUND101-000-676.401
0.00 0.00 86,103.00 0.00 86,103.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM HOST FEE FUND101-000-676.417
0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 PRIVATE GRANTS101-000-677.000
0.00 148.99 (3,674.60)11,174.60 7,500.00 REINBURSEMENT -MMRMA REFUND DISTRIBUTION101-000-687.000
0.00 101.46 (72.94)5,072.94 5,000.00 MISC INCOME101-000-694.000
0.00 80.54 194.60 805.40 1,000.00 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE - SPECIAL ASSMT SETUP101-000-694.001
0.00 100.00 0.00 5,793.00 5,793.00 COMMUNITYWIDE PROGRAM - WEST NILE 101-000-694.005
0.00 0.13 24,966.32 33.68 25,000.00 COMMUNITYWIDE PROGRAM - NO HAZ101-000-694.010
0.00 100.00 (51.12)51.12 0.00 MISC-GENERAL ACTIVITIES101-000-694.248
0.00 100.00 (359.47)359.47 0.00 MISC-TREASURER DEPT101-000-694.253
0.00 0.00 27,000.00 0.00 27,000.00 MISC-ELECTION DEPT101-000-694.262
0.00 61.71 30,248.86 48,751.14 79,000.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTION - ORION LIVING ADS101-000-695.022

0.00 102.97 (211,378.06)7,335,467.06 7,124,089.00 Total Dept 000

296



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 2/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

0.00 102.97 (211,378.06)7,335,467.06 7,124,089.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 101 - BOARD OF TRUSTEES

0.00 49.50 4,080.00 4,000.00 8,080.00 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-101-703.000
0.00 47.40 13,092.00 11,800.00 24,892.00 PER DIEM FEES101-101-705.000
0.00 63.03 813.43 1,386.57 2,200.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-101-715.000
0.00 72.60 54.80 145.20 200.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-101-717.000
0.00 2.80 486.00 14.00 500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-101-740.000
0.00 58.20 186.00 259.00 445.00 DATA PROCESSING101-101-807.000
0.00 15.40 422.99 77.01 500.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-101-851.000
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 MILEAGE101-101-861.000
0.00 58.90 904.12 1,295.88 2,200.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-101-863.000
0.00 79.49 922.96 3,577.04 4,500.00 DUES & MISC101-101-956.000
0.00 37.36 1,378.00 822.00 2,200.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-101-957.000

0.00 50.04 23,340.30 23,376.70 46,717.00 Total Dept 101 - BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Dept 171 - SUPERVISOR'S DEPARTMENT
0.00 65.36 70,959.36 133,907.64 204,867.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-171-702.000
0.00 57.65 49,538.15 67,433.85 116,972.00 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-171-703.000
0.00 34.90 3,839.62 2,058.38 5,898.00 OVERTIME101-171-713.000
0.00 63.75 9,911.67 17,434.33 27,346.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-171-715.000
0.00 76.45 15,795.95 51,273.05 67,069.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-171-716.000
0.00 66.67 1,680.00 3,360.00 5,040.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-171-716.002
0.00 73.50 26.50 73.50 100.00 FSA ADMIN FEES101-171-716.004
0.00 66.19 270.46 529.54 800.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-171-717.000
0.00 61.26 17,780.48 28,119.52 45,900.00 PENSION101-171-718.000
0.00 70.37 641.84 1,524.16 2,166.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-171-719.000
0.00 65.38 1,223.68 2,311.32 3,535.00 DEPUTY WAGES101-171-720.000
0.00 99.07 54.92 5,845.08 5,900.00 LONGEVITY101-171-723.000
0.00 63.79 2,659.60 4,684.40 7,344.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-171-724.000
0.00 45.21 821.83 678.17 1,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-171-727.000
0.00 59.00 492.03 707.97 1,200.00 POSTAGE101-171-728.000
0.00 10.00 270.00 30.00 300.00 PRINTED FORMS101-171-730.000
0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-171-732.000
0.00 91.26 305.82 3,194.18 3,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-171-740.000
0.00 86.02 1,594.52 9,812.48 11,407.00 DATA PROCESSING101-171-807.000
0.00 16.44 3,634.73 715.27 4,350.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-171-851.000
0.00 49.63 763.06 751.94 1,515.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-171-851.001
0.00 29.22 2,477.46 1,022.54 3,500.00 MILEAGE101-171-861.000
0.00 99.44 39.37 6,960.63 7,000.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-171-863.000
0.00 97.26 32.86 1,167.14 1,200.00 SPECIAL EVENTS-STATE OF THE TWP101-171-881.100
0.00 100.00 946.00 (946.00)0.00 SPECIAL EVENTS-KICKBALL TOURNAMENT101-171-881.101
0.00 99.99 0.17 1,554.83 1,555.00 SPECIAL EVENTS-VETERAN'S MEMORIAL 5K101-171-881.102
0.00 82.46 886.62 4,168.38 5,055.00 DUES & MISC101-171-956.000
0.00 95.23 291.68 5,818.32 6,110.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-171-957.000

0.00 65.09 189,938.38 354,190.62 544,129.00 Total Dept 171 - SUPERVISOR'S DEPARTMENT

Dept 212 - BUDGET DEPARTMENT
0.00 65.38 29,423.09 55,576.91 85,000.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-212-702.000
0.00 68.16 2,164.99 4,635.01 6,800.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-212-715.000

297



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 3/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 79.42 4,099.67 15,821.33 19,921.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-212-716.000
0.00 66.67 420.00 840.00 1,260.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-212-716.002
0.00 65.30 17.35 32.65 50.00 FSA ADMIN FEES101-212-716.004
0.00 62.80 78.87 133.13 212.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-212-717.000
0.00 65.38 4,119.27 7,780.73 11,900.00 PENSION101-212-718.000
0.00 62.61 299.12 500.88 800.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-212-719.000
0.00 63.79 664.90 1,171.10 1,836.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-212-724.000
0.00 17.67 823.34 176.66 1,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-212-727.000
0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-212-732.000
0.00 49.48 1,515.64 1,484.36 3,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-212-740.000
0.00 94.07 257.84 4,092.16 4,350.00 DATA PROCESSING101-212-807.000
0.00 18.71 609.69 140.31 750.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-212-851.000
0.00 33.42 499.36 250.64 750.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-212-851.001
0.00 3.69 1,155.77 44.23 1,200.00 MILEAGE101-212-861.000
0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-212-863.000
0.00 13.66 820.24 129.76 950.00 DUES & MISC101-212-956.000
0.00 11.50 4,425.00 575.00 5,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-212-957.000

0.00 63.19 54,394.14 93,384.86 147,779.00 Total Dept 212 - BUDGET DEPARTMENT

Dept 215 - CLERK'S DEPARTMENT
0.00 65.39 31,358.46 59,238.54 90,597.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-215-702.000
0.00 57.74 131,885.92 180,207.82 312,093.74 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-215-703.000
0.00 91.73 454.88 5,045.12 5,500.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS101-215-704.000
0.00 62.30 6,944.83 11,475.14 18,419.97 OVERTIME101-215-713.000
0.00 57.42 15,240.85 20,554.41 35,795.26 SOC SEC/MED 101-215-715.000
0.00 52.69 29,532.98 32,890.02 62,423.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-215-716.000
0.00 83.33 1,666.60 8,333.40 10,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE101-215-716.001
0.00 38.89 4,620.00 2,940.00 7,560.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-215-716.002
0.00 60.38 99.05 150.95 250.00 FSA ADMIN FEES101-215-716.004
0.00 57.77 506.76 693.24 1,200.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-215-717.000
0.00 52.54 26,753.93 29,618.39 56,372.32 PENSION101-215-718.000
0.00 61.63 1,266.22 2,033.78 3,300.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-215-719.000
0.00 65.38 1,223.68 2,311.32 3,535.00 DEPUTY WAGES101-215-720.000
0.00 59.53 4,458.40 6,557.60 11,016.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-215-724.000
0.00 71.77 705.71 1,794.29 2,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-215-727.000
0.00 20.63 1,587.39 412.61 2,000.00 POSTAGE101-215-728.000
0.00 4.33 1,435.00 65.00 1,500.00 PRINTED FORMS101-215-730.000
0.00 93.46 372.74 5,327.26 5,700.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-215-740.000

1,150.00 134.69 (19,700.00)75,340.00 56,790.00 AUDIT FEES101-215-803.000
0.00 71.81 845.66 2,154.34 3,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-215-806.000

12,150.00 74.30 10,357.56 17,792.44 40,300.00 DATA PROCESSING101-215-807.000
0.00 57.97 714.50 985.50 1,700.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-215-851.000
0.00 83.55 98.71 501.29 600.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-215-851.001
0.00 10.02 899.84 100.16 1,000.00 MILEAGE101-215-861.000
0.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-215-863.000
0.00 57.29 11,105.17 14,894.83 26,000.00 LEGAL NOTICE101-215-901.000
0.00 97.21 132.29 4,617.71 4,750.00 DUES & MISC101-215-956.000
0.00 41.33 29,626.89 20,873.11 50,500.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-215-957.000

13,300.00 63.68 296,694.02 506,908.27 816,902.29 Total Dept 215 - CLERK'S DEPARTMENT

Dept 228 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT
0.00 65.38 23,538.54 44,461.46 68,000.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-228-702.000

298



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 4/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 96.03 31.73 768.27 800.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS101-228-704.000
0.00 69.80 1,642.97 3,797.03 5,440.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-228-715.000
0.00 75.74 3,711.10 11,588.90 15,300.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-228-716.000
0.00 66.67 420.00 840.00 1,260.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-228-716.002
0.00 20.35 79.65 20.35 100.00 FSA ADMIN FEES101-228-716.004
0.00 66.57 66.87 133.13 200.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-228-717.000
0.00 66.51 3,187.89 6,332.11 9,520.00 PENSION101-228-718.000
0.00 72.32 193.79 506.21 700.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-228-719.000
0.00 63.79 664.90 1,171.10 1,836.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-228-724.000
0.00 36.90 189.31 110.69 300.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-228-727.000
0.00 0.00 2,640.00 0.00 2,640.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-228-732.000
0.00 52.10 2,139.73 2,327.39 4,467.12 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-228-740.000
0.00 65.75 1,027.39 1,972.61 3,000.00 SMALL TOOLS101-228-741.000
0.00 98.38 115.04 6,984.46 7,099.50 DATA PROCESSING101-228-807.000
0.00 82.45 3,860.32 18,139.68 22,000.00 COMPUTER CONSULTANT101-228-820.000
0.00 10.55 1,189.69 140.31 1,330.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-228-851.000
0.00 49.72 284.08 280.92 565.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-228-851.001
0.00 2.81 971.92 28.08 1,000.00 MILEAGE101-228-861.000
0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-228-863.000
0.00 41.11 530.03 369.97 900.00 DUES & MISC101-228-956.000
0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-228-957.000
0.00 92.00 479.91 5,520.09 6,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT101-228-977.000

0.00 66.16 53,964.86 105,492.76 159,457.62 Total Dept 228 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT

Dept 247 - BOARD OF REVIEW
0.00 51.67 725.00 775.00 1,500.00 PER DIEM FEES101-247-705.000
0.00 15.94 100.87 19.13 120.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-247-715.000
0.00 45.96 54.04 45.96 100.00 DUES & MISC101-247-956.000
0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-247-957.000

0.00 46.16 979.91 840.09 1,820.00 Total Dept 247 - BOARD OF REVIEW

Dept 248 - GENERAL GOV'T ACTIVITIES
0.00 17.03 16,593.82 3,406.18 20,000.00 WORKMEN'S COMP101-248-722.000
0.00 47.11 11,054.53 9,845.47 20,900.00 POSTAGE101-248-728.000
0.00 0.00 625.00 0.00 625.00 PRINTED FORMS101-248-730.000

53,000.00 74.51 39,134.72 61,365.28 153,500.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-248-806.000
0.00 48.07 10,281.29 9,516.71 19,798.00 DATA PROCESSING101-248-807.000
0.00 0.00 2,140.00 0.00 2,140.00 WEB SITE/INTERNET101-248-807.001
0.00 50.81 34,682.10 35,817.90 70,500.00 NEWSLETTER101-248-812.000
0.00 38.36 1,895.40 1,179.60 3,075.00 ADVERTISING101-248-902.000
0.00 100.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00)0.00 IBNR INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE101-248-917.000
0.00 100.00 486.00 (486.00)0.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT101-248-936.000
0.00 91.97 1,687.20 19,312.80 21,000.00 DUES & MISC101-248-956.000
0.00 50.00 950.00 950.00 1,900.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-248-957.000
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 TAX TRIBUNALS101-248-964.003
0.00 0.00 136,000.00 0.00 136,000.00 CONTRIBUTION TO PARK & RECREATION FUND101-248-965.208
0.00 0.00 350,000.00 0.00 350,000.00 CONTRIBUTION TO CIA FUND101-248-965.247
0.00 100.00 0.00 1,759.85 1,759.85 CONTRIB SSH & SSH1 RD MTCE FUND101-248-965.265
0.00 0.00 484,117.00 0.00 484,117.00 CONTRIBUTION TO MUNICIPAL DEBT FUND101-248-965.370
0.00 0.00 11,750.00 0.00 11,750.00 CONTRIBUTION TO GARBAGE/RUBBISH FUND FUN101-248-965.596

299



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 5/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

53,000.00 14.84 1,105,397.06 139,667.79 1,298,064.85 Total Dept 248 - GENERAL GOV'T ACTIVITIES

Dept 253 - TREASURER'S DEPARTMENT
0.00 65.39 31,358.46 59,238.54 90,597.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-253-702.000
0.00 57.73 82,286.57 112,375.45 194,662.02 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-253-703.000
0.00 25.44 4,026.40 1,373.60 5,400.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS101-253-704.000
0.00 2.84 15,995.86 467.14 16,463.00 OVERTIME101-253-713.000
0.00 56.24 11,718.50 15,063.38 26,781.88 SOC SEC/MED 101-253-715.000
0.00 78.53 11,836.43 43,282.57 55,119.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-253-716.000
0.00 66.67 1,666.64 3,333.36 5,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE101-253-716.001
0.00 66.67 1,680.00 3,360.00 5,040.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-253-716.002
0.00 73.50 13.25 36.75 50.00 FSA ADMIN FEES101-253-716.004
0.00 66.32 269.41 530.59 800.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-253-717.000
0.00 52.97 21,478.77 24,192.78 45,671.55 PENSION101-253-718.000
0.00 71.01 637.81 1,562.19 2,200.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-253-719.000
0.00 65.38 1,223.68 2,311.32 3,535.00 DEPUTY WAGES101-253-720.000
0.00 26.43 19,990.18 7,179.85 27,170.03 LONGEVITY101-253-723.000
0.00 63.79 2,659.60 4,684.40 7,344.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-253-724.000
0.00 27.57 1,810.81 689.19 2,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-253-727.000
0.00 51.79 7,713.27 8,286.73 16,000.00 POSTAGE101-253-728.000
0.00 45.34 5,193.11 4,306.89 9,500.00 PRINTED FORMS101-253-730.000
0.00 0.00 3,700.00 0.00 3,700.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-253-732.000
0.00 22.30 777.02 222.98 1,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-253-740.000
0.00 59.98 4,201.85 6,298.15 10,500.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-253-806.000
0.00 40.70 5,159.09 3,540.91 8,700.00 DATA PROCESSING101-253-807.000
0.00 49.79 502.06 497.94 1,000.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-253-851.000
0.00 12.07 3,077.63 422.37 3,500.00 MILEAGE101-253-861.000
0.00 24.19 2,274.28 725.72 3,000.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-253-863.000
0.00 76.30 474.08 1,525.92 2,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT101-253-936.000
0.00 40.38 2,951.22 1,998.78 4,950.00 DUES & MISC101-253-956.000
0.00 62.60 2,617.75 4,382.25 7,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-253-957.000
0.00 17.47 15,681.25 3,318.75 19,000.00 BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES101-253-958.000

0.00 54.52 262,974.98 315,208.50 578,183.48 Total Dept 253 - TREASURER'S DEPARTMENT

Dept 257 - ASSESSING DEPARTMENT
0.00 2.40 29,484.67 724.50 30,209.17 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-257-703.000
0.00 0.00 3,021.62 0.00 3,021.62 OVERTIME101-257-713.000
0.00 2.08 2,603.64 55.42 2,659.06 SOC SEC/MED 101-257-715.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 1.97 1.97 FSA ADMIN FEES101-257-716.004
0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-257-727.000
0.00 95.46 317.79 6,682.21 7,000.00 POSTAGE101-257-728.000
0.00 0.00 2,640.00 0.00 2,640.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-257-732.000
0.00 20.97 1,185.41 314.59 1,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-257-740.000
0.00 98.29 4,542.31 260,457.69 265,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-257-806.000
0.00 8.96 1,210.79 119.21 1,330.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-257-851.000
0.00 0.00 198.03 0.00 198.03 DUES & MISC101-257-956.000
0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-257-957.000

0.00 85.53 45,404.26 268,355.59 313,759.85 Total Dept 257 - ASSESSING DEPARTMENT

Dept 262 - ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT
0.00 37.17 18,849.15 11,150.85 30,000.00 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-262-703.000
0.00 43.51 33,892.00 26,108.00 60,000.00 PER DIEM FEES101-262-705.000

300



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 6/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 34.31 3,284.37 1,715.63 5,000.00 OVERTIME101-262-713.000
0.00 26.49 2,205.33 794.67 3,000.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-262-715.000
0.00 36.33 22,285.84 12,714.16 35,000.00 POSTAGE101-262-728.000
0.00 18.87 12,980.06 3,019.94 16,000.00 PRINTED FORMS101-262-730.000
0.00 97.88 487.49 22,512.51 23,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-262-740.000
0.00 47.54 10,492.50 9,507.50 20,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-262-806.000
0.00 49.54 504.63 495.37 1,000.00 MILEAGE101-262-861.000
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-262-863.000
0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 LEGAL NOTICE101-262-901.000
0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT101-262-936.000
0.00 35.40 3,876.00 2,124.00 6,000.00 RENT/UTILITIES TO GENERAL FUND101-262-941.000
0.00 40.26 1,194.87 805.13 2,000.00 DUES & MISC101-262-956.000
0.00 42.04 1,449.01 1,050.99 2,500.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-262-957.000

0.00 42.69 123,501.25 91,998.75 215,500.00 Total Dept 262 - ELECTIONS DEPARTMENT

Dept 265 - FACILITIES & GROUNDS DEPARTMENT
0.00 65.41 20,264.55 38,315.45 58,580.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-265-702.000
0.00 55.62 85,394.11 107,014.25 192,408.36 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-265-703.000
0.00 39.85 3,007.73 1,992.27 5,000.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS101-265-704.000
0.00 13.65 6,253.10 988.54 7,241.64 OVERTIME101-265-713.000
0.00 55.13 9,878.93 12,140.07 22,019.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-265-715.000
0.00 47.66 26,901.33 24,493.67 51,395.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-265-716.000
0.00 83.33 1,666.60 8,333.40 10,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE101-265-716.001
0.00 53.33 2,940.00 3,360.00 6,300.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-265-716.002
0.00 59.40 406.02 593.98 1,000.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-265-717.000
0.00 51.82 18,228.58 19,603.92 37,832.50 PENSION101-265-718.000
0.00 67.95 900.06 1,907.94 2,808.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-265-719.000
0.00 57.60 3,892.60 5,287.40 9,180.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-265-724.000
0.00 29.92 350.40 149.60 500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-265-727.000
0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 POSTAGE101-265-728.000
0.00 0.00 900.00 0.00 900.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-265-732.000
0.00 8.46 16,065.27 1,484.73 17,550.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000
0.00 75.93 2,021.47 6,378.53 8,400.00 SMALL TOOLS101-265-741.000
0.00 33.60 332.01 167.99 500.00 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES101-265-775.000
0.00 64.60 88.50 161.50 250.00 DATA PROCESSING101-265-807.000
0.00 30.79 276.83 123.17 400.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-265-851.000
0.00 96.40 46.75 1,253.25 1,300.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-265-851.001
0.00 0.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 MILEAGE101-265-861.000
0.00 0.00 1,750.00 0.00 1,750.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-265-863.000
0.00 28.85 355.77 144.23 500.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-VEHICLES101-265-935.000
0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL101-265-940.000
0.00 13.23 12,398.52 1,890.48 14,289.00 DUES & MISC101-265-956.000
0.00 3.00 5,820.00 180.00 6,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-265-957.000
0.00 16.84 33,326.00 6,749.00 40,075.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT101-265-977.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 105,711.00 105,711.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES101-265-978.000

0.00 57.78 254,565.13 348,424.37 602,989.50 Total Dept 265 - FACILITIES & GROUNDS DEPARTMENT

Dept 266 - ATTORNEY DEPARTMENT
0.00 30.72 242,489.50 107,510.50 350,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES101-266-802.000
0.00 78.52 12,890.00 47,110.00 60,000.00 RETAINER/PROSECUTION FEES101-266-802.001
0.00 70.79 8,763.00 21,237.00 30,000.00 LEGAL TAX TRIBUNALS101-266-802.002
0.00 44.79 16,563.00 13,437.00 30,000.00 LEGAL - LABOR101-266-802.003

301



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 7/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 40.28 280,705.50 189,294.50 470,000.00 Total Dept 266 - ATTORNEY DEPARTMENT

Dept 267 - TWP HALL-BLDG/GROUNDS DEPARTMENT
0.00 44.37 3,337.91 2,662.09 6,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-267-727.000
0.00 54.30 1,371.00 1,629.00 3,000.00 PRINTED FORMS101-267-730.000
0.00 73.49 6,626.85 18,373.15 25,000.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-267-732.000
0.00 71.43 571.35 1,428.65 2,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-267-740.000
0.00 105.69 (454.93)8,454.93 8,000.00 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES101-267-775.000
0.00 3.20 4,840.00 160.00 5,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-267-806.000
0.00 48.79 9,172.50 8,740.50 17,913.00 DATA PROCESSING101-267-807.000
0.00 60.60 4,696.09 7,223.91 11,920.00 WEB SITE/INTERNET101-267-807.001
0.00 54.81 4,519.36 5,480.64 10,000.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-267-851.000
0.00 193.14 (12,853.50)26,653.50 13,800.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE101-267-910.000
0.00 41.16 21,713.50 15,186.50 36,900.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE101-267-911.000
0.00 101.52 (379.00)25,279.00 24,900.00 ERRORS & OMISSION101-267-913.000
0.00 14.27 9,259.00 1,541.00 10,800.00 AUTO INSURANCE101-267-914.000
0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 IBNR INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE101-267-917.000
0.00 71.83 11,833.13 30,166.87 42,000.00 ELECTRIC - TOWNSHIP HALL101-267-920.000
0.00 122.40 (4,704.68)25,704.68 21,000.00 NATURAL GAS - TOWNSHIP HALL101-267-921.000
0.00 24.84 4,885.57 1,614.43 6,500.00 WATER - TOWNSHIP HALL101-267-922.000
0.00 31.92 68.08 31.92 100.00 SEWER - TOWNSHIP HALL101-267-923.000
0.00 98.06 312.79 15,847.21 16,160.00 REPAIRS & MAINT - TOWNSHIP HALL101-267-930.000
0.00 58.33 6,383.54 8,937.46 15,321.00 CUSTODIAL SERVICES101-267-930.001
0.00 65.72 5,142.45 9,857.55 15,000.00 GROUNDS MAINT - TOWNSHIP HALL101-267-934.000
0.00 52.64 4,228.39 4,699.26 8,927.65 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT - TWP HALL101-267-936.000
0.00 100.00 (1,425.27)1,425.27 0.00 EMPLOYEE CONSUMER GOODS 101-267-956.003
0.00 90.90 556.69 5,563.31 6,120.00 COFFEE & WATER SERVICE101-267-956.004

0.00 63.60 129,700.82 226,660.83 356,361.65 Total Dept 267 - TWP HALL-BLDG/GROUNDS DEPARTMENT

Dept 270 - HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
0.00 65.38 27,692.36 52,307.64 80,000.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-270-702.000
0.00 61.77 2,446.96 3,953.04 6,400.00 SOC SEC/MED 101-270-715.000
0.00 66.67 1,666.64 3,333.36 5,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE101-270-716.001
0.00 66.67 420.00 840.00 1,260.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-270-716.002
0.00 18.45 163.10 36.90 200.00 FSA ADMIN FEES101-270-716.004
0.00 66.57 66.87 133.13 200.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-270-717.000
0.00 65.38 3,876.91 7,323.09 11,200.00 PENSION101-270-718.000
0.00 66.61 251.12 500.88 752.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-270-719.000
0.00 63.79 664.90 1,171.10 1,836.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-270-724.000
0.00 3.40 483.01 16.99 500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-270-727.000
0.00 85.14 726.93 4,164.44 4,891.37 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-270-740.000
0.00 24.33 4,540.00 1,460.00 6,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-270-806.000
0.00 64.03 2,662.04 4,737.96 7,400.00 DATA PROCESSING101-270-807.000
0.00 23.39 459.69 140.31 600.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-270-851.000
0.00 50.13 249.36 250.64 500.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-270-851.001
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 MILEAGE101-270-861.000
0.00 0.52 12,159.05 62.95 12,222.00 DUES & MISC101-270-956.000
0.00 42.98 16,135.35 12,164.65 28,300.00 EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT101-270-956.001
0.00 1.30 4,935.00 65.00 5,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-270-957.000

0.00 53.64 80,099.29 92,662.08 172,761.37 Total Dept 270 - HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

302



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 8/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures
Dept 400 - ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

0.00 63.93 33,570.04 59,494.35 93,064.39 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-400-703.000
0.00 4.47 2,207.85 103.39 2,311.24 OVERTIME101-400-713.000
0.00 53.13 4,026.57 4,563.72 8,590.29 SOC SEC/MED 101-400-715.000
0.00 45.15 5,463.23 4,497.77 9,961.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-400-716.000
0.00 66.67 1,666.64 3,333.36 5,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE101-400-716.001
0.00 66.67 630.00 1,260.00 1,890.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-400-716.002
0.00 44.44 166.69 133.31 300.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-400-717.000
0.00 55.24 6,415.27 7,917.24 14,332.51 PENSION101-400-718.000
0.00 71.71 282.07 714.93 997.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-400-719.000
0.00 63.79 997.35 1,756.65 2,754.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-400-724.000
0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-400-727.000
0.00 0.00 400.00 0.00 400.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-400-740.000
0.00 0.00 37,500.00 0.00 37,500.00 BUILDING DEMOLITION101-400-778.000
0.00 53.04 1,174.00 1,326.00 2,500.00 ATTORNEY FEES101-400-802.000
0.00 90.75 416.34 4,083.66 4,500.00 LEGAL-DEMOLITION/CONDEMNATION101-400-802.004
0.00 13.50 432.50 67.50 500.00 DATA PROCESSING101-400-807.000
0.00 10.84 980.79 119.21 1,100.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-400-851.000
0.00 78.01 263.83 936.17 1,200.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-400-851.001
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 MILEAGE101-400-861.000
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-400-863.000
0.00 31.35 686.51 313.49 1,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-VEHICLES101-400-935.000
0.00 34.76 8,481.07 4,518.93 13,000.00 AUTO LEASING101-400-935.001
0.00 96.41 140.00 3,760.00 3,900.00 DUES & MISC101-400-956.000
0.00 25.85 741.50 258.50 1,000.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-400-957.000

0.00 47.93 107,742.25 99,158.18 206,900.43 Total Dept 400 - ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

Dept 446 - STREETS DEPARTMENT
0.00 80.57 1,602.75 6,647.25 8,250.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-446-806.000
0.00 0.00 3,325.00 0.00 3,325.00 ADVERTISING101-446-902.000
0.00 0.00 600.00 0.00 600.00 ELECTRIC - INDIANWOOD ROUNDABOUT101-446-920.901
0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 ELECTRIC - BALDWIN/WALDON ROUNDABOUT101-446-920.902
0.00 31.88 817.41 382.59 1,200.00 ELECTRIC - BALDWIN/MAYBEE ROUNDABOUT101-446-920.903
0.00 11.63 8,837.46 1,162.54 10,000.00 ELECTRIC - BALDWIN FOUNTAIN101-446-920.904
0.00 40.45 714.56 485.44 1,200.00 ELECTRIC - BALDWIN/GREGORY ROUNDABOUT101-446-920.905
0.00 19.48 966.27 233.73 1,200.00 ELECTRIC - BALDWIN/JUDAH ROUNDABOUT 4404101-446-920.906
0.00 8.82 3,647.01 352.99 4,000.00 ELECTRIC-BALDWIN/JUDAH ROUNDABOUT 4408101-446-920.907
0.00 33.12 334.42 165.58 500.00 ELECTRIC - BALDWIN/JUDAH ROUNDABOUT 4410101-446-920.908
0.00 51.40 8,748.75 9,251.25 18,000.00 BALDWIN STREETLIGHTS101-446-920.909
0.00 10.63 3,217.34 382.66 3,600.00 WATER - BALDWIN/WALDON ROUNDABOUT101-446-922.902
0.00 13.06 5,216.63 783.37 6,000.00 WATER - BALDWIN/MAYBEE ROUNDABOUT101-446-922.903
0.00 14.34 6,167.54 1,032.46 7,200.00 WATER - BALDWIN FOUNTAIN101-446-922.904
0.00 7.02 3,347.30 252.70 3,600.00 WATER - BALDWIN/GREGORY ROUNDABOUT101-446-922.905
0.00 21.66 235.02 64.98 300.00 WATER - BALDWIN/JUDAH ROUNDABOUT101-446-922.906
0.00 11.24 6,213.02 786.98 7,000.00 WATER-BALDWIN/MORGAN IRRIGATION101-446-922.909
0.00 7.22 185.56 14.44 200.00 WATER - DRAGON PARK101-446-922.910
0.00 86.64 4,141.14 26,858.86 31,000.00 STREET LIGHTS101-446-924.000

46,465.50 76.18 35,189.22 66,095.28 147,750.00 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE101-446-934.000
0.00 53.57 130,000.00 150,000.00 280,000.00 TRI PARTY ROADS101-446-937.001
0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 REPAIRS-ROADS101-446-938.001

32,312.19 100.00 0.00 32,312.20 64,624.39 CHLORIDE101-446-938.002
90,997.75 107.19 (6,472.39)5,474.64 90,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY- GROUNDS101-446-974.000

303



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 9/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

169,775.44 66.48 238,234.01 302,739.94 710,749.39 Total Dept 446 - STREETS DEPARTMENT

Dept 721 - PLANNING & ZONING
0.00 65.38 30,807.64 58,192.36 89,000.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES101-721-702.000
0.00 54.42 70,607.39 84,312.44 154,919.83 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES101-721-703.000
0.00 1.70 14,246.02 245.86 14,491.88 OVERTIME101-721-713.000
0.00 59.76 8,351.99 12,401.67 20,753.66 SOC SEC/MED 101-721-715.000
0.00 66.63 19,278.87 38,501.13 57,780.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE101-721-716.000
0.00 50.00 2,520.00 2,520.00 5,040.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN101-721-716.002
0.00 48.10 415.20 384.80 800.00 LIFE INSURANCE101-721-717.000
0.00 49.79 18,235.52 18,082.38 36,317.90 PENSION101-721-718.000
0.00 55.03 1,124.21 1,375.79 2,500.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE101-721-719.000
0.00 47.84 3,830.70 3,513.30 7,344.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE101-721-724.000
0.00 15.25 847.50 152.50 1,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-721-727.000
0.00 47.27 1,581.78 1,418.22 3,000.00 POSTAGE101-721-728.000
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 PRINTED FORMS101-721-730.000
0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE101-721-732.000
0.00 0.00 265.30 0.00 265.30 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-721-740.000
0.00 83.43 12,960.35 65,239.65 78,200.00 PLANNING CONSULTANT101-721-804.000
0.00 23.23 18,885.00 5,714.00 24,599.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-721-806.000
0.00 32.42 7,563.33 3,627.67 11,191.00 DATA PROCESSING101-721-807.000
0.00 83.52 32,951.63 167,048.37 200,000.00 ENGINEERING CONSULTANT101-721-810.001
0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 ENGINEERING LEGAL REVIEW101-721-810.002
0.00 16.71 2,482.06 497.94 2,980.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES101-721-851.000
0.00 63.57 711.77 1,242.23 1,954.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-721-851.001
0.00 6.44 187.13 12.87 200.00 MILEAGE101-721-861.000
0.00 0.00 460.00 0.00 460.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-721-863.000
0.00 64.23 472.06 847.64 1,319.70 DUES & MISC101-721-956.000
0.00 1.17 2,945.00 35.00 2,980.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING101-721-957.000

0.00 64.18 259,730.45 465,365.82 725,096.27 Total Dept 721 - PLANNING & ZONING

Dept 722 - ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
0.00 45.17 6,645.00 5,475.00 12,120.00 PER DIEM FEES-ZBA101-722-705.000
0.00 40.22 579.84 390.16 970.00 SOC SEC/MED 8%-ZBA101-722-715.000
0.00 0.00 700.00 0.00 700.00 MILEAGE-ZBA101-722-861.000
0.00 0.00 1,840.00 0.00 1,840.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE-ZBA101-722-863.000
0.00 0.00 900.00 0.00 900.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING-ZBA101-722-957.000

0.00 35.48 10,664.84 5,865.16 16,530.00 Total Dept 722 - ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

Dept 723 - PLANNING COMMISSION
0.00 49.50 11,060.00 10,840.00 21,900.00 PER DIEM FEES-PLANNING COMMISSION101-723-705.000
0.00 41.88 1,018.35 733.65 1,752.00 SOC SEC/MED 8%-PLANNING COMMISSION101-723-715.000
0.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 MILEAGE-PLANNING COMMISSION101-723-861.000
0.00 0.00 3,220.00 0.00 3,220.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE-PLANNING COMMISSION101-723-863.000
0.00 13.33 2,275.00 350.00 2,625.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING-PLANNING COMMISSION101-723-957.000

0.00 38.84 18,773.35 11,923.65 30,697.00 Total Dept 723 - PLANNING COMMISSION

Dept 747 - COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAMS
0.00 59.55 3,802.75 5,597.25 9,400.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP-STORMWATER101-747-806.000

304



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 10/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures

0.00 0.00 65,000.00 0.00 65,000.00 NOTA PAYMENT101-747-808.000
0.00 31.57 4,105.67 1,894.33 6,000.00 HOMEBOUND MILEAGE101-747-861.001
0.00 75.51 1,680.00 5,180.00 6,860.00 EDUCATION & MEMBERSHIP FEES101-747-959.000
0.00 68.48 3,152.20 6,847.80 10,000.00 DRAIN @ LARGE101-747-962.000
0.00 16.50 835.00 165.00 1,000.00 CLEAN SWEEP101-747-964.004
0.00 100.00 0.00 5,793.00 5,793.00 WEST NILE VIRUS101-747-964.005
0.00 2.78 5,347.00 153.00 5,500.00 INVASIVE SPECIES101-747-964.009
0.00 0.00 93,000.00 0.00 93,000.00 HAZARDOUS WASTE DAY101-747-964.010
0.00 100.00 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 YOUTH ASSISTANCE/NOCC101-747-969.002
0.00 99.96 1.96 5,048.04 5,050.00 LAKE ORION SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS101-747-969.008
0.00 53.85 3,000.00 3,500.00 6,500.00 WELFARE SERVICES - MEALS ON WHEELS101-747-969.022
0.00 73.23 6,156.00 16,844.00 23,000.00 NOTA - OPERATIONAL EXPENSE101-747-969.024
0.00 99.93 25.00 35,944.50 35,969.50 STORMWATER DRAINS101-747-976.002

0.00 41.49 186,105.58 131,966.92 318,072.50 Total Dept 747 - COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAMS

236,075.44 51.85 3,722,910.38 3,773,485.38 7,732,471.20 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(236,075.44)546.68 (3,934,288.44)3,561,981.68 (608,382.20)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

236,075.44 51.85 3,722,910.38 3,773,485.38 7,732,471.20 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 102.97 (211,378.06)7,335,467.06 7,124,089.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:

305



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 11/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 206 - FIRE FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 99.24 43,733.36 5,737,308.64 5,781,042.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES206-000-403.000
0.00 100.00 (32,442.15)32,442.15 0.00 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILT)206-000-432.000
0.00 100.00 (350.79)350.79 0.00 PRIOR YEAR TAX ADJ'S & COLLECTIONS206-000-449.000
0.00 8.00 1,380.00 120.00 1,500.00 FIRE PREVENTION MISC206-000-482.000
0.00 100.00 (7,625.00)7,625.00 0.00 FIRE ALARM & SUPPRESSION PERMIT FEES206-000-485.000
0.00 2.43 126,674.39 3,160.81 129,835.20 FEDERAL GRANT - PUBLIC SAFETY206-000-505.000
0.00 100.00 (5,300.00)5,300.00 0.00 ORD 162 INSPECTIONS (FOOD TRUCK)206-000-634.001
0.00 100.00 (4,250.00)4,250.00 0.00 ORD 154 INSPECTIONS (MARIHUANA)206-000-634.002
0.00 75.72 151,519.16 472,480.84 624,000.00 AMBULANCE TRANSPORT FEE206-000-638.000
0.00 90.00 150.00 1,350.00 1,500.00 ORDINANCE FINES & COSTS - FIRE 206-000-660.000
0.00 53.23 18,707.08 21,292.92 40,000.00 INTEREST EARNED206-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 56,148.26 (56,148.26)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES206-000-665.000
0.00 100.00 (90,000.00)90,000.00 0.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS 206-000-673.000
0.00 100.00 (1,400.00)1,400.00 0.00 PRIVATE GRANTS206-000-677.000
0.00 91.74 1,239.26 13,760.74 15,000.00 REINBURSEMENT -MMRMA REFUND DISTRIBUTION206-000-687.000
0.00 100.00 (5,739.63)5,739.63 0.00 INSURANCE RECOVERY - MMRMA CLAIMS206-000-690.000
0.00 219.25 (2,384.95)4,384.95 2,000.00 REIMBURSEMENT- COST RECOVERY 206-000-693.002
0.00 120.70 (207.00)1,207.00 1,000.00 MISC INCOME206-000-694.000

0.00 96.21 249,851.99 6,346,025.21 6,595,877.20 Total Dept 000

0.00 96.21 249,851.99 6,346,025.21 6,595,877.20 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 336 - FIRE DEPARTMENT

0.00 34.85 128,346.18 68,653.82 197,000.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES206-336-702.000
0.00 57.88 904,558.18 1,243,125.82 2,147,684.00 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES206-336-703.000
0.00 53.05 76,301.01 86,198.99 162,500.00 PARAMEDIC STIPEND206-336-703.001
0.00 4.55 59,728.24 2,847.76 62,576.00 FIRE HOLIDAY PAY206-336-703.002
0.00 98.72 255.54 19,744.46 20,000.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS206-336-704.000
0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 EMERGENCY/MITIGATION RESPONSE206-336-706.005
0.00 67.80 19,322.06 40,677.94 60,000.00 PT TIME FIREFIGHTER COMPENSATION206-336-707.000
0.00 34.74 65,647.82 34,941.18 100,589.00 FIRE DISPATCH206-336-708.000
0.00 65.54 89,214.44 169,707.56 258,922.00 OVERTIME206-336-713.000
0.00 49.59 74,575.12 73,349.88 147,925.00 OVERTIME-FLSA206-336-713.001
0.00 55.50 106,495.40 132,833.60 239,329.00 SOC SEC/MED 206-336-715.000
0.00 65.98 231,782.05 449,551.95 681,334.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE206-336-716.000
0.00 98.49 83.29 5,416.71 5,500.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE (OPT OUT)206-336-716.001
0.00 55.98 21,630.00 27,510.00 49,140.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN206-336-716.002
0.00 82.36 105.85 494.15 600.00 FSA ADMIN FEES206-336-716.004
0.00 49.96 3,903.13 3,896.87 7,800.00 LIFE INSURANCE206-336-717.000
0.00 52.24 168,324.87 184,081.13 352,406.00 PENSION206-336-718.000
0.00 21.99 14,432.21 4,067.79 18,500.00 PENSION-PART TIME206-336-718.001
0.00 48.08 13,119.28 12,147.72 25,267.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE206-336-719.000
0.00 24.88 80,231.69 26,568.31 106,800.00 WORKMEN'S COMP206-336-722.000
0.00 59.54 29,006.90 42,693.10 71,700.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE206-336-724.000
0.00 30.26 2,441.06 1,058.94 3,500.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES206-336-727.000
0.00 53.52 46.48 53.52 100.00 POSTAGE206-336-728.000
0.00 85.76 498.44 3,001.56 3,500.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE206-336-732.000
0.00 43.33 12,011.98 9,185.98 21,197.96 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.000
0.00 36.51 1,000.00 575.00 1,575.00 EMERG/MITIGATION RESP SUPPLIE206-336-740.005
0.00 19.42 4,029.05 970.95 5,000.00 SMALL TOOLS206-336-741.000
0.00 28.41 33,717.21 13,382.79 47,100.00 PROTECTIVE CLOTHING206-336-742.000

306



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 12/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 206 - FIRE FUND
Expenditures

0.00 51.63 25,035.27 26,719.73 51,755.00 MEDICAL SUPPLIES206-336-743.000
0.00 81.88 362.50 1,637.50 2,000.00 EMS OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-743.001
0.00 68.86 2,491.32 5,508.68 8,000.00 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES206-336-775.000
0.00 79.92 8,033.50 31,966.50 40,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES206-336-802.000
0.00 90.33 290.00 2,710.00 3,000.00 AUDIT FEES206-336-803.000
0.00 58.08 24,190.16 33,509.84 57,700.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP206-336-806.000
0.00 18.92 28,444.69 6,638.31 35,083.00 DATA PROCESSING206-336-807.000
0.00 45.96 4,323.04 3,676.96 8,000.00 WEB SITE/INTERNET206-336-807.001
0.00 97.20 159.60 5,540.40 5,700.00 COMPUTER CONSULTANT206-336-820.000
0.00 22.18 4,669.42 1,330.58 6,000.00 FIRE PREVENTION SUPPLIES206-336-821.000
0.00 53.07 1,830.44 2,069.56 3,900.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES206-336-851.000
0.00 37.03 6,423.40 3,776.60 10,200.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS206-336-851.001
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 MILEAGE206-336-861.000
0.00 41.38 2,930.90 2,069.10 5,000.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE206-336-863.000
0.00 57.56 25,465.91 34,534.09 60,000.00 GASOLINE & OIL206-336-865.000
0.00 86.23 2,822.50 17,677.50 20,500.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE206-336-910.000
0.00 92.79 468.50 6,031.50 6,500.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE206-336-911.000
0.00 84.31 1,883.00 10,117.00 12,000.00 ERRORS & OMISSION206-336-913.000
0.00 96.76 1,557.00 46,443.00 48,000.00 AUTO INSURANCE206-336-914.000
0.00 90.34 1,932.00 18,068.00 20,000.00 HEALTH & ACCIDENT INSURANCE206-336-916.000
0.00 39.91 3,305.13 2,194.87 5,500.00 ELECTRIC-STATION 1206-336-920.001
0.00 48.89 2,810.81 2,689.19 5,500.00 ELECTRIC-STATION 2206-336-920.002
0.00 59.01 2,254.29 3,245.71 5,500.00 ELECTRIC-STATION 3206-336-920.003
0.00 43.80 3,090.79 2,409.21 5,500.00 ELECTRIC-STATION 4206-336-920.004
0.00 90.97 270.94 2,729.06 3,000.00 NATURAL GAS-STATION 1206-336-921.001
0.00 65.97 1,701.68 3,298.32 5,000.00 NATURAL GAS-STATION 2206-336-921.002
0.00 63.05 2,216.96 3,783.04 6,000.00 NATURAL GAS-STATION 3206-336-921.003
0.00 62.70 1,865.15 3,134.85 5,000.00 NATURAL GAS-STATION 4206-336-921.004
0.00 12.41 2,627.76 372.24 3,000.00 WATER-STATION 1206-336-922.001
0.00 10.01 2,699.61 300.39 3,000.00 WATER-STATION 2206-336-922.002
0.00 21.81 2,345.83 654.17 3,000.00 WATER-STATION 3206-336-922.003
0.00 9.41 2,717.66 282.34 3,000.00 WATER-STATION 4206-336-922.004
0.00 54.36 365.14 434.86 800.00 SEWER-STATION 1206-336-923.001
0.00 10.54 536.79 63.21 600.00 SEWER-STATION 2206-336-923.002
0.00 10.54 536.79 63.21 600.00 SEWER-STATION 3206-336-923.003
0.00 10.54 536.79 63.21 600.00 SEWER-STATION 4206-336-923.004
0.00 27.25 40,010.99 14,989.01 55,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-BLDG206-336-930.000
0.00 46.93 51,584.32 45,615.68 97,200.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-VEHICLES206-336-935.000
0.00 37.11 7,232.44 4,267.56 11,500.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT206-336-936.000
0.00 0.00 42,000.00 0.00 42,000.00 HYDRANT MAINTEN206-336-937.000
0.00 66.67 16,381.00 32,762.00 49,143.00 ADMIN SERVICE CHARGE TO GENERAL FUND206-336-955.000
0.00 31.52 12,258.21 5,641.79 17,900.00 DUES & MISC206-336-956.000
0.00 42.31 42,710.43 31,330.00 74,040.43 PHYSICAL & FITNESS EXAM206-336-956.002
0.00 48.25 2,070.00 1,930.00 4,000.00 COFFEE & WATER SERVICE206-336-956.004
0.00 51.98 15,374.21 16,644.79 32,019.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING206-336-957.000
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 TAX TRIBUNALS206-336-964.003

140,325.00 99.61 675.00 32,922.93 173,922.93 CAPITAL OUTLAY-BLDGS206-336-975.000
156,862.86 155.78 (119,403.73)176,612.87 214,072.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT206-336-977.000
74,985.35 99.36 6,462.90 928,447.75 1,009,896.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES206-336-978.000

372,173.21 65.38 2,438,358.52 4,233,644.59 7,044,176.32 Total Dept 336 - FIRE DEPARTMENT

372,173.21 65.38 2,438,358.52 4,233,644.59 7,044,176.32 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

307



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 13/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 206 - FIRE FUND

(372,173.21)388.18 (2,188,506.53)2,112,380.62 (448,299.12)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

372,173.21 65.38 2,438,358.52 4,233,644.59 7,044,176.32 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 96.21 249,851.99 6,346,025.21 6,595,877.20 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 206 - FIRE FUND:

308



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 14/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 207 - SHERIFF FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 99.21 50,273.90 6,288,237.10 6,338,511.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES207-000-403.000
0.00 100.00 (27,993.49)27,993.49 0.00 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILT)207-000-432.000
0.00 100.00 (415.43)415.43 0.00 PRIOR YEAR TAX ADJ'S & COLLECTIONS207-000-449.000
0.00 90.40 1,824.88 17,175.12 19,000.00 LICENSE - LIQUOR207-000-460.000
0.00 46.21 31,200.11 26,799.89 58,000.00 INTEREST EARNED207-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 74,702.20 (74,702.20)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES207-000-665.000
0.00 100.00 (445.80)445.80 0.00 REINBURSEMENT -MMRMA REFUND DISTRIBUTION207-000-687.000
0.00 72.57 15,084.95 39,915.05 55,000.00 FINES207-000-693.000
0.00 483.50 (46,020.49)58,020.49 12,000.00 REIMBURSEMENT- COST RECOVERY 207-000-693.002
0.00 1,128.00 (2,056.00)2,256.00 200.00 MISC INCOME207-000-694.000

0.00 98.52 96,154.83 6,386,556.17 6,482,711.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 98.52 96,154.83 6,386,556.17 6,482,711.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 301 - SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

0.00 32.45 3,637,358.61 1,747,491.39 5,384,850.00 SHERIFF PROTECTION207-301-706.000
0.00 34.29 123,846.26 64,623.74 188,470.00 SHERIFF PROTECTION - OT207-301-706.001
0.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 SHERIFF PROTECTION - MARINE PATROL207-301-706.003
0.00 94.26 28.68 471.32 500.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE207-301-732.000
0.00 11.74 41,484.54 5,515.46 47,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES207-301-740.000
0.00 9.54 4,522.97 477.03 5,000.00 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES207-301-775.000
0.00 20.17 967.50 244.50 1,212.00 ATTORNEY FEES207-301-802.000
0.00 97.62 100.00 4,100.00 4,200.00 AUDIT FEES207-301-803.000
0.00 49.33 2,026.67 1,973.33 4,000.00 DATA PROCESSING207-301-807.000
0.00 0.00 4,300.00 0.00 4,300.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES207-301-851.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 5,530.00 5,530.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE207-301-910.000
0.00 4.77 5,714.05 285.95 6,000.00 WATER207-301-922.000
0.00 72.54 796.41 2,103.59 2,900.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-BLDG207-301-930.000
0.00 58.33 7,064.70 9,890.30 16,955.00 CUSTODIAL SERVICES207-301-930.001
0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT207-301-936.000
0.00 66.67 56,698.00 113,396.00 170,094.00 RENT/UTILITIES TO GENERAL FUND207-301-941.000
0.00 66.67 11,530.64 23,061.36 34,592.00 ADMIN SERVICE CHARGE TO GENERAL FUND207-301-955.000

20.00 3.25 3,357.21 92.79 3,470.00 DUES & MISC207-301-956.000
0.00 17.35 2,066.34 433.66 2,500.00 COFFEE & WATER SERVICE207-301-956.004
0.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 TAX TRIBUNALS207-301-964.003
0.00 100.00 0.00 10,094.50 10,094.50 CONTRIBUTION TO MUNICIPAL BUILDING FUND207-301-965.470
0.00 23.08 76,155.00 22,845.00 99,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-BLDGS207-301-975.000

14,651.77 73.90 26,101.42 59,246.81 100,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT207-301-977.000

14,671.77 34.15 4,024,119.00 2,071,876.73 6,110,667.50 Total Dept 301 - SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT

14,671.77 34.15 4,024,119.00 2,071,876.73 6,110,667.50 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(14,671.77)1,155.78 (3,927,964.17)4,314,679.44 372,043.50 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

14,671.77 34.15 4,024,119.00 2,071,876.73 6,110,667.50 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 98.52 96,154.83 6,386,556.17 6,482,711.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 207 - SHERIFF FUND:

309



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 15/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - PARKS/RECREATION FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 99.24 14,307.14 1,876,515.86 1,890,823.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES208-000-403.000
0.00 122.12 (2,774.90)15,318.90 12,544.00 LOCAL COMM STABILIZATION - PPT SHARE208-000-403.001
0.00 98.29 136.58 7,843.42 7,980.00 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILT)208-000-432.000
0.00 0.00 3,675.00 0.00 3,675.00 INDUSTRIAL FACILITY TAX (IFT)208-000-437.000
0.00 100.00 (118.13)118.13 0.00 PRIOR YEAR TAX ADJ'S & COLLECTIONS208-000-449.000
0.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 STATE GRANT 208-000-569.000
0.00 95.00 50.00 950.00 1,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES208-000-607.000
0.00 85.06 3,054.60 17,395.40 20,450.00 INTEREST EARNED208-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 41,420.80 (41,420.80)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES208-000-665.000
0.00 75.93 1,950.00 6,150.00 8,100.00 RENTS - EXTERNAL208-000-668.001
0.00 100.00 (7,532.00)7,532.00 0.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS 208-000-673.000
0.00 7.00 2,790.00 210.00 3,000.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS - PARKS & REC208-000-674.751
0.00 0.00 136,000.00 0.00 136,000.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND208-000-676.101
0.00 100.00 (30,000.00)30,000.00 0.00 PRIVATE GRANTS208-000-677.000
0.00 100.00 (5,271.30)5,271.30 0.00 REINBURSEMENT -MMRMA REFUND DISTRIBUTION208-000-687.000
0.00 100.00 (2,603.83)2,603.83 0.00 INSURANCE RECOVERY - MMRMA CLAIMS208-000-690.000
0.00 116.21 (1,377.91)9,877.91 8,500.00 MISC INCOME208-000-694.000
0.00 100.00 (3,743.16)3,743.16 0.00 ORION CABLE COMMISSION 16%208-000-694.001
0.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 P/R - WILDWOOD CONCESSIONS208-000-694.002
0.00 81.61 23,728.00 105,272.00 129,000.00 RENTAL - PARKS/REC208-000-695.000
0.00 100.00 (2,250.00)2,250.00 0.00 SPONSORSHIP FOR WILDWOOD208-000-695.002
0.00 92.93 212.00 2,788.00 3,000.00 PARK/REC - TRIPS/TOURS208-000-695.004
0.00 42.75 25,277.13 18,872.87 44,150.00 PARK/REC - CAMP208-000-695.006
0.00 90.12 21,974.50 200,475.50 222,450.00 PARK/REC - LEAGUES208-000-695.009
0.00 136.81 (21,396.80)79,526.80 58,130.00 PARK/REC - LESSONS208-000-695.011
0.00 89.36 1,776.40 14,923.60 16,700.00 PARK/REC - SPECIAL EVENTS208-000-695.012
0.00 115.63 (100.00)740.00 640.00 PARK/REC - COMMUNITY GARDEN208-000-695.015
0.00 91.67 250.00 2,750.00 3,000.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS - PARK BANNER208-000-695.020
0.00 94.08 1,450.00 23,050.00 24,500.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTION-COMM PROGRAM208-000-695.025
0.00 100.00 (31,000.00)31,000.00 0.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTION - MIRACLE FIELD208-000-695.305

0.00 92.14 206,884.12 2,423,757.88 2,630,642.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 92.14 206,884.12 2,423,757.88 2,630,642.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION DEPT

0.00 64.40 58,744.88 106,250.04 164,994.92 SUPERVISORY SALARIES208-751-702.000
0.00 51.51 307,453.46 326,619.16 634,072.62 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES208-751-703.000
0.00 165.54 (1,966.06)4,966.06 3,000.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS208-751-704.000
0.00 5.75 52,600.85 3,211.69 55,812.54 OVERTIME208-751-713.000
0.00 166.74 (867.61)2,167.61 1,300.00 UNIFORMS208-751-714.000
0.00 53.07 32,389.72 36,627.17 69,016.89 SOC SEC/MED 208-751-715.000
0.00 61.32 67,548.98 107,105.02 174,654.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE208-751-716.000
0.00 136.67 (1,833.36)6,833.36 5,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE208-751-716.001
0.00 46.15 8,820.00 7,560.00 16,380.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN208-751-716.002
0.00 125.13 (37.70)187.70 150.00 FSA ADMIN FEES208-751-716.004
0.00 57.63 1,101.55 1,498.45 2,600.00 LIFE INSURANCE208-751-717.000
0.00 53.51 49,895.48 57,436.52 107,332.00 PENSION208-751-718.000
0.00 66.57 2,593.13 5,162.87 7,756.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE208-751-719.000
0.00 18.39 14,933.83 3,366.17 18,300.00 WORKMEN'S COMP208-751-722.000
0.00 61.68 9,145.40 14,722.60 23,868.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE208-751-724.000
0.00 22.08 1,558.38 441.62 2,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES208-751-727.000

310



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 16/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - PARKS/RECREATION FUND
Expenditures

0.00 1.46 3,448.73 51.27 3,500.00 POSTAGE208-751-728.000
0.00 1.50 1,970.00 30.00 2,000.00 PRINTED FORMS208-751-730.000
0.00 35.46 5,485.58 3,014.42 8,500.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE208-751-732.000
0.00 74.03 3,376.08 9,623.92 13,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES208-751-740.000
0.00 35.88 3,526.49 1,973.51 5,500.00 SMALL TOOLS208-751-741.000
0.00 100.00 (534.70)534.70 0.00 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES208-751-775.000
0.00 55.26 447.39 552.61 1,000.00 MAINT SUPPLIES - CIVIC CENTER PARK208-751-775.100
0.00 43.29 2,835.32 2,164.68 5,000.00 MAINT SUPPLIES - ORION CENTER208-751-775.200
0.00 59.43 2,637.31 3,862.69 6,500.00 MAINT SUPPLIES - FRIENDSHIP PARK208-751-775.300
0.00 29.16 1,416.78 583.22 2,000.00 MAINT SUPPLIES - WILDWOOD208-751-775.400
0.00 24.37 3,025.01 974.99 4,000.00 MAINT SUPPLIES - CAMP AGAWAM208-751-775.500
0.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 MAINT SUPPLIES - JESSE DECKER208-751-775.600
0.00 8.27 5,504.03 495.97 6,000.00 MAINT SUPPLIES - ORION CTR208-751-775.672
0.00 86.16 1,107.50 6,892.50 8,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES208-751-802.000

2,333.33 21.28 18,276.17 2,607.50 23,217.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP208-751-806.000
0.00 91.78 637.57 7,120.43 7,758.00 DATA PROCESSING208-751-807.000
0.00 61.78 4,394.83 7,105.17 11,500.00 WEB SITE/INTERNET208-751-807.001

2,893.25 55.47 8,905.75 8,201.00 20,000.00 ENGINEERING CONSULTANT208-751-810.001
0.00 100.00 0.08 7,099.92 7,100.00 COMPUTER CONSULTANT208-751-820.000
0.00 47.27 3,005.66 2,694.34 5,700.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES208-751-851.000
0.00 47.15 3,594.03 3,205.97 6,800.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS208-751-851.001
0.00 0.00 750.00 0.00 750.00 TELEPHONE - FRIENDSHIP PARK208-751-851.408
0.00 15.67 2,276.89 423.11 2,700.00 TELEPHONE - ORION CTR208-751-851.672
0.00 23.98 380.08 119.92 500.00 MILEAGE208-751-861.000
0.00 9.56 1,989.63 210.37 2,200.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE208-751-863.000
0.00 50.97 5,883.60 6,116.40 12,000.00 SENIOR TRIPS/TOURS208-751-864.000
0.00 64.09 7,002.85 12,497.15 19,500.00 GASOLINE & OIL208-751-865.000
0.00 41.88 12,205.16 8,794.84 21,000.00 CAMPS EXPENSE208-751-881.006
0.00 48.78 72,276.84 68,823.16 141,100.00 LEAGUES208-751-881.009
0.00 69.55 12,265.45 28,009.55 40,275.00 LESSONS208-751-881.011

14,000.00 109.81 (2,232.16)10,982.16 22,750.00 SPECIAL EVENTS208-751-881.012
0.00 57.25 7,909.66 10,590.34 18,500.00 ADVERTISING208-751-902.000

(14,000.00)0.00 15,000.00 14,000.00 15,000.00 ADVERTISING - WILDWOOD208-751-902.751
0.00 135.58 (4,625.50)17,625.50 13,000.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE208-751-910.000
0.00 97.44 89.50 3,410.50 3,500.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE208-751-911.000
0.00 115.12 (756.00)5,756.00 5,000.00 ERRORS & OMISSION208-751-913.000
0.00 133.03 (1,899.50)7,649.50 5,750.00 AUTO INSURANCE208-751-914.000
0.00 86.79 396.17 2,603.83 3,000.00 IBNR INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE208-751-917.000
0.00 41.59 2,190.39 1,559.61 3,750.00 ELECTRIC - SHEARDY PAVILLION208-751-920.101
0.00 7.99 1,380.11 119.89 1,500.00 ELECTRIC- CIV CEN BALLFIELD208-751-920.102
0.00 19.83 400.86 99.14 500.00 ELECTRIC - CIV CEN SOCCER FIELDS208-751-920.103
0.00 69.24 9,383.19 21,116.81 30,500.00 ELECTRIC - ORION CENTER208-751-920.200
0.00 3.44 2,896.77 103.23 3,000.00 ELECTRIC - ORION CEN FIRE SUPPRESSION208-751-920.201
0.00 5.06 2,848.07 151.93 3,000.00 ELECTRIC - FP - PORRIT BARN208-751-920.301
0.00 6.23 3,281.96 218.04 3,500.00 ELECTRIC - FP - PICNIC SHELTER208-751-920.302
0.00 65.85 1,195.17 2,304.83 3,500.00 ELECTRIC - FP - SUPPORT BLDG208-751-920.303
0.00 16.22 1,256.66 243.34 1,500.00 ELECTRIC - FP - LAWN SPRINKLERS208-751-920.304
0.00 5.98 2,068.40 131.60 2,200.00 ELECTRIC - WILDWD - BANDSHELL208-751-920.401
0.00 46.94 530.59 469.41 1,000.00 ELECTRIC - WILDWD - PARKING208-751-920.402
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 ELECTRIC-CAMP AGAWAM208-751-920.500
0.00 4.57 2,147.27 102.73 2,250.00 ELECTRIC-CAMP AG-SERVICE RACK 1208-751-920.502
0.00 55.33 1,005.13 1,244.87 2,250.00 ELECTRIC-CAMP AG-SERVICE RACK 2208-751-920.503
0.00 33.14 334.29 165.71 500.00 ELECTRIC-CAMP AG-PETERSON LODGE208-751-920.505
0.00 414.93 (1,574.64)2,074.64 500.00 ELECTRIC-CAMP AG-RESTROOMS208-751-920.506
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 ELECTRIC-CAMP AG-BAKER BUILDING208-751-920.508
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 ELECTRIC-CAMP AG-ALBERICI LODGE208-751-920.509

311



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 17/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - PARKS/RECREATION FUND
Expenditures

0.00 78.46 3,123.61 11,376.39 14,500.00 NATURAL GAS - ORION CENTER208-751-921.200
0.00 38.59 4,114.15 2,585.85 6,700.00 NATURAL GAS - FP - SUPPORT BLDG208-751-921.303
0.00 100.00 (45.57)45.57 0.00 NATURAL GAS - CAMP AGAWAM208-751-921.500
0.00 36.00 160.00 90.00 250.00 NATURAL GAS - CAMP SQUARE208-751-921.501
0.00 36.00 160.00 90.00 250.00 NATURAL GAS - CAMP-SERVICE RACK 1208-751-921.502
0.00 76.54 129.04 420.96 550.00 NATURAL GAS - CAMP - MNTCE GARAGE208-751-921.504
0.00 129.60 (222.01)972.01 750.00 NATURAL GAS - CAMP - BIRCH GROVE LODGE208-751-921.507
0.00 109.47 (71.04)821.04 750.00 NATURAL GAS - CAMP - BAKER BUILDING208-751-921.508
0.00 118.87 (141.55)891.55 750.00 NATURAL GAS - CAMP - ALBERICI LODGE208-751-921.509
0.00 30.98 552.20 247.80 800.00 WATER - CIVIC CENTER PARK208-751-922.100
0.00 55.80 1,237.65 1,562.35 2,800.00 WATER - ORION CENTER208-751-922.200
0.00 81.02 94.92 405.08 500.00 WATER - FP - SUPPORT BLDG208-751-922.303
0.00 26.27 589.86 210.14 800.00 WATER - FP - MIRACLE FIELD208-751-922.305
0.00 47.80 260.98 239.02 500.00 WATER - FP - RESTROOMS208-751-922.306
0.00 0.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 WATER - WILDWOOD208-751-922.400
0.00 4.21 1,436.79 63.21 1,500.00 SEWER - ORION CENTER208-751-923.200
0.00 12.64 436.79 63.21 500.00 SEWER - FP - SUPPORT BUILDING208-751-923.303
0.00 12.64 436.79 63.21 500.00 SEWER - FP - MIRACLE FIELD208-751-923.305
0.00 12.64 436.79 63.21 500.00 SEWER - FP - RESTROOMS208-751-923.306
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 SEWER - WILDWOOD208-751-923.400
0.00 57.25 8,214.48 11,002.52 19,217.00 CUSTODIAL SERVICES208-751-930.001
0.00 19.58 3,618.98 881.02 4,500.00 REPAIR & MAINT - CIVIC CENTER PARK208-751-930.100
0.00 72.21 11,979.43 31,120.57 43,100.00 REPAIR & MAINT - ORION CENTER208-751-930.200
0.00 85.90 4,864.04 29,635.96 34,500.00 REPAIR & MAINT - FRIENDSHIP PARK208-751-930.300
0.00 821.32 (21,639.69)24,639.69 3,000.00 REPAIR/MAINT - MIRACLE FIELD208-751-930.305
0.00 2.04 7,347.12 152.88 7,500.00 REPAIR & MAINT - WILDWOOD208-751-930.400
0.00 46.70 15,990.70 14,009.30 30,000.00 REPAIR & MAINT - CAMP AGAWAM208-751-930.500
0.00 10.48 895.21 104.79 1,000.00 REPAIR & MAINT - JESSE DECKER208-751-930.600
0.00 32.58 36,542.92 17,657.08 54,200.00 PARKS MAINTENANCE208-751-934.001
0.00 38.46 4,000.01 2,499.99 6,500.00 SIDEWALK REPAIR208-751-934.002

150,000.00 550.93 (135,279.91)15,279.91 30,000.00 GROUNDS - CIVIC CEN PARK208-751-934.100
0.00 92.35 1,147.74 13,852.26 15,000.00 GROUNDS - ORION CENTER208-751-934.200
0.00 93.97 1,810.26 28,189.74 30,000.00 GROUNDS - FRIENDSHIP PARK208-751-934.300
0.00 54.05 5,743.17 6,756.83 12,500.00 GROUNDS - WILDWOOD208-751-934.400
0.00 53.36 27,282.90 31,217.10 58,500.00 GROUNDS - CAMP AGAWAM208-751-934.500
0.00 86.46 1,354.50 8,645.50 10,000.00 GROUNDS - JESSE DECKER208-751-934.600
0.00 96.37 297.27 7,902.73 8,200.00 REPAIRS & MAINT - VEHICLES208-751-935.000
0.00 108.92 (579.53)7,079.53 6,500.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT208-751-936.000
0.00 48.73 2,563.28 2,436.72 5,000.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL208-751-940.000
0.00 64.91 11,404.00 21,096.00 32,500.00 PAINT CREEK TRAIL EXPENSES208-751-951.000
0.00 79.40 5,150.00 19,850.00 25,000.00 POLLY ANN TRAIL EXPENSES208-751-951.001
0.00 66.67 12,216.64 24,433.36 36,650.00 ADMIN SERVICE CHARGE TO GENERAL FUND208-751-955.000
0.00 94.70 318.23 5,681.77 6,000.00 DUES & MISC208-751-956.000
0.00 204.36 (1,043.55)2,043.55 1,000.00 COFFEE & WATER SERVICE208-751-956.004
0.00 30.71 14,951.41 6,627.59 21,579.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING208-751-957.000
0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 TAX TRIBUNALS208-751-964.003

262,022.70 552.11 (711,526.80)606,883.10 157,379.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-PARKS208-751-973.000
0.00 5.04 33,235.50 1,764.50 35,000.00 C/O SEALCOAT ASPHALT SURFACES208-751-973.000-20PR003

7,572.00 0.00 (7,572.00)0.00 0.00 C/O-ORION CTR TRAIL HEAD PV208-751-973.000-21PR003
37,080.00 55.57 33,319.00 4,601.00 75,000.00 C/O - ROAD RESURFACING208-751-973.000-22PR005
18,500.00 92.50 1,500.00 0.00 20,000.00 C/O - WAYFINDING SIGNAGE/NETWRK208-751-973.000-23PR001

0.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-BLDGS208-751-975.000
0.00 0.00 55,000.00 0.00 55,000.00 C/O CAMP AGAWAM VAULT TOILET208-751-975.000-20PR007
0.00 100.00 0.00 47,000.00 47,000.00 C/O-WW AMPH SHELTER208-751-975.000-22PR001
0.00 73.85 29,762.00 84,038.00 113,800.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT208-751-977.000
0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 C/O - SECURITY UPGRADES208-751-977.000-22PR006

312



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 18/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 208 - PARKS/RECREATION FUND
Expenditures

138,058.39 293.60 (111,322.39)30,764.00 57,500.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES208-751-978.000

618,459.67 91.28 260,431.75 2,108,720.55 2,987,611.97 Total Dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION DEPT

618,459.67 91.28 260,431.75 2,108,720.55 2,987,611.97 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(618,459.67)85.00 (53,547.63)315,037.33 (356,969.97)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

618,459.67 91.28 260,431.75 2,108,720.55 2,987,611.97 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 92.14 206,884.12 2,423,757.88 2,630,642.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 208 - PARKS/RECREATION FUND:

313



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 19/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 247 - CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 97.75 4,508.02 195,797.98 200,306.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES247-000-403.000
0.00 100.00 (2,080.10)2,080.10 0.00 PRIOR YEAR TAX ADJ'S & COLLECTIONS247-000-449.000
0.00 100.00 (1,666.06)1,666.06 0.00 INTEREST EARNED247-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 4,878.02 (4,878.02)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES247-000-665.000
0.00 0.00 269,725.00 0.00 269,725.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS 247-000-673.000
0.00 0.00 350,000.00 0.00 350,000.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND247-000-676.101

0.00 23.74 625,364.88 194,666.12 820,031.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 23.74 625,364.88 194,666.12 820,031.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION DEPT

0.00 90.00 40.00 360.00 400.00 ATTORNEY FEES247-751-802.000
65,713.95 43.89 137,832.33 42,108.39 245,654.67 CAPITAL OUTLAY- GROUNDS247-751-974.000

0.00 100.00 0.00 438,450.30 438,450.30 NOTE PRINCIPAL EXPENSE247-751-992.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 50,718.03 50,718.03 INTEREST EXPENSE247-751-996.000

65,713.95 81.25 137,872.33 531,636.72 735,223.00 Total Dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION DEPT

65,713.95 81.25 137,872.33 531,636.72 735,223.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(65,713.95)474.82 487,492.55 (336,970.60)84,808.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

65,713.95 81.25 137,872.33 531,636.72 735,223.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 23.74 625,364.88 194,666.12 820,031.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 247 - CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY:

314



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 20/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 249 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 148.84 (390,724.50)1,190,724.50 800,000.00 PERMITS - BUILDING 249-000-481.000
0.00 85.22 4,138.00 23,862.00 28,000.00 PERMITS - VILLAGE 249-000-481.001
0.00 18.00 820.00 180.00 1,000.00 BUILDING REINSPECTION FEES - VILLAGE249-000-481.002
0.00 69.00 3,100.00 6,900.00 10,000.00 BUILDING REINSPECTION FEES - TOWNSHIP249-000-481.004
0.00 97.08 1,750.00 58,250.00 60,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES - APPLICATION FEES249-000-482.000
0.00 133.77 (32,085.00)127,085.00 95,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES - PLAN REVIEW FEES249-000-482.001
0.00 89.05 1,095.00 8,905.00 10,000.00 LICENSE - BUILDING TRADES 249-000-483.000
0.00 248.35 (14,835.40)24,835.40 10,000.00 PERMITS - FIRE ALARM & SUPPRESSION 249-000-485.000
0.00 102.13 (850.00)40,850.00 40,000.00 PERMITS - SOIL EROSON 249-000-512.000
0.00 100.00 (1,557.31)1,557.31 0.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES249-000-607.000
0.00 100.00 (850.00)850.00 0.00 SERVICES RENDERED - DIGITAL IMAGING FEES249-000-637.000
0.00 100.00 (12,807.95)12,807.95 0.00 INTEREST EARNED249-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 34,862.11 (34,862.11)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES249-000-665.000
0.00 100.00 (1,304.80)1,304.80 0.00 REINBURSEMENT -MMRMA REFUND DISTRIBUTION249-000-687.000
0.00 100.00 (925.57)925.57 0.00 MISC INCOME249-000-694.000

0.00 138.92 (410,175.42)1,464,175.42 1,054,000.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 138.92 (410,175.42)1,464,175.42 1,054,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 371 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT

0.00 65.38 33,230.73 62,769.27 96,000.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES249-371-702.000
0.00 47.18 172,709.11 154,282.69 326,991.80 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES249-371-703.000
0.00 81.30 187.03 812.97 1,000.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS249-371-704.000
0.00 50.00 200.00 200.00 400.00 PER DIEM FEES249-371-705.000
0.00 23.91 23,360.47 7,339.11 30,699.58 OVERTIME249-371-713.000
0.00 58.60 207.00 293.00 500.00 UNIFORMS249-371-714.000
0.00 49.67 18,550.97 18,305.14 36,856.11 SOC SEC/MED 249-371-715.000
0.00 42.99 55,271.51 41,680.49 96,952.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE249-371-716.000
0.00 66.67 1,666.64 3,333.36 5,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE249-371-716.001
0.00 46.15 4,410.00 3,780.00 8,190.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN249-371-716.002
0.00 69.07 35.57 79.43 115.00 FSA ADMIN FEES249-371-716.004
0.00 76.21 309.23 990.77 1,300.00 LIFE INSURANCE249-371-717.000
0.00 43.32 36,162.76 27,633.93 63,796.69 PENSION249-371-718.000
0.00 53.32 2,021.07 2,308.93 4,330.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE249-371-719.000
0.00 30.24 1,395.17 604.83 2,000.00 WORKMEN'S COMP249-371-722.000
0.00 47.80 6,229.55 5,705.45 11,935.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE249-371-724.000
0.00 61.84 1,144.76 1,855.24 3,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES249-371-727.000
0.00 53.63 927.32 1,072.68 2,000.00 POSTAGE249-371-728.000
0.00 10.10 2,697.03 302.97 3,000.00 PRINTED FORMS249-371-730.000
0.00 40.42 4,766.06 3,233.94 8,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES249-371-740.000
0.00 18.00 820.00 180.00 1,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES249-371-802.000
0.00 98.59 120.00 8,380.00 8,500.00 AUDIT FEES249-371-803.000
0.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 VILLAGE INSPECTION FEES249-371-805.000
0.00 76.25 39,544.00 126,956.00 166,500.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP249-371-806.000
0.00 86.71 2,725.17 17,774.83 20,500.00 DATA PROCESSING249-371-807.000
0.00 93.98 932.50 14,552.50 15,485.00 FIRE SUPPRESSION CONSULTANT249-371-817.000
0.00 22.71 18,859.60 5,540.40 24,400.00 COMPUTER CONSULTANT249-371-820.000
0.00 15.17 6,786.80 1,213.20 8,000.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES249-371-851.000
0.00 72.28 914.78 2,385.22 3,300.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS249-371-851.001
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 MILEAGE249-371-861.000
0.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE249-371-863.000

315



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 21/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 249 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND
Expenditures

0.00 1.76 6,876.52 123.48 7,000.00 GASOLINE & OIL249-371-865.000
0.00 71.93 617.50 1,582.50 2,200.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE249-371-911.000
0.00 95.12 161.00 3,139.00 3,300.00 ERRORS & OMISSION249-371-913.000
0.00 96.66 117.50 3,402.50 3,520.00 AUTO INSURANCE249-371-914.000
0.00 58.33 2,553.01 3,573.99 6,127.00 CUSTODIAL SERVICES249-371-930.001
0.00 75.34 616.59 1,883.41 2,500.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-VEHICLES249-371-935.000
0.00 19.73 20,068.19 4,931.81 25,000.00 AUTO LEASING249-371-935.001
0.00 66.67 73,221.64 146,443.36 219,665.00 RENT/UTILITIES TO GENERAL FUND249-371-941.000
0.00 76.62 701.39 2,298.61 3,000.00 DUES & MISC249-371-956.000
0.00 50.74 98.53 101.47 200.00 EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT249-371-956.001
0.00 44.64 5,101.85 4,113.15 9,215.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING249-371-957.000
0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES249-371-958.000
0.00 65.05 9,549.10 17,773.09 27,322.19 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT249-371-977.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 28,917.20 28,917.20 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES249-371-978.000

0.00 56.42 565,367.65 731,849.92 1,297,217.57 Total Dept 371 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT

0.00 56.42 565,367.65 731,849.92 1,297,217.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 301.10 (975,543.07)732,325.50 (243,217.57)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 56.42 565,367.65 731,849.92 1,297,217.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 138.92 (410,175.42)1,464,175.42 1,054,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 249 - BUILDING DEPARTMENT FUND:

316



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 22/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 370 - MUNICIPAL BUILDING DEBT FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 0.00 484,117.00 0.00 484,117.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND370-000-676.101
0.00 0.00 550,000.00 0.00 550,000.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM HOST FEE FUND370-000-676.417

0.00 0.00 1,034,117.00 0.00 1,034,117.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 0.00 1,034,117.00 0.00 1,034,117.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 277 - MUNICIPAL BUILDING DEBT DEPARTMENT

0.00 100.00 0.00 560,000.00 560,000.00 BOND PRINCIPAL - MUNICIPAL BUILDING370-277-991.470
0.00 51.36 199,937.50 211,137.50 411,075.00 INTEREST EXPENSE-MUNICIPAL COMPLEX BOND370-277-992.470
0.00 66.67 500.00 1,000.00 1,500.00 PAYING AGENT FEES370-277-993.470

0.00 79.39 200,437.50 772,137.50 972,575.00 Total Dept 277 - MUNICIPAL BUILDING DEBT DEPARTMENT

0.00 79.39 200,437.50 772,137.50 972,575.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 1,254.65 833,679.50 (772,137.50)61,542.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 79.39 200,437.50 772,137.50 972,575.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 0.00 1,034,117.00 0.00 1,034,117.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 370 - MUNICIPAL BUILDING DEBT FUND:

317



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 23/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 401 - GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 100.00 (637.29)637.29 0.00 INTEREST EARNED401-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 4,337.75 (4,337.75)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES401-000-665.000
0.00 0.00 270,000.00 0.00 270,000.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS 401-000-673.000
0.00 100.00 (2,428.57)2,428.57 0.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS401-000-674.000

0.00 (0.47)271,271.89 (1,271.89)270,000.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 (0.47)271,271.89 (1,271.89)270,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 958 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

0.00 0.00 120,000.00 0.00 120,000.00 CONTRIBUTION TO GENERAL FUND401-958-965.101
0.00 0.00 150,000.00 0.00 150,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-LAND401-958-972.000
0.00 47.54 26,232.10 23,767.90 50,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY- GROUNDS401-958-974.000
0.00 98.74 2,014.48 157,985.52 160,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-ROADS401-958-980.000

0.00 37.87 298,246.58 181,753.42 480,000.00 Total Dept 958 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

0.00 37.87 298,246.58 181,753.42 480,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 87.15 (26,974.69)(183,025.31)(210,000.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 37.87 298,246.58 181,753.42 480,000.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 0.47 271,271.89 (1,271.89)270,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 401 - GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT:

318



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 24/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 402 - SAFETY PATH
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 99.24 3,282.08 429,972.92 433,255.00 CURRENT PROPERTY TAXES402-000-403.000
0.00 94.33 211.13 3,510.87 3,722.00 LOCAL COMM STABILIZATION - PPT SHARE402-000-403.001
0.00 102.71 (47.35)1,797.35 1,750.00 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES (PILT)402-000-432.000
0.00 100.00 (27.10)27.10 0.00 PRIOR YEAR TAX ADJ'S & COLLECTIONS402-000-449.000
0.00 181.38 (12,614.23)28,114.23 15,500.00 LOCAL COMM STABILIZATION - ROW METRO ACT402-000-486.000
0.00 100.00 (45,380.54)45,380.54 0.00 STATE GRANT 402-000-569.000
0.00 44.26 3,901.59 3,098.41 7,000.00 INTEREST EARNED402-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 8,669.54 (8,669.54)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES402-000-665.000
0.00 432.64 (33,264.34)43,264.34 10,000.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS402-000-674.000
0.00 100.00 (400.00)400.00 0.00 MISC INCOME402-000-694.000

0.00 116.06 (75,669.22)546,896.22 471,227.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 116.06 (75,669.22)546,896.22 471,227.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION DEPT

0.00 25.91 66,862.08 23,381.27 90,243.35 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES402-751-703.000
0.00 0.33 2,033.74 6.69 2,040.43 OVERTIME402-751-713.000
0.00 21.93 5,648.79 1,586.79 7,235.58 SOC SEC/MED 402-751-715.000
0.00 9.79 13,530.80 1,469.20 15,000.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE402-751-716.000
0.00 10.00 4,500.00 500.00 5,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE402-751-716.001
0.00 0.00 1,260.00 0.00 1,260.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN402-751-716.002
0.00 36.22 127.56 72.44 200.00 LIFE INSURANCE402-751-717.000
0.00 19.86 4,634.01 1,148.26 5,782.27 PENSION402-751-718.000
0.00 29.14 532.89 219.11 752.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE402-751-719.000
0.00 40.09 1,099.90 736.10 1,836.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE402-751-724.000
0.00 18.08 1,228.76 271.24 1,500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES402-751-740.000
0.00 33.45 1,663.83 836.17 2,500.00 SMALL TOOLS402-751-741.000

1,166.67 0.00 (1,166.67)0.00 0.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP402-751-806.000
0.00 102.45 (305.65)12,805.65 12,500.00 ENGINEERING-CAPITALIZED-BOARDWALK REPAIR402-751-811.000-22PR007

12,599.50 100.00 0.00 2,400.50 15,000.00 ENGINEERING-CAPITALIZED-RETAINING WALL402-751-811.000-22PR008
0.00 8.33 916.68 83.32 1,000.00 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE402-751-934.000

44,634.15 82.59 31,743.10 105,948.75 182,326.00 SAFETY PATH REPAIRS402-751-934.003
0.00 60.26 2,583.40 3,916.60 6,500.00 SAFETY PATH MOWING402-751-934.004
0.00 66.67 3,842.64 7,685.36 11,528.00 ADMIN SERVICE CHARGE TO GENERAL FUND402-751-955.000
0.00 0.61 4,875.00 30.00 4,905.00 DUES & MISC402-751-956.000
0.00 0.21 64,851.06 136.94 64,988.00 FUTURE MAINTENANCE402-751-965.004
0.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-LAND402-751-972.000
0.00 0.00 12,750.00 0.00 12,750.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT402-751-977.000
0.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-SAFETY PATH402-751-982.000
0.00 70.48 13,284.00 31,716.00 45,000.00 C/O SP SAFE ROUTE TO SCHOOL402-751-982.000-19SP001

58,400.32 44.46 316,495.92 194,950.39 569,846.63 Total Dept 751 - PARKS & RECREATION DEPT

58,400.32 44.46 316,495.92 194,950.39 569,846.63 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

58,400.32 44.46 316,495.92 194,950.39 569,846.63 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 116.06 (75,669.22)546,896.22 471,227.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 402 - SAFETY PATH:

319



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 25/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 402 - SAFETY PATH
(58,400.32)297.65 (392,165.14)351,945.83 (98,619.63)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

320



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 26/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 417 - HOST FEE
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 73.55 145,461.34 404,538.66 550,000.00 USE FEE - EAGLE VALLEY-HOST FEES417-000-584.001
0.00 100.00 (4,796.77)4,796.77 0.00 INTEREST EARNED417-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 13,798.16 (13,798.16)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES417-000-665.000

0.00 71.92 154,462.73 395,537.27 550,000.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 71.92 154,462.73 395,537.27 550,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 526 - SANITARY LANDFILL DEPARTMENT

0.00 0.00 86,103.00 0.00 86,103.00 CONTRIBUTION TO GENERAL FUND417-526-965.101
0.00 0.00 550,000.00 0.00 550,000.00 CONTRIBUTION TO MUNICIPAL DEBT FUND417-526-965.370

0.00 0.00 636,103.00 0.00 636,103.00 Total Dept 526 - SANITARY LANDFILL DEPARTMENT

0.00 0.00 636,103.00 0.00 636,103.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 459.38 (481,640.27)395,537.27 (86,103.00)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 0.00 636,103.00 0.00 636,103.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 71.92 154,462.73 395,537.27 550,000.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 417 - HOST FEE:

321



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 27/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 470 - MUNICIPAL BUILDING FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 167.61 (3,199.38)7,931.31 4,731.93 INTEREST EARNED470-000-664.000
0.00 100.00 0.00 350,000.00 350,000.00 CONTRIBUTIONS-COST SHARING470-000-674.001
0.00 100.00 (150,000.00)150,000.00 0.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND470-000-676.101
0.00 100.00 0.00 10,094.50 10,094.50 CONTRIBUTION FROM POLICE FUND470-000-676.207
0.00 100.00 0.00 43,000.00 43,000.00 PRIVATE GRANTS470-000-677.000

0.00 137.56 (153,199.38)561,025.81 407,826.43 Total Dept 000

0.00 137.56 (153,199.38)561,025.81 407,826.43 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 958 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

0.00 100.00 0.00 4,400.00 4,400.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP470-958-806.000
0.00 53.46 465.41 534.59 1,000.00 BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES470-958-958.000

315,420.00 100.53 (1,900.00)44,880.00 358,400.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY- GROUNDS470-958-974.000
113.00 64.56 147,746.09 269,016.91 416,876.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES470-958-975.001

0.00 100.00 0.00 7,004.50 7,004.50 CAPITAL OUTLAY-BLDGS-ENGINEERING SERVICE470-958-975.003
3,971.75 82.87 74,179.14 355,004.15 433,155.04 CAPITAL OUTLAY-OWNER PROCURED470-958-977.001

75,472.83 103.72 (45,160.00)1,184,606.37 1,214,919.20 CAPITAL OUTLAY-ROADS470-958-980.000

394,977.58 92.80 175,330.64 1,865,446.52 2,435,754.74 Total Dept 958 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

394,977.58 92.80 175,330.64 1,865,446.52 2,435,754.74 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(394,977.58)83.80 (328,530.02)(1,304,420.71)(2,027,928.31)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

394,977.58 92.80 175,330.64 1,865,446.52 2,435,754.74 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 137.56 (153,199.38)561,025.81 407,826.43 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 470 - MUNICIPAL BUILDING FUND:

322



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 28/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 592 - WATER & SEWER
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 65.29 2,950.00 5,550.00 8,500.00 LICENSES & PERMITS592-000-455.000
0.00 27.21 8,025.00 3,000.00 11,025.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES - PLAN REVIEW FEES592-000-482.001
0.00 0.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 LOCAL COMM STABILIZATION - ROW METRO ACT592-000-486.000
0.00 0.00 40,000.00 0.00 40,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES592-000-607.000
0.00 76.03 69,517.07 220,482.93 290,000.00 WATER TAP IN CHARGES592-000-608.000
0.00 63.66 1,635,129.80 2,864,870.20 4,500,000.00 SEWER USAGE592-000-628.000
0.00 32.55 168,630.88 81,369.12 250,000.00 SEWER USAGE - GM592-000-629.000
0.00 51.51 2,308,345.56 2,451,654.44 4,760,000.00 WATER USAGE592-000-630.000
0.00 33.21 270,504.90 134,495.10 405,000.00 WATER USAGE - GM592-000-631.000
0.00 54.27 217,210.70 257,789.30 475,000.00 WATER USAGE - VILLAGE592-000-631.001
0.00 140.45 (809.04)2,809.04 2,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES-WATER592-000-632.001
0.00 29.24 265,359.33 109,640.67 375,000.00 INTEREST EARNED592-000-664.000
0.00 9.20 162,081.60 16,418.40 178,500.00 INTEREST - CIA592-000-664.247
0.00 100.00 452,152.22 (452,152.22)0.00 INVESTMENTS GAIN & LOSSES592-000-665.000
0.00 (108.38)29,173.18 (15,173.18)14,000.00 INTEREST ON LT W/S CONTRACTS592-000-666.000
0.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS 592-000-673.000
0.00 0.00 500,000.00 0.00 500,000.00 PRIVATE CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS592-000-674.000
0.00 100.00 (350.00)350.00 0.00 PRIVATE GRANTS592-000-677.000
0.00 117.85 (1,427.76)9,427.76 8,000.00 REINBURSEMENT -MMRMA REFUND DISTRIBUTION592-000-687.000
0.00 298.06 (118,838.84)178,838.84 60,000.00 PENALTY FEES - SEWER592-000-693.000
0.00 203.45 (51,724.58)101,724.58 50,000.00 PENALTY FEES-WATER592-000-693.001
0.00 50.51 2,474.75 2,525.25 5,000.00 BILL ADJUSTMENTS592-000-694.000
0.00 100.00 (1,312.93)1,312.93 0.00 MISC-W/S592-000-694.592
0.00 123.86 (71,586.00)371,586.00 300,000.00 SEWER CAPITAL - CONNECTION FEES592-000-696.000
0.00 104.88 (14,650.00)314,650.00 300,000.00 WATER CAPITAL - CONNECTION FEES592-000-696.001
0.00 119.95 (15,961.20)95,961.20 80,000.00 SEWER LATERAL-CONNECTION FEES592-000-697.000
0.00 50.94 15,208.00 15,792.00 31,000.00 WATER LATERAL-CONNECTION FEES592-000-697.001

0.00 53.48 5,890,602.64 6,772,922.36 12,663,525.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 53.48 5,890,602.64 6,772,922.36 12,663,525.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 248 - GENERAL GOV'T ACTIVITIES

0.00 65.38 61,615.45 116,384.55 178,000.00 SUPERVISORY SALARIES592-248-702.000
0.00 56.50 325,551.92 422,897.82 748,449.74 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES592-248-703.000
0.00 (577.60)33,879.79 (28,879.79)5,000.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS592-248-704.000
0.00 32.22 44,630.92 21,213.85 65,844.77 OVERTIME592-248-713.000
0.00 36.44 10,169.79 5,830.21 16,000.00 UNIFORMS & MEALS592-248-714.000
0.00 54.57 37,173.33 44,654.50 81,827.83 SOC SEC/MED 592-248-715.000
0.00 67.59 66,511.73 138,688.27 205,200.00 HOSPITALIZATION INSURANCE592-248-716.000
0.00 66.67 4,999.92 10,000.08 15,000.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE592-248-716.001
0.00 55.95 7,770.00 9,870.00 17,640.00 PEHP - RETIREE MEDICAL PLAN592-248-716.002
0.00 19.03 971.60 228.40 1,200.00 FSA ADMIN FEES592-248-716.004
0.00 61.73 1,071.43 1,728.57 2,800.00 LIFE INSURANCE592-248-717.000
0.00 48.42 71,864.94 67,451.59 139,316.53 PENSION592-248-718.000
0.00 69.08 2,813.39 6,286.61 9,100.00 DISABILITY INSURANCE592-248-719.000
0.00 22.89 17,735.99 5,264.01 23,000.00 WORKMEN'S COMP592-248-722.000
0.00 72.84 1,809.75 4,854.50 6,664.25 LONGEVITY592-248-723.000
0.00 66.11 8,711.25 16,992.75 25,704.00 DENTAL/VISION INSURANCE592-248-724.000
0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES592-248-727.000
0.00 37.13 40,862.52 24,137.48 65,000.00 POSTAGE592-248-728.000
0.00 0.00 14,200.00 0.00 14,200.00 PRINTED FORMS592-248-730.000

323



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 29/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 592 - WATER & SEWER
Expenditures

0.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 COPIER LEASE/USAGE592-248-732.000
0.00 47.32 15,278.43 13,721.57 29,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES592-248-740.000
0.00 12.04 9,675.71 1,324.29 11,000.00 SMALL TOOLS592-248-741.000
0.00 34.38 7,218.50 3,781.50 11,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES592-248-802.000
0.00 75.25 3,960.00 12,040.00 16,000.00 AUDIT FEES592-248-803.000

10,000.00 23.92 113,723.88 25,759.12 149,483.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP592-248-806.000
0.00 94.88 409.69 7,590.31 8,000.00 DATA PROCESSING592-248-807.000
0.00 76.51 822.01 2,677.99 3,500.00 WEB SITE/INTERNET592-248-807.001
0.00 24.21 15,157.50 4,842.50 20,000.00 ENGINEER FEES-NOT CAPITALIZED592-248-811.001
0.00 52.44 4,280.40 4,719.60 9,000.00 COMPUTER CONSULTANT592-248-820.000
0.00 14.74 8,526.32 1,473.68 10,000.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES592-248-851.000
0.00 87.80 609.87 4,390.13 5,000.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS592-248-851.001
0.00 16.88 831.21 168.79 1,000.00 MILEAGE592-248-861.000
0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE592-248-863.000
0.00 77.77 8,892.98 31,107.02 40,000.00 GASOLINE & OIL592-248-865.000
0.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 LEGAL NOTICE592-248-901.000
0.00 98.34 149.50 8,850.50 9,000.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE592-248-910.000
0.00 51.57 14,528.00 15,472.00 30,000.00 LIABILITY INSURANCE592-248-911.000
0.00 69.98 11,107.00 25,893.00 37,000.00 ERRORS & OMISSION592-248-913.000
0.00 69.79 2,416.50 5,583.50 8,000.00 AUTO INSURANCE592-248-914.000
0.00 71.91 3,371.23 8,628.77 12,000.00 ELECTRIC-DPS 2685 JOSLYN592-248-920.000
0.00 81.15 1,413.92 6,086.08 7,500.00 NATURAL GAS-DPS BLDG 2685 JOSLYN592-248-921.000
0.00 45.90 432.79 367.21 800.00 WATER592-248-922.000
0.00 59.98 2,000.78 2,999.22 5,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-BLDG592-248-930.000
0.00 58.33 6,250.44 8,750.56 15,001.00 CUSTODIAL SERVICES592-248-930.001
0.00 22.88 7,711.73 2,288.27 10,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT.-VEHICLES592-248-935.000
0.00 33.01 8,709.03 4,290.97 13,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT592-248-936.000
0.00 66.67 31,452.64 62,905.36 94,358.00 RENT/UTILITIES TO GENERAL FUND592-248-941.000
0.00 66.67 27,352.64 54,705.36 82,058.00 ADMIN SERVICE CHARGE TO GENERAL FUND592-248-955.000
0.00 72.65 1,914.42 5,085.58 7,000.00 DUES & MISC592-248-956.000
0.00 17.07 414.64 85.36 500.00 EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT592-248-956.001
0.00 22.93 616.55 183.45 800.00 COFFEE & WATER SERVICE592-248-956.004
0.00 56.99 2,365.67 3,134.33 5,500.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING592-248-957.000
0.00 13.61 12,094.94 1,905.06 14,000.00 BANK/CREDIT CARD FEES592-248-958.000
0.00 97.32 268.03 9,731.97 10,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-BLDGS592-248-975.000
0.00 49.41 7,528.52 7,352.94 14,881.46 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT592-248-977.000
0.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES592-248-978.000

10,000.00 52.01 1,130,929.19 1,215,499.39 2,356,428.58 Total Dept 248 - GENERAL GOV'T ACTIVITIES

Dept 548 - SEWER DEPARTMENT
0.00 2.50 18,525.61 474.39 19,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES592-548-740.000

13,950.00 77.50 4,050.00 0.00 18,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP592-548-806.000
0.00 1.31 49,347.50 652.50 50,000.00 ENGINEER FEES-NOT CAPITALIZED592-548-811.001
0.00 6.77 26,849.20 1,950.80 28,800.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 4882 BALDWIN592-548-920.011
0.00 52.59 746.67 828.33 1,575.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 248 BARRINGTON592-548-920.012
0.00 38.31 740.23 459.77 1,200.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 134 CHAMBERLAIN592-548-920.013
0.00 44.29 724.17 575.83 1,300.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 510 CLARKSTON592-548-920.014
0.00 53.50 1,557.85 1,792.15 3,350.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 375 CONKLIN592-548-920.015
0.00 52.41 480.63 529.37 1,010.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 698 CUSHING592-548-920.016
0.00 44.38 472.74 377.26 850.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 844 FAIRVIEW592-548-920.017
0.00 52.53 901.94 998.06 1,900.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 655 FERNHURST592-548-920.018
0.00 59.20 575.29 834.71 1,410.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 895 HEIGHTS592-548-920.019
0.00 52.25 625.52 684.48 1,310.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 1803 INDIANWOOD592-548-920.020
0.00 36.96 639.89 375.11 1,015.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 369 JOSLYN592-548-920.021

324



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 30/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 592 - WATER & SEWER
Expenditures

0.00 72.01 1,035.58 2,664.42 3,700.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 3825 JOSLYN592-548-920.022
0.00 92.02 147.61 1,702.39 1,850.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 4430 JOSLYN592-548-920.023
0.00 51.51 630.40 669.60 1,300.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 1551 MILLER592-548-920.024
0.00 51.72 893.27 956.73 1,850.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 15 OVERLAKE592-548-920.025
0.00 72.09 369.80 955.20 1,325.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 877 PINE TREE592-548-920.026
0.00 60.06 678.98 1,021.02 1,700.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 298 SCRIPPS592-548-920.027
0.00 58.77 803.92 1,146.08 1,950.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 510 SHADY OAKS592-548-920.028
0.00 45.18 603.06 496.94 1,100.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 592 SHREWSBURY592-548-920.029
0.00 59.99 450.16 674.84 1,125.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 1201 SILVERBELL592-548-920.030
0.00 0.00 1,575.00 0.00 1,575.00 ELECTRIC-LIFT 4955 LAPEER592-548-920.031
0.00 0.00 450.00 0.00 450.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 4900 BALDWIN592-548-921.011
0.00 47.89 182.39 167.61 350.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 248 BARRINGTON592-548-921.012
0.00 38.42 153.94 96.06 250.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 134 CHAMBERLAIN592-548-921.013
0.00 37.01 188.97 111.03 300.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 510 CLARKSTON592-548-921.014
0.00 23.15 384.26 115.74 500.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 375 CONKLIN592-548-921.015
0.00 38.92 152.71 97.29 250.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 698 CUSHING592-548-921.016
0.00 38.42 153.95 96.05 250.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 844 FAIRVIEW592-548-921.017
0.00 43.48 141.29 108.71 250.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 655 FERNHURST592-548-921.018
0.00 40.29 164.20 110.80 275.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 895 HEIGHTS592-548-921.019
0.00 74.20 109.67 315.33 425.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 1803 INDIANWOOD592-548-921.020
0.00 69.01 92.98 207.02 300.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 369 JOSLYN592-548-921.021
0.00 24.14 644.79 205.21 850.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 3825 JOSLYN592-548-921.022
0.00 32.92 436.04 213.96 650.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 4430 JOSLYN592-548-921.023
0.00 43.27 141.83 108.17 250.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 1551 MILLER592-548-921.024
0.00 40.53 154.62 105.38 260.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 15 OVERLAKE592-548-921.025
0.00 39.18 167.25 107.75 275.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 877 PINE TREE592-548-921.026
0.00 28.17 251.39 98.61 350.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 298 SCRIPPS592-548-921.027
0.00 38.07 170.30 104.70 275.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 510 SHADY OAKS592-548-921.028
0.00 61.66 172.53 277.47 450.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 592 SHREWSBURY592-548-921.029
0.00 38.47 323.02 201.98 525.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 1201 SILVERBELL592-548-921.030
0.00 38.76 306.21 193.79 500.00 NATURAL GAS-LIFT 4955 LAPEER592-548-921.031
0.00 42.38 2,422,437.57 1,782,062.43 4,204,500.00 COUNTY SEWER USAGE592-548-926.000
0.00 2.98 8,732.00 268.00 9,000.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT592-548-936.000
0.00 7.98 138,035.52 11,964.48 150,000.00 REPAIRS-SEWERS592-548-939.001

16,860.50 23.14 76,857.46 6,282.04 100,000.00 REPAIRS-SEWER LIFTS592-548-939.003
0.00 62.32 13.94 23.06 37.00 INTERCEPTOR REPAIR OAK/MACOMB592-548-939.004
0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 INFLOW & INFILTRATION PROJECT592-548-967.003

121,405.00 162.60 (194,074.00)382,669.00 310,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-SEWERS592-548-976.000
21,239.00 70.80 8,761.00 0.00 30,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT592-548-977.000

0.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 BOND PRINCIPAL - SRF LOAN592-548-991.000
0.00 0.00 61,830.00 0.00 61,830.00 BOND PRINCIPAL - OMID SERIES A592-548-991.001
0.00 0.00 15,690.00 0.00 15,690.00 BOND PRINCIPAL OMID SERIES B592-548-991.002
0.00 0.00 152,125.00 0.00 152,125.00 BOND PRINCIPAL OMID SERIES 2013A592-548-991.003
0.00 43.36 5,663.51 4,336.49 10,000.00 INTEREST EXPENSE- SRF BOND592-548-995.000
0.00 99.74 42.70 16,157.30 16,200.00 BOND INT - OMID SERIES A592-548-996.001
0.00 17.07 8,044.07 1,655.93 9,700.00 BOND INT - OMID SERIES B592-548-996.002
0.00 99.79 94.01 45,305.99 45,400.00 BOND INT - OMID SERIES 2013A592-548-996.003

173,454.50 45.29 2,957,620.14 2,274,587.36 5,405,662.00 Total Dept 548 - SEWER DEPARTMENT

Dept 556 - WATER DEPARTMENT
18,476.36 84.77 28,175.29 138,348.35 185,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES592-556-740.000
14,063.75 54.71 20,380.25 10,556.00 45,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP592-556-806.000

0.00 0.00 6,906.31 0.00 6,906.31 DATA PROCESSING592-556-807.000
0.00 0.00 1,593.69 0.00 1,593.69 WEB SITE/INTERNET592-556-807.001

325



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 31/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 592 - WATER & SEWER
Expenditures

0.00 6.17 31,900.75 2,099.25 34,000.00 ENGINEER FEES-NOT CAPITALIZED592-556-811.001
0.00 1.91 23,542.00 458.00 24,000.00 REGULATORY FEES & TESTING592-556-830.000
0.00 33.10 2,341.65 1,158.35 3,500.00 ELECTRIC-TOWER 2011 BROWN592-556-920.001
0.00 0.00 350.00 0.00 350.00 ELECTRIC-VAULT 1690 BROWN592-556-920.002
0.00 80.52 1,168.90 4,831.10 6,000.00 ELECTRIC-BOOSTER 789 BALDWIN592-556-920.003
0.00 71.25 86.25 213.75 300.00 ELECTRIC-PRV 4560 GIDDINGS592-556-920.004
0.00 81.02 56.94 243.06 300.00 ELECTRIC-PRV 4901 GIDDINGS592-556-920.005
0.00 23.62 229.14 70.86 300.00 ELECTRIC-PRV 2247 INDIANWOOD592-556-920.006
0.00 62.12 142.06 232.94 375.00 ELECTRIC-PRV 600 LAPEER592-556-920.007
0.00 68.16 95.52 204.48 300.00 ELECTRIC-PRV 3345 LAPEER592-556-920.008
0.00 75.44 92.11 282.89 375.00 ELECTRIC-802 LAPEER592-556-920.009
0.00 62.79 111.64 188.36 300.00 ELECTRIC-3100 LAPEER592-556-920.010
0.00 11.31 7,272.80 927.20 8,200.00 NATURAL GAS-WATER TOWER 2011 BROWN592-556-921.001
0.00 18.25 286.13 63.87 350.00 NATURAL GAS-VAULT 1690 BROWN592-556-921.002
0.00 36.16 191.52 108.48 300.00 NATURAL GAS-BOOSTER 789 BALDWIN592-556-921.003
0.00 47.12 1,956,462.99 1,743,537.01 3,700,000.00 NOCWA- WATER PURCHASES592-556-927.000
0.00 5.78 9,892.97 607.03 10,500.00 REPAIRS & MAINT-EQUIPMENT592-556-936.000
0.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 REPAIRS-PUMP HOUSES592-556-938.000
0.00 18.66 65,069.13 14,930.87 80,000.00 REPAIRS WATER SYSTEM592-556-939.002
0.00 58.39 9,154.36 12,845.64 22,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-WATER592-556-976.001

46,938.25 18,184.50 (55,358.46)8,726.32 306.11 CAPITAL OUTLAY-WATER592-556-976.001-21WS002
0.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-EQUIPMENT592-556-977.000

79,478.36 48.72 2,126,143.94 1,940,633.81 4,146,256.11 Total Dept 556 - WATER DEPARTMENT

262,932.86 47.81 6,214,693.27 5,430,720.56 11,908,346.69 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

(262,932.86)142.92 (324,090.63)1,342,201.80 755,178.31 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

262,932.86 47.81 6,214,693.27 5,430,720.56 11,908,346.69 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 53.48 5,890,602.64 6,772,922.36 12,663,525.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 592 - WATER & SEWER:

326



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR ORION TOWNSHIP 32/32Page:08/31/2022 02:41 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2022
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.58

ENCUMBERED
YEAR-TO-DATE

% BDGT
USED

UNENCUMBERED
BALANCE

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2022

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2022

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 596 - GARBAGE/RUBBISH COLLECTION FUND
Revenues
Dept 000

0.00 0.00 365,000.00 0.00 365,000.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES596-000-607.000
0.00 0.00 11,750.00 0.00 11,750.00 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND596-000-676.101

0.00 0.00 376,750.00 0.00 376,750.00 Total Dept 000

0.00 0.00 376,750.00 0.00 376,750.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Dept 528 - RUBBISH COLLECTION/DISPOSAL DEPARTMENT

0.00 0.00 3,500.00 0.00 3,500.00 POSTAGE596-528-728.000
0.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 PRINTED FORMS596-528-730.000
0.00 50.00 2,769.34 2,769.66 5,539.00 DATA PROCESSING596-528-807.000
0.00 0.00 672.00 0.00 672.00 TELEPHONE-DESK PHONES596-528-851.000
0.00 46.84 124,935.92 110,064.08 235,000.00 WASTE AND RUBBISH DISPOSAL596-528-919.000
0.00 95.22 4,590.64 91,409.36 96,000.00 ADMIN SERVICE CHARGE TO GENERAL FUND596-528-955.000

0.00 59.60 138,467.90 204,243.10 342,711.00 Total Dept 528 - RUBBISH COLLECTION/DISPOSAL DEPARTMENT

0.00 59.60 138,467.90 204,243.10 342,711.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

0.00 600.03 238,282.10 (204,243.10)34,039.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

0.00 59.60 138,467.90 204,243.10 342,711.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
0.00 0.00 376,750.00 0.00 376,750.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 596 - GARBAGE/RUBBISH COLLECTION FUND:

(2,023,404.80)299.50 (11,073,796.44)10,325,292.25 (2,771,908.99)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

2,023,404.80 55.77 19,128,834.44 22,100,465.38 43,252,704.62 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
0.00 80.10 8,055,038.00 32,425,757.63 40,480,795.63 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS

327



Entry Dates: 08/12/2022 to 08/31/2022 

Page: 08/31/2022 02:43 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

1/4JOURNAL REGISTER FOR ORION TOWNSHIP

Posted and Unposted Journal Entries

CRDRDescriptionGL Number
  UserDescriptionJNLDateJournal Number

  tgravesTO REVERSE MANUAL JOURNAL ENTRY: 17417POOL07/22/202217487
POSTED BY tgraves

6,958.82 INVESTMENTS OAK CTY GEN100-000-017.005
3,307.54 DUE TO GENERAL100-000-214.101

717.66 DUE TO FIRE100-000-214.206
1,074.02 DUE TO POLICE100-000-214.207

389.55 DUE TO PARK & RECREATION FUND100-000-214.208
40.22 DUE TO CIA100-000-214.247
779.04 DUE TO GEN CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT100-000-214.401
159.57 DUE TO SAFETY PATHS100-000-214.402
25.33 DUE TO FIRE CAP IMPROVEMENT100-000-214.406
465.89 DUE TO HOST FEE FUND100-000-214.417

3,307.54 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS101-000-010.000
3,307.54 INTEREST EARNED101-000-664.000

717.66 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS206-000-010.000
717.66 INTEREST EARNED206-000-664.000

1,074.02 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS207-000-010.000
1,074.02 INTEREST EARNED207-000-664.000

389.55 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS208-000-010.000
389.55 INTEREST EARNED208-000-664.000

40.22 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS247-000-010.000
40.22 INTEREST EARNED247-000-664.000

779.04 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS401-000-010.000
779.04 INTEREST EARNED401-000-664.000

159.57 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS402-000-010.000
159.57 INTEREST EARNED402-000-664.000

25.33 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS406-000-010.000
25.33 INTEREST EARNED406-000-664.000

465.89 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS417-000-010.000
465.89 INTEREST EARNED417-000-664.000

263.84 BANK CHARGES101-253-958.000
263.84 INVESTMENTS OAK CTY GEN100-000-017.005
263.84 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS101-000-010.000

263.84 DUE TO GENERAL100-000-214.101

14,445.32 14,445.32 

  tgravesTO REVERSE MANUAL JOURNAL ENTRY: 17451GJ07/28/202217488
POSTED BY tgraves

233.44 SPECIAL ASSMT RECEIVABLE - LONG LAKE101-000-196.268
233.44 DEFERRED REVENUE LT SAD101-000-339.002

233.44 233.44 

Notes: WE HOLD ASSETS AT SELF-INSURANCE AND EARN INTEREST AS WELL AS PAY OUT
CLAIMS AND PAY THE DEDUCTIBLE.

  tgravesCHANGE IN ASSETS-SELF INSURANCE-2ND QTRPOOL06/30/202217485
POSTED BY tgraves

1,142.36 INTEREST EARNED101-000-664.000
3,000.00 IBNR INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE101-248-917.000

4,142.36 ASSETS HELD AT SELF-INSURANCE-MRMMA101-000-059.000

4,142.36 4,142.36 

  tgravesCORRECT EXPENSE DISTRIBUTIONGJ08/15/202217486
POSTED BY tgraves

24.06 DUES & MISC101-212-956.000
24.06 DUES & MISC101-262-956.000

18.13 MILEAGE101-212-861.000
18.13 MILEAGE101-262-861.000

42.19 42.19 

  tgravesRECORD PAYOFF 09-02-204-017GJ07/28/202217489
POSTED BY tgraves

226.82 SPECIAL ASSMT RECEIVABLE - LONG LAKE101-000-196.268
226.82 DEFERRED REVENUE LT SAD101-000-339.002

226.82 226.82 

Notes: THE TRADE IN SHOULD NOT BE AGAINST THE PURCHASE EXPENSE BUT RATHER
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF ASSETS.

  tgravesCORRECT CAPITAL PURCHASE TRADE INGJ07/29/202217490
POSTED BY tgraves

7,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES101-265-978.000

328



Entry Dates: 08/12/2022 to 08/31/2022 

Page: 08/31/2022 02:43 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

2/4JOURNAL REGISTER FOR ORION TOWNSHIP

Posted and Unposted Journal Entries

CRDRDescriptionGL Number
  UserDescriptionJNLDateJournal Number

7,000.00 GAIN/LOSS ON SALE OF ASSETS 101-000-673.000

7,000.00 7,000.00 

  tgravesTRANSFER FROM OC INV POOL TO GEN POOLGJ08/15/202217491
POSTED BY tgraves

2,000,000.00 INVESTMENTS-GEN-OAK COUNTY POOLED100-000-017.005
2,000,000.00 CHECKING - POOLED CASH - CHASE BANK100-000-001.000

2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 

  tgravesCLOSED CD 95422 DAN'S EXCAVATINGPOOL08/18/202217492
POSTED BY tgraves

9,695.11 CD - CONTRACTOR PERF GUAR DEPOSITS101-000-001.006
9,695.11 CHECKING - POOLED CASH - CHASE BANK100-000-001.000
9,695.11 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS101-000-010.000

9,695.11 DUE TO GENERAL FUND100-000-214.101

19,390.22 19,390.22 

  ACoyleOVERBUDGET - IDBA08/25/202217493
POSTED BY ACoyle

500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-171-740.000
1,500.00 TRAVEL ALLOWANCE101-171-863.000

555.00 SPECIAL EVENTS-VETERAN'S MEMORIAL 5K101-171-881.102
2,555.00 OVERTIME101-171-713.000

1,000.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS101-215-704.000
1,000.00 OVERTIME101-215-713.000

100.00 FSA ADMIN FEES101-215-716.004
500.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-215-740.000
400.00 DUES & MISC101-215-956.000

1,000.00 OVERTIME101-215-713.000
3,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-262-740.000

7,000.00 OVERTIME101-265-713.000
7,000.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES101-265-978.000
1,000.00 LEGAL-DEMOLITION/CONDEMNATION101-400-802.004
3,500.00 DUES & MISC101-400-956.000

4,500.00 OVERTIME101-400-713.000
6,000.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP101-446-806.000

6,000.00 BALDWIN STREETLIGHTS101-446-920.909
1,000.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS101-721-851.001

1,000.00 OVERTIME101-721-713.000
50.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP-STORMWATER101-747-806.000
550.00 STORMWATER DRAINS101-747-976.002

600.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP-STORMWATER101-747-806.000
530.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE207-301-910.000

530.00 DUES & MISC207-301-956.000
300.00 ATTORNEY FEES247-751-802.000

300.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY- GROUNDS247-751-974.000
1,000.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS249-371-704.000
1,000.00 CELLULAR-PHONES/TABLETS249-371-851.001

2,000.00 OVERTIME249-371-713.000
1,000.00 FSA ADMIN FEES592-248-716.004
1,000.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE592-248-910.000

2,000.00 OVERTIME592-248-713.000
1,500.00 BOND INT - OMID SERIES 2013A592-548-996.003

1,500.00 COUNTY SEWER USAGE592-548-926.000
10,000.00 ADMIN SERVICE CHARGE TO GENERAL FUND596-528-955.000

10,000.00 WASTE AND RUBBISH DISPOSAL596-528-919.000
3,000.00 OVERTIME101-262-713.000

42,985.00 42,985.00 

  ACoyleOVERBUDGET - IDBA08/25/202217494
POSTED BY ACoyle

50.00 LAKE ORION SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS101-747-969.008
50.00 CONTRACTUAL HELP-STORMWATER101-747-806.000

50.00 50.00 

  ACoyleOVERBUDGET - ID - FIREBA08/25/202217495
POSTED BY ACoyle

500.00 PROTECTIVE CLOTHING206-336-742.000
500.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS206-336-704.000

10,000.00 NONSUPERVISORY SALARIES206-336-703.000
10,000.00 ATTORNEY FEES206-336-802.000

5,000.00 PROTECTIVE CLOTHING206-336-742.000
5,000.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE206-336-910.000

329



Entry Dates: 08/12/2022 to 08/31/2022 

Page: 08/31/2022 02:43 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

3/4JOURNAL REGISTER FOR ORION TOWNSHIP

Posted and Unposted Journal Entries

CRDRDescriptionGL Number
  UserDescriptionJNLDateJournal Number

2,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.000
2,000.00 NATURAL GAS-STATION 2206-336-921.002

2,000.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES206-336-740.000
2,000.00 ELECTRIC-STATION 4206-336-920.004

19,500.00 19,500.00 

  ACoyleBA - ID - FIREBA08/25/202217496
POSTED BY ACoyle

500.00 ACCRUED PAYOUTS206-336-704.000
500.00 HEALTH ALLOWANCE (OPT OUT)206-336-716.001

500.00 500.00 

  ACoyleBA - ID - FIREBA08/25/202217497
POSTED BY ACoyle

2,000.00 ELECTRIC-STATION 4206-336-920.004
2,000.00 NATURAL GAS-STATION 4206-336-921.004

2,000.00 2,000.00 

  tgravesRECORD FUNDBALANCE CONTRACTSGJ08/30/202217498
POSTED BY tgraves

166,108.16 FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED208-000-390.000
166,108.16 FUND BALANCE -  CONTRACTS208-000-390.005

166,108.16 166,108.16 

  tgravesRECORD RETAINAGE AFTER FINAL MUNI COMPLEGJ08/30/202217499
POSTED BY tgraves

88,604.09 RETAINAGE PAYABLE470-000-202.001
88,604.09 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES470-958-975.001

88,604.09 88,604.09 

  tgravesRECORD ASSIGNED CONTRACTSGJ08/30/202217500
POSTED BY tgraves

318,963.60 FUND BALANCE-UNASSIGNED470-000-390.000
318,963.60 FUND BALANCE - ASSIGNED470-000-390.004

318,963.60 318,963.60 

  tgravesRECORD FB NONSPENDABLEGJ08/30/202217501
POSTED BY tgraves

3,000.00 FUND BALANCE - UNASSIGNED101-000-390.000
3,000.00 FUND BALANCE - NONSPENDABLE PREPAIDS101-000-390.002

3,000.00 3,000.00 

  tgravesRECORD FIRE SUPPRESSION PERMITSPOOL06/30/202217502
POSTED BY tgraves

1,625.00 FIRE SUPPRESSION CONSULTANT249-371-817.000
1,625.00 FIRE ALARM & SUPPRESSION PERMIT FEES206-000-485.000
1,625.00 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS249-000-010.000

1,625.00 DUE TO BUILDING DEPT FUND100-000-214.249
1,625.00 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS206-000-010.000

1,625.00 DUE TO FIRE FUND100-000-214.206

4,875.00 4,875.00 

  tgravesRECORD FIRE SUPRESSION PERMITSPOOL07/31/202217503
POSTED BY tgraves

1,225.00 FIRE SUPPRESSION CONSULTANT249-371-817.000
1,225.00 FIRE ALARM & SUPPRESSION PERMIT FEES206-000-485.000
1,225.00 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS249-000-010.000

1,225.00 DUE TO BUILDING DEPT FUND100-000-214.249
1,225.00 EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS206-000-010.000

1,225.00 DUE TO FIRE FUND100-000-214.206

3,675.00 3,675.00 

  tgravesTRANSFER FROM INDNWD TO GENERALGJ08/30/202217504
POSTED BY tgraves

26,964.70 SAVINGS - INDIANWOOD LK BOARD - CHASE 100-000-003.710
26,964.70 CHECKING - POOLED CASH - CHASE BANK100-000-001.000

26,964.70 26,964.70 

330



Entry Dates: 08/12/2022 to 08/31/2022 

Page: 08/31/2022 02:43 PM
User: tgraves
DB: Orion Township

4/4JOURNAL REGISTER FOR ORION TOWNSHIP

Posted and Unposted Journal Entries

CRDRDescriptionGL Number
  UserDescriptionJNLDateJournal Number

2,722,705.90 2,722,705.90 Total:   

331


	Agenda
	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE
	3. PROCLAMATION
	A. National Recovery Month
	Proclamation - National Recovery Month September 2022

	B. National Suicide Prevention Month
	Proclamation - National Suicide Prevention Month September 2022

	C. Patriot Week
	Proclamation - Patriot Week - Sep 2022


	4. CITIZEN OF THE MONTH
	5. APPROVAL OF BILLS
	Board Bills 9-06-22

	6. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
	7. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	8. CONSENT AGENDA
	A. Minutes - Regular Meeting - August 15, 2022
	Minutes BOT August 152022

	B. Minutes - Public Hearing - BBJ Private Maintenance SAD #1 - August 15, 2022
	Minutes Public Hearing - BBJ Private Road Maintenance SAD#1-AUGUST 152022

	C. Minutes - Public Hearing - Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD #2 - August 15, 2022
	Minutes Public Hearing - Lake Orion Water Quality Control SAD#2-AUGUST 152022

	D. Minutes - Public Hearing - Hyatt House Liquor License - August 15, 2022
	Minutes Public Hearing - Hyatt House Liquor License-AUGUST 152022

	E. Schedule Budget Workshop
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - Schedule Budget Workshop 9.19.22

	F. SMART FY23 Municipal Credit & Community Credit Contract
	09062022 - SMART Contract FY2023 cover memo
	09062022 - SMART Contract FY2023

	G. Tuition Reimbursement - Tandem Graves
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - Tuition Reimbursement T Graves7

	H. Deputy Treasurer Appointment
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - Deputy
	ORION BOT Ltr Regarding Agreement Deputy Treasurer with Attachments 2022.08.23.pdf.2
	Orion Resolution to Approve Dep Treasurer and Compensation 2022.08.23
	ORION Ltr of Agreement Deputy Treasurer_2022.08.23
	Pam Dohm thanking for service

	I. Hire Treasurer Department Accounting Specialist
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - B Bunker Accounting Specialist

	J. Fire Department Resignation
	Agenda Item Summary Memo - Accept Resignation Vande Voort

	K. MEDC Grant Agreement - RRC Technical Assistance
	09-06-2022_Agenda Memo - MEDC Grant Agreement - RRC Technical Assistance
	Case-361228 Charter Township of Orion - Exe Copy


	9. PENDING
	A. LS-22-04 Devlin Request to Combine Nonconforming Lots of Record
	Agenda item request Transmittal LS-22-04 Devlin Request to Combine Nonconforming Lots of Record
	Orion Letter to BOT RE Nonconforming Lot combo REVISED.2
	LS-22-04 Devlin Memo
	application
	Aerial image
	Agenda item request Transmittal LS-22-04 Devlin Request to Combine Nonconforming Lots of Record.Amended

	B. PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Site Condominium and Condominium Documents
	Agenda item request Transmittal PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Site Condominium and Condominium Documents
	PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve PC minutes from 8-17-22
	File_  2022-07-18 Waldon Reserve - Site Plan Application
	File_  2022-07-14 Waldon Reserve - Site Plan 7-20-22
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Engineer Site Plan Review
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Engineer Wetland Review
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Fire Marshal Review
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Planner Review
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Condo Documents Planner Review
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Public Services Review
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Water Resources Commissioner Review
	File_  PC-22-30 Waldon Reserve Site Walk Report
	File_  EGLE Pre-App Letter
	File_  SUBMITTAL EGLE Applicaiton-Waldon Reserve-7.15.2022
	Exhibit B
	Orion Letter BOT RE Waldon Meadows Master Deed and Bylaws.2.pdf REVISED

	C. PC-22-31 1112 through 1128 Lapeer Rd. Rezone
	Agenda item request Transmittal PC-22-31 1112-1128 Lapeer Rd Rezone Request
	08172022 PC Public Hearing Minutes PC-22-31, 1112-1128 Lapeer Rd. Rezone from (RB) to (GB)
	PC-22-31  8-17-22 Minutes
	File_  PC-22-31, 1112-1128 Lapeer Rd. Rezone Application (1)
	File_  PC-22-31, 1112-1128 Lapeer Rd. Rezone Planner Review

	D. Orion Community Foundation
	09-06-2022_Agenda Memo - Orion Community Foundation


	10. REPORTS
	A. Police/Fire Reports
	ORION WEEKLY- 8-08-2022 to 8-14-2022
	ORION WEEKLY- 8-15-2022 to 8-21-2022
	ORION WEEKLY- 8-22-2022 to 8-28-2022
	Fire Report for Sept 6 mtg

	B. Financial Reports - Clerk
	Agenda Memo
	Balance Sheets
	Income Statements
	Manual journal entires

	ORION WEEKLY- 8-08-2022 to 8-14-2022

	11. PUBLIC COMMENT (3 minutes or less) *Board does not respond during public comment
	12. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT
	13. ADJOURNMENT

